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From the muddy Mississippi River to the 
boroughs of New York, financial experts 
acknowledge First NBC Bank as one of the 
leading institutions that is helping to rebuild 
New Orleans and the metropolitan area. 

First NBC Bank’s economic commitment 
to the communities it serves was also 
noted by Nasdaq when the Bank’s holding 
company became a publicly-traded financial 
institution on May 10, 2013:

Since its foundation, 
First NBC Bank has made 
a positive impact on the 
local economies in New 
Orleans, Louisiana and 
Southeast Louisiana. 

- Nelson Griggs, Nasdaq 
Executive Vice President

The New Orleans Metro area’s economy, 
which traditionally was driven by tourism 
and port activity, is now a diversified 
landscape. Included in its post-Katrina 
portfolio are petrochemical companies, 
a growing medical services corridor, 

technology and modern manufacturing 
industries.

The Bank’s primary market is broadly 
defined as the Greater New Orleans 
metropolitan area and the Gulf Coast. The 
on-going reconstruction has created a 
stronger historic region, a highly attractive 
demographic and a bright economic 
landscape for First NBC Bank.

Much of this success is due to a strong 
relationship banking customer base along 
with Federal and State Tax Credits. The three 
working in tandem have yielded numerous 
multi-million dollar projects. The projects 
do more than revitalize buildings--they 
add much needed jobs throughout the 
Gulf Coast region of the State. The Bank is 
committed to the concept that a successful 
community bank must serve the needs of its 
community as well as its customers. Officers 
and employees are heavily involved in civic 
and community organizations, and provide 
substantial sponsorship dollars to activities 
that benefit the community.

“

”



Delivering world-class service through 

developing long-term relationships with our Clients,

while providing a great place to work for our Employees,

and demonstrating outstanding corporate citizenship within our Communities,

resulting in exceptional returns for our Shareholders.

Our Mission
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MAKING BANKING CONVENIENT FOR YOU  
WITH 35 LOCATIONS AND GROWING!

ORLEANS PARISH
1. Main Office - (504) 566-8000
210 Baronne St., New Orleans, LA 70112
2. Mid City Office - (504) 252-4345
4011 Canal St., New Orleans, LA 70119
3. St. Charles Office - (504) 252-4330
3335 St. Charles Ave., New Orleans, LA 70115
4. Read Office - (504) 671-3875
5733 Read Blvd., New Orleans, LA 70127
5. DeGaulle Office - (504) 252-4300
4901 General DeGaulle Dr., New Orleans, LA 70131
6. Carondelet Office - (504) 671-3560
233 Carondelet St., New Orleans, LA 70130
7. Lakeview Office - (504) 671-3520
851 Harrison Ave., New Orleans, LA 70124
8. Poydras Office - (504) 252-4184
1615 Poydras Street, New Orleans, LA 70112

JEFFERSON PARISH
9. Elmwood Office - (504) 671-3510
1105 S. Clearview Parkway, Jefferson, LA 70121
10. Kenner Office - (504) 671-3540
3535 Chateau Blvd. Suite 19, Kenner, LA 70065
11. Veterans Office - (504) 671-3530
521 Veterans Memorial Blvd., Metairie, LA 70005
12. Transcontinental Office - (504) 671-3425
4900 Veterans Memorial Blvd., Metairie, LA 70006
13. Terrytown Office - (504) 671-3550

2021 Carol Sue Ave., Terrytown, LA 70056
14. Lapalco Office - (504) 671-3570
3804 Lapalco Blvd., Harvey, LA 70058
15. Manhattan Office - (504) 252-4315
1855 Manhattan Blvd., Harvey, LA 70058
16. Cleary Office - (504) 252-4360
3900 Veterans Memorial Blvd. Suite 101, Metairie, LA 70002

LIVINGSTON PARISH
17. Denham Springs Office - (225) 706-1357
1010 S. Range Ave., Denham Springs, LA 70726

TANGIPAHOA PARISH
18. Amite Office - (985) 819-1345
400 W. Oak St., Amite, LA 70422
19. SW Railroad Office - (985) 819-1330
1110 SW Railroad Ave., Hammond, LA 70403
20. Ponchatoula Office - (985) 819-1360
200 W. Hickory St., Ponchatoula, LA 70454
21. Kentwood Office - (985) 819-1450
606 Avenue G, Kentwood, LA 70444

ST. TAMMANY PARISH
22. Gause Central Office - (985) 265-1000
551 Gause Blvd., Slidell, LA 70458
23. Gause West Office - (985) 649-3535
2130 Gause Blvd.West, Slidell, LA 70460

24. Gause East Office - (985) 781-2265
2077 Gause Blvd. East, Slidell, LA 70461
25. Madisonville Office - (985) 819-1310
707 Main St., Madisonville, LA 70447
26. Mandeville Office - (985) 626-4488
1347 N. Causeway Blvd., Mandeville, LA 70471
27. Covington Office - (985) 819-1465
70444 Highway 21, Covington, LA 70433
28. Pearl River Office - (985) 819-1385
64243 Highway 41, Pearl River, LA 70452
29. Brownswitch Office - (985) 768-4560
740 Brownswitch Rd., Slidell, LA 70458
30. Pontchartrain Office - (985) 819-1240
4001 Pontchartrain Dr., Slidell, LA 70458
31. Lacombe Office - (985) 819-1200
29092 Krentel Rd., Lacombe, LA 70445

WASHINGTON PARISH
32. Bogalusa Office - (985) 819-1320
200 Richmond St., Bogalusa, LA 70427

CRESTVIEW, FLORIDA
33. Central Office - (850) 682-5111
1301 Industrial Dr., Crestview, FL 32539
34. Downtown Motor Bank - (850) 682-5112
385 North Spring St., Crestview, FL 32536
35. Southside Office - (850) 682-3111
2541 S. Hwy 85, Crestview, FL 32536

We Bring Banking to You

www.firstnbcbank.com
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Letter to the Shareholders

Fellow Shareholders:

It is my great pleasure to provide our shareholders with 
an update on First NBC Bank Holding Company, and its 
primary subsidiary, First NBC Bank, for the year 2014.  
During the past year, our Company continued its strong 
growth and operating results consistent with prior years.  
As of December 31, 2014, the Company’s total assets were 
$3.8 billion, an increase of 14% over that of the prior year 
end.  Total loans reached $2.8 billion reflecting an 18% 
growth rate.  Our net income available to common share-
holders totaled $54.1 million for 2014, a 40% increase 
over the $38.6 million generated in 2013.  Earnings per 
share on a fully diluted basis was $2.84, an increase of 
22% over the $2.32 for 2013.  In addition to the financial 
success we achieved in 2014, we believe there have been 
a number of accomplishments during the year that will 

enhance our Company’s ability to build the base for a 
continuation of our strong growth in assets and earnings 
over the near to intermediate future.

The discussion that follows will cover some of the key 
themes of our 2014 success and comment on some of 
our initiatives for 2015 and beyond.  But first I would like 
to express my sincere appreciation for your investment 
in our Company on behalf of our First NBC team.  With-
out you, we could not accomplish the results we have 
achieved since our inception in May of 2006.

Our Strategy

We firmly believe that our success is directly related to 
the commitment of everyone on the First NBC team to 
our corporate strategy.  We are a community bank; but 
to us that is a measure of our state of mind rather than 
of our asset size.  Our focus is on providing a full range of 
high quality financial services to our customers using a 
relationship management strategy.  We build these rela-
tionships through a relationship manager who is charged 
with the oversight of the total relationship with the 
customer and with ensuring our products and services 
meet the financial needs of that customer.  We insist that 
these relationship managers build an understanding of 
the customer’s financial needs and that we meet as many 
of these needs as possible.  We strongly believe that the 
customer’s best interests must take precedence over our 
profitability, a principle that the banking industry seems 
to have lost sight of over the years.  Because understand-
ing the customer’s needs is a long term process that is 
complicated by changes to those needs and the eco-
nomic environment over time, we place great emphasis 
on three key parts of our strategy – customer retention, 
continuity of the customer’s relationship manager and 
gaining additional share of the customer’s financial 
wallet over time.  A key corollary to our strategy is to 
accurately measure our customer profitability to ensure 
that we know who our most profitable customers are and 
to retain these customers over time.  All of our products 
and services reflect this approach with all of our pricing 
reflecting the value of the customer’s total relationship 
and not line of business profitability considerations.  Our 
focus on long-term, personal relationships developed by 
a talented relationship banker who is the quarterback 
for the service team of specialists and support personnel 
is, in our opinion, the key to our success in growing our 
bank through remarkable customer retention and expan-

Ashton J. Ryan, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer
First NBC Bank Holding Company
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sion of customer share of wallet.  In an age when billions 
of dollars of fines and settlements are being paid by 
many of our larger competitors for “unfair and deceptive 
practices,” we are the contrarian putting the customers’ 
best interests, and not our best interests, at the forefront 
of our strategy.  Our primary challenge is not the contin-
uation of our growth but rather the continuation of our 
commitment to our strategy as we grow.

New Orleans Economy

We are a community bank and as such our results reflect 
the health of the economy of the area in which we live.  
The health of the New Orleans area economy is very 
strong today.  For the five or six years after Katrina, the 
New Orleans economy was very strong, driven by billions 
of dollars of recovery spending arising from insurance 
proceeds and Federal recovery grants.  Today, although 
those funding sources continue at a greatly reduced rate, 
our economy is driven by strong fundamental forces 
which reflect New Orleans’ traditional strengths: hospi-
tality and tourism, the port complex and the petrochem-
ical manufacturing industry. In addition, the area has 
seen a regeneration of its infrastructure and of its public 
education which has attracted an influx of new business-
es and entrepreneurs and puts it in the list of top cities 
for economic opportunity in our country.  The 50 year 
“brain drain” for which the area was infamous has now 
shifted to a “brain gain” as highly educated young adults 
move to New Orleans attracted by the economic oppor-
tunity combined with the historical ambiance of the City, 
its culture, music and food.

Hospitality has traditionally been New Orleans’ dominant 
industry and 2014 marked a full return of this industry to 
its pre-eminent position in our economy.  Visitors in 2014 
totaled 9.5 million, the highest level in the city’s history.  
And those visitors spent $6.8 billion, again a city record.  
Our hotels reached a RevPAR (the traditional measure of 
hotel profitability) of $100 for 2014, an increase of 4.5% 
over 2013.  In fact, our hotel performance has led to a 
number of projects to add to our hotel capacity currently 
under construction or in the development stage.  The 
expansion of our hospitality industry reflects the return 
of our traditional fly-in convention business, which 
disappeared from 2005 to 2010, combined with the newly 
focused drive-in festival business, which was expanded 
after Katrina to fill the gap left by the absence of the con-
vention business.  Today, the two hospitality segments 
have made New Orleans, historically a great tourist city 
from Sunday through Thursday (convention business), 
into a full week business as the drive-in tourism is pri-
marily a Friday and weekend business.

The second major industry in our area is the Port of New 
Orleans, one of the great ports of the world due to its lo-
cation on the Mississippi River.  After years of neglect and 
loss of cargo to other southern ports, New Orleans has 
added to its port to modernize it and take advantage of 

its location.  2014 was a strong year for the port and the 
two primary port systems, New Orleans and South Lou-
isiana, ranked 1st and 4th in the U.S. in terms of tonnage 
in the latest rankings.  With the widening of the Panama 
Canal to allow it to accommodate the huge Chinese con-
tainer ships in 2016, the Port will see a major expansion 
in its business activity.

The third major industry, petrochemical manufacturing, 
is in the process of a huge expansion driven by a large 
volume of affordable natural gas due to prolific natural 
gas finds in the Haynesville Shale near Shreveport.  The 
expansion announced to date is in the $80.0 billion range 
statewide in construction and provides substantial job 
creation.  The recent sharp pullback in energy prices 
actually benefits this industry since natural gas is both a 
raw material as well as a fuel source for the industry.

There has been a lot of investor concern related to the 
oil price pullback and its impact on the New Orleans 
economy and on First NBC Bank.  Although New Orleans 
sits above the center of oil and gas activity in Louisiana, 
South Louisiana has very little direct exposure to that 
industry.  Prior to the last oil crisis which peaked in 1986, 
New Orleans had thousands of white collar jobs in the 
city in the regional headquarters of the large oil compa-
nies and in the headquarters of major oil field service 
businesses.  Almost all of these left the area after the oil 
crash in 1986.  South Louisiana is the center of the Gulf 
of Mexico service industry and the jumping off point for 
labor and supplies for the shallow and deep water explo-
ration and production in the Gulf and is being affected 
by the oil price pullback.  How significant this impact 
will be depends on the depth and duration of the pull-
back.  First NBC has very limited exposure (3% of its loan 
portfolio) to the oil and oil service industries.  Moreover, 
the New Orleans economy has very low exposure to the 
oil industry, especially given the strong prospects for its 
primary economic drivers.

Merger and Acquisition

Throughout its nine-year existence, First NBC has grown 
primarily through branch expansion and customer cap-
ture from our competitors.  We have, however, also taken 
advantage of opportunities to make targeted acquisitions 
where we felt the target added to our strategic vision and 
produced positive results for our shareholders.  The key 
example of this is our acquisition of a failed bank on the 
Northshore of Lake Pontchartrain, Central Progressive 
Bank, which positioned us to compete across the entire 
New Orleans market.  Today, we have grown the acquired 
deposits from $322.0 million at acquisition to $860.0 
million over the past three plus years.  Over the past 
year, we have seen a number of opportunities to acquire 
banking assets.  In December, we announced a definitive 
agreement to acquire all of the stock of State Investors 
Bancorp for $51.0 million in cash. State Investors had 
total assets of $271.9 million as of December 31, 2014.  
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The acquisition is subject to the vote of the sharehold-
ers of State Investors and the approval of the regulatory 
authorities.  The acquisition is an in-market merger with 
three of State Investors’ four locations within a mile or 
two of our locations.  The merger adds $156.0 million to 
our deposit base, adds a new attractive service area to 
our New Orleans base and provides the opportunity for 
substantial cost synergies.

In January of 2015, First NBC was the winning bidder for 
a failed bank in Crestview, Florida with deposits of $72.3 
million; First NBC acquired only performing loans and 
banking premises totaling $62.0 million along with a cash 
payment from the FDIC of $10.1 million.  We believe that 
the Panhandle of Florida offers substantial expansion 
opportunities for the Company over the next five years 
due to its attractive demographics, competitive environ-
ment, and strong population growth. Moreover, there are 
substantial cultural and economic relationships between 
New Orleans and the Panhandle with many New Orlea-
nians owning vacation property in the Panhandle and 
many New Orleans businesses operating in that region of 
Florida.  Our primary expansion plans remained focused 
on Louisiana but over time we believe that geographical 
diversification of our franchise will enhance the Compa-
ny’s value.

We will remain an opportunistic acquirer taking ad-
vantage of acquisition opportunities that fit within our 
strategic plan and meet our targeted returns.  We do not 
need acquisitions to meet our growth goals but believe 
the right ones can substantially enhance our shareholder 
value.

Tax Credits

The most discussed and misunderstood part of our busi-
ness is our investment in tax credits.  Over the years, we 
have greatly expanded our financial statement disclosure 
in order to provide transparency on this aspect of our 
business.  Again this year, we have added additional dis-
closure in the form of an expanded look at our five year 
pipeline of tax credits (see Table 21 in the Management’s 
Discussion & Analysis (MD&A) section of this annual 
report) and also expanded our non-GAAP disclosures 
so that the reader can better understand the impact of 
our tax credit business on our final numbers.  I am often 
asked why we invest in tax credits when most other 
banks our size do not. My response to that query follows:

- Our investment in tax credits is an integral part of 
our commercial real estate business.  We are com-
mercial lenders with an emphasis on commercial 
real estate, and we use tax credits to enhance our 
commercial real estate lending.  Our investment 
substantially increases the equity in real estate de-
velopment projects which qualify for tax credits and 
thus results in lower loan to value and higher debt 
service coverage ratio, both major risk mitigators for 
our lending risk profile.  Also, our understanding of 
tax credits and our investment in the projects, makes 

us the lender of choice for real estate projects in our 
markets, which has enabled us to dominate this type 
of lending in New Orleans since tax credit equity also 
enhances owner/developer profits.

- We are a community bank and as such are commit-
ted to contributing to the development of our com-
munity.  Our tax credit investments allow projects 
that would not otherwise happen to be developed, 
creating jobs and additional investment in our com-
munities.  We have carried an “outstanding” CRA 
rating since our inception in large part due to these 
investments.  We believe that we have played an inte-
gral role in the redevelopment of New Orleans after 
Katrina and that our market recognizes and appreci-
ates this role which has contributed to our success in 
growing our franchise.

- One part of our strategy is to provide our sharehold-
ers with exceptional returns.  Our investment in tax 
credits helps provide those returns.  Although the 
geography of these returns in our income statement 
is unusual (a credit income tax provision), the net 
returns are excellent and contribute to our strong 
earnings performance.  For a quantification of this 
impact see our non-GAAP analysis in the MD&A 
section of this annual report.

In conclusion, I would again like to thank you for your 
confidence in our Company reflected in your investment 
in First NBC Bank Holding Company.  We view the future 
as one with great promise as we build upon the base we 
have established over the past nine years and take advan-
tage of the opportunities and the current turmoil in our 
industry.

Sincerely,

Ashton J. Ryan, Jr.

President and CEO
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210 Baronne Develop-
ment Properties LLC 
New Orleans (1,2,A)

The National World War 
II Museum 
New Orleans (1,A)

New Orleans Center for 
Creative Arts Institute 
(NOCCA) 
New Orleans (1,2,A,B)

St. Charles Parish Hos-
pital/Plantation View 
Medical Offices 
Destrehan, Louisiana 
(1,A)

Magnolia Marketplace 
LLC 
New Orleans (1,A)

The St. Bernard Project 
Chalmette, Louisiana 
(1,A)

Jericho Road Episcopal  
Housing Initiative, LLC 
New Orleans (1,A)

Ursuline Academy of 
New Orleans 
New Orleans (1,A)

Belleville Assisted Liv-
ing Facility 
New Orleans (1,2,A,B)

The Joy Theater LLC 
New Orleans (1,2,A)

Mid-City Market Place  
(SST Carrollton LLC) 
New Orleans (1,A)

The Carver Theater LLC 
New Orleans (1,2,A)

Circle Food Store 
New Orleans (1,2,A)

Daughters of Charity 
Health Services 
New Orleans East (1,A)

Alembic Myrtle Banks 
LLC 
New Orleans (1,2,A)

Gulf Coast Housing 
Partnership (Polymnia 
and Baronne Project) 
New Orleans (1,2,A)

Condrey Southern 
Hotel 
Covington, Louisiana 
(1,2,A)

South Market District D 
New Orleans (1,A)

Greater New Orleans 
Habitat for Humanity 
New Orleans (1,A)

New Orleans African 
American & Heritage 
Museum 
New Orleans (1,2,A)

Hermes Health Alliance  
New Orleans (1,B)

New Orleans Healing 
Center 
New Orleans (1,2,B)

The Saint Hotel 
New Orleans (1,2,B)

Federal City Retail 
Complex and Parking 
Garage 
New Orleans (1,B)

Urban League of Great-
er New Orleans 
New Orleans (1,B)

Maenza Properties- 
MMI Culinary 
Kenner, Louisiana (1,B)

Holy Cross School, Inc. 
New Orleans (1,B)

CBS Hotel Group 
Chalmette, Louisiana 
(1,B)

Palace Parcels Project 
Hammond, Louisiana 
(1,B)

Green Coast Enterpris-
es/NOLA Community  
Development 
New Orleans (1,2,B)

St. Thomas Community  
Health Clinic 
New Orleans (1,2,B)

New Covington  
Apartments 
Covington, Louisiana (3)

St. Michael’s Senior 
Housing 
New Orleans (3)

New Orleans Military 
and Maritime Academy 
New Orleans (2)

Rebuilding Our Community

Clients
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BELOW IS A REPRESENTATIVE SAMPLE OF 
OUR TAX CREDIT INVESTMENTS

(1) New Markets Tax Credit  (2) Historic Tax Credit  (3) Low Income Housing Credit

(A) FNBC CDE  (B) Non-FNBC CDE



Business expansion continues at a feverish pace in the 
Crescent City along with the creation of thousands of new 
jobs throughout the region. This flurry of activity makes 
street navigation a major but temporary inconvenience-
-a good problem to have as national job growth remains 
at a snail’s pace. Many community leaders attribute this 
new growth to the infusion of state and federal tax credits 
combined with the financial expertise and vision of First 
NBC Bank. The Bank fosters growth in the communities 
in which it serves through its investment in projects 
that generate New Markets Tax Credits, Federal Historic 
Rehabilitation Tax Credits, and Low Income Housing Tax 
Credits.  

An example of New Orleans’ continued growth is the 
tourism industry, which welcomed 9.52 million visitors 
in 2014. Those visitors spent $6.81 billion--the highest 
spending in the city’s history, according to a study released 
by the New Orleans Convention & Visitors Bureau.  As a 
result of this continued expansion in the city, tourism related 
businesses and other opportunities are being presented.  
Many new businesses and real estate development projects 
have arisen from within the communities the Bank serves, 

which supports the continuing growth and expanding 
economy.

Ashton J. Ryan, Jr., First NBC’s Chief Executive Officer 
and President stated “Since our inception, we have been 
committed to supporting projects that we believe will 
have a positive impact on business development in New 
Orleans. The benefits provided by tax credit financing 
are enhancing the redevelopment of our community by 
enabling businesses and projects to be funded efficiently 
and at a low cost to borrowers. We are happy to be able to 
play a significant role in this development.”

Through December 31, 2014, First NBC’s investment in 
various forms of tax credits  totaled almost $406.0 million, 
and the Bank has generated loans of approximately $265.5 
million related to the projects over the last five years. First 
NBC continues to benefit from the tax credits generated 
from the projects, as well as expanded relationships which 
include deposits and loans that generate additional fee and 
interest income associated with these projects. 
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NOCCA

Continuing Growth & Expansion

Clients
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EXAMPLES OF SUCCESS:

First NBC Bank has participated in approximately 
75 tax credit related projects over the last five years.  
Of those, three of the projects in which First NBC 
participated during 2014 were The New Orleans Center 
for Creative Arts (NOCCA) Institute, the Magnolia 
Market Place, LLC development, and The National 
World War II Museum Inc.  

First NBC participated in a large tax credit project 
of approximately $18 million for the renovation and 
expansion of the NOCCA charter school.  The project 
combined state and federal New Markets  and Historic 
Tax Credits and Qualified Zone Academy Bonds in 
providing the sourcing for the project.  First NBC 
invested in most of the tax credits and the Qualified 
Zone Academy Bonds, while also generating loans and 
fees associated with the funding and development.  
Unique to the project is what is called the “Press Street 
Café at NOCCA”.  In the Press Street Café, high school 
students will study in a newly offered culinary arts and 
culinary sciences program. The students will train with 
chefs formerly with Brennan’s and Commander’s Palace 
Restaurants, who are now full time NOCCA employees. 
The expansion included additional buildings for new 
science laboratories and classrooms.  This project 

enables the NOCCA Institute to expand its student 
enrollment as well as expand and deepen its curriculum 
in all of its activities, including the new culinary sciences 
program. 

The second project in which First NBC Bank is an 
investor and lender is The Magnolia Market Place 
development. The market place is a 100,000 sq. ft. shopping 
space which was developed using a combination of 
state and federal New Markets Tax Credits to fund the 
approximate $26 million development budget.  The 
project is located in an area that was previously devoid 
of major name brand retail shops. The new center is 
anchored by Michael’s, PetSmart®, T.J. MAXX, Ulta, and 
Ross Dress for Less in addition to having a Raising 
Cane’s eatery located adjacent to the center. In addition 
to the tax credits, First NBC also established depository 
and lending services to the project. Community leaders 
support the facility because it will generate a significant 
amount of new sales tax for the city along with 275 new 
jobs for residents in the community. Leaders believe 
bringing jobs into the community will have a significant 
impact on neighborhood residents who will have access 
to quality jobs within walking distance. 

Finally, First NBC Bank invested in federal and state 
New Markets Tax Credits to fund The National World 

Magnolia Market Place

Clients



War II Museum’s Campaigns of Courage project.  The 
museum assembles the epic story of American soldiers 
on the battlefield and helps visitors discover how the war 
changed the world.  The Campaigns of Courage is a 32,000 
sq. ft. pavilion that will house two main exhibits: the 
newly opened Road to Berlin: European Theater Galleries 
and the soon to open Road to Tokyo:  The Pacific Theater 
Galleries.  The continuing expansion of the National 
World War II Museum has helped the museum rank as the 
top attraction in New Orleans, the fourth best museum 
in the country, and the 11th best museum in the world, 
according to the TripAdvisor® Travelers’ Choice Awards.

As evidenced in the transactions the Bank has 
participated in to date, First NBC is committed to 
supporting the communities in which it serves.  The Bank 
provides support to its communities by continuing to 
take advantage of the benefits generated from various 
tax credit incentives and programs.  These programs and 
existing relationships enable the Bank to continue its 
growth and expansion in loans and depository services 
within our communities.  

National World War II Museum

National World War II Museum

Clients
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Here’s what clients and community leaders are saying…

Strength | Commitment | Service
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Strength  |  Commitment  |  Service

Joseph A. Jaeger, Jr.
The MCC Group, Board Chairman
MCC Real Estate, President

Founded in 1958, The MCC Group began as a 
mechanical contractor offering its customers a variety of 
preconstruction and construction related services. Today, 
MCC is an innovative regional solutions provider in the 
construction industry and in real estate development, 
offering full development services for a variety of clients 
and project types throughout the Gulf Coast region.  Under 
the guidance of Joe Jaeger, Jr., the team at MCC uses an 
entrepreneurial value-driven approach to identify and 
capture economic and development opportunities. The 
MCC Group utilizes its construction and subcontracting 
experience to produce value through advanced design, 
engineering, and construction efficiencies. Headquartered 
in Metairie, Louisiana, MCC has offices in New Orleans, 
Charlotte and Raleigh, North Carolina, Memphis, 
Tennessee and Pass Christian, Mississippi.  MCC Group 
and MCC Real Estate have combined annual revenues of 
over $400 million.

“Personal attention to clients is what 
sets First NBC apart from other financial 
institutions.  It’s a bank that provides true 
relationship banking.”

Strength  |  Commitment  |  Service

Michael Hecht
President & CEO  
Greater New Orleans, Inc.

Michael Hecht is President & CEO of the Greater New 
Orleans, Inc., the economic development organization for 
Southeast Louisiana. GNO, Inc.’s mission falls broadly into 
two categories: business development – attracting and 
growing business – and product development – creating 
better business conditions. Under Hecht’s leadership, GNO, 
Inc. was recently named the #2 economic development 
organization in the United States by Business Facilities 
magazine.

“First NBC embodies the spirit of the ‘new’ 
New Orleans:  progressive, innovative and 
bold.  First NBC is doing more than financing 
buildings and businesses; it is helping New 
Orleans become the better version of itself.”
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Strength  |  Commitment  |  Service

Paul Flower, P.E.
President & CEO  
Woodward Design+Build

Paul Flower has worked in the construction industry since 
1967. He joined Woodward in 1970 working as a structural 
designer, estimator and project manager/executive on a wide 
range of project types. In 1987, Flower became President 
and CEO of Woodward Design+Build. During his tenure, 
Woodward has grown to become one of the largest design 
and construction organizations in the Gulf Coast Region with 
annual revenues in excess of $200,000,000. In 2004, Flower 
formed Woodward Interests, a real estate development 
company. He is responsible for the development of several 
large commercial projects in the New Orleans area. 

“We have been involved with First NBC and have 
been impressed by both their professionalism 
on complicated tax credit financing, but more 
so on their sense of community as part of their 
lending practices.  New Orleans is experiencing 
a rebirth and First NBC has been an important 
and key player in our transformation.  Our 
city will continue to experience growth and 
prosperity in large part because of the presence 
of First NBC. ”

Strength  |  Commitment  |  Service

LaToya Cantrell
New Orleans City Council,  
District “B”

New Orleans Councilmember Latoya Cantrell was elected to 
the District “B” seat on December 8, 2012, and re-elected 
in February 2014. District B encompasses Canal Street to 
Jefferson Avenue and the Mississippi River to Carrollton 
Avenue. A native New Orleanian, Cantrell graduated from 
Xavier University with a Bachelor of Science in Sociology 
and a minor in Political Science and also completed Harvard 
University’s Kennedy School of Government’s executive 
management program. She has more than ten years of 
executive management experience working in the non-profit 
sector. 

“What has always impressed me about First 
NBC is how it began operations in New Orleans 
in May 2006. This happened when the city 
was still severely reeling from the effects of 
Hurricane Katrina and the levee failures, and 
not many companies were willing to invest in 
our city. Along with First NBC’s fellow founders, 
bank president Ashton J. Ryan Jr. decided to 
make that community investment, solidifying 
First NBC’s commitment to rebuilding New 
Orleans and serving our people.”
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Employees

At First NBC Bank, It All Adds Up! 
GREAT EMPLOYEES + 

A GREAT CLIENT SERVICE CULTURE + 
GREAT CLIENTS = A GREAT PLACE TO WORK

At First NBC Bank we’ve surrounded 
ourselves with some of the brightest, 
talented, and most devoted 
professionals in the financial services 
industry and created an environment 
that makes the bank an all-around 
great place to work.  Our commitment 
to making the bank a great place to 
work is so important that it is part of 
our mission statement.

As a client relationship-based 
company, we recognize that 
employment continuity is important 
to client continuity.  Our turnover rate 
is among the lowest in our industry 
in large part due to our employment 
culture.  We seek individuals with 
a client service-oriented approach 
to their work, energy, enthusiasm, 
determination, and the aspiration to 
create long-term relationships with 
our clients.  

Matching the right candidate to the 
right job is critical and our company 
goes to great lengths in attempting 
to ensure the candidates fully 
understand what is expected of them 
in the role they are seeking.  Once 
employees join our team, we conduct 
a comprehensive two day orientation 
program to better prepare them before 
they begin their career with us.  If they 

are new to their positions, there are 
additional training programs in which 
they may participate.

We focus on several key 
aspects with respect to our 
employment culture:

Recognition – We provide regular 
opportunities to acknowledge 
employees who demonstrate going 
above and beyond for their internal 
and external clients.  Our “First in 
Service” program is one of several ways 
we spotlight our employees’ exemplary 
efforts to provide world class service 
to our clients.  We also coach our 
managers to continually recognize our 
employees’ contributions on various 
projects and assignments throughout 
the year.

Compensation & Benefits – In 
addition to providing competitive pay 
and benefits, we regularly survey our 
employees to gauge their satisfaction 
with our various programs. We share 
the results and actions we’ve taken. 
With our employee stock ownership 
plan, all employees become 
shareholders, which encourages them 
to act like owners.  Our annual bonus 

program also provides opportunity for 
employees at all levels to share in the 
success of the company’s performance.  
There are non-traditional benefits 
we offer, such as academic 
scholarship awards for children and 
grandchildren of our employees.  We 
also provide personalized annual 
total compensation booklets to all 
employees which express the value of 
all elements of their compensation, 
many of which are not directly visible 
on their paychecks.

Talent Development – We created 
a corporate university environment 
for continued learning with the goal 
of having a curriculum for each job.  
There are opportunities for employees 
to advance to higher levels within 
their existing jobs as well as to develop 
skills necessary to be successful in 
other jobs within the company.  Our 
talent development team’s role is to 
work closely with management of 
every department within the company 
to ensure that we are developing our 
personnel to continue to be the best 
in the financial services industry.  Our 
training programs are delivered both in 
person and through computer-based 
learning in order to provide efficiency 
and flexibility for the company and our 
employees.  

Corporate Events –  
Communication is critically 
important within our company, 
and we continue to have quarterly 
all-employee meetings which are                                                                                         
led by our CEO and broadcast live to 
all company locations.  In addition 
to celebrating company successes 
and recognizing individual employee 



Employees

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Community involvement is an integral part of First NBC 
Bank and is part of our mission statement. In our eight 
years of operation, we are proud to say that First NBC Bank 
has taken a lead role among financial institutions to help 
rebuild and revitalize the communities it serves following 
Hurricanes Katrina and Rita. It is also reflected in our efforts 
to provide decent, affordable housing for low-to-moderate 
income residents and to improving the local education system 
beginning with the area’s first Early Childhood Development 
Program. 

In addition to the Bank’s financial support, bank employees 
raise money to help with a wide range of causes from helping in 
the battle against leukemia to partnering with Second Harvest 
Food Bank.

First NBC Bank was named one of the Best Places to Work in 2007, 2009, 
2010, 2011, 2012, 2013, & 2014 among large companies in the New Orle-
ans metropolitan area by the local publication CityBusiness.

WE’RE GROWING

Less than a year after Hurricanes Katrina and 
Rita ravaged the Gulf Coast, First NBC Bank 
received its charter to begin operation from 
the Louisiana Office of Financial Institutions. 
Through overwhelming support from the local 
community, the Bank’s initial capital footings 
exceeded $60 million, which set a record for the 
largest initial capital raised by a Louisiana char-
tered institution.

Since opening in 2006, our workforce has 
grown significantly each year. There are 32 
branches in Southeast Louisiana and a mortgage 
office in Gulfport, Mississippi as of December 
31, 2014. In early January 2015, three additional 
branches were opened in Crestview, FL.

Some of the community programs and  
projects First NBC Bank has supported:
• Childhood & Family  

Learning Foundation
• Louisiana Heroes Project
• Second Harvest Food Bank
• CrimeStoppersGNO
• Jr. Achievement  

Bowl-A-Thon
• Breast Cancer Walk
• Jefferson Performing  

Arts Society
• American Association of 

Indian Professionals
• Jazz on the Bayou
• Friends of City Park/Lark 

in the Park
• Neighborhood  

Development Foundation
• Blessed 26 Mentoring  

Program

• Gulf Coast Housing  
Partnership

• Harmony Neighborhood 
Development

• Dillard University  
Housing Fair

• Elevate New Orleans
• National Council of  

Jewish Women
• Fellowship of Christian 

Athletics
• Preservation Resource- 

Julia Jump

achievements, we revisit our mission 
and discuss focal points for the 
coming quarter.  We also provide 
opportunities for employees to gather 
socially with events such as our annual 
picnic, holiday party and tickets to 
various local community and sporting 
events.

Bank team members play a huge 
role in improving communities where 

they live and where we do business. 
Employees volunteer their own time 
(many with their families) to make a 
difference in the lives of others.  We 
also recognize an employee annually 
with the “Community Service 
Employee of the Year” award which 
includes a donation from the Bank to 
the community organization(s) of the 
employee’s choice.

We have been recognized by 
CityBusiness, an area business 
publication, for being one of the “Best 
Places to Work” in our market for 
seven years, six consecutively an honor 
of which we are extremely proud.

First NBC Bank Holding Company :: 17
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On The Road Again
Bringing Food to Neighbors in Need!

SECOND HARVEST  
MOBILE PANTRY

Hunger threatens a staggering one in six 
Louisiana residents. The thousands affected 
by hunger are often hard-working adults, chil-
dren and seniors who simply cannot make 
ends meet and may be forced to go without 
food for days. To make matters worse, people 
in many neighborhoods do not even have reg-
ular access to a grocery store or a permanent 
food pantry.

With so many fellow citizens facing such 
an alarming need, First NBC Bank is taking 
action. In addition to many financial and 
volunteer initiatives with Second Harvest 
Food Bank, First NBC sponsors a unique mo-
bile pantry, a refrigerated truck that carries 
fresh food into hard-to-reach neighborhoods 
throughout the five parishes of Southeast 
Louisiana: Orleans, Jefferson, St. Tammany, 
Tangipahoa, and Washington.

Residents are often surprised to see Bank 
President Ryan, his top executives and faces 
they recognize from the Bank branches ac-
tually helping to fill food boxes and in some 
cases assisting  elderly citizens to their homes 
with boxes too heavy for them to carry alone. 

The Second Harvest Mobile Pantry pro-
gram augments the work of 14 partner food 
pantries, shelters and meal sites operated 
by churches and other community organi-
zations. From Grand Isle to the GertTown/
Hollygrove neighborhood in New Orleans and 
from Amite City to Bogalusa, the First NBC 
Bank- sponsored Mobile Pantry truck delivers 
enough food for 70,000 nutritious meals every 
month to people who lack fresh food options.   

Community
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Community

Tomorrow’s Leaders Learning Today!
The Spirit of Excellence Academy--Edgar P. Harney Charter School 

Changing lives by educating children
First NBC Bank understands that improving the economic vi-

tality of a community starts at a very basic level, the education of 
its youngest citizens. Edgar P. Harney Elementary School, located 
in one of the under-served neighborhoods, is a rising star in the 
city’s charter school system.  In just five years, students at this 
inner-city school have gone from a failing 29% performance score 
to 70%. 

As a board member and financial officer for the school, First 
NBC President & CEO Ashton J. Ryan, Jr. plays a vital role in 
keeping the school on sound footing. Through the Bank’s philan-
thropic initiatives the school is able to provide equipment and 
programs for its students that would normally be financially out 
of reach.

According to the Reverend Charles J. Southall, III who serves 
as a chairman of the board, the school, with students from kin-

dergarten through eighth grade, does not practice selective en-
rollment. “We open our doors to anybody and everybody” says 
Southall, “and because of that, we are basically dealing with kids 
that are potentially statistics in our community; a life of crime 
that ends in early death.” Southall quickly points out that he’s see-
ing that situation turn around due largely to the school’s commit-
ment and caring for its students.

Southall says he and other community leaders decided that in-
stead of standing on the sidelines and complaining about a fail-
ing school system, they would get involved in creating a charter 
school.  Such an approach has given them the opportunity to run 
the school from a business perspective and insures accountabili-
ty of the leaders and the teachers. 

“Since chartered, the school has improved from an ‘F’ to a ‘C’ 
school. But we’re looking for mastery. As we continue through the 
process, the kids at Harney will be able to compete with the best,” 
says Southall. 

“The school’s vision is to provide a safe learning environment 
where all children are encouraged and challenged to become life-
long learners, critical thinkers, problem solvers, and responsible 
citizens,” says Southall ,” and judging from our progress thus far,  
Edgar P. Harney Elementary is on the right course.”
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Part I. 

Item 1. Business

Unless the context otherwise requires, the words “we,” “our,” and “us” refer to First NBC Bank Holding Company and its 
consolidated subsidiaries.

General

We are a bank holding company, headquartered in New Orleans, Louisiana, which offers a broad range of financial services 
through our wholly-owned banking subsidiary, First NBC Bank, a Louisiana state non-member bank. Our primary market is the 
New Orleans metropolitan area and the Mississippi Gulf Coast. We serve our customers from our main office located in the 
Central Business District of New Orleans, 32 full service branch offices located throughout our market and a loan production 
office in Gulfport, Mississippi. We believe that our market exhibits attractive demographic attributes and presents favorable 
competitive dynamics, thereby offering long-term opportunities for growth. Our strategic focus is on building a franchise with 
meaningful market share and strong revenues complemented by operational efficiencies that we believe will produce attractive 
risk-adjusted returns for our shareholders. As of December 31, 2014, on a consolidated basis, we had total assets of $3.8 billion, 
net loans of $2.7 billion, total deposits of $3.1 billion, and shareholders’ equity of $436.4 million.

We were the largest bank holding company by assets headquartered in New Orleans as of December 31, 2014. We are led by a 
team of experienced bankers, all of whom have substantial banking or related experience and relationships in the greater New 
Orleans market. We believe that recent changes and disruption within our primary market caused by significant acquisitions of 
local financial institutions and the operating difficulties faced by many local competitors have created an underserved base of 
small and middle-market businesses and high net worth individuals that are interested in banking with a company 
headquartered in, and with decision-making authority based in, the New Orleans market. We believe our management’s long-
standing presence in the area gives us insight into the local market and the ability to tailor our products and services, 
particularly the structure of our loans, to the needs of our targeted customers. We seek to develop comprehensive, long-term 
banking relationships by cross-selling loans and core deposits, offering a diverse array of products and services and delivering 
high quality customer service. In addition to the reputation and local connections of our management, we believe that our 
strong capital position gives us an instant advantage over our competitors.

Competition

We compete with a wide range of financial institutions in our market, including local, regional and national commercial banks, 
thrifts and credit unions, and our primary competitors are the larger regional and national banks. Consolidation activity 
involving out-of-state financial institutions has altered the competitive landscape in our market within recent years. As of 
June 30, 2005, approximately 70% of the deposits in the New Orleans market were held in banks that were based in this 
market. Based on deposit data as of June 30, 2014, that number had decreased to less than 30%, due in large part to the 
acquisition of several large, locally-based financial institutions by large out-of-state banks, two of which held in the aggregate 
more than 50% of the in-market deposits at the time of their respective acquisitions. Although competition within our market 
area is strong, we believe that the customer disruption associated with these acquisitions, as well as the loss of in-market 
decision-making and relationship-based banking, will continue to provide us with additional growth opportunities as the largest 
independent depository institution headquartered in the New Orleans market.

We also compete with mortgage companies, investment banking firms, brokerage houses, mutual fund managers, investment 
advisors, and other “non-bank” companies for certain of our products and services. Some of our competitors are not subject to 
the degree of supervision and regulatory restrictions that we are.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014, we had approximately 486 full-time equivalent employees. None of our employees are represented 
by any collective bargaining unit or are parties to a collective bargaining agreement. We believe that our relations with our 
employees are good.

Acquisitions

To complement our organic growth strategy, from time to time, we evaluate potential acquisition opportunities. We believe 
there are many banking institutions that continue to face credit challenges, capital constraints and liquidity issues and that lack 
the scale and management expertise to manage the increasing regulatory burden. Our management team has a long history of 
identifying targets, assessing and pricing risk and executing acquisitions in a creative, yet disciplined, manner. We seek 
acquisitions that provide meaningful financial benefits, long-term organic growth opportunities and expense reductions, 
without compromising our risk profile. Additionally, we seek banking markets with favorable competitive dynamics and 
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potential consolidation opportunities. All of our acquisition activity is evaluated and overseen by a standing Merger and 
Acquisition Committee of our Board of Directors.

Available Information

Our filings with the Securities Exchange Commission (SEC), including annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on 
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments thereto, are available on our website as soon as reasonably 
practicable after the reports are filed with or furnished to the SEC. Copies can be obtained free of charge in the “Investor 
Relations” section of our website at www.firstnbcbank.com. Our SEC filings are also available through the SEC’s website 
www.sec.gov. Copies of these filings are also available by writing to us at the following address:

First NBC Bank Holding Company
210 Baronne Street

New Orleans, Louisiana 70112

Supervision and Regulation

General

Banking is highly regulated under federal and state law. We are a bank holding company and financial holding company                                                                                                         
registered under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, and are subject to supervision, regulation and 
examination by the Federal Reserve. First NBC Bank is a commercial bank chartered under the laws of the State of Louisiana. 
The bank is not a member of the Federal Reserve system and is subject to supervision, regulation and examination by the 
Louisiana Office of Financial Institutions, or OFI, and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or FDIC. This system of 
supervision and regulation establishes a comprehensive framework for our operations and, consequently, can have a material 
impact on our growth and earnings performance.

The primary goals of the bank regulatory scheme are to maintain a safe and sound banking system and to facilitate the conduct 
of sound monetary policy. This system is intended primarily for the protection of the FDIC’s deposit insurance funds, bank 
depositors and the public, rather than our shareholders and creditors. The banking agencies have broad enforcement power over 
bank holding companies and banks, including the authority, among other things, to enjoin “unsafe or unsound” practices, 
require affirmative action to correct any violation or practice, issue administrative orders that can be judicially enforced, direct 
increases in capital, direct the sale of subsidiaries or other assets, limit dividends and distributions, restrict growth, assess civil 
monetary penalties, remove officers and directors, and, with respect to banks, terminate deposit insurance or place the bank into 
conservatorship or receivership. In general, these enforcement actions may be initiated for violations of laws and regulations or 
unsafe or unsound practices.

Regulatory Capital Requirements

Capital adequacy. The Federal Reserve Board monitors the capital adequacy of our holding company, on a consolidated basis, 
and the FDIC and the OFI monitor the capital adequacy of First NBC Bank. The regulatory agencies use a combination of risk-
based guidelines and a leverage ratio to evaluate capital adequacy and consider these capital levels when taking action on 
various types of applications and when conducting supervisory activities related to safety and soundness. The risk-based capital 
standards are designed to make regulatory capital requirements more sensitive to differences in risk profiles among financial 
institutions and their holding companies, to account for off-balance sheet exposure, and to minimize disincentives for holding 
liquid assets. Assets and off-balance sheet items, such as letters of credit and unfunded loan commitments, are assigned to 
broad risk categories, each with appropriate risk weights. Regulatory capital, in turn, is classified in one of two tiers. “Tier 1” 
capital includes common equity, retained earnings, qualifying non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock, and minority interests 
in equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, less goodwill, most intangible assets and certain other assets. “Tier 2” capital 
includes, among other things, qualifying subordinated debt and allowances for loan and lease losses, subject to limitations. The 
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capital ratio,” of at least 8%. In addition, the prompt corrective action standards discussed below, in effect, increase the 
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provide that higher capital may be required to take adequate account of, among other things, interest rate risk and the risks 
posed by concentrations of credit, nontraditional activities or securities trading activities. 

Effective January 1, 2015, these minimum capital standards, as well as the prompt corrective action standards discussed below, 
increased as a result of changes recently adopted by the federal banking agencies, which are described in greater detail below 
under “Basel III”.

Failure to meet capital guidelines could subject us to a variety of enforcement remedies, including issuance of a capital 
directive, a prohibition on accepting brokered deposits, other restrictions on our business and the termination of deposit 
insurance by the FDIC.

Prompt corrective action regulations. Under the prompt corrective action regulations, the FDIC is required and authorized to 
take supervisory actions against undercapitalized financial institutions. For this purpose, a bank is placed in one of the 
following five categories based on its capital: well capitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly 
undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalized. Under the prompt corrective action regulations effective through December 
31, 2014, to be well capitalized, a bank must have a leverage capital ratio of at least 5%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6% 
and a total risk-based capital ratio of at least 10% and must not be subject to any order or written agreement or directive by a 
federal banking agency to meet and maintain a specific capital level for any capital measure. As discussed below under “Basel 
III,” the federal banking agencies have adopted changes to the capital thresholds applicable to each of the five categories under 
the prompt corrective action regulations.

Federal banking regulators are required to take various mandatory supervisory actions and are authorized to take other 
discretionary actions with respect to institutions in the three undercapitalized categories. The severity of the action depends 
upon the capital category in which the institution is placed. Generally, subject to a narrow exception, banking regulators must 
appoint a receiver or conservator for an institution that is critically undercapitalized. The federal banking agencies have 
specified by regulation the relevant capital level for each category. An institution that is categorized as undercapitalized, 
significantly undercapitalized, or critically undercapitalized is required to submit an acceptable capital restoration plan to its 
appropriate federal banking agency. An undercapitalized institution also is generally prohibited from increasing its average total 
assets, making acquisitions, establishing any branches or engaging in any new line of business, except under an accepted 
capital restoration plan or with FDIC approval. The regulations also establish procedures for downgrading an institution to a 
lower capital category based on supervisory factors other than capital.

Furthermore, a bank holding company must guarantee that a subsidiary depository institution meets its capital restoration plan, 
subject to various limitations. The controlling holding company’s obligation to fund a capital restoration plan is limited to the 
lesser of 5% of an undercapitalized subsidiary’s assets at the time it became undercapitalized or the amount required to meet 
regulatory capital requirements.

The capital classification of a bank affects the frequency of regulatory examinations, the bank’s ability to engage in certain 
activities and the deposit insurance premiums paid by the bank. As of December 31, 2014, First NBC Bank met the 
requirements to be categorized as well capitalized under the prompt corrective action framework as currently in effect.

Basel III. On July 2, 2013, the federal banking agencies adopted a final rule revising the regulatory capital framework 
applicable to all top tier bank holding companies with consolidated assets of $500 million or more and all banks, regardless of 
size. The Basel III framework became applicable beginning January 1, 2015, although the capital conservation buffer, which is 
discussed in greater detail below, will be phased in over a three-year period, beginning January 1, 2016.

Under the Basel III framework, we are required to maintain the following minimum regulatory capital ratios: 

• A new ratio of common equity Tier 1 capital to total risk-weighted assets of not less than 4.5%;

• A Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6.0% (an increase from 4.0%);

• A total risk-based capital ratio of 8.0%; and

• A leverage ratio of 4.0%.

The Basel III framework also changes the regulatory capital requirements for purposes of the prompt corrective action 
regulations. Accordingly, as of January 1, 2015, to be categorized as well capitalized, the bank must have a minimum common 
equity Tier 1 capital ratio of at least 6.5%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of at least 8.0%, a total risk-based capital ratio of at 
least 10.0%, and a leverage capital ratio of at least 5.0%.
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Under the Basel III framework, tier 1 capital is redefined to include two components: (1) common equity Tier 1 capital and (2) 
additional Tier 1 capital. Common equity Tier 1 capital consists solely of common stock (plus related surplus), retained 
earnings, accumulated other comprehensive income, and limited amounts of minority interests that are in the form of common 
stock. Additional Tier 1 capital includes other perpetual instruments historically included in Tier 1 capital, such as non-
cumulative perpetual preferred stock. With limited exceptions, trust preferred securities and cumulative perpetual preferred 
stock will no longer qualify as Tier 1 capital. Tier 2 capital consists of instruments that currently qualify as Tier 2 capital plus 
instruments that the rule has disqualified from Tier 1 capital treatment. In addition, the Basel III framework establishes certain 
deductions from and adjustments to the regulatory capital ratios.

The Basel III framework also implements a requirement for all banking organizations to maintain a capital conservation buffer 
above the minimum capital requirements to avoid certain restrictions on capital distributions and discretionary bonus payments 
to executive officers. The capital conservation buffer must be composed of common equity Tier 1 capital. The capital 
conservation buffer requirement will effectively require banking organizations to maintain regulatory capital ratios at least 50 
basis points higher than well capitalized levels to avoid the restrictions on capital distributions and discretionary bonus 
payments to executive officers.

The Basel III framework alters the method under which banking organizations must calculate risk-weighted assets in an effort 
to make the calculation of risk-weighted assets more risk-sensitive, to better account for risk mitigation techniques, and to 
create substitutes for credit ratings (in accordance with the Dodd-Frank Act). The standardized approach, which applies to us, 
includes additional exposure categories as compared with current standards including a new high volatility commercial real 
estate category that is risk-weighted at 150%. Although a number of asset classes will be risk-weighted differently, the Basel III 
framework does not change standardized risk weightings for certain assets, including residential mortgages.

Although management is continuing to evaluate the impact the Basel III framework will have on our organization, we were in 
compliance with all applicable minimum regulatory capital requirements as of December 31, 2014 and expect to meet all 
minimum regulatory capital requirements under the final rule when it becomes effective, as if fully phased in.

The Basel III framework also requires banks and bank holding companies to measure their liquidity against specific liquidity 
tests. Although similar in some respects to liquidity measures historically applied by banks and regulators for management and 
supervisory purposes, the Basel III framework requires specific liquidity tests by rule. In September 2014, the federal banking 
agencies approved final rules implementing the Basel III liquidity framework, which apply only to banking organizations with 
$250 billion or more in consolidated assets or $10 billion or more in foreign exposures. Accordingly, the Basel III liquidity 
framework does not apply to us.

Acquisitions by Bank Holding Companies

We must obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve before (1) acquiring more than five percent of the voting stock of any 
bank or other bank holding company, (2) acquiring all or substantially all of the assets of any bank or bank holding company, or 
(3) merging or consolidating with any other bank holding company. The Federal Reserve may determine not to approve any of 
these transactions if it would result in or tend to create a monopoly or substantially lessen competition or otherwise function as 
a restraint of trade, unless the anti-competitive effects of the proposed transaction are clearly outweighed by the public interest 
in meeting the convenience and needs of the community to be served. The Federal Reserve is also required to consider the 
financial and managerial resources and future prospects of the bank holding companies and banks concerned, the convenience 
and needs of the community to be served, and the record of a bank holding company and its subsidiary bank(s) in combating 
money laundering activities. In addition, a failure to implement and maintain adequate compliance programs could cause the 
Federal Reserve or other banking regulators not to approve an acquisition when regulatory approval is required or to prohibit an 
acquisition even if approval is not required.

Scope of Permissible Bank Holding Company Activities

In general, the Bank Holding Company Act limits the activities permissible for bank holding companies to the business of 
banking, managing or controlling banks and such other activities as the Federal Reserve has determined to be so closely related 
to banking as to be properly incident thereto.

A bank holding company may elect to be treated as a financial holding company if it and its depository institution subsidiaries 
are “well capitalized” and “well managed," and we have made such an election.  A financial holding company may engage in a 
range of activities that are (1) financial in nature or incidental to such financial activity or (2) complementary to a financial 
activity and which do not pose a substantial risk to the safety and soundness of a depository institution or to the financial 
system generally. These activities include securities dealing, underwriting and market making, insurance underwriting and 
agency activities, merchant banking and insurance company portfolio investments. Expanded financial activities of financial 
holding companies generally will be regulated according to the type of such financial activity: banking activities by banking 
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regulators, securities activities by securities regulators and insurance activities by insurance regulators. No regulatory approval 
is required for a financial holding company to acquire a company, other than a bank or savings association, engaged in 
activities that are financial in nature or incidental to activities that are financial in nature as determined by the Federal Reserve.

Our financial holding company status depends upon maintaining our status as “well capitalized” and “well managed” under 
applicable Federal Reserve regulations. If we cease to meet these requirements, the Federal Reserve may impose corrective 
capital and/or managerial requirements on us and place limitations on our ability to conduct the broader financial activities 
permissible for financial holding companies. In such a situation, until we would return to compliance, we would be unable to 
acquire a company engaged in such financial activities without prior approval of the Federal Reserve. In addition, the Federal 
Reserve could require divestiture of our depository institution or non-bank subsidiaries if the deficiencies persist.

The Bank Holding Company Act does not place territorial limitations on permissible non-banking activities of bank holding 
companies. The Federal Reserve has the power to order any bank holding company or its subsidiaries to terminate any activity 
or to terminate its ownership or control of any subsidiary when the Federal Reserve has reasonable grounds to believe that 
continuation of such activity or such ownership or control constitutes a serious risk to the financial soundness, safety or 
stability of any bank subsidiary of the bank holding company.

Source of Strength Doctrine for Bank Holding Companies

Under longstanding Federal Reserve policy which has been codified by the Dodd-Frank Act, we are expected to act as a source 
of financial strength to, and to commit resources to support, First NBC Bank. This support may be required at times when we 
may not be inclined to provide it. In addition, any capital loans that we make to First NBC Bank are subordinate in right of 
payment to deposits and to certain other indebtedness of First NBC Bank. In the event of our bankruptcy, any commitment by 
us to a federal bank regulatory agency to maintain the capital of First NBC Bank will be assumed by the bankruptcy trustee and 
entitled to a priority of payment.

Dividends

As a bank holding company, we are subject to certain restrictions on dividends under applicable banking laws and regulations. 
The Federal Reserve has issued a policy statement that provides that a bank holding company should not pay dividends unless: 
(1) its net income over the last four quarters (net of dividends paid) has been sufficient to fully fund the dividends; (2) the 
prospective rate of earnings retention appears to be consistent with the capital needs, asset quality and overall financial 
condition of the bank holding company and its subsidiaries; and (3) the bank holding company will continue to meet minimum 
required capital adequacy ratios. Accordingly, a bank holding company should not pay cash dividends that exceed its net 
income or that can only be funded in ways that weaken the bank holding company’s financial health, such as by borrowing. The 
Dodd-Frank Act imposes and Basel III results in additional restrictions on the ability of banking institutions to pay dividends. 
In addition, in the current financial and economic environment, the Federal Reserve Board has indicated that bank holding 
companies should carefully review their dividend policy and has discouraged payment ratios that are at maximum allowable 
levels unless both asset quality and capital are very strong.

First NBC Bank is also subject to certain restrictions on dividends under federal and state laws, regulations and policies. In 
general, under Louisiana law, First NBC Bank may pay dividends to us without the approval of the OFI so long as the amount 
of the dividend does not exceed First NBC Bank’s net profits earned during the current year combined with its retained net 
profits of the immediately preceding year. The bank is required to obtain the approval of the OFI for any amount in excess of 
this threshold. In addition, under federal law, First NBC Bank may not pay any dividend to us if it is undercapitalized or the 
payment of the dividend would cause it to become undercapitalized. The FDIC may further restrict the payment of dividends by 
requiring the bank to maintain a higher level of capital than would otherwise be required to be adequately capitalized for 
regulatory purposes. Moreover, if, in the opinion of the FDIC, First NBC Bank is engaged in an unsound practice (which could 
include the payment of dividends), the FDIC may require, generally after notice and hearing, the bank to cease such practice. 
The FDIC has indicated that paying dividends that deplete a depository institution’s capital base to an inadequate level would 
be an unsafe banking practice. The FDIC has also issued policy statements providing that insured depository institutions 
generally should pay dividends only out of current operating earnings.

Restrictions on Transactions with Affiliates and Loans to Insiders

Federal law strictly limits the ability of banks to engage in transactions with their affiliates, including their bank holding 
companies. Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act, and Federal Reserve Regulation W, impose quantitative limits, 
qualitative standards, and collateral requirements on certain transactions by a bank with, or for the benefit of, its affiliates, and 
generally require those transactions to be on terms at least as favorable to the bank as transactions with non-affiliates. The 
Dodd-Frank Act significantly expands the coverage and scope of the limitations on affiliate transactions within a banking 
organization, including an expansion of what types of transactions are covered transactions to include credit exposures related 
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to derivatives, repurchase agreements and securities lending arrangements and an increase in the amount of time for which 
collateral requirements regarding covered transactions must be satisfied.

Federal law also limits a bank’s authority to extend credit to its directors, executive officers and 10% shareholders, as well as to 
entities controlled by such persons. Among other things, extensions of credit to insiders are required to be made on terms that 
are substantially the same as, and follow credit underwriting procedures that are not less stringent than, those prevailing for 
comparable transactions with unaffiliated persons. Also, the terms of such extensions of credit may not involve more than the 
normal risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features and may not exceed certain limitations on the amount of credit 
extended to such persons, individually and in the aggregate, which limits are based, in part, on the amount of the bank’s capital.

Deposit Insurance Assessments

FDIC-insured banks are required to pay deposit insurance assessments to the FDIC. The amount of the assessment is based on 
the size of the bank’s assessment base, which is equal to its average consolidated total assets less its average tangible equity, 
and its risk classification under an FDIC risk-based assessment system. Institutions assigned to higher risk classifications (that 
is, institutions that pose a higher risk of loss to the Deposit Insurance Fund) pay assessments at higher rates than institutions 
that pose a lower risk. An institution’s risk classification is assigned based on its capital levels and the level of supervisory 
concern that the institution poses to the regulators. In addition, the FDIC can impose special assessments in certain instances. 
As noted above, the Dodd-Frank Act changed the way that deposit insurance premiums are calculated. Continued action by the 
FDIC to replenish the Deposit Insurance Fund, as well as the changes contained in the Dodd-Frank Act, may result in higher 
assessment rates, which could reduce our profitability or otherwise negatively impact our operations.

Branching and Interstate Banking

Under Louisiana law, First NBC Bank is permitted to establish additional branch offices within Louisiana, subject to the 
approval of the OFI. As a result of the Dodd-Frank Act, the bank may also establish additional branch offices outside of 
Louisiana, subject to prior regulatory approval, so long as the laws of the state where the branch is to be located would permit a 
state bank chartered in that state to establish a branch. First NBC Bank may also establish offices in other states by merging 
with banks or by purchasing branches of other banks in other states, subject to certain restrictions.

Community Reinvestment Act

First NBC Bank has a responsibility under the Community Reinvestment Act, or CRA, and related FDIC regulations to help 
meet the credit needs of its communities, including low- and moderate-income borrowers. In connection with its examination 
of First NBC Bank, the FDIC is required to assess the bank’s record of compliance with the CRA. The bank’s failure to comply 
with the provisions of the CRA could, at a minimum, result in denial of certain corporate applications, such as branches or 
mergers, or in restrictions on its or the company’s activities, including additional financial activities if we elect to be treated as 
a financial holding company. First NBC Bank has received an “outstanding” CRA rating on each CRA examination since 
inception. The CRA requires all FDIC-insured institutions to publicly disclose their rating.

Concentrated Commercial Real Estate Lending Regulations

The federal banking regulatory agencies have promulgated guidance governing financial institutions with concentrations in 
commercial real estate lending. The guidance provides that a bank has a concentration in commercial real estate lending if 
(i) total reported loans for construction, land development, and other land represent 100% or more of total capital or (ii) total 
reported loans secured by multifamily and non-farm residential properties and loans for construction, land development, and 
other land represent 300% or more of total capital, and the bank’s commercial real estate loan portfolio has increased 50% or 
more during the prior 36 months. Owner occupied loans are excluded from this second category. If a concentration is present, 
management must employ heightened risk management practices that address, among other things, Board and management 
oversight and strategic planning, portfolio management, development of underwriting standards, risk assessment and 
monitoring through market analysis and stress testing, and maintenance of increased capital levels as needed to support the 
level of commercial real estate lending.

Consumer Laws and Regulations

The bank is subject to numerous laws and regulations intended to protect consumers in transactions with the bank, including, 
among others, laws regarding unfair, deceptive and abusive acts and practices, usury laws, and other federal consumer 
protection statutes. These federal laws include the Electronic Fund Transfer Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Fair 
Credit Reporting Act, the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, the Real Estate Procedures Act of 1974, the S.A.F.E. Mortgage 
Licensing Act of 2008, the Truth in Lending Act and the Truth in Savings Act, among others. Many states and local 
jurisdictions have consumer protection laws analogous, and in addition, to those enacted under federal law. These laws and 
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regulations mandate certain disclosure requirements and regulate the manner in which financial institutions must deal with 
customers when taking deposits, making loans and conducting other types of transactions. Failure to comply with these laws 
and regulations could give rise to regulatory sanctions, customer rescission rights, action by state and local attorneys general, 
and civil or criminal liability.

In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act created the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau that has broad authority to regulate and 
supervise retail financial services activities of banks and various non-bank providers. The Bureau has authority to promulgate 
regulations, issue orders, guidance and policy statements, conduct examinations and bring enforcement actions with regard to 
consumer financial products and services. In general, however, banks with assets of $10 billion or less, such as First NBC 
Bank, will continue to be examined for consumer compliance by their primary federal bank regulator.

Mortgage Lending Rules

The Dodd-Frank Act authorized the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau to establish certain minimum standards for the 
origination of residential mortgages, including a determination of the borrower’s ability to repay. Under the Dodd-Frank Act, 
financial institutions may not make a residential mortgage loan unless they make a “reasonable and good faith determination” 
that the consumer has a “reasonable ability” to repay the loan. The Dodd-Frank Act allows borrowers to raise certain defenses 
to foreclosure but provides a full or partial safe harbor from such defenses for loans that are “qualified mortgages.” On 
January 10, 2013, the Bureau published final rules to, among other things, specify the types of income and assets that may be 
considered in the ability-to-repay determination, the permissible sources for verification, and the required methods of 
calculating the loan’s monthly payments. Since then, the Bureau has made certain modifications to these rules. The rules extend 
the requirement that creditors verify and document a borrower’s income and assets to include all information that creditors rely 
on in determining repayment ability. The rules also provide further examples of third-party documents that may be relied on for 
such verification, such as government records and check-cashing or funds-transfer service receipts. The new rules became 
effective on January 10, 2014. The rules also define “qualified mortgages,” imposing both underwriting standards – for 
example, a borrower’s debt-to-income ratio may not exceed 43% – and limits on the terms of their loans. Points and fees are 
subject to a relatively stringent cap, and the terms include a wide array of payments that may be made in the course of closing a 
loan. Certain loans, including interest-only loans and negative amortization loans, cannot be qualified mortgages.

Anti-Money Laundering and OFAC

Under federal law, financial institutions must maintain anti-money laundering programs that include established internal 
policies, procedures and controls; a designated compliance officer; an ongoing employee training program; and testing of the 
program by an independent audit function. Financial institutions are also prohibited from entering into specified financial 
transactions and account relationships and must meet enhanced standards for due diligence and customer identification in their 
dealings with foreign financial institutions and foreign customers. Financial institutions must take reasonable steps to conduct 
enhanced scrutiny of account relationships to guard against money laundering and to report any suspicious transactions, and 
law enforcement authorities have been granted increased access to financial information maintained by financial institutions.

The Office of Foreign Assets Control, or OFAC, is responsible for helping to insure that U.S. entities do not engage in 
transactions with certain prohibited parties, as defined by various Executive Orders and Acts of Congress. OFAC publishes lists 
of persons and organizations suspected of aiding, harboring or engaging in terrorist acts, known as Specially Designated 
Nationals and Blocked Persons. Generally, if the bank identifies a transaction, account or wire transfer relating to a person or 
entity on an OFAC list, it must freeze the account or block the transaction, file a suspicious activity report and notify the 
appropriate authorities.

Bank regulators routinely examine institutions for compliance with these obligations and they must consider an institution’s 
compliance in connection with the regulatory review of applications, including applications for banking mergers and 
acquisitions. Failure of a financial institution to maintain and implement adequate programs to combat money laundering and 
terrorist financing and comply with OFAC sanctions, or to comply with relevant laws and regulations, could have serious legal, 
reputational, and financial consequences for the institution.

Safety and Soundness Standards

Federal bank regulatory agencies have adopted guidelines that establish general standards relating to internal controls and 
information systems, internal audit systems, loan documentation, credit underwriting, interest rate exposure, asset growth and 
compensation, fees and benefits. Additionally, the agencies have adopted regulations that provide the authority to order an 
institution that has been given notice by an agency that it is not satisfying any of these safety and soundness standards to submit 
a compliance plan. If, after being so notified, an institution fails to submit an acceptable compliance plan or fails in any 
material respect to implement an acceptable compliance plan, the agency must issue an order directing action to correct the 
deficiency and may issue an order directing other actions of the types to which an undercapitalized institution is subject under 
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the “prompt corrective action” provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act. If an institution fails to comply with such an 
order, the agency may seek to enforce such order in judicial proceedings and to impose civil money penalties.

Bank holding companies are also not permitted to engage in unsound banking practices. For example, the Federal Reserve’s 
Regulation Y requires a holding company to give the Federal Reserve prior notice of any redemption or repurchase of its own 
equity securities, if the consideration to be paid, together with the consideration paid for any repurchases in the preceding year, 
is equal to 10% or more of the company’s consolidated net worth. The Federal Reserve may oppose the transaction if it believes 
that the transaction would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice or would violate any law or regulation. As another example, 
a holding company could not impair its subsidiary bank’s soundness by causing it to make funds available to non-banking 
subsidiaries or their customers if the Federal Reserve believed it not prudent to do so. The Federal Reserve has broad authority 
to prohibit activities of bank holding companies and their nonbanking subsidiaries that represent unsafe and unsound banking 
practices or that constitute violations of laws or regulations.

Effect of Governmental Monetary Policies

The commercial banking business is affected not only by general economic conditions but also by U.S. fiscal policy and the 
monetary policies of the Federal Reserve. Some of the instruments of monetary policy available to the Federal Reserve include 
changes in the discount rate on member bank borrowings, the fluctuating availability of borrowings at the “discount window,” 
open market operations, the imposition of and changes in reserve requirements against member banks’ deposits and assets of 
foreign branches, and the imposition of and changes in reserve requirements against certain borrowings by banks and their 
affiliates. These policies influence to a significant extent the overall growth of bank loans, investments, and deposits and the 
interest rates charged on loans or paid on deposits. We cannot predict the nature of future fiscal and monetary policies and the 
effect of these policies on our future business and earnings.

Future Legislation and Regulatory Reform

In light of current conditions and the market outlook for continuing weak economic conditions, regulators have increased their 
focus on the regulation of financial institutions. New laws, regulations and policies are regularly proposed that contain wide-
ranging proposals for altering the structures, regulations and competitive relationships of financial institutions operating in the 
United States. In addition, existing laws, regulations and policies are continually subject to modification or changes in 
interpretation. We cannot predict whether or in what form any law, regulation or policy will be adopted or modified or the 
extent to which our operations and activities, financial condition, results of operations, growth plans or future prospects may be 
affected by its adoption or modification.

The cumulative effect of these laws and regulations add significantly to the cost of our operations and thus have a negative 
impact on profitability. There has also been a tremendous expansion in recent years of financial service providers that are not 
subject to the same level of regulation, examination and oversight as we are. Those providers, because they are not so highly 
regulated, may have a competitive advantage over us and may continue to draw large amounts of funds away from traditional 
banking institutions, with a continuing adverse effect on the banking industry in general. 

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our business is subject to risk. The following discussion, as well as management’s discussion and analysis and our financial 
statements and footnotes, set forth the most significant risks and uncertainties that we believe could adversely affect our 
business, financial condition, results of operations or growth prospects. If any of the following risks occur, our actual results 
could differ materially from those described in our forward-looking statements described elsewhere in this report. These risks 
are not the only risks that we may face. Additional risks and uncertainties of which management is not aware, or that 
management currently deems to be immaterial, may also have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, 
results of operations or growth prospects.

Risks Relating to our Business

As a business operating in the financial services industry, our business and operations may be adversely affected in 
numerous and complex ways by weak economic conditions.

Our businesses and operations, which primarily consist of lending money to customers in the form of loans, borrowing money 
from customers in the form of deposits and investing in securities, are sensitive to general business and economic conditions in 
the United States. Although the United States economy, as a whole, has improved moderately over the past several years, and 
the economy of the New Orleans metropolitan area has performed more strongly than the national economy, the business 
environment in which we operate continues to be impacted by the effects of the most recent recession. Uncertainty about the 
federal fiscal policymaking process, the medium and long-term fiscal outlook of the federal government, and future tax rates is 
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a concern for businesses, consumers and investors in the United States. In addition, economic conditions in foreign countries, 
including global political hostilities and uncertainty over the stability of the euro currency, could affect the stability of global 
financial markets, which could hinder domestic economic growth. The current economic environment is characterized by 
interest rates at historically low levels, which impacts our ability to attract deposits and to generate attractive earnings through 
our investment portfolio. All of these factors are detrimental to our business, and the interplay between these factors can be 
complex and unpredictable. Our business is also significantly affected by monetary and related policies of the United States 
government and its agencies. Changes in any of these policies are influenced by macroeconomic conditions and other factors 
that are beyond our control. Adverse economic conditions and government policy responses to such conditions could have a 
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

We rely heavily on our management team and could be adversely affected by the unexpected loss of key officers.

We are led by an experienced core management team with substantial experience in the markets that we serve and our operating 
strategy focuses on providing products and services through long-term relationship managers. Accordingly, our success 
depends in large part on the performance of our key personnel, as well as on our ability to attract, motivate and retain highly 
qualified senior and middle management. Competition for employees is intense, and the process of locating key personnel with 
the combination of skills and attributes required to execute our business plan may be lengthy. We may not be successful in 
retaining our key employees, and the unexpected loss of services of one or more of our key personnel could have a material 
adverse effect on our business because of their skills, knowledge of our market, years of industry experience, long-term 
customer relationships, and the difficulty of promptly finding qualified replacement personnel. If the services of any of our key 
personnel should become unavailable for any reason, we may not be able to identify and hire qualified persons on terms 
acceptable to us.

Our business is concentrated in the New Orleans metropolitan area, and we are more sensitive than our more 
geographically diversified competitors to adverse changes in the local economy.

We conduct substantially all of our operations in Louisiana, and more specifically, within the New Orleans metropolitan area. 
Substantially all of the real estate loans in our loan portfolio are secured by properties located in Louisiana. We compete against 
a number of financial institutions that maintain significant operations outside of the New Orleans metropolitan area and outside 
the State of Louisiana. Accordingly, a regional or local economic downturn, or natural or man-made disaster, that affects 
Louisiana and New Orleans or existing or prospective property or borrowers in Louisiana and New Orleans may affect us and 
our profitability more significantly and more adversely than our more geographically diversified competitors.

The market in which we operate is susceptible to hurricanes and other natural disasters and adverse weather, as well as 
man-made disasters, which may adversely affect our business and operations.

Substantially all of our business is in the New Orleans metropolitan area, an area that has been and will continue to be 
susceptible to major hurricanes, floods, tornadoes, tropical storms, and other natural disasters and adverse weather. These 
natural disasters can disrupt our operations, cause widespread property damage, and severely depress the local economies in 
which we operate. Man-made disasters, like the 2010 Deepwater Horizon oil spill off the Louisiana coast, can also depress 
sectors that are critical to the New Orleans economy, such as tourism, energy and fishing, and other economic activity in the 
area. Any economic decline as a result of a natural disaster, adverse weather, oil spill or other man-made disaster can reduce the 
demand for loans and our other products and services. In addition, the rates of delinquencies, foreclosures, bankruptcies and 
losses on loan portfolios may increase substantially, as uninsured property losses or sustained job interruption or loss may 
materially impair the ability of borrowers to repay their loans. Moreover, the value of real estate or other collateral that secures 
the loans could be materially and adversely affected by a disaster. A disaster could, therefore, result in decreased revenue and 
loan losses.

We may not be able to adequately manage our credit risk, which could adversely affect our profitability.

Our business model is focused primarily on lending to customers. The business of lending is inherently risky, and we are 
subject to the risk that loans that we make may not be fully repaid in a timely manner or at all or that the value of any collateral 
supporting those loans will be insufficient to cover our outstanding exposure. These risks may be affected by the strength of the 
borrower’s business sector and local, regional and national market and economic conditions. Our risk management practices, 
such as monitoring the concentration of our loans within specific industries and our credit approval practices, may not 
adequately reduce credit risk, and our credit administration personnel, policies and procedures may not adequately adapt to 
changes in economic or any other conditions affecting customers and the quality of the loan portfolio. Finally, many of our 
loans are made to small and medium-sized businesses that are less able to withstand competitive, economic and financial 
pressures than larger borrowers. A failure to effectively measure and limit the credit risk associated with our loan portfolio 
could expose us to increased losses that could adversely affect our financial results.
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Our allowance for loan losses may prove to be insufficient to absorb losses inherent in our loan portfolio.

Our experience in the banking industry indicates that some portion of our loans will not be fully repaid in a timely manner or at 
all. Accordingly, we maintain an allowance for loan losses that represents management’s best estimate of the loan losses and 
risks inherent in our loan portfolio. The level of the allowance reflects management’s continuing evaluation of industry 
concentrations; specific credit risks; loan loss experience; current loan portfolio quality; present economic, political and 
regulatory conditions; and unidentified losses inherent in the current loan portfolio. The determination of the appropriate level 
of the allowance for loan losses is inherently highly subjective and requires us to make significant estimates of current credit 
risks, all of which may undergo material changes. Inaccurate management assumptions, continuing deterioration of economic 
conditions affecting borrowers, new information regarding existing loans, identification of additional problem loans and other 
factors, both within and outside of our control, may require us to increase our allowance for loan losses. In addition, our 
regulators, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review our loan portfolio and the adequacy of our 
allowance for loan losses and may require adjustments based on judgments different than those of management. Further, if 
actual charge-offs in future periods exceed the amounts allocated to the allowance for loan losses, we may need additional 
provision for loan losses to restore the adequacy of our allowance for loan losses. If we are required to materially increase our 
level of allowance for loan losses for any reason, our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects could be 
materially and adversely affected.

Our commercial real estate loan portfolio exposes us to risks that may be greater than the risks related to our other 
mortgage loans.

Our loan portfolio includes non-owner-occupied commercial real estate loans for individuals and businesses for various 
purposes, which are secured by commercial properties, as well as real estate construction and development loans. As of 
December 31, 2014, our non-owner-occupied commercial real estate loans totaled $845.1 million, or 30.5%, of our total loan 
portfolio. These loans typically involve repayment dependent upon income generated, or expected to be generated, by the 
property securing the loan in amounts sufficient to cover operating expenses and debt service, which may be adversely affected 
by changes in the economy or local market conditions.  Our investment in commercial real estate projects which utilize federal 
tax credits is one way that we mitigate the risks in our commercial real estate portfolio.  These commercial real estate projects, 
typically have a lower loan-to-value and better collateral coverage, and the federal tax credits provide an equity injection.  
These loans expose us to greater credit risk than loans secured by residential real estate because the collateral securing these 
loans typically cannot be liquidated as easily as residential real estate because there are fewer potential purchasers of the 
collateral. Additionally, non-owner-occupied commercial real estate loans generally involve relatively large balances to single 
borrowers or related groups of borrowers. Accordingly, charge-offs on non-owner-occupied commercial real estate loans may 
be larger on a per loan basis than those incurred with our residential or consumer loan portfolios. Unexpected deterioration in 
the credit quality of our commercial real estate loan portfolio would require us to increase our provision for loan losses, which 
would reduce our profitability and could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and 
prospects.

A prolonged downturn in the real estate market could result in losses and adversely affect our profitability.

As of December 31, 2014, approximately 50.4% of our loan portfolio was composed of commercial and consumer real estate 
loans. The real estate collateral in each case provides an alternate source of repayment in the event of default by the borrower, 
and we are exposed to risk based on the fluctuations in real estate collateral values. The market value of real estate can fluctuate 
significantly in a relatively short period of time as a result of numerous factors, including market conditions in the geographic 
area in which the real estate is located, natural or man-made disasters, and changes in monetary, fiscal or tax policy, among 
others. We stress test our commercial and consumer real estate portfolio on an annual basis to determine its susceptibility to 
such a prolonged downturn in the real estate market.  A decline in real estate values could impair the value of our collateral and 
our ability to sell the collateral upon any foreclosure, which would likely require us to increase our provision for loan losses. In 
the event of a default with respect to any of these loans, the amounts that we receive upon sale of the collateral may be 
insufficient to recover the outstanding principal and interest on the loan. If we are required to re-value the collateral securing a 
loan to satisfy the debt during a period of reduced real estate values or to increase our allowance for loan losses, our 
profitability could be adversely affected.

Our high concentration of large loans to certain borrowers may increase our credit risk.

Our growth over the last several years has been partially attributable to our ability to originate and retain large loans. Many of 
these loans have been made to a small number of borrowers, resulting in a high concentration of large loans to certain 
borrowers. As of December 31, 2014, our 10 largest borrowing relationships ranged from approximately $38.3 million to $66.7 
million (including unfunded commitments) and averaged approximately $45.3 million in total commitments. Along with other 
risks inherent in these loans, such as the deterioration of the underlying businesses or property securing these loans, this high 
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concentration of borrowers presents a risk to our lending operations. If any one of these borrowers becomes unable to repay its 
loan obligations as a result of economic or market conditions, or personal circumstances, such as divorce or death, our 
nonperforming loans and our provision for loan losses could increase significantly.

Delinquencies, defaults and foreclosures in residential mortgages have recently increased, creating a higher risk of 
repurchases and indemnity requests, which could adversely affect our profitability.

We originate residential mortgage loans for sale to government-sponsored enterprises, such as Fannie Mae, and other investors. 
As a part of this process, we make various representations and warranties to these purchasers that are tied to the underwriting 
standards under which the investors agreed to purchase the loan. If a representation or warranty proves to be untrue, we could 
be required to repurchase one or more of the mortgage loans or indemnify the investor. Repurchase and indemnity obligations 
tend to increase during weak economic times, as investors seek to pass on the risks associated with mortgage loan 
delinquencies. If we are forced to repurchase delinquent mortgage loans that we have previously sold to investors, or indemnify 
those investors, our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects could be adversely affected.

We face significant competition to attract and retain customers, which could adversely affect our growth and profitability.

We operate in the highly competitive banking industry and face significant competition for customers from bank and non-bank 
competitors, particularly regional and nationwide institutions, in originating loans, attracting deposits and providing other 
financial services. Many of our competitors are larger and have significantly more resources, greater name recognition, and 
more extensive and established branch networks than we do. Because of their scale, many of these competitors can be more 
aggressive than we can on loan and deposit pricing. Also, many of our non-bank competitors have fewer regulatory constraints 
and may have lower cost structures. We expect competition to continue to intensify due to financial institution consolidation; 
legislative, regulatory and technological changes; and the emergence of alternative banking sources. Increased competition 
could require us to increase the rates that we pay on deposits or lower the rates that we offer on loans, which could reduce our 
profitability. Our failure to compete effectively in our market could restrain our growth or cause us to lose market share, which 
could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

We are subject to losses resulting from fraudulent and negligent acts on the part of loan applicants, correspondents or other 
third parties.

We rely heavily upon information supplied by third parties, including the information contained in credit applications, property 
appraisals, title information, equipment pricing and valuation and employment and income documentation, in deciding which 
loans we will originate, as well as the terms of those loans. If any of the information upon which we rely is misrepresented, 
either fraudulently or inadvertently, and the misrepresentation is not detected prior to asset funding, the value of the asset may 
be significantly lower than expected, or we may fund a loan that we would not have funded or on terms we would not have 
extended. Whether a misrepresentation is made by the applicant or another third party, we generally bear the risk of loss 
associated with the misrepresentation. A loan subject to a material misrepresentation is typically unsellable or subject to 
repurchase if it is sold prior to detection of the misrepresentation. The sources of the misrepresentations may also be difficult to 
locate, and we may be unable to recover any of the monetary losses we may suffer as a result of the misrepresentations.

As a community bank, our ability to maintain our reputation is critical to the growth of our business.

We are a community bank and our reputation is one of the most valuable components of our business. Our growth over the past 
several years has depended on attracting new customers from competing financial institutions and increasing our market share, 
primarily through the involvement of our employees in our communities and word-of-mouth advertising, rather than on growth 
in the market for banking services in New Orleans. As such, we strive to enhance our reputation by recruiting, hiring and 
retaining employees who share our core values of being an integral part of the communities we serve and delivering superior 
service to our customers. If our reputation is negatively affected by the actions of our employees or otherwise, we may be less 
successful in attracting new customers and our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects could be 
materially and adversely affected.

We may not be able to raise additional capital in the future on acceptable terms when needed or at all. 

We may need to raise additional capital in the future to provide us with sufficient capital resources and liquidity to meet 
regulatory capital requirements or our commitments and business needs. In addition, we may elect to raise additional capital to 
support our business or to finance acquisitions, if any. Our ability to raise additional capital, if needed, will depend on, among 
other things, conditions in the capital markets at that time, which are outside of our control, and our financial performance. We 
cannot assure you that such capital will be available to us on acceptable terms or at all. Any occurrence that may limit our 
access to the capital markets may adversely affect our capital costs and our ability to raise capital and, in turn, our liquidity. 
Moreover, if we need to raise capital in the future, we may have to do so when many other financial institutions are also 
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Our allowance for loan losses may prove to be insufficient to absorb losses inherent in our loan portfolio.
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such a prolonged downturn in the real estate market.  A decline in real estate values could impair the value of our collateral and 
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concentration of borrowers presents a risk to our lending operations. If any one of these borrowers becomes unable to repay its 
loan obligations as a result of economic or market conditions, or personal circumstances, such as divorce or death, our 
nonperforming loans and our provision for loan losses could increase significantly.
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repurchases and indemnity requests, which could adversely affect our profitability.
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standards under which the investors agreed to purchase the loan. If a representation or warranty proves to be untrue, we could 
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We face significant competition to attract and retain customers, which could adversely affect our growth and profitability.

We operate in the highly competitive banking industry and face significant competition for customers from bank and non-bank 
competitors, particularly regional and nationwide institutions, in originating loans, attracting deposits and providing other 
financial services. Many of our competitors are larger and have significantly more resources, greater name recognition, and 
more extensive and established branch networks than we do. Because of their scale, many of these competitors can be more 
aggressive than we can on loan and deposit pricing. Also, many of our non-bank competitors have fewer regulatory constraints 
and may have lower cost structures. We expect competition to continue to intensify due to financial institution consolidation; 
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seeking to raise capital and would have to compete with those institutions for investors. An inability to raise additional capital 
on acceptable terms when needed could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of 
operations.

Our growth has been aided by acquisitions of our local competitors, which may not continue.

In recent years, several of our local competitors have been acquired by larger regional or nationwide institutions. As a result of 
these acquisitions, whether because of disruptions caused by merger integration problems, a desire to stay with a New Orleans-
based institution or otherwise, many customers of the target institutions have chosen instead to bank with us. However, since 
2011, we have been the largest bank holding company based in New Orleans by a significant margin, and acquisitions of our 
New Orleans-based competitors in the future would be unlikely to result in a comparable number of customers seeking a new, 
locally-based financial institution. The absence of these growth opportunities could materially and adversely affect our 
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

We may not be able to manage the risks associated with our anticipated growth and expansion through de novo branching, 
which could adversely affect our profitability.

We believe that branch expansion has been meaningful to our growth since inception and our business strategy includes 
evaluating strategic opportunities to continue to grow organically through the expansion of our branch banking network. De 
novo branching presents certain risks, including those associated with the significant upfront costs and anticipated initial 
operating losses of establishing a branch; the ability to attract qualified management to operate the branch; local market 
reception for branches established outside of the New Orleans metropolitan area; local economic conditions in the market to be 
served by the branch; the ability to secure attractive locations at a reasonable cost; and the additional strain on management 
resources and internal systems and controls. If we are unable to manage the risks associated with our continued organic growth 
through de novo branching, our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may be materially and 
adversely affected.

We may not be able to overcome the integration and other risks associated with acquisitions, which could adversely affect 
our growth and profitability.

Although we plan to continue to grow our business organically, we may from time to time consider acquisition opportunities 
that we believe complement our activities and have the ability to enhance our profitability. Our acquisition activities could be 
material to our business and involve a number of risks, including those associated with:

• the diversion of management attention from the operation of our existing business to identify, evaluate and negotiate 
potential transactions;

• the use of inaccurate estimates and judgments to evaluate credit, operations, management and market risks with respect to the 
target institution or assets;

• transaction pricing as a result of intense competition from other banking organizations;

• the potential exposure to unknown or contingent liabilities related to the acquisition;

• the time and expense required to integrate the acquisition;

• the effectiveness of the integration of the acquisition;

• higher operating expenses relative to operating income from the acquisition;

• adverse short-term effect on our results of operations;

• the potential loss of key employees and customers as a result of execution failures; and

• the risks of impairment to goodwill or other than temporary impairment.

Depending on the condition of any institution or assets or liabilities that we may acquire, that acquisition may, at least in the 
near term, adversely affect our capital and earnings and, if not successfully integrated with our organization, may continue to 
have such effects over a longer period. We may not be successful in overcoming these risks or any other problems encountered 
in connection with pending or potential acquisitions. Our inability to overcome these risks could have an adverse effect on our 
profitability, return on equity and return on assets, as well as our ability to implement our business strategy and enhance 
shareholder value.
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If we fail to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting, we may not be able to report our financial results 
accurately and timely, in which case our business may be harmed, investors may lose confidence in the accuracy and 
completeness of our financial reports, and the price of our common stock may decline.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting and for 
evaluating and reporting on that system of internal control. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. During 2012, we identified a material weakness 
in our internal control that related to accounting for the deferred tax aspects of certain of our investments in entities that 
generate tax credits. We have taken what we believe are the appropriate actions to address the weakness, including hiring 
additional accounting personnel, providing training to our personnel to develop the expertise in tax credits, using outside 
accountants and consultants to supplement our internal staff when necessary, and implementing additional internal control 
procedures. We will continue to periodically test and update, as necessary, our internal control systems, including our financial 
reporting controls. However, our actions may not be sufficient to result in an effective internal control environment.

If our actions prove insufficient to prevent the recurrence of the internal control weakness that we have corrected, if we identify 
other material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting in the future, if we cannot comply with our 
requirements under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act in a timely manner or attest that our internal control over financial reporting is 
effective, or if our independent registered public accounting firm cannot express an opinion as to the effectiveness of our 
internal control over financial reporting when required, we may not be able to report our financial results accurately and timely. 
As a result, investors, counterparties and customers may lose confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial 
reports; our liquidity, access to capital markets, and perceptions of our creditworthiness could be adversely affected; and the 
market price of our common stock could decline. In addition, we could become subject to investigations by the stock exchange 
on which our securities are listed, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Federal Reserve or the FDIC, or other 
regulatory authorities, which could require additional financial and management resources.

Regulatory requirements affecting our loans secured by commercial real estate could limit our ability to leverage our capital 
and adversely affect our growth and profitability.

The federal bank regulatory agencies have indicated their view that banks with high concentrations of loans secured by 
commercial real estate are subject to increased risk and should hold higher capital than regulatory minimums to maintain an 
appropriate cushion against loss that is commensurate with the perceived risk. That view has been incorporated, among other 
things, into the recent revised regulatory capital standards commonly known as Basel III, which increase the risk weighting for 
“high volatility commercial real estate loans” from 100% to 150%. Because a significant portion of our loan portfolio is 
dependent on commercial real estate, the Basel III capital framework, as well as any other policies affecting commercial real 
estate, could limit our ability to leverage our capital.

We are subject to risks associated with our investments in short-term receivables.

As a part of our liquidity management strategy, we invest in short-term receivables traded over the Receivables Exchange, a 
New York Stock Exchange listed electronic exchange for the sale and purchase of accounts receivable of companies whose 
annual revenues exceed $1 billion, whose common equity is listed on a national securities exchange or whose debt is rated by 
Standard & Poor’s or Moody’s. As of December 31, 2014, we had $237.1 million in investments in short-term receivables. Our 
investments in short-term receivables are subject to agreements that provide recourse against the seller with respect to any 
invoiced amounts deemed in dispute, upon the breach of any representation or warranty made to us by the seller, or with respect 
to any credit adjustments related to the receivable. As with substantially all of our investment securities, we are subject to credit 
risk with respect to our investments in short-term receivables. We engage in a review of all sellers from which we purchase 
receivables over the exchange prior to investing in short-term receivables. Since we commenced our investments in short-term 
receivables in 2010, we have not suffered any losses with respect to our investments.  However, we cannot assure you that we 
will not sustain any losses in the future.
              
We maintain a significant investment in tax credits, which we may not be able to fully utilize.

As of December 31, 2014, we maintained an investment of $140.9 million in entities for which we receive allocations of tax 
credits, which we utilize to offset our taxable income. We earned and recognized $38.4 million and $28.4 million in tax credits 
in 2014 and 2013, respectively, and as of December 31, 2014, we had tax credit carryforwards of approximately $94.5 million. 
We also expect to receive an additional $55.5 million in tax credits related to Federal New Markets Tax Credits for which 
qualified equity investments have already been made and $42.1 million in tax credits related to Low-Income Housing Tax 
Credits. Substantially all of these tax credits are related to development projects that are subject to ongoing compliance 
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requirements over certain periods of time to fully realize their value. If these projects are not operated in full compliance with 
the required terms, the tax credits could be subject to recapture or restructuring.

Our effective federal income tax rate may increase.

As a result of our utilization of tax credits, we have recognized federal income taxes at effective tax rates substantially below 
statutory tax rates in every year since our inception. In some years, we paid no federal income taxes, even though we were 
profitable. We expect that tax credit-motivated investments will continue to be a material part of our business strategy for the 
foreseeable future. However, our ability to continue to access tax credits in the future will depend, among other factors, on 
federal and state tax policies, as well as the level of competition for future tax credits. Any of these tax credit programs could 
be discontinued at any time by future legislative action. If we are unable for any reason to maintain a level of federal tax credits 
consistent with our historical allocations, our effective federal income tax rate and taxes paid would be expected to increase.

If we are unable to redeem our Series D preferred stock by February 4, 2016, or if we fail to comply with certain other terms 
of our Series D preferred stock, the dividend rate will increase, which will adversely affect income to common shareholders.

We issued $37.9 million in Series D preferred stock to the U.S. Treasury in August 2011 in connection with our participation in 
the Small Business Lending Fund program. Under the terms of our Series D preferred stock, the annual dividend rate is fixed at 
a rate of 1% until February 3, 2016. If we are unable to redeem our Series D preferred stock by February 4, 2016, the annual 
dividend rate will increase to a fixed rate of 9%. In addition, we have certain annual reporting and certification obligations 
relating to our Series D preferred stock. If we fail to timely comply with any of those obligations, the annual dividend rate 
would increase to 7% during any period of noncompliance. Any increase in the dividend rate would decrease the amount of our 
income that is available to common shareholders.

We are subject to interest rate risk, which could adversely affect our profitability.

Our profitability, like that of most financial institutions, depends to a large extent on our ability to manage the risks associated 
with changes in interest rates. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors that are beyond our control, including general 
economic conditions and policies of various governmental and regulatory agencies and, in particular, the Federal Reserve 
Board. Changes in monetary policy, including changes in interest rates, can impact our financial condition and results of 
operations in a number of ways. Net interest income, the primary driver of our earnings, is significantly affected by changes in 
interest rates. Net interest income is a measure of our net interest margin – the difference between the yield that we earn on our 
loans and investment securities and the interest rate that we pay on deposits and other borrowings – and the amount and mix of 
our interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Changes in either our net interest margin or the amount or mix of 
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, which can result from changes in interest rates, could affect our net 
interest income and our earnings. Although the yield that we earn on our assets and our funding costs tend to move in the same 
direction in response to changes in interest rates, one can rise or fall faster than the other, causing our net interest margin to 
expand or contract. Changes in interest rates can also affect our business in numerous other ways. Increases in interest rates can 
have a negative impact on our results of operations by reducing loan demand and the ability of borrowers to repay their current 
obligations. Changes in interest rates can also affect the value of the investment securities that we hold. We measure and seek to 
actively manage our interest rate risk by estimating the effect of changes in interest rates on our earnings under various 
scenarios that differ based on assumptions about the direction, magnitude and speed of the changes and the slope of the interest 
rate yield curve. We hedge some of that interest rate risk with interest rate derivatives. At this time, we have positioned our 
asset portfolio to benefit in a higher or lower interest rate environment, but this may not remain true in the future. Furthermore, 
our strategies may not have the intended effect. If we are unable to effectively monitor and manage our interest rate risk, our 
business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects may be materially and adversely affected.

Liquidity risk could impair our ability to fund operations and meet our obligations as they become due.

Liquidity is essential to our business. Liquidity risk is the potential that we will be unable to meet our obligations as they come 
due because of an inability to liquidate assets or obtain adequate funding. An inability to raise funds through deposits, 
borrowings, the sale of loans and other sources could have a substantial negative effect on our liquidity. Our access to funding 
sources in amounts adequate to finance our activities or on terms that are acceptable to us could be impaired by factors that 
affect us specifically or the financial services industry or economy in general. Market conditions or other events could also 
negatively affect the level or cost of funding, affecting our ongoing ability to accommodate liability maturities and deposit 
withdrawals, meet contractual obligations and fund asset growth and new business transactions at a reasonable cost, in a timely 
manner and without adverse consequences. Any substantial, unexpected or prolonged change in the level or cost of liquidity 
could have a material adverse effect on our ability to meet deposit withdrawals and other customer needs, which could have a 
material adverse effect on business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.
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could have a material adverse effect on our ability to meet deposit withdrawals and other customer needs, which could have a 
material adverse effect on business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.
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By engaging in derivative transactions, we are exposed to credit and market risk, which could adversely affect our 
profitability and financial condition.

We manage interest rate risk by, among other things, utilizing derivative instruments to minimize significant unplanned 
fluctuations in earnings that are caused by interest rate volatility. Hedging interest rate risk is a complex process, requiring 
sophisticated models and constant monitoring, and is not a perfect science. As a result of interest rate fluctuations, hedged 
assets and liabilities will appreciate or depreciate in market value. The effect of this unrealized appreciation or depreciation will 
generally be offset by income or loss on the derivative instruments that are linked to the hedged assets and liabilities. By 
engaging in derivative transactions, we are exposed to credit and market risk. If the counterparty fails to perform, credit risk 
exists to the extent of the fair value gain in the derivative. Market risk exists to the extent that interest rates change in ways that 
are significantly different from what we expected when we entered into the derivative transaction. The existence of credit and 
market risk associated with our derivative instruments could adversely affect our profitability and financial condition.

The fair value of our investment securities can fluctuate due to factors outside of our control.

Factors beyond our control can significantly influence the fair value of securities in our portfolio and can cause potential 
adverse changes to the fair value of these securities. These factors include, but are not limited to, rating agency actions in 
respect of the securities, defaults by the issuer or with respect to the underlying securities, and changes in market interest rates 
and continued instability in the capital markets. Any of these factors, among others, could cause other-than-temporary 
impairments and realized and/or unrealized losses in future periods and declines in other comprehensive income, which could 
materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects. The process for 
determining whether impairment of a security is other-than-temporary usually requires complex, subjective judgments about 
the future financial performance and liquidity of the issuer and any collateral underlying the security in order to assess the 
probability of receiving all contractual principal and interest payments on the security.

Deterioration in the fiscal position of the U.S. federal government and downgrades in U.S. Treasury and federal agency 
securities could adversely affect us and our banking operations.

The long-term outlook for the fiscal position of the U.S. federal government is uncertain, as illustrated by the 2011 downgrade 
by certain rating agencies of the credit rating of the U.S. government and federal agencies. However, in addition to causing 
economic and financial market disruptions, any future downgrade, failure to raise the U.S. statutory debt limit, or deterioration 
in the fiscal outlook of the U.S. federal government, could, among other things, materially adversely affect the market value of 
the U.S. and other government and governmental agency securities that we hold, the availability of those securities as collateral 
for borrowing, and our ability to access capital markets on favorable terms. In particular, it could increase interest rates and 
disrupt payment systems, money markets, and long-term or short-term fixed income markets, adversely affecting the cost and 
availability of funding, which could negatively affect our profitability. Also, the adverse consequences of any downgrade could 
extend to those to whom we extend credit and could adversely affect their ability to repay their loans. Any of these 
developments could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Our financial results depend on management’s selection of accounting methods and certain assumptions and estimates.

The preparation of our financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
certain assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amount of related revenues and 
expenses. Certain accounting policies are inherently based to a greater extent on estimates, assumptions and judgments of 
management and, as such, have a greater possibility of producing results that could be materially different than originally 
estimated. These critical accounting policies include the allowance for loan losses, accounting for income taxes, the 
determination of fair value for financial instruments and accounting for stock-based compensation. Management’s judgment 
and the data relied upon by management may be based on assumptions that prove to be inaccurate, particularly in times of 
market stress or other unforeseen circumstances. Even if the relevant factual assumptions are accurate, our decisions may prove 
to be inadequate or inaccurate because of other flaws in the design or use of analytical tools used by management. Any such 
failures in our processes for producing accounting estimates and managing risks could have a material adverse effect on our 
business, financial condition and results of operations.

We may be adversely affected by the soundness of other financial institutions.

Our ability to engage in routine funding transactions could be adversely affected by the actions and commercial soundness of 
other financial institutions. Financial services companies are interrelated as a result of trading, clearing, counterparty, and other 
relationships. We have exposure to different industries and counterparties, and through transactions with counterparties in the 
financial services industry, including brokers and dealers, commercial banks, investment banks, and other institutional clients. 
As a result, defaults by, or even rumors or questions about, one or more financial services companies, or the financial services 
industry generally, have led to market-wide liquidity problems and could lead to losses or defaults by us or by other 
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institutions. These losses or defaults could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of 
operations and prospects.

We rely heavily on our information technology and telecommunications systems and third-party servicers, and any systems 
failures or interruptions could adversely affect our operations and financial condition.

Our business depends on the successful and uninterrupted functioning of our information technology and telecommunications 
systems and third-party servicers. We outsource many of our major systems, such as data processing, loan servicing and deposit 
processing systems. The failure of any of these systems, or the termination of a third-party software license or service 
agreement on which any of these systems is based, could interrupt our operations. Because our information technology and 
telecommunications systems interface with and depend on third-party systems, we could experience service denials if demand 
for such services exceeds capacity or such third-party systems fail or experience interruptions. If significant, sustained or 
repeated, a system failure or service denial could compromise our ability to operate effectively, damage our reputation, result in 
a loss of customer business, subject us to additional regulatory scrutiny and possible financial liability.

We may bear costs associated with the proliferation of computer theft and cybercrime.

We necessarily collect, use and hold data concerning individuals and businesses with whom we have a banking relationship. 
Threats to data security, including unauthorized access and cyber attacks, rapidly emerge and change, exposing us to additional 
costs for protection or remediation and competing time constraints to secure our data in accordance with customer expectations 
and statutory and regulatory requirements. It is difficult or impossible to defend against every risk being posed by changing 
technologies as well as criminals intent on committing cyber-crime. Increasing sophistication of cyber-criminals and terrorists 
make keeping up with new threats difficult and could result in a breach. Patching and other measures to protect existing 
systems and servers could be inadequate, especially on systems that are being retired. Controls employed by our information 
technology department and cloud vendors could prove inadequate. We could also experience a breach by intentional or 
negligent conduct on the part of employees or other internal sources. Our systems and those of our third-party vendors may 
become vulnerable to damage or disruption due to circumstances beyond our or their control, such as from catastrophic events, 
power anomalies or outages, natural disasters, network failures, viruses and malware.

A breach of our security that results in unauthorized access to our data could expose us to a disruption or challenges relating to 
our daily operations as well as to data loss, litigation, damages, fines and penalties, significant increases in compliance costs, 
and reputational damage, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial 
condition and prospects.

We are subject to environmental liability risk associated with our lending activities.

A significant portion of our loan portfolio is secured by real property. During the ordinary course of business, we may foreclose 
on and take title to properties securing certain loans. There is a risk that hazardous or toxic substances could be found on these 
properties, and that we may be liable for remediation costs, as well as for personal injury and property damage. Environmental 
laws may require us to incur substantial expenses and may materially reduce the affected property’s value by limiting our 
ability to use or sell it. Although we have policies and procedures requiring environmental review before initiating any 
foreclosure action on real property, these reviews may not be sufficient to detect all potential environmental hazards. The 
remediation costs and any other financial liabilities associated with an environmental hazard could cause a material adverse 
effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. Future laws or regulations or more stringent 
interpretations or enforcement policies with respect to existing laws and regulations may increase our exposure to 
environmental liability.

Risks Relating to the Regulation of our Industry

We operate in a highly regulated environment, which could restrain our growth and profitability.

We are subject to extensive regulation and supervision that govern almost all aspects of our operations. These laws and 
regulations, and the supervisory framework that oversees the administration of these laws and regulations, are primarily 
intended to protect consumers, depositors, the Deposit Insurance Fund and the banking system as a whole, and not shareholders 
and counterparties. These laws and regulations, among other matters, affect our lending practices, capital structure, investment 
practices, dividend policy, operations and growth. Compliance with the myriad laws and regulations applicable to our 
organization can be difficult and costly. In addition, these laws, regulations and policies are subject to continual review by 
governmental authorities, and changes to these laws, regulations and policies, including changes in interpretation or 
implementation of these laws, regulations and policies, could affect us in substantial and unpredictable ways and often impose 
additional compliance costs. Further, any new laws, rules and regulations could make compliance more difficult or expensive. 



18

institutions. These losses or defaults could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of 
operations and prospects.

We rely heavily on our information technology and telecommunications systems and third-party servicers, and any systems 
failures or interruptions could adversely affect our operations and financial condition.

Our business depends on the successful and uninterrupted functioning of our information technology and telecommunications 
systems and third-party servicers. We outsource many of our major systems, such as data processing, loan servicing and deposit 
processing systems. The failure of any of these systems, or the termination of a third-party software license or service 
agreement on which any of these systems is based, could interrupt our operations. Because our information technology and 
telecommunications systems interface with and depend on third-party systems, we could experience service denials if demand 
for such services exceeds capacity or such third-party systems fail or experience interruptions. If significant, sustained or 
repeated, a system failure or service denial could compromise our ability to operate effectively, damage our reputation, result in 
a loss of customer business, subject us to additional regulatory scrutiny and possible financial liability.

We may bear costs associated with the proliferation of computer theft and cybercrime.

We necessarily collect, use and hold data concerning individuals and businesses with whom we have a banking relationship. 
Threats to data security, including unauthorized access and cyber attacks, rapidly emerge and change, exposing us to additional 
costs for protection or remediation and competing time constraints to secure our data in accordance with customer expectations 
and statutory and regulatory requirements. It is difficult or impossible to defend against every risk being posed by changing 
technologies as well as criminals intent on committing cyber-crime. Increasing sophistication of cyber-criminals and terrorists 
make keeping up with new threats difficult and could result in a breach. Patching and other measures to protect existing 
systems and servers could be inadequate, especially on systems that are being retired. Controls employed by our information 
technology department and cloud vendors could prove inadequate. We could also experience a breach by intentional or 
negligent conduct on the part of employees or other internal sources. Our systems and those of our third-party vendors may 
become vulnerable to damage or disruption due to circumstances beyond our or their control, such as from catastrophic events, 
power anomalies or outages, natural disasters, network failures, viruses and malware.

A breach of our security that results in unauthorized access to our data could expose us to a disruption or challenges relating to 
our daily operations as well as to data loss, litigation, damages, fines and penalties, significant increases in compliance costs, 
and reputational damage, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial 
condition and prospects.

We are subject to environmental liability risk associated with our lending activities.

A significant portion of our loan portfolio is secured by real property. During the ordinary course of business, we may foreclose 
on and take title to properties securing certain loans. There is a risk that hazardous or toxic substances could be found on these 
properties, and that we may be liable for remediation costs, as well as for personal injury and property damage. Environmental 
laws may require us to incur substantial expenses and may materially reduce the affected property’s value by limiting our 
ability to use or sell it. Although we have policies and procedures requiring environmental review before initiating any 
foreclosure action on real property, these reviews may not be sufficient to detect all potential environmental hazards. The 
remediation costs and any other financial liabilities associated with an environmental hazard could cause a material adverse 
effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. Future laws or regulations or more stringent 
interpretations or enforcement policies with respect to existing laws and regulations may increase our exposure to 
environmental liability.

Risks Relating to the Regulation of our Industry

We operate in a highly regulated environment, which could restrain our growth and profitability.

We are subject to extensive regulation and supervision that govern almost all aspects of our operations. These laws and 
regulations, and the supervisory framework that oversees the administration of these laws and regulations, are primarily 
intended to protect consumers, depositors, the Deposit Insurance Fund and the banking system as a whole, and not shareholders 
and counterparties. These laws and regulations, among other matters, affect our lending practices, capital structure, investment 
practices, dividend policy, operations and growth. Compliance with the myriad laws and regulations applicable to our 
organization can be difficult and costly. In addition, these laws, regulations and policies are subject to continual review by 
governmental authorities, and changes to these laws, regulations and policies, including changes in interpretation or 
implementation of these laws, regulations and policies, could affect us in substantial and unpredictable ways and often impose 
additional compliance costs. Further, any new laws, rules and regulations could make compliance more difficult or expensive. 
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All of these laws and regulations, and the supervisory framework applicable to the banking industry, could have a material 
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

The short-term and long-term impact of the newly adopted regulatory capital rules is uncertain.

In July 2013, the federal banking agencies approved rules that will significantly change the regulatory capital requirements of 
all banking institutions in the United States. The new rules are designed to implement the recommendations with respect to 
regulatory capital standards, commonly known as Basel III, approved by the International Basel Committee on Banking 
Supervision. We became subject to the new rules, which include a multi-year transition period, beginning January 1, 2015. The 
new rules establish a new regulatory capital standard based on tier 1 common equity, increase the minimum tier 1 capital risk-
based capital ratio, and impose a capital conservation buffer of at least 2.5% of common equity tier 1 capital above the new 
minimum regulatory capital ratios, when fully phased in during 2019. Failure to meet the capital conservation buffer will result 
in certain limitations on dividends, capital repurchases, and discretionary bonus payments to executive officers. The rules also 
change the manner in which a number of our regulatory capital components are calculated and the risk weights applicable to 
certain asset categories. Although there remains some uncertainty associated with the implementation and regulatory 
interpretation of the newly adopted standards, we expect that the new rules will generally require us to maintain greater 
amounts of regulatory capital. The new rules may also limit or restrict how we utilize our capital. A significant increase in our 
capital requirements could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations or 
prospects.

Federal and state regulators periodically examine our business and we may be required to remediate adverse examination 
findings.

The Federal Reserve, the FDIC and the Louisiana Office of Financial Institutions periodically examine our business, including 
our compliance with laws and regulations. If, as a result of an examination, a federal banking agency were to determine that our 
financial condition, capital resources, asset quality, earnings prospects, management, liquidity or other aspects of any of our 
operations had become unsatisfactory, or that we were in violation of any law or regulation, it may take a number of different 
remedial actions as it deems appropriate. These actions include the power to enjoin “unsafe or unsound” practices, to require 
affirmative action to correct any conditions resulting from any violation or practice, to issue an administrative order that can be 
judicially enforced, to direct an increase in our capital, to restrict our growth, to assess civil monetary penalties against our 
officers or directors, to remove officers and directors and, if it is concluded that such conditions cannot be corrected or there is 
an imminent risk of loss to depositors, to terminate our deposit insurance and place us into receivership or conservatorship. Any 
regulatory action against us could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and 
prospects.

Our FDIC deposit insurance premiums and assessments may increase.

The deposits of First NBC Bank are insured by the FDIC up to legal limits and, accordingly, subject it to the payment of FDIC 
deposit insurance assessments. The bank’s regular assessments are determined by the level of its assessment base and its risk 
classification, which is based on its regulatory capital levels and the level of supervisory concern that it poses. The FDIC has 
the unilateral power to change deposit insurance assessment rates and the manner in which deposit insurance is calculated and 
also to charge special assessments to FDIC-insured institutions. The FDIC utilized all of these powers during the financial 
crisis for the purpose of restoring the reserve ratios of the Deposit Insurance Fund. Any future special assessments, increases in 
assessment rates or required prepayments in FDIC insurance premiums could reduce our profitability or limit our ability to 
pursue certain business opportunities.

We are subject to numerous laws designed to protect consumers, including the Community Reinvestment Act and fair 
lending laws, and failure to comply with these laws could lead to a wide variety of sanctions.

The Community Reinvestment Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Fair Housing Act and other fair lending laws and 
regulations impose nondiscriminatory lending requirements on financial institutions. The Department of Justice and other 
federal agencies are responsible for enforcing these laws and regulations. A successful regulatory challenge to an institution’s 
performance under the Community Reinvestment Act or fair lending laws and regulations could result in a wide variety of 
sanctions, including damages and civil money penalties, injunctive relief, restrictions on mergers and acquisitions activity, 
restrictions on expansion, and restrictions on entering new business lines. Private parties may also have the ability to challenge 
an institution’s performance under fair lending laws in private class action litigation. Such actions could have a material 
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.
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We face a risk of noncompliance and enforcement action with the Bank Secrecy Act and other anti-money laundering 
statutes and regulations.

The Bank Secrecy Act, the USA PATRIOT Act of 2001, and other laws and regulations require financial institutions, among 
other duties, to institute and maintain an effective anti-money laundering program and file suspicious activity and currency 
transaction reports as appropriate. The federal Financial Crimes Enforcement Network is authorized to impose significant civil 
money penalties for violations of those requirements and has recently engaged in coordinated enforcement efforts with the 
individual federal banking regulators, as well as the U.S. Department of Justice, Drug Enforcement Administration, and 
Internal Revenue Service. We are also subject to increased scrutiny of compliance with the rules enforced by the Office of 
Foreign Assets Control. If our policies, procedures and systems are deemed deficient, we would be subject to liability, 
including fines and regulatory actions, which may include restrictions on our ability to pay dividends and the necessity to 
obtain regulatory approvals to proceed with certain aspects of our business plan, including our acquisition plans. Failure to 
maintain and implement adequate programs to combat money laundering and terrorist financing could also have serious 
reputational consequences for us.

Risks Relating to an Investment in our Common Stock

The market price of our common stock may be subject to substantial fluctuations, which may make it difficult for you to sell 
your shares at the volume, prices and times desired.

The market price of our common stock may be volatile, which may make it difficult for you to resell your shares at the volume, 
prices and times desired. There are many factors that may impact the market price and trading volume of our common stock, 
including, without limitation:

• actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results, financial condition or asset quality;

• changes in economic or business conditions;

• initiation or termination of coverage by securities analysts;

• publication of research reports about us, our competitors, or the financial services industry generally, or changes in, or failure 
to meet, securities analysts’ estimates of our financial and operating performance, or lack of research reports by industry 
analysts or ceasing of coverage;

• operating and stock price performance of companies that investors deemed comparable to us;

• future issuances of our common stock or other securities;

• additions or departures of key personnel;

• proposed or adopted changes in laws, regulations or policies affecting us, including the interest rate policies of the Federal 
Reserve;

• perceptions in the marketplace regarding our competitors and/or us;

• significant acquisitions or business combinations, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments by or 
involving our competitors or us;

• other economic, competitive, governmental, regulatory and technological factors affecting our operations, pricing, products 
and services; and

• other news, announcements or disclosures (whether by us or others) related to us, our competitors, our core market or the 
financial services industry.

The stock market and, in particular, the market for financial institution stocks, have experienced substantial fluctuations in 
recent years, which in many cases have been unrelated to the operating performance and prospects of particular companies. In 
addition, significant fluctuations in the trading volume in our common stock may cause significant price variations to occur. 
Increased market volatility may materially and adversely affect the market price of our common stock, which could make it 
difficult to sell your shares at the volume, prices and times desired.
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We are an “emerging growth company,” and the reduced reporting requirements applicable to emerging growth companies 
may make our common stock less attractive to investors.

We are an “emerging growth company” for purposes of the federal securities laws. For as long as we continue to be an 
emerging growth company, we may take advantage of exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to 
other public companies that are not emerging growth companies, including reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive 
compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements and exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding 
advisory vote on executive compensation and shareholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved. 
We could be an emerging growth company for up to five years, although we could lose that status sooner if our gross revenues 
exceed $1.0 billion, if we issue more than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debt in a three year period, or if the market value of 
our common stock held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of any June 30 before that time, in which case we would no 
longer be an emerging growth company as of the following December 31. We cannot predict if investors will find our common 
stock less attractive because we may rely on these exemptions, or if we choose to rely on additional exemptions in the future. If 
some investors find our common stock less attractive as a result, there may be a less active trading market for our common 
stock and our stock price may be more volatile.

The trading volume in our common stock is less than that of other larger financial services companies, which could 
increase the volatility of our stock price.

Although our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market, the trading volume in our common stock is less than 
that of other larger financial services companies. Given the lower trading volume, significant sales of our common stock, or the 
expectation of these sales, could cause our stock price to fall. In addition, a majority of our outstanding common stock is held 
by institutional shareholders, and trading activity involving large positions may increase the volatility of our stock price. As a 
result, shareholders may not be able to sell their shares at the volume, prices and times desired.

The rights of our common shareholders are subordinate to the rights of the holders of our Series D preferred stock and any 
debt securities that we may issue and may be subordinate to the holders of any other class of preferred stock that we may 
issue in the future.

We have issued 37,935 shares of our Series D preferred stock to the U.S. Treasury in connection with our participation in the 
Small Business Lending Fund program.  In addition, on February 18, 2015, we issued $60.0 million in aggregate principal 
amount of our subordinated debt securities.  The Series D preferred stock and subordinated debt securities have rights that are 
senior to our common stock.  As a result, we must make payments on the preferred stock and the subordinated debt before any 
dividends can be paid on our common stock and, in the event of our bankruptcy, dissolution or liquidation, the holders of the 
Series D preferred stock and the subordinated debt must be satisfied in full before any distributions can be made to the holders 
of our common stock. Our Board of Directors has the authority to issue in the aggregate up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred 
stock, and to determine the terms of each issue of preferred stock and subordinated debt, without shareholder approval. 
Accordingly, you should assume that any shares of preferred stock and subordinated debt that we may issue in the future will 
also be senior to our common stock. Because our decision to issue debt or equity securities or incur other borrowings in the 
future will depend on market conditions and other factors beyond our control, the amount, timing, nature or success of our 
future capital raising efforts is uncertain. Thus, common shareholders bear the risk that our future issuances of debt or equity 
securities or our incurrence of other borrowings will negatively affect the market price of our common stock.

We cannot guarantee that we will pay dividends to shareholders in the foreseeable future.

Holders of our common stock are only entitled to receive such dividends as our Board of Directors may declare out of funds 
legally available for such payments.  Historically, we have retained all of our earnings to support growth and build capital.  Any 
future declaration and payment of dividends on our common stock would depend upon our earnings and financial condition, 
liquidity and capital requirements, the general economic and regulatory climate in which we operate, our ability to service any 
equity or debt obligations senior to our common stock and other factors deemed relevant by our Board of Directors.  In 
addition, we are subject to certain restrictions on the payment of cash dividends as a result of banking laws, regulations and 
policies.  Finally, because First NBC Bank is our only material asset, other than cash, our ability to pay dividends to our 
shareholders would likely depend on our receipt of dividends from the bank, which is also subject to restrictions on dividends 
as a result of banking laws, regulations and policies.
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Our corporate governance documents, and certain corporate and banking laws applicable to us, could make a takeover 
more difficult.

Certain provisions of our articles of incorporation and bylaws, and corporate and federal banking laws, could make it more 
difficult for a third party to acquire control of our organization or conduct a proxy contest, even if those events were perceived 
by many of our shareholders as beneficial to their interests. These provisions, and the corporate and banking laws and 
regulations applicable to us:

• enable our Board of Directors to issue additional shares of authorized, but unissued capital stock;

• enable our Board of Directors to issue “blank check” preferred stock with such designations, rights and preferences as may 
be determined from time to time by the Board;

• enable our Board of Directors to increase the size of the Board and fill the vacancies created by the increase;

• enable our Board of Directors to amend our bylaws without shareholder approval;

• require advance notice for director nominations and other shareholder proposals; and

• require prior regulatory application and approval of any transaction involving control of our organization.

These provisions may discourage potential acquisition proposals and could delay or prevent a change in control, including 
under circumstances in which our shareholders might otherwise receive a premium over the market price of our shares.

An investment in our common stock is not an insured deposit and is subject to risk of loss.

Your investment in our common stock is not a bank deposit and is not insured or guaranteed by the FDIC or any other 
government agency. Your investment is subject to investment risk and you must be capable of affording the loss of your entire 
investment.

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments.

None. 

Item 2. Properties.

Our main office is located at 210 Baronne Street in New Orleans, which was built in 1927 and housed the former First National 
Bank of Commerce in New Orleans until its sale to Bank One in 1998. In addition to our main office, we operate from 31 
branch offices located in Orleans, Jefferson, Tangipahoa, St. Tammany, Livingston and Washington Parishes and a loan 
production office in Gulfport, Mississippi. We lease our main office and 14 of our branch offices. These leases expire between 
2015 and 2037, not including any renewal options that may be available. We own the remainder of our offices. All of our 
banking offices are in free-standing permanent facilities, except for the Kenner banking office. All of our banking offices are 
equipped with automated teller machines, and all of which provide for drive-up access, except for the main office. 

Item 3.  Legal Proceedings.

From time to time, we are a party to various litigation matters incidental to the conduct of our business. We are not presently 
party to any legal proceedings the resolution of which we believe would have a material adverse effect on our business, 
prospects, financial condition, liquidity, results of operation, cash flows or capital levels.

Item 4.  Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

Part II.
 

Item 5.  Market Information and Holders

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “FNBC.” As of March 23, 2015, there 
were approximately 235 holders of record of our common stock.
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23

The following table sets forth the reported high and low sales price of our common stock as quoted on the NASDAQ during 
each quarter in 2014:

2014 High Sale Low Sale
4th quarter $ 38.18 $ 32.07
3rd quarter 34.75 30.59
2nd quarter 35.50 30.92
1st quarter 35.25 31.31

Stock Performance Graph

The following graph and table, which were prepared by SNL Financial LC (“SNL”), compare the cumulative total return on our 
common stock over a measurement period beginning May 9, 2013 with (i) the cumulative total return on the stocks included in 
the Russell 3000 Index and (ii) the cumulative total return on the stocks included in the SNL Index of Banks with assets 
between $1 billion and $5 billion.

 Period Ending
Index 5/9/2013 6/30/2013 9/30/2013 12/31/2013 3/31/2014 6/30/2014 9/30/2014 12/31/2014

First NBC Bank
Holding Company 100.00 101.67 101.58 134.58 145.25 139.63 136.46 146.67
Russell 3000 100.00 99.13 105.43 116.08 118.37 124.14 124.15 130.66
SNL Bank $1B-$5B 100.00 104.72 114.89 130.35 132.04 129.46 122.66 136.29

The stock performance graph assumes $100.00 was invested May 9, 2013. The stock price performance included in this graph 
is not necessarily indicative of future stock performance.
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Dividend Policy

We have not paid any dividends on our common stock since inception. Instead, we have retained all of our earnings to support 
growth and build capital. Any future declaration and payment of dividends on our common stock would depend upon our 
earnings and financial condition, liquidity and capital requirements, the general economic and regulatory climate in which we 
operate, our ability to service any equity or debt obligations senior to our common stock and other factors deemed relevant by 
our Board of Directors. 

In addition, we are a holding company and do not engage directly in business activities of a material nature. Accordingly, our 
ability to pay dividends to our shareholders depends, in large part, upon our receipt of dividends from First NBC Bank. First 
NBC Bank and we are also subject to numerous limitations on the payments of dividends under federal and state banking laws, 
regulations and policies. See “Supervision and Regulation-Dividends” in Item 1 of this annual report.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table presents certain information regarding our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2014:

Plan category

Number of
securities to be

issued upon 
exercise

of
outstanding

options,
warrants and 

rights

Weighted-
average

exercise price of
outstanding

options, 
warrants
and rights

Number of
securities
remaining

available for 
future

issuance under
equity

compensation
plans

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 834,670 $ 14.50 1,074,927
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders — $ — —
Total 834,670 $ 14.50 1,074,927
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 Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial and Other Data

 As of and for the year ended December 31,

 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

 (In thousands, except share data)

Income Statement Data:
Interest income $ 149,978 $ 124,024 $ 106,457 $ 79,014 $ 60,691
Interest expense 42,729 39,148 31,666 26,367 24,328

Net interest income 107,249 84,876 74,791 52,647 36,363
Provision for loan losses 12,000 9,800 11,035 8,010 5,514

Net interest income after provision 95,249 75,076 63,756 44,637 30,849
Noninterest income 11,613 13,426 13,136 5,951 5,647
Noninterest expense 78,249 67,342 55,007 36,247 26,287
Income before income taxes 28,613 21,160 21,885 14,341 10,209
Income tax expense (benefit) (26,976) (19,751) (7,565) (5,407) 147
Net income 55,589 40,911 29,450 19,748 10,062
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests — — (510) (308) —
Less preferred stock dividends (379) (347) (510) (792) (972)
Less earnings allocated to participating securities (1,066) (1,980) (1,999) (1,304) —
Income available to common shareholders $ 54,144 $ 38,584 $ 26,431 $ 17,344 $ 9,090
Period-End Balance Sheet Data:
Investment in short-term receivables $ 237,135 $ 246,817 $ 81,044 $ 10,180 $ 37,068
Investment securities available for sale 247,647 277,719 405,355 316,309 183,922
Investment securities held to maturity 89,076 94,904 — — —
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses 2,731,928 2,325,634 1,895,240 1,633,214 1,099,975
Allowance for loan losses 42,336 32,143 26,977 18,122 12,508
Total assets 3,750,617 3,286,617 2,670,867 2,216,456 1,459,943
Noninterest-bearing deposits 364,534 291,080 239,538 221,423 115,071
Interest-bearing deposits 2,756,316 2,439,727 2,028,990 1,680,587 1,179,710
Long-term borrowings 40,000 55,110 75,220 56,845 15,440
Preferred shareholders’ equity 42,406 42,406 49,166 58,517 18,105
Common shareholders’ equity 393,966 339,451 198,935 163,353 111,281
Total shareholders’ equity 436,372 381,857 248,101 221,870 129,386
Per Share Data:
Earnings

Basic $ 2.92 $ 2.38 $ 2.04 $ 1.55 $ 1.14
Diluted 2.84 2.32 2.02 1.54 1.13

Book value 21.21 18.33 15.24 13.58 11.63
Tangible book value(1) 20.79 17.88 14.58 12.84 11.07
Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic 18,541 16,204 12,953 10,795 7,800
Diluted 19,049 16,624 13,114 10,861 7,858

Performance Ratios:
Return on average common equity 15.17% 14.88% 15.77% 14.28% 11.42%
Return on average equity 13.60 12.63 12.40 11.25 9.48
Return on average assets 1.57 1.37 1.19 1.17 0.79
Net interest margin 3.34 3.11 3.36 3.44 3.09
Efficiency ratio(2) 65.83 68.50 62.56 61.86 62.57
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 As of and for the year ended December 31,
 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
 (dollars in thousands, except share data)

Asset Quality Ratios:
Nonperforming assets to total loans, other real estate
owned and other assets owned(3)(4) 1.03% 0.93% 1.66% 1.11% 0.89%
Allowance for loan losses to total loans(4) 1.53 1.36 1.40 1.10 1.12
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans(3) 185.71 178.34 115.19 173.92 333.99
Net charge-offs to average loans 0.07 0.22 0.12 0.19 0.09
Capital Ratios:
Total shareholders’ equity to assets 11.63% 11.62% 9.29% 10.08% 8.86%
Tangible common equity to tangible assets(5) 10.32% 10.10% 7.15% 7.04% 7.28%
Tier 1 leverage capital 10.66% 11.76% 9.04% 10.69% 8.92%
Tier 1 risk-based capital 11.59% 13.26% 11.26% 12.02% 10.07%
Total risk-based capital 12.84% 14.40% 12.51% 13.02% 11.05%

(1) Tangible book value per common share is a non-GAAP financial measure. Tangible book value per common share is 
computed as total shareholders’ equity, excluding preferred stock, less intangible assets, divided by the number of 
common shares outstanding at the balance sheet date. We believe that the most directly comparable GAAP financial 
measure is book value per share.

(2) Efficiency ratio is the ratio of noninterest expense to net interest income and noninterest income.
(3) Nonperforming assets consist of nonperforming loans and real estate and other property that we have repossessed. 

Nonperforming loans consist of nonaccrual loans and restructured loans.
(4) Total loans are net of unearned discounts and deferred fees and costs.
(5) Tangible common equity to tangible assets is a non-GAAP financial measure. Tangible common equity is computed as 

total shareholders’ equity, excluding preferred stock, less intangible assets, and tangible assets are calculated as total 
assets less intangible assets. We believe that the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure is total 
shareholders’ equity to assets.
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Item 7.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion and analysis is intended to assist readers in understanding the consolidated financial condition and 
results of operations of First NBC Bank Holding Company (“Company”) and its wholly owned subsidiary, First NBC Bank, as 
of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 and for the years ended December 31, 2014 through 2012. This discussion and 
analysis should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements, accompanying the footnotes and 
supplemental data included herein.

Forward-Looking Statements

From time to time, the Company has made and will make forward-looking statements, which reflect the Company’s current 
expectations with respect to, among other things, future events and financial performance. These statements are often, but not 
always, made through the use of words or phrases such as “may,” “should,” “could,” “predict,” “potential,” “believe,” “will 
likely result,” “expect,” “continue,” “will,” “anticipate,” “seek,” “estimate,” “intend,” “plan,” “projection,” “would” and 
“outlook,” or the negative version of those words or other comparable of a future or forward-looking nature. The Company’s 
disclosures in this annual report contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigations 
Reform Act of 1995. The Company also may make forward-looking statements in its other documents filed or furnished with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission or orally to analysts, investors, representatives of the media and others. Forward-
looking statements are not historical facts, and all forward-looking statements are, by their nature, subject to risks and 
uncertainties, many of which are beyond the Company’s control. There are or will be important factors that could cause actual 
results to differ materially from those indicated in these forward-looking statements, including, but not limited to, the 
following:

• business and economic conditions generally and in the financial services industry, nationally and within our local market 
area;

• changes in management personnel;

• changes in government spending on rebuilding projects in New Orleans;

• hurricanes, other natural disasters and adverse weather; oil spills and other man-made disasters; acts of terrorism, an outbreak 
of hostilities or other international or domestic calamities, acts of God and other matters beyond the Company’s control;

• economic, market, operational, liquidity, credit and interest rate risks associated with the Company’s business;

• deterioration of asset quality;

• changes in real estate values;

• the ability to execute the strategies described in this annual report;

• increased competition in the financial services industry, nationally, regionally or locally, which may adversely affect pricing 
and terms;

• the ability to identify potential candidates for, and consummate, acquisitions of banking franchises on attractive terms, or at 
all;

• the ability to achieve organic loan and deposit growth and the composition of that growth;

• changes in federal tax law or policy;

• volatility and direction of market interest rates;

• changes in the regulatory environment, including changes in regulations that affect the fees that the Company charges or 
expenses that it incurs in connection with its operations;

• changes in trade, monetary and fiscal policies and laws;

• governmental legislation and regulation, including changes in accounting regulation or standards;

• changes in interpretation of existing law and regulation;

• further government intervention in the U.S. financial system; and

• other factors that are discussed in the section titled “Risk Factors,” beginning on page 10.
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Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which it is made, and the Company does not undertake any 
obligation to publicly update or review any forward-looking statement. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not 
possible for the Company to predict which will arise. In addition, the Company cannot assess the impact of each factor on its 
business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those 
contained in any forward-looking statements. Accordingly, forward-looking statements should not be viewed as predictions and 
should not be the primary basis upon which investors evaluate an investment in the Company’s securities.

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

The Company is a bank holding company, which operates through one segment, community banking, and offers a broad range 
of financial services to businesses, institutions, and individuals in southeastern Louisiana and the Mississippi Gulf Coast. The 
Company operates 32 full service banking offices located throughout its market and a loan production office in Gulfport, 
Mississippi. The Company generates most of its revenue from interest on loans and investments, service charges, and gains on 
the sale of loans and securities. The Company’s primary source of funding for its loans is deposits. The largest expenses are 
interest on these deposits and salaries and related employee benefits. The Company measures its performance through its net 
interest margin, return on average assets and return on average common equity, while maintaining appropriate regulatory 
leverage and risk-based capital ratios.

BALANCE SHEET POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company’s income available to common shareholders for the year ended December 31, 2014 totaled $54.1 million, or 
$2.84 per diluted share, compared to $38.6 million, or $2.32 per diluted share for 2013. Basic earnings per share for the year 
ended December 31, 2014 were $2.92, an increase of $0.54, or 22.7%, compared to the year ended December 31, 2013. The 
Company’s strong earnings for the year ended December 31, 2014 were due to its year over year earning asset growth in the 
markets in which it serves, the reduction in the Company's cost of funds, and the increase in income tax benefit due to the 
Company’s investment in federal tax credit programs.

Key components of the Company’s performance during the year ended December 31, 2014 are summarized below. 

• Total assets at December 31, 2014 were $3.8 billion, an increase of $464.0 million, or 14.1%, from December 31, 2013.

• Total loans at December 31, 2014 were $2.8 billion, an increase of $416.5 million, or 17.7%, from December 31, 2013. The 
increase in loans was primarily due to increases of $115.2 million, or 54.3%, in construction loans, $136.2 million, or 12.1%, 
in commercial real estate loans, and $147.5 million, or 16.7%, in commercial loans from December 31, 2013.

• Total deposits increased $390.0 million, or 14.3%, from December 31, 2013. The increase was due primarily to increases in 
money market deposits of $400.3 million, or 61.1% and noninterest-bearing deposits of $73.5 million, or 25.2%, offset by 
decreases in NOW deposits of $34.8 million, or 6.8% and certificates of deposit of $44.8 million, or 3.7%, from 
December 31, 2013.

• Shareholders’ equity increased $54.5 million, or 14.3%, to $436.4 million from December 31, 2013. The increase was 
primarily attributable to the Company’s income available to common shareholders over the period.

• Interest income increased $26.0 million, or 20.9%, during 2014 compared to 2013. The increases were driven by higher 
yields on average interest-earning assets and increases in loans and investment in short-term receivables. 

• Interest expense increased $3.6 million, or 9.1%, during 2014 compared to 2013. The increase was totally due to higher 
average balances of interest-bearing deposits offset by a lower rate (7 basis points) on deposits resulting from the tiered rate 
structure for all of its deposits. The tiered pricing structure shifted the Company's deposit mix to money market deposit 
accounts from NOW accounts due to the Company lowering NOW account rates during 2014, especially in the lower balance 
tiers. 

• The provision for loan losses increased $2.2 million, or 22.4%, during 2014 compared to 2013. As of December 31, 2014, the 
Company’s ratio of allowance for loan losses to total loans was 1.53%, compared to 1.36% at December 31, 2013.

• Noninterest income for the year ended December 31, 2014 decreased $1.8 million, or 13.5%, compared to the year ended 
December 31, 2013. The change in noninterest income during 2014 was due primarily to decreases in income from the sale 
of state tax credits of $0.5 million, gain on sale of assets $1.0 million, and Community Development Entity fees of $1.3 
million due to the Company's failure to receive a Federal New Markets Tax Credits allocation in 2014, which were offset by 
increases in cash surrender value income on bank-owned life insurance of $0.4 million and other noninterest income of $0.7 
million. 
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• The tax effect of the tax credits generated from the Company’s investment in federal tax credit programs, which if included in  
noninterest income, would have increased total noninterest income by $57.6 million, $40.6 million, and $22.1 million for the 
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively. The Company’s income before income tax expense, adjusted 
for the tax effect of the tax credits generated from these investments in federal tax credit programs, would have been $86.2 
million, $61.8 million, and $43.9 million for 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively. The impact of which is detailed in Table 1-
Reconciliations of Non-GAAP Financial Measures.

• Noninterest expense during 2014 increased $10.9 million, or 16.2%, compared to 2013. The increase in noninterest expense 
compared to 2013 was due to an increase in all components of noninterest expense, primarily tax credit amortization of $5.4 
million, higher salaries and employee benefits of $1.1 million, other noninterest expense of $1.2 million, and taxes, licenses 
and FDIC assessments of $0.9 million.

ACQUISITION ACTIVITY

On December 30, 2014, the Company entered into a definitive merger agreement to acquire State Investors Bancorp, Inc ("State 
Investors") (NASDAQ: SIBC), the parent company for State-Investors Bank.  State Investors operates four full service banking 
offices, all of which are located in the New Orleans metropolitan area. As of December 31, 2014, State Investors, on a 
consolidated basis, reported total assets of $271.9 million, total loans of $218.2 million, and total deposits of $156.0 million.  
The aggregate cash consideration payable to the shareholders of State Investors is expected to equate to approximately $49.0 
million, and the Company expects to pay approximately $2.0 million in cash consideration for the outstanding stock options.  
The Company expects this acquisition to be accretive to earnings per share in 2015 by approximately 2.3% and 2016 by 
approximately 4.4%.  The Company expects to close the transaction in the second quarter of 2015 subject to the receipt of all 
regulatory and shareholder approvals.

On January 16, 2015, the Company purchased certain assets and assumed certain liabilities from the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation ("FDIC") as receiver for First National Bank of Crestview, a full-service commercial bank headquartered in 
Crestview, Florida, which was closed and placed into receivership.  Under the agreement, the Company agreed to assume all of 
the deposit liabilities, and acquire approximately $62.3 million of assets of the failed bank.  The acquired assets included the 
failed bank's performing loans, substantially all of its investment securities portfolio and its three banking facilities, with the 
FDIC retaining the failed bank's other real estate owned. The Company and FDIC have 120 days from the date of the 
agreement to perform an initial settlement on the assets acquired and liabilities assumed.  The final settlement must occur 
within one year of the agreement. 

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

This discussion and analysis contains financial information determined by methods other than in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, or GAAP. The Company’s management uses these non-GAAP financial measures in its analysis 
of the Company’s performance.

As a material part of its business plan, the Company invests in entities that generate federal income tax credits, and 
management believes that understanding the impact of the Company’s investment in tax credit entities is critical to 
understanding its financial performance on a standalone basis and in relation to its peers. Like its investments in loans and 
investment securities, the Company’s investment in tax credit entities generates a return for the Company. However, unlike the 
income generated by its loans and investment securities, or service charges or other noninterest income, which under GAAP are 
taken into account in the determination of income before income taxes, the return generated by the Company’s investment in 
tax credit entities is reflected only as a reduction of income tax expense.

Under current GAAP accounting, the returns generated from the Company’s investment in tax credit entities is a component of 
the Company’s income tax provision, whereas all of the expenses are recorded in noninterest expense. Because of the level of 
the Company’s investment in tax credit entities, management believes that the effect of adjusting the relevant GAAP measures 
to account for the returns generated by the Company’s investment in tax credit entities is meaningful to a more complete 
understanding of the Company’s financial performance.

Accordingly, in measuring the Company’s financial performance, in addition to financial measures that are prepared in 
accordance with GAAP, management utilizes a non-GAAP performance measure that adjusts noninterest income to reflect the 
effect of the federal income tax credits generated from the Company’s investment in tax credit entities to derive an adjusted 
income before income taxes non-GAAP measure. The non-GAAP measure of adjusted income before income taxes is 
reconciled to the corresponding measure determined in accordance with GAAP on “Table 1 – Reconciliations of Non-GAAP 
Financial Measures.” Management believes that this non-GAAP financial measure should facilitate an investor’s understanding 
and analysis of the Company’s underlying financial performance and trends, in addition to the corresponding financial 
information prepared and reported in accordance with GAAP.
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Tangible book value per common share and the ratio of tangible common equity to tangible assets are not financial measures 
recognized under GAAP and, therefore, are considered non-GAAP financial measures. The Company’s management, banking 
regulators, many financial analysts and other investors use these non-GAAP financial measures to compare the capital 
adequacy of banking organizations with significant amounts of preferred equity and/or goodwill or other intangible assets, 
which typically stem from the use of the purchase accounting method of accounting for mergers and acquisitions. Tangible 
common equity, tangible assets, tangible book value per share or related measures should not be considered in isolation or as a 
substitute for total shareholders’ equity, total assets, book value per share or any other measure calculated in accordance with 
GAAP. Moreover, the manner in which the Company calculates tangible common equity, tangible assets, tangible book value 
per share and any other related measures may differ from that of other companies reporting measures with similar names. These 
non-GAAP disclosures should not be viewed as a substitute for operating results determined in accordance with GAAP.

The following table reconciles, as of the dates set forth below, income before income taxes (on a GAAP basis) to income before 
income taxes adjusted for investments in federal tax credit programs, shareholders’ equity (on a GAAP basis) to tangible 
common equity and total assets (on a GAAP basis) to tangible assets and calculates tangible book value per share.

TABLE 1-RECONCILIATIONS OF NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

 
As of and for the Years Ended

December 31,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2014 2013 2012
Income before income taxes:
Income before income taxes (GAAP) $ 28,613 $ 21,160 $ 21,885
Income adjustment before income taxes related to the impact of tax credit related activities
(Non-GAAP)

Tax equivalent income associated with investment in federal tax credit programs(1) 57,560 40,618 22,051
Income before income taxes (Non-GAAP) 86,173 61,778 43,936
Income tax expense-adjusted (Non-GAAP)(2) (30,584) (20,867) (14,486)
Net income (GAAP) $ 55,589 $ 40,911 $ 29,450

Tangible equity and asset calculations:
Total equity (GAAP) $ 436,374 $ 381,859 $ 248,102
Adjustments

Preferred equity 42,406 42,406 49,166
Goodwill 4,808 4,808 4,808
Other intangibles 2,915 3,517 3,874

Tangible common equity $ 386,245 $ 331,128 $ 190,254

Total assets (GAAP) $ 3,750,617 $ 3,286,617 $ 2,670,867
Adjustments

Goodwill 4,808 4,808 4,808
Other intangibles 2,915 3,517 3,874

Tangible assets $ 3,742,894 $ 3,278,292 $ 2,662,185

Total common shares 18,576 18,514 13,053
Book value per common share $ 21.21 $ 18.33 $ 15.24
Effect of adjustment 0.42 0.44 0.66
Tangible book value per common share $ 20.79 $ 17.89 $ 14.58
Total shareholders' equity to assets 11.63% 11.62% 9.29%
Effect of adjustment 1.31% 1.52% 2.14%
Tangible common equity to tangible assets 10.32% 10.10% 7.15%

 
(1) Tax equivalent income associated with investment in federal tax credit programs represents the gross amount of tax benefit from federal tax credits.
(2) Income tax expense is calculated on the adjusted non-GAAP effective tax rate for the Company of 35%, 34%, and 33% for the years ended December 31, 

2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.
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APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP and with general practices within the financial 
services industry. Application of these principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. The Company’s estimates are based on historical 
experience and on various other assumptions that it believes to be reasonable under current circumstances. These assumptions 
form the basis for its judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily available from 
independent, objective sources. The Company evaluates its estimates on an ongoing basis. Use of alternative assumptions may 
have resulted in significantly different estimates. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Company has identified the following accounting policies and estimates that, due to the difficult, subjective or complex 
judgments and assumptions inherent in those policies and estimates and the potential sensitivity to its financial statements to 
those judgments and assumptions, are critical to an understanding of the Company’s financial condition and results of 
operations. The Company believes that the judgments, estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of its financial 
statements are appropriate.

Allowance for Loan Losses. Management evaluates the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses each quarter based on 
changes, if any, in underwriting activities, the loan portfolio composition (including product mix and geographic, industry or 
customer-specific concentrations), trends in loan performance, regulatory guidance and economic factors. This evaluation is 
inherently subjective, as it requires the use of significant management estimates. Many factors can affect management’s 
estimates of inherent losses, including volatility of default probabilities, rating migrations, loss severity and economic and 
political conditions. The allowance is increased through provisions charged to operating earnings and reduced by net charge-
offs. 

The Company determines the amount of the allowance based on the assessment of inherent losses in the loan portfolio. The 
allowance recorded for commercial loans is based on reviews of individual credit relationships, an analysis of the migration of 
commercial loans and actual loss experience, together with qualitative factors as discussed for noncommercial loans. The 
allowance recorded for noncommercial loans is based on an analysis of loan mix, risk characteristics of the portfolio, 
delinquency and bankruptcy experiences and historical losses, adjusted for current trends, for each loan category or group of 
loans. The allowance for loan losses relating to impaired loans is based on the collateral for collateral-dependent loans or 
discounted cash flows using the loan’s effective interest rate, if not collateral-dependent.

Regardless of the extent of the Company’s analysis of customer performance, portfolio trends or risk management processes, 
certain inherent but undetected losses are probable within the loan portfolio. This is due to several factors, including inherent 
delays in obtaining information regarding a customer’s financial condition or changes in their unique business conditions, the 
subjective nature of individual loan evaluations, collateral assessments, the interpretation of economic trends, and industry 
concentrations. Volatility of economic or customer-specific conditions affecting the identification and estimation of losses for 
larger, non-homogeneous credits and the sensitivity of assumptions utilized to establish allowances for homogenous groups of 
loans are among other factors. The Company estimates loss factors related to the existence and severity of these exposures. The 
estimates are based upon the evaluation of risk associated with the commercial and consumer portfolios and the estimated 
impact of the current economic environment.

Fair Value Measurement. Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 
a liability in a principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date, using assumptions market participants would use when pricing an asset or liability. An 
orderly transaction assumes exposure to the market for a customary period for marketing activities prior to the measurement 
date and not a forced liquidation or distressed sale. Fair value measurement and disclosure guidance provides a three-level 
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad categories: 

• Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

• Level 2 – Observable inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for similar 
assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable 
market data.

• Level 3 – Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the 
assets or liabilities. This includes certain pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, and similar techniques that use 
significant unobservable inputs.

Fair value may be recorded for certain assets and liabilities every reporting period on a recurring basis or under certain 
circumstances, on a non-recurring basis. The following represents significant fair value measurements included in the financial 
statements based on estimates.
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The Company uses interest rate derivative instruments to manage its interest rate risk. All derivative instruments are carried on 
the balance sheet at fair value. Fair values for over-the-counter interest rate contracts used to manage its interest rate risk are 
provided either by third-party dealers in the contracts or by quotes provided by independent pricing services. Information used 
by these third-party dealers or independent pricing services to determine fair values are considered significant other observable 
inputs. Credit risk is considered in determining the fair value of derivative instruments. Deterioration in the credit ratings of 
customers or dealers reduces the fair value of asset contracts. The reduction in fair value is recognized in earnings during the 
current period. Deterioration in the Company’s credit rating below investment grade would affect the fair value of its derivative 
liabilities. In the event of a credit down-grade, the fair value of the Company’s derivative liabilities would decrease.

The fair value of the securities portfolio is generally based on a single price for each financial instrument provided by a third-
party pricing service determined by one or more of the following: 

• Quoted prices for similar, but not identical, assets or liabilities in active markets;

• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;

• Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, such as interest rate and yield curves, volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss 
severities, credit risks and default rates; and

• Other inputs derived for or corroborated by observable market inputs.

The underlying methods used by the third-party services are considered in determining the primary inputs used to determine 
fair values. The Company evaluates the methodologies employed by the third-party pricing services by comparing the price 
provided by the pricing service with other sources, including brokers’ quotes, sales or purchases of similar instruments and 
discounted cash flows to establish a basis for reliance on the pricing service values. Significant differences between the pricing 
service provided value and other sources are discussed with the pricing service to understand the basis for their values. Based 
on this evaluation, it can be determined that the results represent prices that would be received to sell assets or paid to transfer 
liabilities in an orderly transaction in the current market.

The Company evaluates impaired investment securities quarterly to determine if impairments are temporary or other-than-
temporary. For impaired debt securities, management first determines whether it intends to sell or if it is more-likely than not 
that it will be required to sell the impaired securities before the recovery of amortized cost. This determination considers current 
and forecasted liquidity requirements, regulatory and capital requirements and securities portfolio management. All impaired 
debt securities that we intend to sell or that we expect to be required to sell are considered other-than-temporarily impaired and 
the full impairment loss is recognized as a charge against earnings.

Tax Credits. The Company invests in tax credit-motivated projects, including those generating Low-Income Housing, Federal 
Historic Rehabilitation and Federal New Markets Tax Credits. Federal tax credits are recorded as an offset to the income tax 
provision in the year in which they are earned under federal income tax law. Low-Income Housing Tax Credits are earned 
ratably over a period of either 10 or 15 years, beginning in the period in which rental activity commences. Federal Historic 
Rehabilitation Tax Credits are earned in the year that the certificate of occupancy is issued and the property is placed into 
service. Federal New Markets Tax Credits are earned over a seven year period in the manner described below. The credits, if 
not used to reduce the income on the tax return in the year of origination, can be carried forward for 20 years. For certain 
investment structures for Federal Historic Rehabilitation and Federal New Markets Tax Credits, the Company is required to 
reduce the tax basis of its investment in the entity used to earn the credit by the amount of the credit earned. Deferred taxes are 
provided in the year that the tax basis is reduced in accordance with ASC 740.

For Low-Income Housing and Federal Historic Rehabilitation Tax Credits, the Company invests in a tax credit entity, usually a 
limited liability company, which owns or master leases the real estate. The Company receives a 99.99% for Low-Income 
Housing and a 99% for Federal Historic Rehabilitation nonvoting interest in the entity that must be retained during the 
compliance period for the credits (15 years for Low-Income Housing credits and five years for Federal Historic Rehabilitation 
credits). In most cases, the interest in the entity is reduced from a 99.99% and 99% interest to a 5% to 25% interest at the end of 
the compliance period. Control of the tax credit entity rests in the 0.01% and 1% interest general partner, who has the power 
and authority to make decisions that impact economic performance of the project and is required to oversee and manage the 
project. Due to the lack of any voting, economic or managerial control, and due to the contractual reduction in the investment, 
the Company accounts for its investments by amortizing the investment over the estimated holding or contract period. Any 
potential residual value in the real estate at the end of the compliance period will be recognized upon disposition of the 
investment.

Federal New Markets Tax Credits are allocated to Community Development Entities, or CDEs. The CDE, in most cases, creates 
a special purpose subsidiary for the project through which the credits are allocated and through which the proceeds from the tax 
credit investor and a leverage lender, if applicable, flow through to the project, which in turn, generate the credit. The Company 
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The Company uses interest rate derivative instruments to manage its interest rate risk. All derivative instruments are carried on 
the balance sheet at fair value. Fair values for over-the-counter interest rate contracts used to manage its interest rate risk are 
provided either by third-party dealers in the contracts or by quotes provided by independent pricing services. Information used 
by these third-party dealers or independent pricing services to determine fair values are considered significant other observable 
inputs. Credit risk is considered in determining the fair value of derivative instruments. Deterioration in the credit ratings of 
customers or dealers reduces the fair value of asset contracts. The reduction in fair value is recognized in earnings during the 
current period. Deterioration in the Company’s credit rating below investment grade would affect the fair value of its derivative 
liabilities. In the event of a credit down-grade, the fair value of the Company’s derivative liabilities would decrease.

The fair value of the securities portfolio is generally based on a single price for each financial instrument provided by a third-
party pricing service determined by one or more of the following: 

• Quoted prices for similar, but not identical, assets or liabilities in active markets;

• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;

• Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, such as interest rate and yield curves, volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss 
severities, credit risks and default rates; and

• Other inputs derived for or corroborated by observable market inputs.

The underlying methods used by the third-party services are considered in determining the primary inputs used to determine 
fair values. The Company evaluates the methodologies employed by the third-party pricing services by comparing the price 
provided by the pricing service with other sources, including brokers’ quotes, sales or purchases of similar instruments and 
discounted cash flows to establish a basis for reliance on the pricing service values. Significant differences between the pricing 
service provided value and other sources are discussed with the pricing service to understand the basis for their values. Based 
on this evaluation, it can be determined that the results represent prices that would be received to sell assets or paid to transfer 
liabilities in an orderly transaction in the current market.

The Company evaluates impaired investment securities quarterly to determine if impairments are temporary or other-than-
temporary. For impaired debt securities, management first determines whether it intends to sell or if it is more-likely than not 
that it will be required to sell the impaired securities before the recovery of amortized cost. This determination considers current 
and forecasted liquidity requirements, regulatory and capital requirements and securities portfolio management. All impaired 
debt securities that we intend to sell or that we expect to be required to sell are considered other-than-temporarily impaired and 
the full impairment loss is recognized as a charge against earnings.

Tax Credits. The Company invests in tax credit-motivated projects, including those generating Low-Income Housing, Federal 
Historic Rehabilitation and Federal New Markets Tax Credits. Federal tax credits are recorded as an offset to the income tax 
provision in the year in which they are earned under federal income tax law. Low-Income Housing Tax Credits are earned 
ratably over a period of either 10 or 15 years, beginning in the period in which rental activity commences. Federal Historic 
Rehabilitation Tax Credits are earned in the year that the certificate of occupancy is issued and the property is placed into 
service. Federal New Markets Tax Credits are earned over a seven year period in the manner described below. The credits, if 
not used to reduce the income on the tax return in the year of origination, can be carried forward for 20 years. For certain 
investment structures for Federal Historic Rehabilitation and Federal New Markets Tax Credits, the Company is required to 
reduce the tax basis of its investment in the entity used to earn the credit by the amount of the credit earned. Deferred taxes are 
provided in the year that the tax basis is reduced in accordance with ASC 740.

For Low-Income Housing and Federal Historic Rehabilitation Tax Credits, the Company invests in a tax credit entity, usually a 
limited liability company, which owns or master leases the real estate. The Company receives a 99.99% for Low-Income 
Housing and a 99% for Federal Historic Rehabilitation nonvoting interest in the entity that must be retained during the 
compliance period for the credits (15 years for Low-Income Housing credits and five years for Federal Historic Rehabilitation 
credits). In most cases, the interest in the entity is reduced from a 99.99% and 99% interest to a 5% to 25% interest at the end of 
the compliance period. Control of the tax credit entity rests in the 0.01% and 1% interest general partner, who has the power 
and authority to make decisions that impact economic performance of the project and is required to oversee and manage the 
project. Due to the lack of any voting, economic or managerial control, and due to the contractual reduction in the investment, 
the Company accounts for its investments by amortizing the investment over the estimated holding or contract period. Any 
potential residual value in the real estate at the end of the compliance period will be recognized upon disposition of the 
investment.

Federal New Markets Tax Credits are allocated to Community Development Entities, or CDEs. The CDE, in most cases, creates 
a special purpose subsidiary for the project through which the credits are allocated and through which the proceeds from the tax 
credit investor and a leverage lender, if applicable, flow through to the project, which in turn, generate the credit. The Company 
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participates in CDEs in two ways. First, the Company organized First NBC Community Development Fund, LLC, or the Fund, 
to become a CDE, and the Company serves as the tax credit investor in the Fund. When a project is funded through the Fund, 
the Company consolidates the Fund and its special purpose subsidiaries since the Company maintains control over these 
entities. Second, the Company is also a limited partner in a number of tax-advantaged limited partnerships and a shareholer in 
several C corporations that invest in CDEs that are not associated with the Fund. The Company has no control of these CDEs or 
their special purpose subsidiaries.

Federal New Markets Tax Credits are calculated at 39% of the total amount allocated to the project and earned and recognized 
at the rate of 5% for each of the first three years and 6% for each of the next four years. Federal tax law requires special terms 
benefiting the qualified project, which may include below market interest rates on the debt. The Company expenses the cost of 
any benefits provided to the project over the seven-year compliance period. When First NBC Bank also has the loan, commonly 
called a leverage loan, to the project, it is carried on the bank’s balance sheet as a loan as it has normal credit exposure to the 
project and is repaid at the end of the compliance period. In general, the leverage loan has no principal payments during the 
compliance period, but the bank may require that the borrowers fund a sinking fund over the compliance period to achieve the 
same risk reduction effect as if principal were being amortized.

The Company has the risk of credit recapture if the project fails during the compliance period for Low-Income Housing and 
Federal Historic Rehabilitation transactions. For Federal New Markets Tax Credits transactions, the risk of credit recapture 
exists if investment requirements are not maintained during the compliance period. Such events, although rare, are accounted 
for when they occur and no such events have occurred to date.

Income Tax Accounting. The Company estimates its income taxes for each period for which a statement of income is 
presented. This involves estimating its actual current tax exposure, as well as assessing temporary differences resulting from 
differing timing of recognition of expenses, income and tax credits for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in 
deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. The Company must also 
assess the likelihood that any deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income and, to the extent that recovery is 
not likely, a valuation allowance must be established. Significant management judgment is required in determining income tax 
expense and deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Stock-Based Compensation. The Company utilizes a stock-based employee compensation plan, which provides for the 
issuance of stock options and restricted stock. The Company accounts for stock-based employee compensation in accordance 
with the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718, Compensation – Stock Compensation. As a result, compensation cost for 
all share-based payments is based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with ASC 718. Compensation cost is 
recognized as expense over the service period, which is generally the vesting period of the options and restricted stock. The 
expense is reduced for estimated forfeitures over the vesting period and adjusted for actual forfeitures as they occur.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles. Goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives are subject to an impairment 
test at least annually, or more frequently if circumstances indicate their value may not be recoverable. Other identifiable 
intangible assets that are subject to amortization are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives, ranging 
from two to 12 years. These amortizable intangible assets are reviewed for impairment if circumstances indicate their value 
may not be recoverable.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Assets increased $464.0 million, or 14.1%, to $3.8 billion as of December 31, 2014, compared to $3.3 billion as of 
December 31, 2013 as the Company continued to experience strong growth in the New Orleans market area. Net loans 
increased $406.3 million, or 17.5%, to $2.7 billion as of December 31, 2014, compared to $2.3 billion as of December 31, 
2013. Securities totaled $336.7 million as of December 31, 2014 compared to $372.6 million as of December 31, 2013, a 
decrease of 9.6%, on the total portfolio. The Company decreased its investment in short-term receivables to $237.1 million 
compared to $246.8 million as of December 31, 2013. Deposits increased $390.0 million, or 14.3%, to $3.1 billion as of 
December 31, 2014, compared to $2.7 billion as of December 31, 2013. Total shareholders’ equity increased $54.5 million, or 
14.3%, to $436.4 million as of December 31, 2014, compared to $381.9 million as of December 31, 2013, primarily from the 
earnings over the period.

Loan Portfolio

The Company’s primary source of income is interest on loans to small-and medium-sized businesses, real estate owners in its 
market area, and its private banking clients. The loan portfolio consists primarily of commercial loans and real estate loans 
secured by commercial real estate properties located in the Company’s primary market area. The Company’s loan portfolio 
represents the highest yielding component of its earning asset base.
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The following table sets forth the amount of loans, by category, as of the respective periods.

TABLE 2-TOTAL LOANS BY LOAN TYPE

 As of December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Construction $ 327,677 11.8% $ 212,430 9.0% $ 168,544 8.8% $ 194,295 11.8% $ 93,798 8.4%
Commercial real estate 1,264,371 45.6% 1,128,181 47.8% 988,994 51.5% 805,101 48.8% 577,994 52.0%
Consumer real estate 132,950 4.8% 117,653 5.0% 103,516 5.4% 81,663 4.9% 58,802 5.3%
Commercial and

industrial 1,030,629 37.2% 883,111 37.5% 647,090 33.7% 555,959 33.7% 374,371 33.7%
Consumer 18,637 0.6% 16,402 0.7% 14,073 0.6% 14,318 0.8% 7,518 0.6%

Total loans $ 2,774,264 100.0% $ 2,357,777 100.0% $ 1,922,217 100.0% $ 1,651,336 100.0% $ 1,112,483 100.0%

The Company’s primary focus has been on commercial real estate and commercial lending, which comprised 83% and 85% of 
the loan portfolio as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Although management expects continued 
growth with respect to the loan portfolio, it does not expect any significant changes over the foreseeable future in the 
composition of the loan portfolio or in the emphasis on commercial real estate and commercial lending. The Company 
continues to see demand for these types of loans in the markets in which it operates, as evidenced by the Company's strong loan 
pipeline and its double digit loan growth year over year. Due to the continuing low level of interest rates in the economy, the 
Company has continued to see a shift in its portfolio mix from fixed to variable rate loans and has had to employ strategies to 
maintain the yield on loans.

A significant portion, $419.3 million, or 33.2%, as of December 31, 2014, compared to $364.9 million, or 32.3%, as of 
December 31, 2013, of the commercial real estate exposure represented loans to commercial businesses secured by owner 
occupied real estate. Commercial loans represent the second largest category of loans in the portfolio. The Company attributes 
its commercial loan growth during the year in part to the growth in its oil and gas portfolio, specifically with respect to oil and 
gas service companies.  The oil and gas portfolio comprises approximately 3% of the Company's total loan portfolio. 
Management is actively monitoring these credits and believes that the recent downturn in oil prices should not have a near term 
impact on its oil and gas portfolio, which is primarily to oil and gas service companies.  During 2014, the Company's 
construction loan portfolio grew 54.3% compared to 2013, primarily due to the funding of construction loans related to hotels, 
residential real estate development, and federal tax credit projects.  The Company expects these positive growth trends to 
continue in 2015.

The following table sets forth the contractual maturity ranges, and the amount of loans with fixed and variable rates, in each 
maturity range.

TABLE 3-LOAN MATURITIES BY LOAN TYPE

 As of December 31, 2014

(dollars in thousands)
Due Within
One Year

After One but
Within Five

Years
After Five

Years Total

Construction $ 119,983 $ 124,109 $ 83,585 $ 327,677
Commercial real estate 259,840 898,820 105,711 1,264,371
Consumer real estate 19,204 55,753 57,993 132,950
Commercial and industrial 574,620 399,202 56,807 1,030,629
Consumer 9,831 8,521 285 18,637

Total $ 983,478 $ 1,486,405 $ 304,381 $ 2,774,264
Amounts with fixed rates $ 274,478 $ 637,577 $ 202,289 $ 1,114,344
Amounts with variable rates 709,000 848,828 102,092 1,659,920

Total $ 983,478 $ 1,486,405 $ 304,381 $ 2,774,264

The Company has seen a shift in customer demand for loans with a variable rate of interest, which is represented in the table 
above. As of December 31, 2014, the Company had 59.8% of its loan portfolio, by dollar amount, which bears a variable rate of 
interest and 40.2% which bears a fixed rate of interest. Of the loans due within one year, 72.1% of the loans bear a variable rate 
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of interest, and 27.9% bear a fixed rate of interest.  As of December 31, 2014, approximately 90.2% of the variable rate loans in 
the Company’s portfolio, by dollar amount, contained floors. In order to offset the imbalance between fixed and variable rate 
loans, the Company entered into a series of swaps with a total notional amount of $250 million, which is further discussed in 
Note 18 of the consolidated financial statements. The swaps are intended to rebalance the composition of the portfolio make-up 
to a more evenly balanced loan portfolio.

Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets consist of nonperforming loans, other real estate owned, and other repossessed assets. Nonperforming 
loans consist of loans that are on nonaccrual status and restructured loans, which are loans on which the Company has granted a 
concession on the interest rate or original repayment terms due to financial difficulties of the borrower. Other real estate owned 
consists of real property acquired through foreclosure.

The Company generally will place loans on nonaccrual status when they become 90 days past due, unless they are well secured 
and in the process of collection. The Company also places loans on nonaccrual status if they are less than 90 days past due if 
the collection of principal or interest is in doubt. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, any interest previously accrued, 
but not collected, is reversed from income.

The Company initially records other real estate owned at the lower of carrying value or fair value, less estimated costs to sell 
the assets. Estimated losses that result from the ongoing periodic valuations of these assets are charged to earnings as 
noninterest expense in the period in which they are identified. The Company accounts for troubled debt restructurings in 
accordance with ASC 310, Receivables. Once the Company owns the property, it is maintained, marketed, rented and/or sold to 
repay the original loan. Historically, foreclosure trends have been low due to the seasoning of the portfolio.

Any loans that are modified or extended are reviewed for classification as a restructured loan in accordance with regulatory 
guidelines. The Company completes the process that outlines the modification, the reasons for the proposed modification and 
documents the current status of the borrower.

The following table sets forth information regarding nonperforming assets as of the dates indicated:

TABLE 4-NONPERFORMING ASSETS

 As of December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Nonaccrual loans 21,228 16,396 21,083 9,017 3,715
Restructured loans 1,571 1,628 2,336 1,403 30

Total nonperforming loans 22,799 18,024 23,419 10,420 3,745
Other assets owned (1) 290 276 — 18 —
Other real estate owned 5,549 3,733 8,632 7,991 6,207

Total nonperforming assets $ 28,638 $ 22,033 $ 32,051 $ 18,429 $ 9,952
Accruing loans past due 90+ days(2) $ 28 $ 150 $ — $ — $ 131
Nonperforming loans to total loans 0.82% 0.76% 1.22% 0.63% 0.34%
Nonperforming loans to total assets 0.61% 0.55% 0.88% 0.47% 0.26%
Nonperforming assets to total assets 0.76% 0.67% 1.20% 0.83% 0.68%
Nonperforming assets to loans, other real

estate owned and other assets owned 1.03% 0.93% 1.66% 1.11% 0.89%

(1) Represents repossessed property other than real estate.
(2) In 2014 and 2013, the amount represented cash secured tuition loans.

Approximately $1.0 million of gross interest income would have been accrued if all loans on nonaccrual status had been current 
in accordance with their original terms during 2014 and 2013. 

Total nonperforming assets increased $6.6 million, or 30.0%, as compared to December 31, 2013, and total nonperforming 
assets as a percentage of loans and other real estate owned increased by 10 basis points over the period. The increase resulted 
primarily from an increase in loan growth which resulted in an increase in nonaccrual loans of $4.8 million, or 29.5%, from 
December 31, 2013. The increase is due to the Company's  year over year loan growth and seasoning of its loan portfolio.  
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Management believes that the Company’s historical low level of nonperforming assets reflects the strength of the local 
economy, as well as the Company’s long-term knowledge of and relationships with a significant percentage of its borrowers.

Potential problem loans are those loans that are not categorized as nonperforming loans, but where current information 
indicates that the borrower may not be able to comply with present loan repayment terms. These are generally referred to as its 
watch list loans. The Company monitors past due status as an indicator of credit deterioration and potential problem loans. A 
loan is considered past due when the contractual principal or interest due in accordance with the terms of the loan agreement 
remains unpaid after the due date of the scheduled payment. To the extent that loans become past due, management assesses the 
potential for loss on such loans as it would with other problem loans and considers the effect of any potential loss in 
determining its provision for probable loan losses. Management also assesses alternatives to maximize collection of any past 
due loans, including, without limitation, restructuring loan terms, requiring additional loan guarantee(s) or collateral or other 
planned action. Additional information regarding past due and potential problem loans as of December 31, 2014 is included in 
Note 6 to the Company’s financial statements for the periods ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 included in 
this report.

The following table sets forth the allocation of the Company’s nonaccrual loans among various categories within its loan 
portfolio as of the respective periods.

TABLE 5-NONACCRUAL  LOANS

 As of December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Construction $ 792 $ 75 $ 806 $ 2,244 $ —
Commercial real estate 12,146 10,133 5,831 3,463 1,174
Consumer real estate 1,919 2,347 818 1,739 1,386
Commercial and industrial 6,051 3,784 13,556 1,489 1,103
Consumer 320 57 72 82 52

Total nonaccrual loans $ 21,228 $ 16,396 $ 21,083 $ 9,017 $ 3,715

Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company maintains an allowance for loan losses that represents management’s best estimate of the loan losses and risks 
inherent in the loan portfolio. In determining the allowance for loan losses, management estimates losses on specific loans, or 
groups of loans, where the probable loss can be identified and reasonably determined. The balance of the allowance for loan 
losses is based on internally assigned risk classifications of loans, historical loan loss rates, changes in the nature of the loan 
portfolio, overall portfolio quality, industry concentrations, delinquency trends, current economic factors, and the estimated 
impact of current economic conditions on certain historical loan loss rates.

The allowance for loan losses is increased by provisions charged against earnings and reduced by net loan charge-offs. Loans 
are charged-off when it is determined that collection has become unlikely. Recoveries are recorded only when cash payments 
are received.

The allowance for loan losses was $42.3 million, or 1.53% of total loans, as of December 31, 2014, compared to $32.1 million, 
or 1.36% of total loans, as of December 31, 2013, an increase of 17 basis points over the period. The increase in allowance for 
loan losses as a percent of total loans, was primarily attributable to the increase of $2.2 million, or 22.4%, in the provision for 
for loan loss for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to December 31, 2013.  The increase in the allowance is due to 
the Company's loan growth.  Net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans was 0.07% in 2014, compared to 0.22% in 2013.
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The following table provides an analysis of the allowance for loan losses and net charge-offs for the respective periods.

TABLE 6-SUMMARY OF ACTIVITY IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

 As of and for the Years Ended December 31,
 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands)      

Balance, beginning of period $ 32,143 $ 26,977 $ 18,122 $ 12,508 $ 7,889
Charge-offs:
Construction 18 46 — — 22
Commercial real estate 1,034 292 1,262 614 90
Consumer real estate 63 — 59 700 —
Commercial and industrial 648 4,229 1,068 864 773
Consumer 166 202 172 284 100

Total charge-offs 1,929 4,769 2,561 2,462 985
Recoveries:
Construction 30 — 16 — 7
Commercial real estate — 19 132 — 38
Consumer real estate — 30 22 9 —
Commercial and industrial 71 68 153 10 1
Consumer 21 18 58 47 44

Total recoveries 122 135 381 66 90
Net charge-offs 1,807 4,634 2,180 2,396 895
Provision for loan loss 12,000 9,800 11,035 8,010 5,514
Balance, end of period $ 42,336 $ 32,143 $ 26,977 $ 18,122 $ 12,508
Net charge-offs to average loans 0.07% 0.22% 0.12% 0.19% 0.09%
Allowance for loan losses to total loans 1.53% 1.36% 1.40% 1.10% 1.12%

Although management believes that the allowance for loan losses has been established in accordance with GAAP and that the 
allowance for loan losses was appropriate to provide for incurred losses in the portfolio at all times shown above, future 
provisions will be subject to ongoing evaluations of the risks and seasoning of its loan portfolio. If the economy declines or if 
asset quality deteriorates, material additional provisions could be required.

The allowance for loan losses is allocated to loan categories based on the relative risk characteristics, asset classifications, and 
actual loss experience of the loan portfolio. The following table sets forth the allocation of the total allowance for loan losses by 
loan type and sets forth the percentage of loans in each category to gross loans. The allocation of the allowance for loan losses 
as shown in the table should neither be interpreted as an indication of future charge-offs, nor as an indication that charge-offs in 
future periods will necessarily occur in these amounts or in the indicated proportions.

TABLE 7-ALLOCATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

 As of December 31,
 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

(dollars in
thousands) Amount

% of
Loans Amount

% of
Loans Amount

% of
Loans Amount

% of
Loans Amount

% of
Loans

Construction $ 4,030 9.5% $ 2,790 8.7% $ 2,004 7.4% $ 722 4.0% $ 486 3.9%
Commercial real

estate 14,965 35.3 13,780 42.9 10,716 39.7 9,871 54.5 6,594 52.7
Consumer real

estate 3,316 7.8 2,656 8.3 2,450 9.1 1,519 8.4 983 7.9
Commercial and

industrial 19,814 46.8 12,677 39.4 11,675 43.3 5,928 32.7 4,162 33.3
Consumer 211 0.6 240 0.7 132 0.5 82 0.4 283 2.2

Total $42,336 100.0% $32,143 100.0% $26,977 100.0% $18,122 100.0% $12,508 100.0%
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Securities

The securities portfolio is used to make various term investments, maintain a source of liquidity, and serve as collateral for 
certain types of deposits and borrowings. The Company manages its investment portfolio according to a written investment 
policy approved by the Board of Directors. Investment balances in the securities portfolio are subject to change over time based 
on the Company’s funding needs and interest rate risk management objectives. Liquidity levels take into account anticipated 
future cash flows and all available sources of credits and are maintained at levels management believes are appropriate to 
assure future flexibility in meeting anticipated funding needs.

The securities portfolio consists primarily of U.S. government agency obligations, mortgage-backed securities, and municipal 
securities, although the Company also holds corporate bonds. All of the securities have varying contractual maturities. 
However, these maturities do not necessarily represent the expected life of the securities as the securities may be called or paid 
down without penalty prior to their stated maturities, and the targeted duration for the investment portfolios is in the three to 
four year range. No investment in any of these securities exceeds any applicable limitation imposed by law or regulation. The 
Asset Liability Committee reviews the investment portfolio on an ongoing basis to ensure that the investments conform to the 
Company’s investment policy. All securities as of December 31, 2014 were classified as Level 2 assets, as their fair value was 
estimated using pricing models or quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics.

The investment portfolio consists of available for sale and held to maturity securities. During 2013, the Company transferred 
$95.4 million of its municipal securities and mortgage-backed securities from available for sale to held to maturity. The 
carrying values of the Company’s available for sale securities are adjusted for unrealized gain or loss as a valuation allowance, 
and any gain or loss is reported on an after-tax basis as a component of other comprehensive income.  Any expected credit loss 
due to the inability to collect all amounts due according to the security’s contractual terms is recognized as a charge against 
earnings. Any remaining unrealized loss related to other factors would be recognized in other comprehensive income, net of 
taxes.   Securities classified as held to maturity are stated at amortized cost. The amortized cost of debt securities classified as 
held to maturity is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts over the contractual life of the security 
using the effective interest method or, in the case of mortgage-backed securities, over the estimated life of the security using the 
effective yield method.  Such amortization or accretion is included in interest income on securities. 

The Company’s investment securities portfolio totaled $336.7 million at December 31, 2014, a decrease of $35.9 million, or 
9.6%, from December 31, 2013. The decrease in its securities portfolio was primarily due to the Company investing some of 
the proceeds from the prepayments, calls and maturities of securities to fund loan growth. As of December 31, 2014, the 
weighted-average life of the portfolio was 5.84 years compared to 7.77 years as of December 31, 2013. As of December 31, 
2014, investment securities having a carrying value of $279.1 million were pledged to secure public deposits, securities sold 
under agreements to repurchase and borrowings.

The following table presents a summary of the amortized cost and estimated fair value of the investment portfolio.

TABLE 8-CARRYING VALUE OF SECURITIES

 As of December 31,
 2014 2013 2012

(dollars in
thousands)

Amortized
Cost

Unrealized
Gain
(Loss)

Estimated
Fair

Value
Amortized

Cost

Unrealized
Gain
(Loss)

Estimated
Fair

Value
Amortized

Cost

Unrealized
Gain
(Loss)

Estimated
Fair

Value
Available for sale:
U.S. government

agency securities $ 161,461 $ (3,934) $ 157,527 $ 163,964 $ (12,641) $ 151,323 $ 128,665 $ 82 $ 128,747
U.S. Treasury

securities 13,019 (409) 12,610 13,022 (873) 12,149 10,040 5 10,045
Municipal securities 12,175 71 12,246 23,240 (73) 23,167 61,907 840 62,747
Mortgage-backed

securities 57,025 62 57,087 57,010 (1,466) 55,544 152,481 1,361 153,842
Corporate bonds 8,263 (86) 8,177 37,023 (1,487) 35,536 49,912 62 49,974

Total available
for sale $ 251,943 $ (4,296) $ 247,647 $ 294,259 $ (16,540) $ 277,719 $ 403,005 $ 2,350 $ 405,355

Held to maturity:
Municipal securities $ 41,255 $ 2,120 $ 43,375 $ 44,294 $ (304) $ 43,990 $ — $ — $ —
Mortgage-backed

securities 47,821 (240) 47,581 50,610 (3,634) 46,976 — — —
Total held to

maturity $ 89,076 $ 1,880 $ 90,956 $ 94,904 $ (3,938) $ 90,966 $ — $ — $ —
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As of December 31, 2014, all of the Company’s mortgage-backed securities were agency securities, and the Company did not 
hold any Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac preferred stock, corporate equity, collateralized debt obligations, collateralized loan 
obligations, structured investment vehicles, private label collateralized mortgage obligations, sub-prime, Alt-A, or second lien 
elements in the investment portfolio.

The following table sets forth the fair value, amortized cost, maturities and approximated weighted average yield based on 
estimated annual income divided by the average amortized cost of the Company's securities portfolio at December 31, 2014. 
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations 
with or without call or prepayment penalties.

TABLE 9-SECURITIES MATURITIES AND WEIGHTED AVERAGE YIELD

 As of December 31, 2014

 Due Within One Year
After One but

Within Five Years
After Five but Within

Ten Years After Ten Years Total
(dollars in thousands) Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

Available for sale:
U.S. government

agency securities $ — —% $ 15,974 2.04% $128,036 2.73% $ 13,517 2.98% $157,527 2.55%
U.S. Treasury

securities — — — — 12,610 1.10 — — 12,610 1.10
Municipal securities — — 12,246 2.67 — — — — 12,246 2.67
Mortgage-backed

securities 573 3.43 23,696 2.00 31,366 2.26 1,452 3.71 57,087 2.14
Corporate bonds — — — — — 8,177 3.89 8,177 3.89

Total available
for sale $ 573 3.43% $ 51,916 2.64% $172,012 2.02% $ 23,146 3.34% $247,647 2.27%

Held to maturity:
Municipal securities $ 2,044 3.88% $ 14,461 3.12% $ 24,418 3.84% $ 332 3.98% $ 41,255 3.75%
Mortgage-backed

securities — 6,460 6.07 8,200 2.04 33,161 3.29 47,821 3.45
Total held to

maturity $ 2,044 3.88% $ 20,921 4.16% $ 32,618 3.39% $ 33,493 3.30% $ 89,076 3.55%

The following table summarizes activity in the Company’s securities portfolio during 2014.

TABLE 10-SECURITIES PORTFOLIO ACTIVITY

(dollars in thousands)
Available
for Sale

Held to
Maturity

Balance, December 31, 2013 $ 277,719 $ 94,904
Purchases 22,153 —
Sales (41,439) (2,746)
Principal maturities, prepayments and calls (22,229) (3,305)
Amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts (801) 223
Increase in market value 12,244 —

Balance, December 31, 2014 $ 247,647 $ 89,076

The funds generated as a result of sales and prepayments are used to fund loan growth and purchase other securities. The 
Company monitors the market conditions to take advantage of market opportunities with the appropriate interest rate risk 
management objectives.  During 2014, the Company sold a municipal security classified as held to maturity due to the 
deteriorating credit worthiness of the issuer.  

Investment in Short-term Receivables

The Company invests in short-term trade receivables. These receivables are traded on an exchange and are covered by a 
repurchase agreement of the seller of the receivables, if not paid within a specified period of time.
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The Company invests in these receivables since they provide a higher short-term return for the Company.  The average yield on 
the short-term receivables was 2.82% during 2014 and 2.84% during 2013.  The Company had $237.1 million invested in short-
term receivables at December 31, 2014, a decrease of $9.7 million over the prior year, because of a decrease in excess liquidity 
in 2014, as compared to 2013, which was partially attributable to loan growth.  

Short-term Investments

Short-term investments result from excess funds that fluctuate daily depending on the funding needs of the Company and are 
currently invested overnight in interest-bearing deposit accounts at the Federal Reserve of Atlanta, First National Bankers 
Bank, JP Morgan Chase Bank, and Comerica Bank. The balance in interest-bearing deposits at other institutions increased 
$14.9 million to $18.4 million at December 31, 2014, from $3.5 million at December 31, 2013. The primary cause of the 
increase at December 31, 2014 was due to excess liquidity from cash from deposits, proceeds from calls and maturities of 
investment securities, and investments in short-term receivables which had not been reinvested at December 31, 2014. The 
Company’s cash activity is further discussed in the “Liquidity and Capital Resources” section below.

Investment in Tax Credit Entities

The Company has received a total of $118.0 million in Federal New Markets Tax Credits (NMTC) allocations since 2011.  The 
Company received allocations of  $50.0 million in 2013, $40.0 million in 2012, and $28.0 million in 2011.  The Company was 
notified during 2014 by the Community Development Financial Institutions Fund (CDFI) of the U.S. Treasury that it did not 
receive an allocation of Federal NMTC.  The lack of an allocation in 2014 did not preclude the Company from making 
investments in Federal NMTC projects and utilizing Federal NMTC allocations of other CDEs as was common practice for the 
Company when it began its tax credit investment program.  The Company has made and will continue to make material 
investments in tax credit-motivated projects. Management believes that these investments present attractive after tax economic 
returns, furthers the Company’s Community Reinvestment Act responsibilities, and supports the communities in which the 
Company serves. Currently, the investments are directed at tax credits issued under the Federal NMTC, Federal Historic 
Rehabilitation Tax Credit and Low-Income Housing Tax Credit programs. The Company generates returns on tax credit-
motivated projects through the receipt of federal and, if applicable, state tax credits.  The Company maintains a pipeline of tax 
credit eligible projects in which it may invest to generate federal tax credits.  The Company generated Federal Historic 
Rehabilitation Tax Credits of $19.3 million in 2014 and expects to generate $21.6 million and $15.7 million in 2015 and 2016, 
respectively, from projects currently under construction.  Table 21-Future Tax Credits provides information on tax credits the 
Company expects to generate in future years based on investments the Company has made as of December 31, 2014.

The Company’s investment in tax credit entities totaled $140.9 million as of December 31, 2014, an increase of $23.2 million 
or 19.7%, compared to December 31, 2013. The Company has seen increasing demand in its markets for investment in tax 
credit projects. The Company anticipates its investment in tax credit entities to be driven by increases in Federal Historic 
Rehabilitation Tax Credit project investments.  The Low-Income Housing and Federal NMTC associated with the Company's 
investment in tax credit entities are recognized over the compliance periods of the respective projects, which range from seven 
to 15 years.  Projects for which an investment was made during 2011 to 2013 from the Company's own tax credit allocation 
substantially increased the Company's supply of credits recognizable over future periods.  

Cash Surrender Value of Bank-Owned Life Insurance

During 2014, the Company increased its investment in bank-owned life insurance by $20.0 million.  At December 31, 2014, the 
Company maintained investments of $47.3 million in bank-owned life insurance products due to its attractive risk-adjusted 
return and protection against the loss of key executives, as compared to $26.2 million and $25.5 million at December 31, 2013 
and 2012, respectively. The tax equivalent yield on these products was 4.24%, 4.05%, and 4.59% for the years ending 
December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.

Deferred Tax Asset

The Company had a net deferred tax asset of $83.5 million as of December 31, 2014 due to its tax net operating loss 
carryforward, carryforwards related to unused tax credits, and the non-deductibility of the loan loss provision for tax purposes. 
The Company assesses the recoverability of its deferred tax asset quarterly, and the current and projected level of taxable 
income provides for the ultimate realization of the carrying value of these deferred tax assets. Net deferred tax assets as of 
December 31, 2014 increased $32.3 million, primarily as a result of $39.1 million in tax credits generated during 2014, a net 
benefit of $1.7 million related to other comprehensive income market value adjustments, and offset by basis adjustment of $1.6 
million and current and deferred tax expense of $6.9 million.
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The Company invests in these receivables since they provide a higher short-term return for the Company.  The average yield on 
the short-term receivables was 2.82% during 2014 and 2.84% during 2013.  The Company had $237.1 million invested in short-
term receivables at December 31, 2014, a decrease of $9.7 million over the prior year, because of a decrease in excess liquidity 
in 2014, as compared to 2013, which was partially attributable to loan growth.  

Short-term Investments

Short-term investments result from excess funds that fluctuate daily depending on the funding needs of the Company and are 
currently invested overnight in interest-bearing deposit accounts at the Federal Reserve of Atlanta, First National Bankers 
Bank, JP Morgan Chase Bank, and Comerica Bank. The balance in interest-bearing deposits at other institutions increased 
$14.9 million to $18.4 million at December 31, 2014, from $3.5 million at December 31, 2013. The primary cause of the 
increase at December 31, 2014 was due to excess liquidity from cash from deposits, proceeds from calls and maturities of 
investment securities, and investments in short-term receivables which had not been reinvested at December 31, 2014. The 
Company’s cash activity is further discussed in the “Liquidity and Capital Resources” section below.

Investment in Tax Credit Entities

The Company has received a total of $118.0 million in Federal New Markets Tax Credits (NMTC) allocations since 2011.  The 
Company received allocations of  $50.0 million in 2013, $40.0 million in 2012, and $28.0 million in 2011.  The Company was 
notified during 2014 by the Community Development Financial Institutions Fund (CDFI) of the U.S. Treasury that it did not 
receive an allocation of Federal NMTC.  The lack of an allocation in 2014 did not preclude the Company from making 
investments in Federal NMTC projects and utilizing Federal NMTC allocations of other CDEs as was common practice for the 
Company when it began its tax credit investment program.  The Company has made and will continue to make material 
investments in tax credit-motivated projects. Management believes that these investments present attractive after tax economic 
returns, furthers the Company’s Community Reinvestment Act responsibilities, and supports the communities in which the 
Company serves. Currently, the investments are directed at tax credits issued under the Federal NMTC, Federal Historic 
Rehabilitation Tax Credit and Low-Income Housing Tax Credit programs. The Company generates returns on tax credit-
motivated projects through the receipt of federal and, if applicable, state tax credits.  The Company maintains a pipeline of tax 
credit eligible projects in which it may invest to generate federal tax credits.  The Company generated Federal Historic 
Rehabilitation Tax Credits of $19.3 million in 2014 and expects to generate $21.6 million and $15.7 million in 2015 and 2016, 
respectively, from projects currently under construction.  Table 21-Future Tax Credits provides information on tax credits the 
Company expects to generate in future years based on investments the Company has made as of December 31, 2014.

The Company’s investment in tax credit entities totaled $140.9 million as of December 31, 2014, an increase of $23.2 million 
or 19.7%, compared to December 31, 2013. The Company has seen increasing demand in its markets for investment in tax 
credit projects. The Company anticipates its investment in tax credit entities to be driven by increases in Federal Historic 
Rehabilitation Tax Credit project investments.  The Low-Income Housing and Federal NMTC associated with the Company's 
investment in tax credit entities are recognized over the compliance periods of the respective projects, which range from seven 
to 15 years.  Projects for which an investment was made during 2011 to 2013 from the Company's own tax credit allocation 
substantially increased the Company's supply of credits recognizable over future periods.  

Cash Surrender Value of Bank-Owned Life Insurance

During 2014, the Company increased its investment in bank-owned life insurance by $20.0 million.  At December 31, 2014, the 
Company maintained investments of $47.3 million in bank-owned life insurance products due to its attractive risk-adjusted 
return and protection against the loss of key executives, as compared to $26.2 million and $25.5 million at December 31, 2013 
and 2012, respectively. The tax equivalent yield on these products was 4.24%, 4.05%, and 4.59% for the years ending 
December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.

Deferred Tax Asset

The Company had a net deferred tax asset of $83.5 million as of December 31, 2014 due to its tax net operating loss 
carryforward, carryforwards related to unused tax credits, and the non-deductibility of the loan loss provision for tax purposes. 
The Company assesses the recoverability of its deferred tax asset quarterly, and the current and projected level of taxable 
income provides for the ultimate realization of the carrying value of these deferred tax assets. Net deferred tax assets as of 
December 31, 2014 increased $32.3 million, primarily as a result of $39.1 million in tax credits generated during 2014, a net 
benefit of $1.7 million related to other comprehensive income market value adjustments, and offset by basis adjustment of $1.6 
million and current and deferred tax expense of $6.9 million.

41

Other Assets

Other assets, consisting primarily of prepaid expenses and software, totaled $30.2 million as of December 31, 2014, as 
compared to $23.8 million and $20.9 million as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Deposits

Deposits are the Company’s primary source of funds to support earning assets. Total deposits were $3.1 billion at December 31, 
2014, compared to $2.7 billion at December 31, 2013, an increase of $390.0 million, or 14.3%, as total interest-bearing deposits 
were up $316.6 million, or 13.0%. The increase in interest-bearing deposits was due primarily to an increase in money market 
deposit accounts of  $400.3 million, or 61.1%, compared to the prior year.  The increase in noninterest-bearing deposits of 
$73.5 million, or 25.2%, was due to an increase in the balances held by the Company's commercial loan customers and 
initiatives started during the fourth quarter of 2014 to increase deposits to fund the Company's loan growth.  The Company also 
attributes its continued deposit growth to a number of factors, primarily its core principle of developing and maintaining long-
term relationships between the relationship banker and their customers through high quality service, relationship-based pricing,  
which provides for pricing enhancements based on a customer’s multiple relationships with the Company, and the Company’s 
commitment to the communities in which it serves. 

The following table sets forth the composition of the Company’s deposits over the last three years.

TABLE 11-DEPOSIT COMPOSITION BY PRODUCT

 As of December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Noninterest-bearing demand $ 364,534 11.7% $ 291,080 10.7% $ 239,538 10.6%
NOW accounts 476,825 15.3 511,620 18.7 437,542 19.3
Money market accounts 1,055,505 33.8 655,173 24.0 410,928 18.1
Savings deposits 49,634 1.6 53,779 2.0 45,295 2.0
Certificates of deposit 1,174,352 37.6 1,219,155 44.6 1,135,225 50.0

Total deposits $ 3,120,850 100.0% $ 2,730,807 100.0% $ 2,268,528 100.0%

The Company has seen a shift in its deposit mix since it began its tiered pricing program on all of its interest-bearing deposit 
products in 2014 and 2013.  Since that time, money market deposits have comprised a larger portion of the deposit mix as 
NOW account customers and certificates of deposit customers, whose certificates have matured, have migrated to money 
market accounts because of the Company's tiered pricing strategy.  At December 31, 2014, 33.8% of total deposits were in 
money market deposits, an increase of 9.8%, compared to December 31, 2013.  NOW accounts comprised 15.3%  of total 
deposits at December 31, 2014, a decrease of 3.4%, compared to December 31, 2013. The Company lowered the NOW account 
rates in the lower balance tiers during 2014, which led to these accounts comprising a smaller percentage of the deposit mix 
than in prior years.  Certificates of deposit comprised 37.6% of total deposits, a decrease of 7.0%, compared to December 31, 
2013.  

The following table presents the remaining maturities of the Company’s certificates of deposits at December 31, 2014.

TABLE 12-REMAINING MATURITIES OF CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

 As of December 31, 2014

(dollars in thousands)
Less than
$100,000

$100,000 or
Greater CDARS® Total

3 months or less $ 41,411 $ 74,178 $ 71,470 $ 187,059
3-12 months 125,815 195,515 123,723 445,053
12-36 months 130,180 232,278 22,923 385,381
More than 36 months 32,802 124,057 — 156,859

Total $ 330,208 $ 626,028 $ 218,116 $ 1,174,352
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Short-term Borrowings

Although deposits are the primary source of funds for lending, investment activities and general business purposes, the 
Company may obtain advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas, sell investment securities subject to its obligation 
to repurchase them, purchase Federal funds, and engage in overnight borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank or its 
correspondent banks as an alternative source of liquidity. The level of short-term borrowings can fluctuate on a daily basis 
depending on the funding needs and the source of funds to satisfy the needs. The Company had no short-term borrowings 
outstanding at December 31, 2014, a decrease of $8.4 million compared to December 31, 2013.

The Company also enters into repurchase agreements to facilitate customer transactions that are accounted for as secured 
borrowings. These transactions typically involve the receipt of deposits from customers that the Company collateralizes with its 
investment portfolio and had a weighted average rate of 1.40% for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 1.49% for the year 
ended December 31, 2013.

The following table details the average and ending balances of repurchase transactions as of and for the years ending 
December 31:

TABLE 13-REPURCHASE TRANSACTIONS

(dollars in thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Average balance $ 104,728 $ 68,799 $ 39,725
Ending balance 117,997 75,957 36,287

Long-term Borrowings

At December 31, 2014, the Company had long-term borrowings of $40.0 million, a decrease of $15.1 million from December 
31, 2013.  During 2014, the Company refinanced and extended the maturity of its long-term borrowing which is in the legal 
form of a long-term repurchase agreement. The $40.0 million borrowing matures on April 1, 2019 and bears interest at a 
floating rate equal to three-month USD LIBOR plus 1.35%, and was 1.59% at December 31, 2014.  The rate during 2013 was 
2.83%.  The Company also repaid a $15.0 million borrowing during the year.  The Company’s long-term borrowings are at the 
bank level in connection with the Company’s asset liability management as part of its hedge against rising interest rates.  The 
parent company had a long-term borrowing in connection with the Company's ESOP plan which was repaid during 2014.

Shareholders’ Equity

Shareholders’ equity provides a source of permanent funding, allows for future growth and provides the Company with a 
cushion to withstand unforeseen adverse developments. Shareholders’ equity increased $54.5 million, or 14.3%, to $436.4 
million as of December 31, 2014 from $381.9 million as of December 31, 2013, primarily as a result of the Company’s retained 
earnings over the period.

Regulatory Capital

As of December 31, 2014, the Company and First NBC Bank were in compliance with all regulatory requirements and First 
NBC Bank was classified as “well capitalized” for purposes of the FDIC’s prompt corrective action requirements.
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The Company also enters into repurchase agreements to facilitate customer transactions that are accounted for as secured 
borrowings. These transactions typically involve the receipt of deposits from customers that the Company collateralizes with its 
investment portfolio and had a weighted average rate of 1.40% for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 1.49% for the year 
ended December 31, 2013.

The following table details the average and ending balances of repurchase transactions as of and for the years ending 
December 31:
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Average balance $ 104,728 $ 68,799 $ 39,725
Ending balance 117,997 75,957 36,287

Long-term Borrowings

At December 31, 2014, the Company had long-term borrowings of $40.0 million, a decrease of $15.1 million from December 
31, 2013.  During 2014, the Company refinanced and extended the maturity of its long-term borrowing which is in the legal 
form of a long-term repurchase agreement. The $40.0 million borrowing matures on April 1, 2019 and bears interest at a 
floating rate equal to three-month USD LIBOR plus 1.35%, and was 1.59% at December 31, 2014.  The rate during 2013 was 
2.83%.  The Company also repaid a $15.0 million borrowing during the year.  The Company’s long-term borrowings are at the 
bank level in connection with the Company’s asset liability management as part of its hedge against rising interest rates.  The 
parent company had a long-term borrowing in connection with the Company's ESOP plan which was repaid during 2014.

Shareholders’ Equity

Shareholders’ equity provides a source of permanent funding, allows for future growth and provides the Company with a 
cushion to withstand unforeseen adverse developments. Shareholders’ equity increased $54.5 million, or 14.3%, to $436.4 
million as of December 31, 2014 from $381.9 million as of December 31, 2013, primarily as a result of the Company’s retained 
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NBC Bank was classified as “well capitalized” for purposes of the FDIC’s prompt corrective action requirements.
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The following table presents the actual capital amounts and regulatory capital ratios for the Company and First NBC Bank as of 
December 31, 2014.

TABLE 14-REGULATORY CAPITAL RATIOS

 
“Well-

Capitalized”
Minimums

At December 31, 2014 At December 31, 2013 
(dollars in thousands) Actual Amount Actual Amount

First NBC Bank Holding Company
Leverage 10.66% $ 387,224 11.76% $ 375,355
Tier 1 risk-based 11.59 387,224 13.26 375,355
Total risk-based 12.84 428,962 14.40 407,648
First NBC Bank
Leverage 5.00% 9.95% $ 361,078 10.96% $ 349,104
Tier 1 risk-based 6.00 10.82 361,078 12.34 349,104
Total risk-based 10.00 12.07 402,816 13.48 381,396

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Income available to common shareholders was $54.1 million, $38.6 million, and $26.4 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively. Earnings per share on a diluted basis were $2.84 for 2014, $2.32 for 2013, 
and $2.02 for 2012. For the year ended December 31, 2014, net interest income increased $22.4 million, or 26.4%, over the 
same period of 2013, as interest income increased $26.0 million, or 20.9%, and interest expense increased $3.6 million, or 
9.1%. The increase in interest income of $22.4 million, compared to the same period of 2013, was due to an increase in average 
interest-earning assets of $477.9 million, which increased interest income $26.0 million due primarily to an increase in rates of 
13 basis points. Net interest income was also impacted by an increase in interest expense of $3.6 million in 2014 compared to 
2013, the yield on interest-bearing liabilities decreased 9 basis points compared to the same period of 2013 and average 
interest-bearing liabilities increased $376.2 million over the same period.  For the year ended December 31, 2013, net interest 
income increased $10.1 million, or 13.5%, over the same period of 2012, as interest income increased $17.6 million, or 16.5%, 
and interest expense increased $7.5 million, or 23.6%.  The increase in interest income of $17.6 million, compared to the same 
period of 2012, was due to an increase in average interest-earning assets of $506.3 million, which increased interest income to 
$23.4 million; this was partially offset by a decrease of $5.5 million in interest income due to a decrease in interest rates of 24 
basis points.  Net interest income was also impacted by an increase in interest expense of $7.5 million in 2013 compared to 
2012, although the yield on interest-bearing liabilities remained flat compared to 2012 this was despite an increase from 2012 
in average interest-bearing liabilities of $458.5 million. 

The following discussion provides additional information on the Company’s operating results for the years ended December 31, 
2014, 2013, and 2012, segregated by major income statement captions.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income, the primary contributor to the Company’s earnings, represents the difference between the income that the 
Company earns on interest-earning assets and the cost of interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest income depends upon the 
volume of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the interest rates earned or paid on them. Net interest 
income is affected by changes in the amount and mix of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, referred to as 
“volume changes.” It is also affected by changes in yields earned on interest-earning assets and rates paid on interest-bearing 
deposits and other borrowed funds, referred to as “rate changes.”

The Company’s net interest spread, which is the difference between the yields earned on average earning assets and the rates 
paid on average interest-bearing liabilities, was 3.13%, 2.91%, and 3.15% during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, 
and 2012, respectively. The Company’s net interest margin, which is net interest income as a percentage of average interest-
earning assets, was 3.34%, 3.11%, and 3.36%, respectively for the same periods. The net interest spread and net interest margin 
were primarily impacted in 2014 and 2013 by the shift in the proportion of the Company’s loan portfolio to more floating rate 
loans from fixed rate loans and the Company's decrease in its cost of funds over the same periods.

Net interest income increased 26.4% to $107.2 million in 2014, compared to $84.9 million in 2013. The primary driver of the 
increase in net interest income was a $26.0 million, or 20.9%, increase in interest income during 2014, as compared to the same 
period in 2013, which was partially offset by a $3.6 million, or 9.1%, increase in interest expense over the same periods. The 
increase in interest income was due primarily to the significant growth in average interest-earning assets during 2014 to $3.2 
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billion, an increase of $477.9 million compared to 2013. The yield on earning assets increased 13 basis points compared to 
2013 which was impacted by a decrease in the loan yield of 6 basis points. The yield on earning assets decreased 24 basis 
points in 2013 compared to 2012. The decrease in the loan yield was due to the increase in the proportion of the loan portfolio 
represented by floating rate loans, which had a greater impact on the earning asset yield due to the fact that loans carry a higher 
average balance and yield compared to investment securities and investment in short-term receivables as a percentage of total 
assets, which carry lower average yields compared to loans. The percentage of loans to average interest-earning assets was 
80.6% in 2014, compared to 77.5% in 2013, and 79.7% in 2012.

During 2013, the Company executed a total of $250 million receive fixed swap agreements on a portion of its floating rate loan 
portfolio to hedge exposure to the impact of the loans with variable rates in its loan portfolio. The Company’s loan mix has 
shifted to more floating rate loans and has lowered its overall earning asset yield. In an effort to offset the loss in its earning 
asset yield, while still meeting the needs of its customers, the Company entered into the hedges. The Company began receiving 
fixed payments on the hedge at inception. For the year ended 2014, the hedge increased the loan yield by 10 basis points. 
Management can increase the amount of the hedge at any time if the existing hedge does not evenly balance the portfolio ratio 
of fixed to variable rate loans.  The hedges are expected to have a positive impact on the net interest margin in future periods.

The increase in interest expense was due primarily to an increase in average interest-bearing deposits in 2014 to $2.6 billion, as 
compared to $2.3 billion for the same period in 2013, as well as the general mix of the average interest-bearing liabilities, the 
increased volume of interest-bearing liabilities of $5.6 million, and was offset by the average rate on average interest-bearing 
liabilities which decreased 9 basis points in 2014. The growth in earning assets and deposits was attributable to the continued 
implementation of the Company’s organic growth strategy as its existing branches continued to increase market share in their 
respective markets.

Also, beginning in the third quarter of  2013, the Company began shifting its interest-bearing deposits to tiered rates and pricing 
as management  continues to focus its efforts to lower its cost of funds without compromising its strategic goal of relationship-
based pricing for its customers. The Company's tiered pricing on its deposit products decreased the average rate on interest-
bearing deposits 7 basis points in 2014.
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The following tables present, for the periods indicated, the distribution of average assets, liabilities and equity, interest income 
and resulting yields earned on average interest-earning assets and interest expense and rates paid on average interest-bearing 
liabilities. Nonaccrual loans are included in the calculation of the average loan balances and interest on nonaccrual loans is 
included only to the extent recognized on a cash basis.

TABLE 15-AVERAGE BALANCES, NET INTEREST INCOME AND INTEREST YIELDS/RATES

 2014 2013 2012

(dollars in thousands)
Average
Balance Interest

Average
Yield/
Rate

Average
Balance Interest

Average
Yield/
Rate

Average
Balance Interest

Average
Yield/
Rate

Assets:
Interest-earning assets:

Short-term investments $ 31,855 $ 63 0.20% $ 67,327 $ 145 0.22% $ 66,525 $ 144 0.22%
Investment in short-term
receivables 230,604 6,512 2.82% 169,541 4,810 2.84% 61,172 2,060 3.37%
Investment securities 361,582 9,147 2.53% 378,671 7,809 2.06% 323,835 6,499 2.01%
Loans (including fee
income) 2,587,105 134,256 5.19% 2,117,748 111,260 5.25% 1,775,436 97,754 5.51%

Total interest-earning assets 3,211,146 149,978 4.67% 2,733,287 124,024 4.54 2,226,968 106,457 4.78%
Less: Allowance for loan

losses (36,965) (28,523) (21,386)
Noninterest-earning assets 372,698 280,694 216,765

Total assets 3,546,879 $2,985,458 $2,422,347
Liabilities and

shareholders’ equity:
Interest-bearing liabilities:

Savings deposits $ 52,303 409 0.78% $ 50,269 $ 325 0.65% $ 41,700 $ 263 0.63%
Money market accounts 859,743 11,509 1.34% 455,918 6,757 1.48% 397,818 6,433 1.62%
NOW accounts 497,346 5,679 1.14% 521,721 6,665 1.28% 329,691 4,104 1.24%
Certificates of deposit

under $100,000 357,721 5,747 1.61% 418,525 6,563 1.57% 446,675 6,937 1.55%
Certificates of deposit of

$100,000 or more 638,979 12,365 1.94% 637,541 12,171 1.91% 513,865 9,145 1.78%
CDARS® 205,560 4,475 2.18% 171,799 3,758 2.19% 111,399 2,715 2.44%

Total interest-bearing
deposits 2,611,652 40,184 1.54% 2,255,773 36,239 1.61% 1,841,148 29,597 1.61%
Short-term borrowings

and repurchase
agreements 105,064 1,532 1.46% 69,971 1,022 1.46% 40,343 592 1.47%

Other borrowings 56,068 1,013 1.81% 70,837 1,887 2.66% 56,575 1,477 2.61%
Total interest-bearing

liabilities 2,772,784 42,729 1.54% 2,396,581 39,148 1.63% 1,938,066 31,666 1.63%
Noninterest-bearing

liabilities:
Noninterest-bearing deposits 327,499 239,559 229,102
Other liabilities 37,835 24,565 20,962
Total liabilities 3,138,118 2,660,705 2,188,130
Shareholders’ equity 408,761 324,753 234,217
Total liabilities and equity $3,546,879 $2,985,458 $2,422,347
Net interest income $ 107,249 $ 84,876 $ 74,791
Net interest spread(1) 3.13% 2.91% 3.15%
Net interest margin(2) 3.34% 3.11% 3.36%

(1) Net interest spread is the average yield on interest-earning assets minus the average rate on interest-bearing liabilities.
(2) Net interest margin is net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets.

The following tables analyze the dollar amount of change in interest income and interest expense with respect to the primary 
components of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. The tables show the amount of the change in interest 
income or interest expense caused by either changes in outstanding balances or changes in interest rates. The effect of a change 
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in balances is measured by applying the average rate during the first period to the balance (“volume”) change between the two 
periods. The effect of changes in rate is measured by applying the change in rate between the two periods to the average volume 
during the first period. Changes attributable to both rate and volume that cannot be segregated have been allocated 
proportionately to the absolute value of the change due to volume and the change due to rate. Changes attributable to the 
additional leap year day during 2012 are reflected in the number of days column.

TABLE 16-SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN NET INTEREST INCOME

 For the Years Ended December 31,
 2014 Over 2013 2013 Over 2012

 Increase/(Decrease) Due to Change In Increase/(Decrease) Due to Change In

(dollars in thousands) Volume Rate Total Volume Rate
Number
of Days Total

Interest-earning assets:
Loans (including fee income) $ 24,639 $ (1,643) $ 22,996 $18,861 $ (5,065) $ (290) $13,506
Short-term investments (76) (6) (82) 2 (1) — 1
Investment in short-term receivables 1,732 (30) 1,702 3,409 (1,010) (10) 2,389
Securities available for sale (416) 1,755 1,339 1,143 551 (23) 1,671

Total increase (decrease) in interest
income $ 25,879 $ 76 $ 25,955 $23,415 $ (5,525) $ (323) $17,567

Interest-bearing liabilities:
Savings deposits $ 16 $ 69 $ 85 $ 55 $ 8 $ (1) $ 62
Money market accounts 5,877 (1,126) 4,751 917 (576) (17) 324
NOW accounts (288) (699) (987) 2,412 168 (19) 2,561
Certificates of deposit (190) 286 96 3,282 474 (61) 3,695
Borrowed funds 200 (563) (363) 816 32 (8) 840

Total increase (decrease) in interest
expense $ 5,615 $ (2,033) $ 3,582 $ 7,482 $ 106 $ (106) $ 7,482

Increase (decrease) in net interest
income $ 20,264 $ 2,109 $ 22,373 $15,933 $ (5,631) $ (217) $10,085

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses represents management’s determination of the amount necessary to be charged against the current 
period’s earnings to maintain the allowance for loan losses at a level that is considered adequate in relation to the estimated 
losses inherent in the loan portfolio. The Company assesses the allowance for loan losses monthly and makes provisions for 
loan losses as deemed appropriate.

The Company recorded a provision for loan losses of $12.0 million, an increase of 22.4% from the same period in 2013.  The 
increase in the provision for loan losses was due primarily to the increase in the Company's gross loans of 17.7% at December 
31, 2014.  The Company believes that the allowance for loan losses was appropriate at December 31, 2014 and 2013 to cover 
incurred losses in the loan portfolio. The allowance for loan losses to total loans increased to 1.53% at December 31, 2014 
compared to 1.36% at December 31, 2013.   

Noninterest Income

For the year ended December 31, 2014, noninterest income was $11.6 million, compared to $13.4 million and $13.1 million for 
the same periods in 2013 and 2012, respectively. Noninterest income was impacted in 2014 primarily by decreases in CDE fees 
of $1.3 million, gain on assets sold of $1.0 million, and income from sale of state tax credits of $0.5 million compared to 2013.  
The Company did not receive an allocation of Federal New Markets Tax Credits in 2014 which impacted the CDE fees earned 
from the Company's CDE.  The increase in noninterest income in 2013 compared to 2012 was primarily due to increases in 
income from sale of state tax credits of $2.2 million and CDE fees of $1.8 million compared to 2012 due to the increased 
Federal NMTC allocation in 2013 over 2012.



46

in balances is measured by applying the average rate during the first period to the balance (“volume”) change between the two 
periods. The effect of changes in rate is measured by applying the change in rate between the two periods to the average volume 
during the first period. Changes attributable to both rate and volume that cannot be segregated have been allocated 
proportionately to the absolute value of the change due to volume and the change due to rate. Changes attributable to the 
additional leap year day during 2012 are reflected in the number of days column.

TABLE 16-SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN NET INTEREST INCOME

 For the Years Ended December 31,
 2014 Over 2013 2013 Over 2012

 Increase/(Decrease) Due to Change In Increase/(Decrease) Due to Change In

(dollars in thousands) Volume Rate Total Volume Rate
Number
of Days Total

Interest-earning assets:
Loans (including fee income) $ 24,639 $ (1,643) $ 22,996 $18,861 $ (5,065) $ (290) $13,506
Short-term investments (76) (6) (82) 2 (1) — 1
Investment in short-term receivables 1,732 (30) 1,702 3,409 (1,010) (10) 2,389
Securities available for sale (416) 1,755 1,339 1,143 551 (23) 1,671

Total increase (decrease) in interest
income $ 25,879 $ 76 $ 25,955 $23,415 $ (5,525) $ (323) $17,567

Interest-bearing liabilities:
Savings deposits $ 16 $ 69 $ 85 $ 55 $ 8 $ (1) $ 62
Money market accounts 5,877 (1,126) 4,751 917 (576) (17) 324
NOW accounts (288) (699) (987) 2,412 168 (19) 2,561
Certificates of deposit (190) 286 96 3,282 474 (61) 3,695
Borrowed funds 200 (563) (363) 816 32 (8) 840

Total increase (decrease) in interest
expense $ 5,615 $ (2,033) $ 3,582 $ 7,482 $ 106 $ (106) $ 7,482

Increase (decrease) in net interest
income $ 20,264 $ 2,109 $ 22,373 $15,933 $ (5,631) $ (217) $10,085

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses represents management’s determination of the amount necessary to be charged against the current 
period’s earnings to maintain the allowance for loan losses at a level that is considered adequate in relation to the estimated 
losses inherent in the loan portfolio. The Company assesses the allowance for loan losses monthly and makes provisions for 
loan losses as deemed appropriate.

The Company recorded a provision for loan losses of $12.0 million, an increase of 22.4% from the same period in 2013.  The 
increase in the provision for loan losses was due primarily to the increase in the Company's gross loans of 17.7% at December 
31, 2014.  The Company believes that the allowance for loan losses was appropriate at December 31, 2014 and 2013 to cover 
incurred losses in the loan portfolio. The allowance for loan losses to total loans increased to 1.53% at December 31, 2014 
compared to 1.36% at December 31, 2013.   

Noninterest Income

For the year ended December 31, 2014, noninterest income was $11.6 million, compared to $13.4 million and $13.1 million for 
the same periods in 2013 and 2012, respectively. Noninterest income was impacted in 2014 primarily by decreases in CDE fees 
of $1.3 million, gain on assets sold of $1.0 million, and income from sale of state tax credits of $0.5 million compared to 2013.  
The Company did not receive an allocation of Federal New Markets Tax Credits in 2014 which impacted the CDE fees earned 
from the Company's CDE.  The increase in noninterest income in 2013 compared to 2012 was primarily due to increases in 
income from sale of state tax credits of $2.2 million and CDE fees of $1.8 million compared to 2012 due to the increased 
Federal NMTC allocation in 2013 over 2012.
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The following table presents the components of noninterest income for the years indicated.

TABLE 17-NONINTEREST INCOME

(dollars in thousands) 2014 2013

Percentage
Increase

(Decrease) 2012

Percentage
Increase

(Decrease)

Service charges on deposit accounts $ 2,147 $ 2,027 5.9 % $ 2,486 (18.5)%
Investment securities gain, net 135 316 (57.3) 4,324 (92.7)
Gain on assets sold, net 64 1,081 (94.1) 500 116.2
Gain on sale of loans, net 649 835 (22.3) 603 38.5
Cash surrender value income on bank-owned life insurance 1,102 681 61.8 750 (9.2)
Income from sale of state tax credits 2,313 2,785 (16.9) 578 381.8
Community Development Entity fees 1,565 2,875 (45.6) 1,136 153.1
ATM fee income 1,958 1,859 5.3 1,686 10.3
Other 1,680 967 73.7 1,073 (9.9)

Total noninterest income $ 11,613 $ 13,426 (13.5)% $ 13,136 2.2 %

Service charges on deposit accounts. The Company earns fees from its customers for deposit-related services and these fees 
comprise a significant and predictable component of the Company’s noninterest income. These charges increased $0.1 million 
in 2014 over the prior year and decreased $0.5 million between 2013 and 2012. During 2014, the fees increased compared to 
2013 primarily due to the increase in noninterest-bearing deposit accounts.  In 2013, the decrease in fees was attributable to the 
conversion of the deposit accounts acquired from Central Progressive Bank to First NBC Bank’s system, which generally 
resulted in lower fees charged to former Central Progressive Bank customers after the conversion in mid 2012. 

Investment securities gain. The Company experienced a decrease in investment securities gains of $0.2 million in 2014 
compared to 2013. From time to time, the Company sells investment securities held as available for sale to fund loan demand, 
manage its asset liability sensitivity or other business purposes. During 2014 and 2013, the Company sold securities to fund 
loan demand. In 2012, the Company elected to sell certain securities after considering reinvestment opportunities. These sales 
resulted in realized gains the Company believes were attributable to the decline in the market interest rates due in part to the 
financial distress occurring in Europe.

Gain (loss) on assets sold, net. The decrease of $1.0 million in 2014 compared to 2013 was due primarily to the gain on sale of 
other real estate owned in 2013 of $1.1 million, compared to a gain on sale of other real estate owned in 2012 of $0.5 million.

Gain on sale of loans. In 2014, the gain on sale of loans, net decreased $0.2 million compared to 2013, primarily due to the gain 
on sale of acquired impaired loans of $0.3 million in 2013, offset by a decrease of $0.1 million in sales of loans guaranteed by 
the Small Business Administration. The increase of $0.2 million in 2013 compared to 2012 was due to the sale of the acquired 
impaired loans. The Company has historically been an active participant in Small Business Administration and USDA loan 
programs as a preferred lender and typically sells the guaranteed portion of the loans that it originates. The Company believes 
these government guaranteed loan programs are an important part of its service to the businesses in its communities and expects 
to continue expanding its efforts and income related to these programs.

Cash surrender value income on bank-owned life insurance. The income earned from bank-owned life insurance increased 
61.8% compared to the prior year, but decreased in 2013 compared to 2012.  During 2014, the Company invested $20.0 million 
in additional bank-owned life insurance policies.  The increase in cash surrender value income is due primarily to the additional 
investment made by the Company in 2014 compared to 2013.  The decrease in income between 2013 and 2012 was due 
primarily to the decrease in current yields earned on the policies, which was consistent with market performance.  

Income from sales of state tax credits. As part of the Company’s investment in projects that generate federal income tax credits, 
the Company may receive state tax credits along with federal credits. Although the Company cannot utilize most of the state tax 
credits, the Company earns income on the sale of state tax credits. The decrease of $0.5 million in 2014 compared to 2013, was 
due primarily to the decrease in syndication fees included in income from sales of state tax credits generated from the $23.9 
million in qualified equity investment that the Company was awarded under the State of Louisiana New Markets Jobs Act in 
2013.  The increase of $2.2 million in 2013 compared to 2012, was due primarily to the receipt of $1.5 million in syndication 
fees from the qualified equity investment that the Company was awarded under the State of Louisiana New Markets Jobs Act in 
2013. 
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Community Development Entity fees. The Company earns management fees, through its subsidiary CDE, First NBC 
Community Development Fund, LLC, related to the Fund’s Federal NMTC allocations. The Company recognizes the 
management fees when they are earned. The fees are earned at the time that qualified equity investments are made and over the 
seven year term of the investment. The CDE fees decreased $1.3 million in 2014 compared to 2013 and increased $1.7 million 
in 2013 compared to 2012. The decrease in 2014 was due to the Company not receiving a Federal NMTC allocation in the 
current year compared to 2013 when the Company received an allocation of $50 million.  The increase in 2013 compared to 
2012, was due to the additional $10 million in the Federal NMTC allocation the Company received in 2013 compared to 2012. 
These fees are contingent on the timing and receipt of the award from the Community Development Financial Institutions Fund 
of the U.S. Treasury and the amount of the allocation awarded.  Despite not receiving an allocation in 2014, the Company does 
receive CDE fees on an annual basis for projects which are still within the compliance period.

ATM fee income. This category includes income generated by automated teller machines, or ATMs. The income earned from 
ATMs increased $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to December 31, 2013. The balance increased 
$0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to December 31, 2012.  The increase over each period was due 
primarily to an increase in transaction volumes.

Other. This category includes a variety of other income producing activities, including income generated from trust services, 
credit cards and wire transfers.  The increase in other in 2014 compared to 2013 was due primarily to the recognition of income 
from the expiration of an option agreement that the Company had with a customer.

Noninterest Expense

Noninterest expense consists primarily of salary and employee benefits, occupancy and other expenses related to the 
Company’s operation and expansion. Noninterest expense increased by $10.9 million, or 16.2%, in 2014 compared to 2013 and 
increased $12.3 million, or 22.4%, in 2013 compared to 2012.   The increase in 2014 was due primarily to the Company's 
continued growth as all components of noninterest expense increased during the year compared to 2013.  The increase in 2013 
compared to 2012 was due primarily to the Company’s growth, increased professional fees associated with its initial public 
offering, and increase in tax credit investment amortization due to the increase in tax credit activity.

The following table presents the components of noninterest expense for the years indicated.

TABLE 18-NONINTEREST EXPENSE

(dollars in thousands) 2014 2013

Percentage
Increase

(Decrease) 2012

Percentage
Increase

(Decrease)

Salaries and employee benefits $ 24,867 $ 23,812 4.4% $ 20,307 17.3%
Occupancy and equipment expenses 10,848 10,204 6.3 9,755 4.6
Professional fees 7,471 6,929 7.8 3,269 112.0
Taxes, licenses and FDIC assessments 5,146 4,245 21.2 3,258 30.3
Tax credit investment amortization 14,059 8,639 62.7 4,808 79.7
Write-down of other real estate 385 235 63.8 295 (20.3)
Data processing 4,721 4,219 11.9 4,485 (5.9)
Advertising and marketing 2,886 2,427 18.9 1,904 27.5
Other 7,866 6,632 18.6 6,926 (4.2)

Total noninterest expense $ 78,249 $ 67,342 16.2% $ 55,007 22.4%

Salaries and employee benefits. Salaries and employee benefits are the largest component of noninterest expense and include 
employee payroll expense, the cost of incentive compensation, benefit plans, health insurance, and payroll taxes, all of which 
have increased in each of the past three years as the Company has hired more employees and expanded its banking operations, 
branch network, and transaction volumes. These expenses increased $1.1 million, or 4.4%, during 2014 and increased $3.5 
million, or 17.3%, during 2013, as a result of new personnel added to support higher levels of assets, loan origination, deposit 
growth and wealth management activities. The increase in salaries and employee benefits during 2014 and 2013 was also due to 
an increase in salary levels and an increase in employee bonuses attributable to the Company’s increasing profitability.
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Occupancy and equipment expenses. Occupancy and equipment expenses, consisting primarily of rent and depreciation, were 
$10.8 million, an increase of $0.6 million, or 6.3%, from $10.2 million in 2013. The increase for the year ended December 31, 
2014 compared to year ended December 31, 2013 was due primarily to an increase in depreciation expense of $0.2 million and 
maintenance contracts of $0.3 million.  In 2013, the Company opened one additional branch compared to 2012 when the 
Company relocated several existing branch offices into more attractive locations. The level of the Company’s occupancy 
expenses is related to the number of branch offices that it maintains, and management expects that these expenses will increase 
as the Company continues to implement its strategic growth plan and with the Company's acquisition in Crestview, Florida 
which occurred during the first quarter of 2015.

Professional fees. Professional fees include fees paid to external auditors, loan review professionals and other consultants, as 
well as legal services required to complete transactions and resolve legal matters on delinquent loans. These fees increased to 
$7.5 million, compared to $6.9 million, and $3.3 million for the same periods of 2013 and 2012, respectively.   The increase in 
professional fees during 2014 was due primarily to increases of $0.5 million in external audit costs, $0.4 million in fees related 
to investments in short-term receivables, and $0.2 million in CDE audit fees, offset by a decrease of  $0.6 million in CDE 
consulting fees.  The increase in professional fees in 2013 compared to 2012 was due to increases in external audit cost of $0.3 
million, CDE management fees of $0.8 million, fees related to its investments in short-term receivables of $0.8 million, and 
CDE consulting fees of $1.2 million. 

Taxes, licenses and FDIC assessments. The Company’s FDIC insurance premiums and assessments comprise the largest 
component of this category. The expenses related to taxes, licenses and FDIC insurance premiums and assessments were higher 
in 2014. The increase was $0.9 million, or 21.2%, compared to 2013. The increase in 2013 compared to 2012 was $1.0 million, 
or 30.3%. The increases were primarily attributable to the continued growth of the Company’s deposits year over year.

Tax credit investment amortization. Tax credit investment amortization reflects amortization of investments in entities that 
undertake projects that qualify for tax credits against federal income taxes. At this time, investments are directed at tax credits 
issued under the Federal NMTC, Federal Historic Rehabilitation, and Low-Income Housing Tax Credit programs. The 
Company amortizes investments related to Federal NMTC, Federal Historic Rehabilitation and Low-Income Housing Tax 
Credits over the period the Company is required by tax law (compliance period) or contractual period to maintain its ownership 
interest in the entity. These periods are 15 years for Low-Income Housing projects, 7 years for Federal NMTC projects, and 10 
years for Federal Historic Rehabilitation projects.

The following table presents the amortization of tax credit investments for the respective periods.

TABLE 19-TAX CREDIT AMORTIZATION BY CREDIT TYPE

 For the Years Ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Low-Income Housing $ 2,186 $ 1,900 $ 1,287
Federal Historic Rehabilitation 1,825 816 427
Federal New Markets 10,048 5,923 3,094

Total tax credit amortization $ 14,059 $ 8,639 $ 4,808

The significant increases in amortization expense reflect the increase in the level of activity throughout the three year period in 
which the Company invested in additional projects. The amortization periods are discussed further in Note 12 of the Company’s 
financial statements.

Data processing. Data processing expenses increased $0.5 million, or 11.9%, in  2014 compared to 2013 and decreased $0.3 
million, or 5.9%, in  2013 compared to 2012.  The increase in 2014 was driven by increases in software and software 
amortization.  As the Company continues its growth strategy, these expenses will continue to increase.  

Other. These expenses include costs related to insurance, customer service, communications, supplies and other operations. The 
increase in other noninterest expense over the periods shown was primarily attributable to an increase in categories of other 
noninterest expenses proportional to the overall growth and an increase in transaction volume and number of customers 
resulting from the Company’s organic growth.
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Community Development Entity fees. The Company earns management fees, through its subsidiary CDE, First NBC 
Community Development Fund, LLC, related to the Fund’s Federal NMTC allocations. The Company recognizes the 
management fees when they are earned. The fees are earned at the time that qualified equity investments are made and over the 
seven year term of the investment. The CDE fees decreased $1.3 million in 2014 compared to 2013 and increased $1.7 million 
in 2013 compared to 2012. The decrease in 2014 was due to the Company not receiving a Federal NMTC allocation in the 
current year compared to 2013 when the Company received an allocation of $50 million.  The increase in 2013 compared to 
2012, was due to the additional $10 million in the Federal NMTC allocation the Company received in 2013 compared to 2012. 
These fees are contingent on the timing and receipt of the award from the Community Development Financial Institutions Fund 
of the U.S. Treasury and the amount of the allocation awarded.  Despite not receiving an allocation in 2014, the Company does 
receive CDE fees on an annual basis for projects which are still within the compliance period.

ATM fee income. This category includes income generated by automated teller machines, or ATMs. The income earned from 
ATMs increased $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to December 31, 2013. The balance increased 
$0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to December 31, 2012.  The increase over each period was due 
primarily to an increase in transaction volumes.

Other. This category includes a variety of other income producing activities, including income generated from trust services, 
credit cards and wire transfers.  The increase in other in 2014 compared to 2013 was due primarily to the recognition of income 
from the expiration of an option agreement that the Company had with a customer.

Noninterest Expense

Noninterest expense consists primarily of salary and employee benefits, occupancy and other expenses related to the 
Company’s operation and expansion. Noninterest expense increased by $10.9 million, or 16.2%, in 2014 compared to 2013 and 
increased $12.3 million, or 22.4%, in 2013 compared to 2012.   The increase in 2014 was due primarily to the Company's 
continued growth as all components of noninterest expense increased during the year compared to 2013.  The increase in 2013 
compared to 2012 was due primarily to the Company’s growth, increased professional fees associated with its initial public 
offering, and increase in tax credit investment amortization due to the increase in tax credit activity.

The following table presents the components of noninterest expense for the years indicated.

TABLE 18-NONINTEREST EXPENSE

(dollars in thousands) 2014 2013

Percentage
Increase

(Decrease) 2012

Percentage
Increase

(Decrease)

Salaries and employee benefits $ 24,867 $ 23,812 4.4% $ 20,307 17.3%
Occupancy and equipment expenses 10,848 10,204 6.3 9,755 4.6
Professional fees 7,471 6,929 7.8 3,269 112.0
Taxes, licenses and FDIC assessments 5,146 4,245 21.2 3,258 30.3
Tax credit investment amortization 14,059 8,639 62.7 4,808 79.7
Write-down of other real estate 385 235 63.8 295 (20.3)
Data processing 4,721 4,219 11.9 4,485 (5.9)
Advertising and marketing 2,886 2,427 18.9 1,904 27.5
Other 7,866 6,632 18.6 6,926 (4.2)

Total noninterest expense $ 78,249 $ 67,342 16.2% $ 55,007 22.4%

Salaries and employee benefits. Salaries and employee benefits are the largest component of noninterest expense and include 
employee payroll expense, the cost of incentive compensation, benefit plans, health insurance, and payroll taxes, all of which 
have increased in each of the past three years as the Company has hired more employees and expanded its banking operations, 
branch network, and transaction volumes. These expenses increased $1.1 million, or 4.4%, during 2014 and increased $3.5 
million, or 17.3%, during 2013, as a result of new personnel added to support higher levels of assets, loan origination, deposit 
growth and wealth management activities. The increase in salaries and employee benefits during 2014 and 2013 was also due to 
an increase in salary levels and an increase in employee bonuses attributable to the Company’s increasing profitability.
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Occupancy and equipment expenses. Occupancy and equipment expenses, consisting primarily of rent and depreciation, were 
$10.8 million, an increase of $0.6 million, or 6.3%, from $10.2 million in 2013. The increase for the year ended December 31, 
2014 compared to year ended December 31, 2013 was due primarily to an increase in depreciation expense of $0.2 million and 
maintenance contracts of $0.3 million.  In 2013, the Company opened one additional branch compared to 2012 when the 
Company relocated several existing branch offices into more attractive locations. The level of the Company’s occupancy 
expenses is related to the number of branch offices that it maintains, and management expects that these expenses will increase 
as the Company continues to implement its strategic growth plan and with the Company's acquisition in Crestview, Florida 
which occurred during the first quarter of 2015.

Professional fees. Professional fees include fees paid to external auditors, loan review professionals and other consultants, as 
well as legal services required to complete transactions and resolve legal matters on delinquent loans. These fees increased to 
$7.5 million, compared to $6.9 million, and $3.3 million for the same periods of 2013 and 2012, respectively.   The increase in 
professional fees during 2014 was due primarily to increases of $0.5 million in external audit costs, $0.4 million in fees related 
to investments in short-term receivables, and $0.2 million in CDE audit fees, offset by a decrease of  $0.6 million in CDE 
consulting fees.  The increase in professional fees in 2013 compared to 2012 was due to increases in external audit cost of $0.3 
million, CDE management fees of $0.8 million, fees related to its investments in short-term receivables of $0.8 million, and 
CDE consulting fees of $1.2 million. 

Taxes, licenses and FDIC assessments. The Company’s FDIC insurance premiums and assessments comprise the largest 
component of this category. The expenses related to taxes, licenses and FDIC insurance premiums and assessments were higher 
in 2014. The increase was $0.9 million, or 21.2%, compared to 2013. The increase in 2013 compared to 2012 was $1.0 million, 
or 30.3%. The increases were primarily attributable to the continued growth of the Company’s deposits year over year.

Tax credit investment amortization. Tax credit investment amortization reflects amortization of investments in entities that 
undertake projects that qualify for tax credits against federal income taxes. At this time, investments are directed at tax credits 
issued under the Federal NMTC, Federal Historic Rehabilitation, and Low-Income Housing Tax Credit programs. The 
Company amortizes investments related to Federal NMTC, Federal Historic Rehabilitation and Low-Income Housing Tax 
Credits over the period the Company is required by tax law (compliance period) or contractual period to maintain its ownership 
interest in the entity. These periods are 15 years for Low-Income Housing projects, 7 years for Federal NMTC projects, and 10 
years for Federal Historic Rehabilitation projects.

The following table presents the amortization of tax credit investments for the respective periods.

TABLE 19-TAX CREDIT AMORTIZATION BY CREDIT TYPE

 For the Years Ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Low-Income Housing $ 2,186 $ 1,900 $ 1,287
Federal Historic Rehabilitation 1,825 816 427
Federal New Markets 10,048 5,923 3,094

Total tax credit amortization $ 14,059 $ 8,639 $ 4,808

The significant increases in amortization expense reflect the increase in the level of activity throughout the three year period in 
which the Company invested in additional projects. The amortization periods are discussed further in Note 12 of the Company’s 
financial statements.

Data processing. Data processing expenses increased $0.5 million, or 11.9%, in  2014 compared to 2013 and decreased $0.3 
million, or 5.9%, in  2013 compared to 2012.  The increase in 2014 was driven by increases in software and software 
amortization.  As the Company continues its growth strategy, these expenses will continue to increase.  

Other. These expenses include costs related to insurance, customer service, communications, supplies and other operations. The 
increase in other noninterest expense over the periods shown was primarily attributable to an increase in categories of other 
noninterest expenses proportional to the overall growth and an increase in transaction volume and number of customers 
resulting from the Company’s organic growth.
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Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes varies due to the amount of income recognized for generally accepted accounting principles and 
tax purposes and as a result of the tax benefits derived from the Company’s investments in tax-advantaged securities and tax 
credit projects. The Company engages in material investments in entities that are designed to generate tax credits, which it 
utilizes to reduce its current and future taxes. These credits are recognized when earned as a benefit in the provision for income 
taxes.

The Company recognized an income tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2014 of $27.0 million, compared to $19.8 
million, and $7.6 million for the same periods of 2013 and 2012, respectively. The increase in income tax benefit for the 
periods presented was due primarily to the significant increase in tax credit investment activity in the years presented.

The Company expects to experience an effective tax rate below the statutory rate of 35% due primarily to the receipt of Federal 
NMTC, Low-Income Housing Tax Credits, and Federal Historic Rehabilitation Tax Credits.

The following table presents the reconciliation of expected income tax provisions using statutory federal rates to actual benefit 
for income taxes recognized.

TABLE 20-RECONCILIATION OF INCOME TAX PROVISION

 For the Years Ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Tax expense at statutory rates $ 10,015 $ 7,406 $ 7,481
Tax credits:
Low-Income Housing (3,642) (3,700) (2,480)
Federal Historic Rehabilitation (19,321) (10,497) (3,241)
Federal NMTC (15,482) (14,224) (11,379)
Other tax credits (617) — —

Total tax credits (39,062) (28,421) (17,100)
Tax credit basis reduction 1,647 2,019 2,767
Tax exempt income (87) (1,070) (918)
Other 511 315 205

Benefit for income taxes $ (26,976) $ (19,751) $ (7,565)

Although the Company’s ability to continue to access new tax credits in the future will depend, among other factors, on federal 
and state tax policies, as well as the level of competition for future tax credits, the Company expects to generate the following 
levels of tax credits over the next six calendar years based on Federal NMTC and Low-Income Housing Tax Credit investments 
that have been made. Also included are Federal Historic Rehabilitation Tax Credit investments for which the Company expects 
the project to receive certificate of occupancy and to be placed into service over the next two years.

TABLE 21-FUTURE TAX CREDITS

 For the Year Ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Federal NMTC $ 15,849 $ 15,372 $ 13,352 $ 7,302 $ 3,300 $ 300
Low-Income Housing 4,625 5,100 5,100 5,100 5,100 4,536
Federal Historic Rehabilitation 21,558 15,737 — — — —

Total tax credits $ 42,032 $ 36,209 $ 18,452 $ 12,402 $ 8,400 $ 4,836

Liquidity and Other Off-Balance Sheet Activities

Liquidity refers to the Company’s ability to maintain cash flow that is adequate to fund operations and meet present and future 
financial obligations through either the sale or maturity of existing assets or by obtaining additional funding through liability 
management. Management believes that the sources of available liquidity were adequate as of December 31, 2014 to meet all 
reasonably foreseeable short-term and intermediate-term demands.

The Company evaluates liquidity both at the parent company level and at the bank level. Because First NBC Bank represents 
the Company’s only material asset, the primary sources of funds at the parent company level are cash on hand, dividends paid 
to the Company from First NBC Bank and the net proceeds of capital offerings. The primary sources of funds at First NBC 



50

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes varies due to the amount of income recognized for generally accepted accounting principles and 
tax purposes and as a result of the tax benefits derived from the Company’s investments in tax-advantaged securities and tax 
credit projects. The Company engages in material investments in entities that are designed to generate tax credits, which it 
utilizes to reduce its current and future taxes. These credits are recognized when earned as a benefit in the provision for income 
taxes.

The Company recognized an income tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2014 of $27.0 million, compared to $19.8 
million, and $7.6 million for the same periods of 2013 and 2012, respectively. The increase in income tax benefit for the 
periods presented was due primarily to the significant increase in tax credit investment activity in the years presented.

The Company expects to experience an effective tax rate below the statutory rate of 35% due primarily to the receipt of Federal 
NMTC, Low-Income Housing Tax Credits, and Federal Historic Rehabilitation Tax Credits.

The following table presents the reconciliation of expected income tax provisions using statutory federal rates to actual benefit 
for income taxes recognized.

TABLE 20-RECONCILIATION OF INCOME TAX PROVISION

 For the Years Ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Tax expense at statutory rates $ 10,015 $ 7,406 $ 7,481
Tax credits:
Low-Income Housing (3,642) (3,700) (2,480)
Federal Historic Rehabilitation (19,321) (10,497) (3,241)
Federal NMTC (15,482) (14,224) (11,379)
Other tax credits (617) — —

Total tax credits (39,062) (28,421) (17,100)
Tax credit basis reduction 1,647 2,019 2,767
Tax exempt income (87) (1,070) (918)
Other 511 315 205

Benefit for income taxes $ (26,976) $ (19,751) $ (7,565)

Although the Company’s ability to continue to access new tax credits in the future will depend, among other factors, on federal 
and state tax policies, as well as the level of competition for future tax credits, the Company expects to generate the following 
levels of tax credits over the next six calendar years based on Federal NMTC and Low-Income Housing Tax Credit investments 
that have been made. Also included are Federal Historic Rehabilitation Tax Credit investments for which the Company expects 
the project to receive certificate of occupancy and to be placed into service over the next two years.

TABLE 21-FUTURE TAX CREDITS

 For the Year Ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Federal NMTC $ 15,849 $ 15,372 $ 13,352 $ 7,302 $ 3,300 $ 300
Low-Income Housing 4,625 5,100 5,100 5,100 5,100 4,536
Federal Historic Rehabilitation 21,558 15,737 — — — —

Total tax credits $ 42,032 $ 36,209 $ 18,452 $ 12,402 $ 8,400 $ 4,836

Liquidity and Other Off-Balance Sheet Activities

Liquidity refers to the Company’s ability to maintain cash flow that is adequate to fund operations and meet present and future 
financial obligations through either the sale or maturity of existing assets or by obtaining additional funding through liability 
management. Management believes that the sources of available liquidity were adequate as of December 31, 2014 to meet all 
reasonably foreseeable short-term and intermediate-term demands.

The Company evaluates liquidity both at the parent company level and at the bank level. Because First NBC Bank represents 
the Company’s only material asset, the primary sources of funds at the parent company level are cash on hand, dividends paid 
to the Company from First NBC Bank and the net proceeds of capital offerings. The primary sources of funds at First NBC 

51

Bank are deposits, short and long-term funding from the Federal Home Loan Bank or other financial institutions, and principal 
and interest payments on loans and securities. While maturities and scheduled payments on loans and securities provide an 
indication of the timing of the receipt of funds, other sources of funds such as loan prepayments and deposit inflows are less 
predictable as they depend on the effects of changes in interest rates, economic conditions and competition. The primary 
investing activities are the origination of loans and the purchase of investment securities. If necessary, First NBC Bank has the 
ability to raise liquidity through additional collateralized borrowings, FHLB advances or the sale of its available-for-sale 
investment portfolio.

Investing activities are funded primarily by net deposit inflows, principal repayments on loans and securities, and borrowed 
funds. Gross loans increased to $2.8 billion as of December 31, 2014, from $2.4 billion as of December 31, 2013. At 
December 31, 2014, First NBC Bank had commitments to make loans of approximately $620.3 million and included in this is 
un-advanced lines of credit and loans of approximately $509.7 million. The Company anticipates that First NBC Bank will 
have sufficient funds available to meet its current loan originations and other commitments.

At December 31, 2014, total deposits were approximately $3.1 billion, of which approximately $831.0 million were in 
certificates of deposits of $100,000 or more. Certificates of deposits scheduled to mature in one year or less as of December 31, 
2014 totaled approximately $632.1 million while certificates of deposits of $100,000 or more with a maturity of one year or 
less totaled approximately $453.7 million.

In general, the Company monitors and manages liquidity on a regular basis by maintaining appropriate levels of liquid assets so 
that funds are available when needed. Excess liquidity is invested in overnight federal funds sold and other short-term 
investments. As a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas, First NBC Bank had access to approximately $563.2 
million of available lines of credit secured by qualifying collateral as of December 31, 2014. In addition, First NBC Bank 
maintained $85.0 million in lines of credit with its correspondent banks to support its liquidity.

Contractual Obligations

In the ordinary course of business, through First NBC Bank, the Company enters into certain on and off-balance sheet 
contractual obligations. The following table presents the Company’s contractual obligations outstanding as of December 31, 
2014.

TABLE 22-CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER DEBT COMMITMENTS

 As of December 31, 2014

(dollars in thousands)

Due
Within

One Year

After One
but Within
Three Years

After Three
but Within
Five Years

After Five
Years Total

Operating leases $ 3,387 $ 6,705 $ 5,897 $ 31,976 $ 47,965
Other borrowings — — 40,000 — 40,000
Certificates of deposit 632,112 385,381 156,859 — 1,174,352

Total contractual obligations $ 635,499 $ 392,086 $ 202,756 $ 31,976 $ 1,262,317
Standby letters of credit $ 73,595 $ 35,128 $ 1,232 $ 681 $ 110,636
Unused loan commitments 290,779 69,642 123,054 26,190 509,665

Total off-balance sheet
commitments $ 364,374 $ 104,770 $ 124,286 $ 26,871 $ 620,301

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into various transactions that are not included in the consolidated balance 
sheets in accordance with GAAP. These transactions include commitments to extend credit in the ordinary course of business to 
approved customers.

Generally, loan commitments have been granted on a temporary basis for working capital or commercial real estate financing 
requirements or may be reflective of loans in various stages of funding. These commitments are recorded on the Company’s 
financial statements as they are funded. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and 
may require payment of a fee. Loan commitments include unused commitments for open end lines secured by one to four 
family residential properties and commercial properties, commitments to fund loans secured by commercial real estate, 
construction loans, business lines of credit, and other unused commitments.  The increase in unused loan commitments as of 
December 31, 2014 of $240.9 million compared to December 31, 2013 was due primarily to the increases in the construction 
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and commercial loan portfolios during 2014.   The liability for losses on unfunded commitments totaled $0.2 million at 
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and $0.1 million at December 31, 2012. 

Standby letters of credit are written conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a 
customer to a third party. In the event the customer does not perform in accordance with the terms of the agreement with the 
third party, the Company would be required to fund the commitment. The maximum potential amount of future payments the 
Company could be required to make is represented by the contractual amount of the commitment. If the commitment is funded, 
the Company would be entitled to seek recovery from the customer.

The Company minimizes its exposure to loss under loan commitments and standby letters of credit by subjecting them to credit 
approval and monitoring procedures. The effect on the revenues, expenses, cash flows and liquidity of the unused portions of 
these commitments cannot be reasonably predicted because there is no guarantee that the lines of credit will be used.

The following is a summary of the total notional amount of commitments outstanding as of the respective dates.

TABLE 23-OUTSTANDING COMMITMENTS

 As of December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Standby letters of credit $ 110,636 $ 106,467 $ 92,274 $ 74,811 $ 65,409
Unused loan commitments 509,665 268,760 256,294 183,758 122,459

Total $ 620,301 $ 375,227 $ 348,568 $ 258,569 $ 187,868

Asset/Liability Management

The Company’s asset liability management policy provides guidelines for effective funds management and the Company has 
established a measurement system for monitoring its net interest rate sensitivity position. The Company seeks to maintain a 
sensitivity position within established guidelines.

As a financial institution, the primary component of market risk is interest rate volatility. Fluctuations in interest rates will 
ultimately impact both the level of income and expense recorded on most of the assets and liabilities, other than those which 
have a short term to maturity. Because of the nature of its operations, the Company is not subject to foreign exchange or 
commodity price risk. The Company does not own any trading assets.

Interest rate risk is the potential of economic loss due to future interest rate changes. These economic losses can be reflected as 
a loss of future net interest income and/or a loss of current fair market values. The objective is to measure the effect on net 
interest income and to adjust the balance sheet to minimize the inherent risk while at the same time maximizing income. The 
Company recognizes that certain risks are inherent and that the goal is to identify and understand the risks.

The Company actively manages exposure to adverse changes in interest rates through asset and liability management activities 
within guidelines established by the asset liability committee. The committee, which is composed primarily of senior officers 
and directors of First NBC Bank and the Company, has the responsibility for ensuring compliance with asset/liability 
management policies. Interest rate risk is the exposure to adverse changes in net interest income as a result of market 
fluctuations in interest rates. On a regular basis, the committee monitors interest rate and liquidity risk in order to implement 
appropriate funding and balance sheet strategies.

The Company utilizes a net interest income simulation model to analyze net interest income sensitivity. Potential changes in 
market interest rates and their subsequent effects on net interest income are then evaluated. The model projects the effect of 
instantaneous movements in interest rates. Decreases in interest rates apply primarily to long-term rates, as short-term rates are 
not modeled to decrease below zero. Assumptions based on the historical behavior of the Company’s deposit rates and balances 
in relation to changes in interest rates are also incorporated into the model. These assumptions are inherently uncertain and, as a 
result, the model cannot precisely measure future net interest income or precisely predict the impact of fluctuations in market 
interest rates on net interest income. Actual results will differ from the model’s simulated results due to timing, magnitude and 
frequency of interest rate changes as well as changes in market conditions and the application and timing of various 
management strategies.

The Company’s interest sensitivity profile was somewhat asset sensitive as of December 31, 2014, though its base net interest 
income would increase in the case of either an interest rate increase or decrease. Hedging instruments utilized by First NBC 
Bank, which consist primarily of interest rate swaps and options, protect the bank in a rising interest rate environment by 
providing long term funding costs at a fixed interest rate to allow the bank to continue to fund its projected loan growth. In 
addition, the bank utilizes interest rate floors in loan pricing to manage interest rate risk in a declining rate environment.
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The following table sets forth the net interest income simulation analysis as of December 31, 2014.

TABLE 24-CHANGE IN NET INTEREST INCOME FROM INTEREST RATE CHANGES

Interest Rate Scenario % Change in Net Interest Income

+ 300 basis points 8.0%
+ 200 basis points 7.2%
+ 100 basis points 3.3%

Base —

The Company also manages exposure to interest rates by structuring its balance sheet in the ordinary course of business. An 
important measure of interest rate risk is the relationship of the repricing period of earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. 
The more closely the repricing periods are correlated, the less interest rate risk it has. From time to time, the Company may use 
instruments such as leveraged derivatives, structured notes, interest rate swaps, caps, floors, financial options, financial futures 
contracts or forward delivery contracts to reduce interest rate risk. As of December 31, 2014, the Company had hedging 
instruments in the notional amount of $400.0 million with a net fair value liability of $13.0 million and in the notional amount 
of $165.0 million with a fair value asset of $37 thousand.

An interest rate sensitive asset or liability is one that, within a defined time period, either matures or experiences an interest rate 
change in line with general market interest rates. A measurement of interest rate risk is performed by analyzing the maturity and 
repricing relationships between interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities at specific points in time (gap). Interest 
rate sensitivity reflects the potential effect on net interest income of a movement in interest rates. An institution is considered to 
be asset sensitive, or having a positive gap, when the amount of its interest-earning assets maturing or repricing within a given 
period exceeds the amount of its interest-bearing liabilities also maturing or repricing within that time period. Conversely, an 
institution is considered to be liability sensitive, or having a negative gap, when the amount of its interest-bearing liabilities 
maturing or repricing within a given period exceeds the amount of its interest-earning assets also maturing or repricing within 
that time period. During a period of rising interest rates, a negative gap would tend to affect net interest income adversely, while 
a positive gap would tend to increase net interest income. During a period of falling interest rates, a negative gap would tend to 
result in an increase in net interest income, while a positive gap would tend to affect net interest income adversely.
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The following table sets forth the net interest income simulation analysis as of December 31, 2014.
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repricing relationships between interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities at specific points in time (gap). Interest 
rate sensitivity reflects the potential effect on net interest income of a movement in interest rates. An institution is considered to 
be asset sensitive, or having a positive gap, when the amount of its interest-earning assets maturing or repricing within a given 
period exceeds the amount of its interest-bearing liabilities also maturing or repricing within that time period. Conversely, an 
institution is considered to be liability sensitive, or having a negative gap, when the amount of its interest-bearing liabilities 
maturing or repricing within a given period exceeds the amount of its interest-earning assets also maturing or repricing within 
that time period. During a period of rising interest rates, a negative gap would tend to affect net interest income adversely, while 
a positive gap would tend to increase net interest income. During a period of falling interest rates, a negative gap would tend to 
result in an increase in net interest income, while a positive gap would tend to affect net interest income adversely.
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The following table sets forth our interest rate gap analysis as of December 31, 2014:

TABLE 25-INTEREST RATE GAP ANALYSIS

 Volumes Subject to Repricing Within

 
1-3

Months
4-6

Months
7-12

Months
2

Years
3

Years
4-5

Years
6-10

Years
Over

10 Years
Total

Balance
 (dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning

assets:
Short-term

investments $ 18,404 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 18,404
Short-term

receivables 237,135 — — — — — — — 237,135
Investment

securities 4,969 5,110 11,030 29,269 17,810 75,843 150,715 41,977 336,723

Loans 1,731,231 56,966 179,941 187,361 159,863 273,619 102,211 84,694 2,775,886
Total interest-earning

assets 1,991,739 62,076 190,971 216,630 177,673 349,462 252,926 126,671 3,368,148
Interest-bearing

liabilities:
Transaction

accounts 1,581,964 — — — — — — — 1,581,964
Certificates of

deposit 186,997 184,524 260,529 257,606 127,775 156,860 — 61 1,174,352
Short-term

borrowings — — — — — — — — —
Repurchase

agreements 117,991 — — — — — — — 117,991
Long-term

borrowings 40,000 — — — — — — — 40,000
Total interest-bearing

liabilities 1,926,952 184,524 260,529 257,606 127,775 156,860 — 61 2,914,307
Interest rate

sensitivity gap $ 64,787 $(122,448) $ (69,558) $ (40,976) $ 49,898 $ 192,602 $ 252,926 $ 126,610 $ 453,841
Cumulative interest

rate sensitivity gap $ 64,787 $ (57,661) $(127,219) $(168,195) $(118,297) $ 74,305 $ 327,231 $ 453,841
Cumulative interest

rate sensitivity
assets to rate
sensitive liabilities 1.03% 0.97 % 0.95 % 0.94 % 0.96 % 1.03% 1.11% 1.16%

Cumulative gap as a
percent of total
interest-earning
assets 0.02% (0.02)% (0.04)% (0.05)% (0.04)% 0.02% 0.10% 0.13%

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the gap table. For example, although certain assets and 
liabilities may have similar maturities or periods of repricing, they may react in different degrees to changes in market interest 
rates. Additionally, certain assets, such as adjustable-rate loans, have features that restrict changes in interest rates, both on a 
short-term basis and over the life of the asset. More importantly, changes in interest rates, prepayments and early withdrawal 
levels may deviate significantly from those assumed in the calculations in the table. As a result of these shortcomings, 
management focuses more on a net interest income simulation model than on gap analysis. Although the gap analysis reflects a 
ratio of cumulative gap to total earning assets within acceptable limits, the net interest income simulation model is considered 
by management to be more informative in forecasting future income at risk.

The Company faces the risk that borrowers might repay their loans sooner than the contractual maturity. If interest rates fall, the 
borrower might repay their loan, forcing the bank to reinvest in a potentially lower yielding asset. This prepayment would have 
the effect of lowering the overall portfolio yield which may result in lower net interest income. The Company has assumed that 
these loans will prepay, if the borrower has sufficient incentive to do so, using prepayment tables provided by third party 
consultants. In addition, some assets, such as mortgage-backed securities or purchased loans, are held at a premium, and if 
these assets prepay, the Company would have to write down the premium, which would temporarily reduce the yield. 
Conversely, as interest rates rise, borrowers might prepay their loans more slowly, which would leave lower yielding assets as 
interest rates rise.
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Impact of Inflation

The Company’s financial statements and related data presented herein have been prepared in accordance with GAAP, which 
require the measure of financial position and operating results in terms of historic dollars, without considering changes in the 
relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation.

Inflation generally increases the costs of funds and operating overhead, and to the extent loans and other assets bear variable 
rates, the yields on such assets. Unlike most industrial companies, virtually all of the assets and liabilities of a financial 
institution are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates generally have a more significant effect on the performance of a 
financial institution than the effects of general levels of inflation. In addition, inflation affects a financial institution’s cost of 
goods and services purchased, the cost of salaries and benefits, occupancy expense and similar items. Inflation and related 
increases in interest rates generally decrease the market value of investments and loans held and may adversely affect liquidity, 
earnings and shareholders’ equity. 

Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

The information contained in the section captioned “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results 
of Operations – Asset/Liability Management” in Item 7 hereof is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 8.   Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of First NBC Bank Holding Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of First NBC Bank Holding Company as of December 31, 
2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders' equity and cash flows 
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial 
position of First NBC Bank Holding Company at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated results of its operations 
and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), 
First NBC Bank Holding Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (2013 framework), and our report dated March 31, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

New Orleans, Louisiana
March 31, 2015
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FIRST NBC BANK HOLDING COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
(In thousands) 2014 2013
Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 32,484 $ 28,140
Short-term investments 18,404 3,502
Investment in short-term receivables 237,135 246,817
Investment securities available for sale, at fair value 247,647 277,719
Investment securities held to maturity 89,076 94,904
Mortgage loans held for sale 1,622 6,577
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $42,336 and $32,143, respectively 2,731,928 2,325,634
Bank premises and equipment, net 52,881 51,174
Accrued interest receivable 11,451 10,994
Goodwill and other intangible assets 7,831 8,433
Investment in real estate properties 12,771 10,147
Investment in tax credit entities 140,913 117,684
Cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance 47,289 26,187
Other real estate 5,549 3,733
Deferred tax asset 83,461 51,191
Other assets 30,175 23,781
Total assets $ 3,750,617 $ 3,286,617
Liabilities and equity
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing $ 364,534 $ 291,080
Interest-bearing 2,756,316 2,439,727

Total deposits 3,120,850 2,730,807
Short-term borrowings — 8,425
Repurchase agreements 117,991 75,957
Long-term borrowings 40,000 55,110
Accrued interest payable 6,650 6,682
Other liabilities 28,752 27,777
Total liabilities 3,314,243 2,904,758
Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred stock
Convertible preferred stock Series C – no par value; 1,680,219 shares authorized; 364,983
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 4,471 4,471
Preferred stock Series D – no par value; 37,935 shares authorized, issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 37,935 37,935

Common stock- par value $1 per share; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 18,576,488 shares issued
and outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 18,514,271 shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2013 18,576 18,514
Additional paid-in capital 239,528 237,063
Accumulated earnings 155,599 100,389
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net (19,737) (16,515)

Total shareholders’ equity 436,372 381,857
Noncontrolling interest 2 2
Total equity 436,374 381,859
Total liabilities and equity $ 3,750,617 $ 3,286,617

See accompanying notes.
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FIRST NBC BANK HOLDING COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

 Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2014 2013 2012
Interest income:

Loans, including fees $ 134,256 $ 111,260 $ 97,754
Investment securities 9,147 8,170 6,499
Investment in short-term receivables 6,512 4,449 2,060
Short-term investments 63 145 144

149,978 124,024 106,457
Interest expense:

Deposits 40,183 36,239 29,597
Borrowings and securities sold under repurchase agreements 2,546 2,909 2,069

42,729 39,148 31,666
Net interest income 107,249 84,876 74,791
Provision for loan losses 12,000 9,800 11,035
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 95,249 75,076 63,756
Noninterest income:

Service charges on deposit accounts 2,147 2,027 2,486
Investment securities gain, net 135 316 4,324
Gain on assets sold, net 64 1,081 500
Gain on sale of loans, net 649 835 603
Cash surrender value income on bank-owned life insurance 1,102 681 750
Income from sales of state tax credits 2,313 2,785 578
Community Development Entity fees 1,565 2,875 1,136
ATM fee income 1,958 1,859 1,686
Other 1,680 967 1,073

11,613 13,426 13,136
Noninterest expense:

Salaries and employee benefits 24,867 23,812 20,307
Occupancy and equipment expenses 10,848 10,204 9,755
Professional fees 7,471 6,929 3,269
Taxes, licenses and FDIC assessments 5,146 4,245 3,258
Tax credit investment amortization 14,059 8,639 4,808
Write-down of other real estate 385 235 295
Data processing 4,721 4,219 4,485
Advertising and marketing 2,886 2,427 1,904
Other 7,866 6,632 6,926

78,249 67,342 55,007
Income before income taxes 28,613 21,160 21,885
Income tax benefit (26,976) (19,751) (7,565)
Net income 55,589 40,911 29,450
Less net income attributable to noncontrolling interests — — (510)
Net income attributable to Company 55,589 40,911 28,940
Less preferred stock dividends (379) (347) (510)
Less earnings allocated to participating securities (1,066) (1,980) (1,999)

Income available to common shareholders $ 54,144 $ 38,584 $ 26,431
Earnings per common share – basic $ 2.92 $ 2.38 $ 2.04
Earnings per common share – diluted $ 2.84 $ 2.32 $ 2.02

See accompanying notes.
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FIRST NBC BANK HOLDING COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

 Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2014 2013 2012
Interest income:

Loans, including fees $ 134,256 $ 111,260 $ 97,754
Investment securities 9,147 8,170 6,499
Investment in short-term receivables 6,512 4,449 2,060
Short-term investments 63 145 144

149,978 124,024 106,457
Interest expense:

Deposits 40,183 36,239 29,597
Borrowings and securities sold under repurchase agreements 2,546 2,909 2,069

42,729 39,148 31,666
Net interest income 107,249 84,876 74,791
Provision for loan losses 12,000 9,800 11,035
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 95,249 75,076 63,756
Noninterest income:

Service charges on deposit accounts 2,147 2,027 2,486
Investment securities gain, net 135 316 4,324
Gain on assets sold, net 64 1,081 500
Gain on sale of loans, net 649 835 603
Cash surrender value income on bank-owned life insurance 1,102 681 750
Income from sales of state tax credits 2,313 2,785 578
Community Development Entity fees 1,565 2,875 1,136
ATM fee income 1,958 1,859 1,686
Other 1,680 967 1,073

11,613 13,426 13,136
Noninterest expense:

Salaries and employee benefits 24,867 23,812 20,307
Occupancy and equipment expenses 10,848 10,204 9,755
Professional fees 7,471 6,929 3,269
Taxes, licenses and FDIC assessments 5,146 4,245 3,258
Tax credit investment amortization 14,059 8,639 4,808
Write-down of other real estate 385 235 295
Data processing 4,721 4,219 4,485
Advertising and marketing 2,886 2,427 1,904
Other 7,866 6,632 6,926

78,249 67,342 55,007
Income before income taxes 28,613 21,160 21,885
Income tax benefit (26,976) (19,751) (7,565)
Net income 55,589 40,911 29,450
Less net income attributable to noncontrolling interests — — (510)
Net income attributable to Company 55,589 40,911 28,940
Less preferred stock dividends (379) (347) (510)
Less earnings allocated to participating securities (1,066) (1,980) (1,999)

Income available to common shareholders $ 54,144 $ 38,584 $ 26,431
Earnings per common share – basic $ 2.92 $ 2.38 $ 2.04
Earnings per common share – diluted $ 2.84 $ 2.32 $ 2.02

See accompanying notes.
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 FIRST NBC BANK HOLDING COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

 Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Net income $ 55,589 $ 40,911 $ 29,450
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Fair value of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges:
Change in fair value of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges
during the period, before tax (17,747) 3,694 (6,854)

Unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities:
Unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities arising during the period 12,379 (18,576) 3,956
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income (135) (316) (4,324)
Transfer of unrealized loss on securities from available for sale to held to
maturity during the period — (5,919) —
Amortization of unrealized net loss on securities transferred from available for
sale to held to maturity 547 211 —

Unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities, before tax 12,791 (24,600) (368)
Other comprehensive losses, before taxes (4,956) (20,906) (7,222)
Income tax benefit related to items of other comprehensive losses (1,734) (7,317) (2,501)

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (3,222) (13,589) (4,721)
Comprehensive income 52,367 27,322 24,729
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests — — (510)
Comprehensive income attributable to preferred shareholders (379) (347) (510)
Comprehensive income attributable to participating securities (1,066) (1,980) (1,999)
Comprehensive income available to common shareholders $ 50,922 $ 24,995 $ 21,710

See accompanying notes.
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FIRST NBC BANK HOLDING COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(In thousands)

Preferred
Stock

Series C

Preferred
Stock

Series D
Common

Stock

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated
Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total
Shareholders’

Equity
Noncontrolling

Interest
Total

Equity

Balance, December 31, 2011 $20,582 $37,935 $12,153 $ 118,010 $ 31,395 $ 1,795 $ 221,870 $ 1,646 $ 223,516
Net income — — — — 28,940 — 28,940 — 28,940
Other comprehensive

income — — — — — (4,721) (4,721) — (4,721)
Issuance of common stock:

Stock option and director
plans — — 20 1,082 — — 1,102 — 1,102

Stock offering — — 116 1,304 — — 1,420 — 1,420
Conversion of preferred

stock to common stock (9,351) — 763 8,588 — — — — —
Redemption of preferred

stock — — — — — — — (1,644) (1,644)

Preferred stock dividends — — — — (510) — (510) — (510)
Distribution to

noncontrolling interest — — — — — — — (1) (1)
Balance, December 31, 2012 11,231 37,935 13,052 128,984 59,825 (2,926) 248,101 1 248,102

Net income — — — — 40,911 — 40,911 — 40,911
Other comprehensive

income — — — — — (13,589) (13,589) — (13,589)
Share-based compensation — — — 1,202 — — 1,202 — 1,202
Conversion of preferred

stock to common stock (6,760) — 552 6,208 — — — — —
Issuance of common stock:

Stock option and director
plans — — 87 878 — — 965 — 965

Stock offering, net of
direct cost of $10,837 — — 4,792 99,371 — — 104,163 — 104,163

Warrants — — 31 94 — — 125 — 125
Net tax benefit related to

stock option plans — — — 326 — — 326 — 326
Preferred stock dividends — — — — (347) — (347) — (347)
Equity contribution for

noncontrolling interest — — — — — — — 1 1
Balance, December 31, 2013 4,471 37,935 18,514 237,063 100,389 (16,515) 381,857 2 381,859

Net income — — — — 55,589 — 55,589 — 55,589
Other comprehensive

income — — — — — (3,222) (3,222) — (3,222)
Share-based compensation — — — 1,339 — — 1,339 — 1,339
Issuance of common stock:

Stock option and director
plans — — 62 800 — — 862 — 862

Net tax benefit related to
stock option plans — — — 326 — — 326 — 326

Preferred stock dividends — — — — (379) — (379) — (379)
Balance, December 31, 2014 $ 4,471 $37,935 $18,576 $ 239,528 $ 155,599 $ (19,737) $ 436,372 $ 2 $ 436,374

See accompanying notes.
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FIRST NBC BANK HOLDING COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(In thousands)

Preferred
Stock

Series C

Preferred
Stock

Series D
Common

Stock

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated
Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total
Shareholders’

Equity
Noncontrolling

Interest
Total

Equity
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Issuance of common stock:
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plans — — 87 878 — — 965 — 965

Stock offering, net of
direct cost of $10,837 — — 4,792 99,371 — — 104,163 — 104,163

Warrants — — 31 94 — — 125 — 125
Net tax benefit related to

stock option plans — — — 326 — — 326 — 326
Preferred stock dividends — — — — (347) — (347) — (347)
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noncontrolling interest — — — — — — — 1 1
Balance, December 31, 2013 4,471 37,935 18,514 237,063 100,389 (16,515) 381,857 2 381,859

Net income — — — — 55,589 — 55,589 — 55,589
Other comprehensive

income — — — — — (3,222) (3,222) — (3,222)
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See accompanying notes.
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FIRST NBC BANK HOLDING COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

 Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Operating activities
Net income $ 55,589 $ 40,911 $ 29,450
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Noncontrolling interest — — (510)
Deferred tax benefit (30,412) (19,937) (7,565)
Amortization of tax credit investments 14,059 8,639 4,808
Net discount accretion or premium amortization 474 2,633 4,245
Gain on sale of investment securities (135) (316) (4,324)
Gain on assets sold (64) (1,081) (535)
Write-down of foreclosed assets 385 235 295
Proceeds from sale of mortgage loans held for sale 49,334 96,677 62,014
Mortgage loans originated and held for sale (44,379) (77,394) (82,067)
Gain on sale of loans (649) (835) (603)
Amounts paid on termination of interest rate hedge (7,990) — —
Provision for loan losses 12,000 9,800 11,035
Depreciation and amortization 3,554 2,963 3,351
Share-based and other compensation expense 800 2,124 1,102
Increase in cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance (1,102) (681) (750)
Decrease (increase) in receivables from sales of investments — 16,909 (16,909)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Change in other assets (10,015) (5,168) 1,540
Change in accrued interest receivable (457) (2,266) (1,346)
Change in accrued interest payable (32) 1,125 725
Change in other liabilities (7,661) 15,125 (2,758)

Net cash provided by operating activities 33,299 89,463 1,198
Investing activities
Purchases of available for sale investment securities (22,153) (132,123) (344,093)
Proceeds from sales of available for sale investment securities 41,670 45,791 125,401
Proceeds from maturities, prepayments, and calls of available for sale investment securities 22,229 91,328 129,910
Proceeds from sales of held to maturity securities 2,650 — —
Proceeds from maturities, prepayments, and calls of held to maturity securities 3,851 1,013 —
Net change in investments in short-term receivables 9,682 (165,773) (70,864)
Reimbursement of investment in tax credit entities 24,000 — 15,607
Purchases of investments in tax credit entities (61,288) (58,930) (20,606)
Loans originated, net of repayments (421,948) (444,592) (275,177)
Proceeds from sale of bank premises and equipment 46 324 16
Purchases of bank premises and equipment (4,706) (7,129) (18,189)
Proceeds from disposition of real estate owned 2,657 5,015 3,840
Purchases of bank-owned life insurance (20,000) — —
Net cash used in investing activities (423,310) (665,076) (454,155)
Financing activities
Net change in repurchase agreements 42,034 39,670 18,311
Proceeds from borrowings — 8,425 41,800
Repayment of borrowings (23,535) (41,910) (1,625)
Net increase in deposits 389,736 461,073 363,846
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of offering costs 1,401 104,332 1,420
Repayment of preferred stock — — (1,644)
Dividends paid (379) (347) (510)
Net cash provided by financing activities 409,257 571,243 421,598
Net change in cash, due from banks, and short-term investments 19,246 (4,370) (31,359)
Cash, due from banks, and short-term investments at beginning of period 31,642 36,012 67,371
Cash, due from banks, and short-term investments at end of period $ 50,888 $ 31,642 $ 36,012
Supplemental cash flows information
Cash paid for interest $ 42,761 $ 38,023 $ 32,392
Cash paid for taxes $ 3,170 $ — $ —

See accompanying notes.
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FIRST NBC BANK HOLDING COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

First NBC Bank Holding Company (“Company”) is a bank holding company that offers a broad range of financial services 
through First NBC Bank, a Louisiana state non-member bank, to businesses, institutions, and individuals in southeastern 
Louisiana and the Mississippi Gulf Coast. The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States and to prevailing practices within the banking industry.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and First NBC Bank, and First NBC 
Bank’s wholly owned subsidiaries, which include First NBC Community Development, LLC (FNBC CDC), First NBC 
Community Development Fund, LLC (FNBC CDE) (collectively referred to as the Bank) and any variable interest entities 
(VIE) of which the Company is the primary beneficiary. Substantially all of the VIEs for which the Company is the primary 
beneficiary relate to tax credit investments. FNBC CDC is a Community Development Corporation formed to construct, 
purchase, and renovate affordable residential real estate properties in the New Orleans area. FNBC CDE is a Community 
Development Entity (CDE) formed to apply for and receive allocations of Federal New Markets Tax Credits (NMTC).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are susceptible to a 
significant change in the near term are the allowance for loan losses, income tax provision, fair value adjustments, and share-
based compensation.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s loan portfolio consists of the various types of loans described in Note 6. Real estate or other assets secure most 
loans. The majority of these loans have been made to individuals and businesses in the Company’s market area of southeastern 
Louisiana and southern Mississippi, which are dependent on the area economy for their livelihoods and servicing of their loan 
obligations. The Company does not have any significant concentrations to any one industry or customer.

The Company maintains deposits in other financial institutions that may, from time to time, exceed the federally insured 
deposit limits.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the amount in the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheet caption, cash and due from banks, which represents cash on hand and balances due from other financial institutions, as 
well as the amount in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet caption, short-term investments, which primarily represents 
federal funds sold with original maturities less than three months.

Investment Securities

Investment securities are classified either as held to maturity or available for sale. Management determines the classification of 
securities when they are purchased.

Investment securities that the Company has the ability and positive intent to hold to maturity are classified as securities held to 
maturity and are stated at amortized cost. The amortized cost of debt securities classified as held to maturity or available for 
sale is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts over the contractual life of the security using the 
effective interest method or, in the case of mortgage-backed securities, over the estimated life of the security using the effective 
yield method. Such amortization or accretion is included in interest income on securities.

Securities that may be sold in response to changes in interest rates, liquidity needs, or asset liability management strategies are 
classified as securities available for sale. These securities are carried at fair value, with net unrealized gains or losses excluded 
from earnings and shown as a separate component of shareholders’ equity in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income, 
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FIRST NBC BANK HOLDING COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

First NBC Bank Holding Company (“Company”) is a bank holding company that offers a broad range of financial services 
through First NBC Bank, a Louisiana state non-member bank, to businesses, institutions, and individuals in southeastern 
Louisiana and the Mississippi Gulf Coast. The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States and to prevailing practices within the banking industry.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and First NBC Bank, and First NBC 
Bank’s wholly owned subsidiaries, which include First NBC Community Development, LLC (FNBC CDC), First NBC 
Community Development Fund, LLC (FNBC CDE) (collectively referred to as the Bank) and any variable interest entities 
(VIE) of which the Company is the primary beneficiary. Substantially all of the VIEs for which the Company is the primary 
beneficiary relate to tax credit investments. FNBC CDC is a Community Development Corporation formed to construct, 
purchase, and renovate affordable residential real estate properties in the New Orleans area. FNBC CDE is a Community 
Development Entity (CDE) formed to apply for and receive allocations of Federal New Markets Tax Credits (NMTC).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are susceptible to a 
significant change in the near term are the allowance for loan losses, income tax provision, fair value adjustments, and share-
based compensation.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s loan portfolio consists of the various types of loans described in Note 6. Real estate or other assets secure most 
loans. The majority of these loans have been made to individuals and businesses in the Company’s market area of southeastern 
Louisiana and southern Mississippi, which are dependent on the area economy for their livelihoods and servicing of their loan 
obligations. The Company does not have any significant concentrations to any one industry or customer.

The Company maintains deposits in other financial institutions that may, from time to time, exceed the federally insured 
deposit limits.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the amount in the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheet caption, cash and due from banks, which represents cash on hand and balances due from other financial institutions, as 
well as the amount in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet caption, short-term investments, which primarily represents 
federal funds sold with original maturities less than three months.

Investment Securities

Investment securities are classified either as held to maturity or available for sale. Management determines the classification of 
securities when they are purchased.

Investment securities that the Company has the ability and positive intent to hold to maturity are classified as securities held to 
maturity and are stated at amortized cost. The amortized cost of debt securities classified as held to maturity or available for 
sale is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts over the contractual life of the security using the 
effective interest method or, in the case of mortgage-backed securities, over the estimated life of the security using the effective 
yield method. Such amortization or accretion is included in interest income on securities.

Securities that may be sold in response to changes in interest rates, liquidity needs, or asset liability management strategies are 
classified as securities available for sale. These securities are carried at fair value, with net unrealized gains or losses excluded 
from earnings and shown as a separate component of shareholders’ equity in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income, 
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net of income taxes. Any expected credit loss due to the inability to collect all amounts due accordingly to the security’s 
contractual terms is recognized as a charge against earnings. Any remaining unrealized loss related to other factors is 
recognized in other comprehensive income, net of taxes.

Realized gains and losses on both held to maturity securities and available for sale securities are computed based on the 
specific-identification method. Realized gains and losses and declines in value judged to be other than temporary are included 
in net securities gains and losses.

Unrealized losses on securities are evaluated to determine if the losses are temporary, based on various factors, including the 
cause of the loss, prospects for recovery, projected cash flows, collateral values, credit enhancements and other relevant factors, 
and management’s intent and ability not to sell the security until the fair value exceeds amortized cost. A charge is recognized 
against earnings for all or a portion of the impairment if the loss is determined to be other than temporary.

Investment in Short-Term Receivables

The Company invests in short-term receivables which are purchased on an exchange. These short-term receivables have 
repayment terms of less than a year. The investments are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets at cost plus accreted 
discount.

Mortgage Loans Held for Sale

Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair value, 
in the aggregate. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance that is recorded as a charge to 
income. Loans held for sale have primarily been fixed-rate, single-family residential mortgage loans under contract to be sold 
in the secondary market. In most cases, loans in this category are sold within 120 days. These loans are sold with the mortgage 
servicing rights released. Buyers generally have recourse to return a purchased loan to the Company under limited 
circumstances which may include early payment default, breach of representations or warranties, and documentation 
deficiencies. During 2014 and 2013, an insignificant number of loans were returned to the Company.

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered or in the case of a loan 
participation, a portion of the asset has been surrendered and meets the definition of a "participating interest". Control over 
transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when 1) the assets have been isolated from the Company, 2) the transferee 
obtains the right, free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right, to pledge or exchange the transferred 
assets, and 3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase 
them before their maturity. Should the transfer not meet these three criteria, the transaction is treated as a secured financing. 

Loans

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are stated at the 
principal amount outstanding, net of unamortized fees and costs on originated loans and allowances for loan losses. Loan 
origination fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and amortized over the lives of the respective loans as a 
yield adjustment using the effective interest method.

Interest income on loans is accrued as earned using the interest method over the life of the loan. Interest on loans deemed 
uncollectible is excluded from income. The accrual of interest is discontinued and reversed against current income once loans 
become more than 90 days past due or earlier if conditions warrant. The past due status of loans is determined based on the 
contractual terms. If the decision is made to continue accruing interest on the loan, periodic reviews are made to confirm the 
accruing status of the loan. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, interest accrued and unpaid during prior periods is 
reversed. Generally, any payments on nonaccrual loans are applied first to outstanding loan principal amounts and then to the 
recovery of the charged-off loan amounts. Any excess is treated as recovery of lost interest and fees. Loans are returned to 
accrual status after a minimum of six consecutive monthly payments have been made in a timely manner.

The Company considers a loan to be impaired when, based upon current information and events, it believes it is probable that 
the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. The 
Company’s impaired loans include troubled debt restructurings (TDRs) and performing and nonperforming loans for which full 
payment of principal or interest is not expected. The Company calculates a reserve required for impaired loans based on the 
present value of expected future cash flows discounted using the loan’s effective interest rate or the fair value of the collateral 
securing the loan.

Third-party property valuations are obtained at the time of origination for real estate-secured loans. The Company obtains 
updated appraisals on all impaired loans at least annually. In addition, if an intervening event occurs that, in management’s 
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opinion, would suggest further deterioration in value, the Company obtains an updated appraisal. These policies do not vary 
based on loan type. Any exposure arising from the deterioration in value of collateral evidenced by the appraisal is recorded as 
an adjustment to the loan loss reserve in the case of an impaired loan or as an adjustment to income in the case of foreclosed 
property.

Troubled Debt Restructurings

The Company periodically grants concessions to its customers in an attempt to protect as much of its investment as possible 
and minimize the risk of loss. These concessions may include restructuring the terms of a customer loan, thereby adjusting the 
customer’s payment requirements. In order to be considered a TDR, the Company must conclude that the restructuring 
constitutes a concession and the customer is experiencing financial difficulties. The Company defines a concession to a 
customer as a modification of existing loan terms for economic or legal reasons that it would otherwise not consider. 
Concessions are typically granted through an agreement with the customer or are imposed by a court of law. Concessions 
include modifying original loan terms to reduce or defer cash payments required as part of the loan agreement, including but 
not limited to: 

• A reduction of the stated interest rate for the remaining original life of the debt

• Extension of the maturity date or dates at a stated interest rate lower than the current market rate for new debt with similar 
risk characteristics

• Reduction of the face amount or maturity amount of the debt as stated in the agreement

• Reduction of accrued interest receivable on the debt

In its determination of whether the customer is experiencing financial difficulties, the Company considers numerous indicators, 
including but not limited to: 

• Whether the customer is currently in default on its existing loan or is in an economic position where it is probable the 
customer will be in default on its loan in the foreseeable future without a modification

• Whether the customer has declared or is in the process of declaring bankruptcy

• Whether there is substantial doubt about the customer’s ability to continue as a going concern

• Whether, based on its projections of the customer’s current capabilities, the Company believes the customer’s future cash 
flows will be insufficient to service the debt, including interest, in accordance with the contractual terms of the existing 
agreement for the foreseeable future

• Whether, without modification, the customer cannot obtain sufficient funds from other sources at an effective interest rate 
equal to the current market rate for similar debt for a nontroubled debtor

If the Company concludes that both a concession has been granted and the concession was granted to a customer experiencing 
financial difficulties, the Company identifies the loan as a TDR. For purposes of the determination of an allowance for loan 
losses on these TDRs, the loan is reviewed for specific impairment in accordance with the Company’s allowance for loan loss 
methodology. If it is determined that losses are probable on such TDRs, either because of delinquency or other credit quality 
indicators, the Company establishes specific reserves for these loans.

Acquisition Accounting for Loans

The Company accounts for business acquisitions in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 805, Business Combinations, which requires the use of the acquisition method of 
accounting. All identifiable assets acquired, including loans, are recorded at fair value. The fair value of loans that do not have 
deteriorated credit quality are accounted for in accordance with ASC 310-20, Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs, and is 
represented by the expected cash flows from the portfolio discounted at current market rates. In estimating the cash flows, the 
Company makes assumptions about the amount and timing of principal and interest payments, estimated prepayments, 
estimated default rates, estimated loss severities in the event of defaults, and current market rates. The fair value adjustment is 
amortized over the life of the loan using the effective interest method. The Company accounts for certain acquired loans with 
deteriorated credit quality under ASC 310-30, Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality. In 
accordance with ASC 310-30 and in estimating the fair value of loans with deteriorated credit quality as of the acquisition date, 
the Company: (a) calculates the contractual amount and timing of undiscounted principal and interest payments (the 
undiscounted contractual cash flows), and (b) estimates the amount and timing of undiscounted expected principal and interest 
payments (the undiscounted expected cash flows). The difference between the undiscounted contractual cash flows and the 
undiscounted expected cash flows is the nonaccretable difference. On the acquisition date, the amount by which the 
undiscounted expected cash flows exceed the estimated fair value of the loans with deteriorated credit quality is the accretable 
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accounting. All identifiable assets acquired, including loans, are recorded at fair value. The fair value of loans that do not have 
deteriorated credit quality are accounted for in accordance with ASC 310-20, Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs, and is 
represented by the expected cash flows from the portfolio discounted at current market rates. In estimating the cash flows, the 
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amortized over the life of the loan using the effective interest method. The Company accounts for certain acquired loans with 
deteriorated credit quality under ASC 310-30, Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality. In 
accordance with ASC 310-30 and in estimating the fair value of loans with deteriorated credit quality as of the acquisition date, 
the Company: (a) calculates the contractual amount and timing of undiscounted principal and interest payments (the 
undiscounted contractual cash flows), and (b) estimates the amount and timing of undiscounted expected principal and interest 
payments (the undiscounted expected cash flows). The difference between the undiscounted contractual cash flows and the 
undiscounted expected cash flows is the nonaccretable difference. On the acquisition date, the amount by which the 
undiscounted expected cash flows exceed the estimated fair value of the loans with deteriorated credit quality is the accretable 
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yield. The accretable yield is recorded into interest income over the estimated lives of the loans using the effective yield 
method. The accretable yield changes over time as actual and expected cash flows vary from the estimated cash flows at 
acquisition. Decreases in expected cash flows subsequent to acquisition result in recognition of a provision for loan loss. The 
accretable yield is measured at each financial reporting date and represents the difference between the remaining undiscounted 
expected cash flows and the current carrying value of the loans. The remaining undiscounted expected cash flows are 
calculated at each financial reporting date, based on information currently available. Increases in expected cash flows over 
those originally estimated increase the accretable yield and are recognized prospectively as interest income. Increases in 
expected cash flows may also lead to the reduction of any allowance for loan losses recorded after the acquisition. Decreases in 
expected cash flows compared to those originally estimated decrease the accretable yield and are recognized by recording an 
allowance for loan losses. As the accretable yield increases or decreases from changes in cash flow expectations, the offset is an 
increase or decrease to the nonaccretable difference. There is no carryover of allowance for loan losses, as the loans acquired 
are initially recorded at fair value as of the date of acquisition.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses represents an estimate that management believes will be adequate to absorb probable incurred 
losses on existing loans in its portfolio at the balance sheet date. The allowance is based on an evaluation of the collectability of 
loans and prior loss experience, including both industry and Company specific considerations. While management uses 
available information to make loan loss allowance evaluations, adjustments to the allowance may be necessary based on 
changes in economic and other conditions or changes in accounting guidance. See Note 6 for an analysis of the Company’s 
allowance for loan losses by portfolio and portfolio segment, and credit quality information by class.

Management has an established methodology to determine the allowance for loan losses that assesses the risks and losses 
inherent in its portfolio and portfolio segments. The Company utilizes an internally developed model that requires significant 
judgment to determine the estimation method that fits the credit risk characteristics of the loans in its portfolio and portfolio 
segments. The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses charged to expense. A similar 
methodology and model is utilized by the Company to calculate a reserve assigned to off-balance sheet commitments, 
specifically unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit, and any needed reserve is recorded in other liabilities. The 
appropriateness of the allowance for loan losses is determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

The Company’s loan portfolio is disaggregated into portfolio segments for purposes of determining the allowance for loan 
losses. The Company’s portfolio segments include commercial real estate, consumer real estate, commercial and industrial, and 
consumer loans. The Company further disaggregates the commercial and consumer real estate portfolio segments into classes 
for purposes of monitoring and assessing credit quality based on certain risk characteristics. Classes within each commercial 
real estate portfolio segment include commercial real estate construction and commercial real estate mortgage. Classes within 
each consumer real estate portfolio segment include consumer real estate construction and consumer real estate mortgage.

Loans are charged off against the allowance for loan losses when management believes that the collectability of the principal is 
unlikely. The allowance for loan losses consists of specific and general reserves. The Company determines specific reserves 
based on the provisions of ASC 310, Receivables. The Company’s allowance for loan losses includes a measure of impairment 
for those loans specifically identified for evaluation under the topic. This measurement is based on a comparison of the 
recorded investment in the loan with either the expected cash flows discounted using the loan’s original contractual effective 
interest rate or the fair value of the collateral underlying certain collateral-dependent loans. Collectability of principal and 
interest is evaluated in assessing the need for a loss accrual. Loans identified as impaired are individually evaluated periodically 
for impairment.

General reserves are based on management’s evaluation of many factors and reflect an estimated measurement of losses related 
to loans not individually evaluated for impairment. These loans are grouped into portfolio segments. The loss rates are derived 
from historical loss factors of the Company or the industry sustained on loans according to their risk grade, as well as 
qualitative and economic factors, and may be adjusted for Company-specific factors. Loss rates are reviewed quarterly and 
adjusted as management deems necessary based on changing borrower and/or collateral conditions and actual collections and 
charge-off experience.

Based on observations made through a qualitative review, management may apply qualitative adjustments to the quantitatively 
determined loss estimates at a group and/or portfolio segment level as deemed appropriate. Primary qualitative and 
environmental factors that may not be directly reflected in quantitative estimates include:

• Asset quality trends

• Changes in lending policies

• Trends in the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, including the existence and effect of any portfolio concentrations
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• Changes in experience and depth of lending staff

• National and regional economic trends

Changes in these factors are considered in determining the directional consistency of changes in the allowance for loan losses. 
The impact of these factors on the Company’s qualitative assessment of the allowance for loan losses can change from period 
to period based on management’s assessment to the extent to which these factors are already reflected in historic loss rates. The 
uncertainty inherent in the estimation process is also considered in evaluating the allowance for loan losses.

Off-Balance-Sheet

Credit-Related Financial Instruments

The Company accounts for its guarantees in accordance with the provisions of ASC 460, Guarantees. In the ordinary course of 
business, the Company has entered into commitments to extend credit, including commitments under credit card agreements, 
and standby letters of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded when they are funded.

Derivative Financial Instruments

ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, requires that all derivatives be recognized as assets or liabilities in the balance sheet at fair 
value. The Company may enter into derivative contracts to manage exposure to interest rate risk or meet the financing and/or 
investing needs of its customers.

In the course of its business operations, the Company is exposed to certain risks, including interest rate, liquidity, and credit 
risk. The Company manages its risks through the use of derivative financial instruments, primarily through management of 
exposure due to the receipt or payment of future cash amounts based on interest rates. The Company’s derivative financial 
instruments manage the differences in the timing, amount, and duration of expected cash receipts and payments.

Derivatives which are designated and qualify as a hedge of the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows or other 
types of forecasted transactions are considered cash flow hedges. The Company prepares written hedge documentation for all 
derivatives which are designated as cash flow hedges. The written hedge documentation includes identification of, among other 
items, the risk management objective, hedging instrument, hedged item and methodologies for assessing and measuring hedge 
effectiveness and ineffectiveness, along with support for management’s assertion that the hedge will be highly effective.  These 
methods are consistent with the Company’s approach to managing risk. The Company reports these net in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets when the Company has a master netting arrangement. As of December 31, 2014, there were net 
amounts reported. 

For designated hedging relationships, the Company performs retrospective and prospective effectiveness testing to determine 
whether the hedging relationship has been highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items and whether the 
relationship is expected to continue to be highly effective in the future. Assessments of hedge effectiveness and measurements 
of hedge ineffectiveness are performed at least quarterly. The effective portion of the changes in the fair value of a derivative 
that is highly effective and that has been designated and qualifies as a cash flow hedge are initially recorded in accumulated 
other comprehensive income and reclassified to earnings in the same period that the hedged item impacts earnings or when the 
hedging relationship is terminated; any ineffective portion is recorded in earnings immediately.

Hedge accounting ceases on transactions that are no longer deemed effective, or for which the derivative has been terminated or 
de-designated. For discontinued cash flow hedges, the unrealized gains and losses recorded in accumulated other 
comprehensive income would be reclassified to earnings during the period or periods in which the previously designated 
hedged cash flows affect earnings (straight-line amortization/accretion) unless it was determined that the transaction was 
probable to not occur, whereby any unrealized gains and losses in accumulated other comprehensive income would be 
immediately reclassified to earnings. Note 18 describes the derivative instruments currently used by the Company and discloses 
how these derivatives impact the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost. Buildings, furniture, fixtures, and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and 
amortization. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated life of each respective type of asset as 
follows:

Buildings 40 years
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 5 - 15 years
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Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the periods of the leases, including options expected 
to be exercised, or the estimated useful lives, whichever is shorter. Gains and losses on disposition and maintenance and repairs 
are included in current operations. Rental expense on leased property is recognized on a straight-line basis over the original 
lease term plus options that management expects to exercise. Fixed rental increases that are determinable are expensed over the 
lease period, including any option periods which are expected to be exercised, using a straight-line lease expense method.

Other Real Estate

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are recorded at a new cost basis determined at the 
date of foreclosure as the lower of cost or fair value less estimated cost to sell. Cost is defined as the recorded investment in the 
loan. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuation allowances are established for any decreases in the estimate of the asset’s fair value 
or selling costs, but not in excess of its new cost basis. Revenues and expenses from operations and changes in the valuation 
allowance are included in current earnings.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other, and, accordingly, is not amortized 
but is evaluated at least annually for impairment. As part of its annual impairment testing, the Company first assesses 
qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying 
amount. If the Company determines the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount using these qualitative 
factors, the Company compares the fair value of goodwill with its carrying amount and then measures impairment loss by 
comparing the implied fair value of goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill.

Definite-lived intangible assets, which consist of core deposit intangibles, are amortized on a straight-line basis over their 
useful lives and evaluated at least annually for impairment.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are established for the 
temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities using 
enacted tax rates expected to be in effect during the year in which the basis differences reverse.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
requires the Company to report information regarding its exposure to various tax positions taken by the Company. The 
Company has determined whether any tax positions have met the recognition threshold and has measured the Company’s 
exposure to those tax positions. Management believes that the Company has adequately addressed all relevant tax positions and 
that there are no unrecorded tax liabilities. Any interest or penalties assessed to the Company are recorded in operating 
expenses. No interest or penalties from any taxing authorities were recorded in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements. Federal, state, and local taxing authorities generally have the right to examine and audit the previous three years of 
tax returns filed.

The Company is also required to reduce its tax basis of the investment in certain of the projects that generated the Federal 
NMTC or Federal Historic Rehabilitation tax credits by the amount of the credit generated in that year based on the taxable 
entity structure of the investee.

Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling interests include $2 thousand at December 31, 2014 and 2013 and $1 thousand at December 31, 2012, of 
common stock held by unrelated parties in various tax credit-related subsidiaries, which have activities solely related to 
generating the tax credits.

In 2012, $1.6 million of noncumulative, perpetual preferred stock held by unrelated parties of the Bank was redeemed and 
noncontrolling interests were reduced by that amount. The stock had been assumed by the Bank in a prior acquisition.

Investments in Real Estate Properties

FNBC CDC invests in real estate properties, which are carried at cost. Costs of construction are capitalized during the 
construction period and do not include interest. The Company periodically obtains as-is appraisals to determine the 
recoverability of its investments for which it intends to sell. For properties the Company intends to hold, the Company assesses 
recoverability based on the cash flows of the underlying properties.
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Investments in Tax Credit Entities

As part of its Community Reinvestment Act responsibilities and due to their favorable economics, the Company invests in tax 
credit-motivated projects. These projects are directed at tax credits issued under Low-Income Housing, Federal Historic 
Rehabilitation, and Federal New Markets Tax Credits. The Company generates its returns on tax credit motivated projects 
through the receipt of federal, and if applicable, state tax credits. The federal tax credits are recorded as an offset to the income 
tax provision in the year that they are earned under federal income tax law – over 10 to 15 years, beginning in the year in which 
rental activity commences for Low-Income Housing credits, in the year of the issuance of the certificate of occupancy and the 
property is placed into service for Federal Historic Rehabilitation credits, and over 7 years for Federal NMTC upon the 
investment of funds into the CDE. These credits, if not used in the tax return for the year of origination, can be carried forward 
for 20 years.

For Low-Income Housing and Federal Historic Rehabilitation credits, the Company invests in a tax credit entity, usually a 
limited liability company, which owns the real estate. The Company receives a 99.99% nonvoting interest in the entity for Low-
Income Housing investments and 99% for Federal Historic Rehabilitation investments that must be retained during the 
compliance period for the credits (15 years for Low-Income Housing credits and 5 years for Federal Historic Rehabilitation 
credits). In most cases, the Company’s interest in the entity is generally reduced from a 99.99% and 99% interest to a 5% to 
25% interest at the end of the compliance period. Control of the tax credit entity rests in the .01% and 1% interest general 
partner, who has the power and authority to make decisions that impact economic performance of the project and is required to 
oversee and manage the project. Due to the lack of any voting, economic or managerial control and due to the contractual 
reduction in its ownership, the Company accounts for its investment in Low-Income Housing and Federal Historic 
Rehabilitation credits by amortizing its investment, beginning in the year of the issuance of the certificate of occupancy and 
when the property is placed into service, over the compliance or contract period, as management believes any potential residual 
value in the real estate will have limited value.

For Federal NMTC, a different structure is required by federal tax law. In order to distribute Federal NMTC, the federal 
government allocates such credits to CDEs. The Company invests in both CDEs formed by unaffiliated parties and in CDEs 
formed by the Company. Projects must be commercial or real estate operations and are qualified by their location in low- 
income areas or by their employment of, or service to, low-income citizens. A CDE, in most cases, creates a special-purpose 
subsidiary for each project through which the credits are allocated and through which the proceeds from the tax credit investor 
and a leverage lender, if applicable, flow through to the project, which in turn generate the credit. The credits are calculated at 
39% of the total CDE allocation to the project at the rate of 5% for the first three years and 6% for the next four years. Federal 
tax law requires special terms benefiting the qualified project, which can include below-market interest rates. The Company 
expenses the cost of any benefits provided to the project over the seven-year compliance period. When the Company also has a 
loan, commonly called a leveraged loan, to the project, it is carried in loans, as the Company has normal credit exposure to the 
project and is repaid at the end of the compliance period (in general, the debt has no principal payments during the compliance 
period but the Company may require the project to fund a sinking fund over the compliance period to achieve the same risk 
reduction effect as if principal is being amortized).

When the Company is the tax credit investor in a CDE formed by an unaffiliated party, it has no control of the applicable CDE 
or the CDE’s special-purpose subsidiary. When a project is funded through FNBC CDE, the Company consolidates its CDE 
and the specifically formed special-purpose entities since it maintains control over these entities. As part of the activities of 
FNBC CDE, the Company makes investments in the CDE for purposes of providing equity to the projects sponsored by the 
FNBC CDE.

The Company has the risk of credit recapture if the project fails during the compliance period for Low-Income Housing and 
Federal Historic Rehabilitation transactions. For Federal NMTC transactions, the risk of credit recapture exists if investment 
requirements are not maintained during the compliance period. Such events, although rare, are accounted for when they occur 
and no such events have occurred to date.
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VIEs are entities that, in general, either do not have equity investors with voting rights or that have equity investors that do not 
provide sufficient financial resources for the entity to support its activities. The Company uses VIEs in various legal forms to 
conduct normal business activities. The Company reviews the structure and activities of VIEs for possible consolidation.

A controlling financial interest in a VIE is present when an enterprise has both the power to direct the activities of the VIE that 
most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of the VIE that could potentially 
be significant to the VIE or the right to receive benefits of the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE. A VIE often 
holds financial assets, including loans or receivables, real estate, or other property. The company with a controlling financial 
interest, known as the primary beneficiary, is required to consolidate the VIE. Noncontrolling variable interests in certain 
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Investments in Tax Credit Entities

As part of its Community Reinvestment Act responsibilities and due to their favorable economics, the Company invests in tax 
credit-motivated projects. These projects are directed at tax credits issued under Low-Income Housing, Federal Historic 
Rehabilitation, and Federal New Markets Tax Credits. The Company generates its returns on tax credit motivated projects 
through the receipt of federal, and if applicable, state tax credits. The federal tax credits are recorded as an offset to the income 
tax provision in the year that they are earned under federal income tax law – over 10 to 15 years, beginning in the year in which 
rental activity commences for Low-Income Housing credits, in the year of the issuance of the certificate of occupancy and the 
property is placed into service for Federal Historic Rehabilitation credits, and over 7 years for Federal NMTC upon the 
investment of funds into the CDE. These credits, if not used in the tax return for the year of origination, can be carried forward 
for 20 years.

For Low-Income Housing and Federal Historic Rehabilitation credits, the Company invests in a tax credit entity, usually a 
limited liability company, which owns the real estate. The Company receives a 99.99% nonvoting interest in the entity for Low-
Income Housing investments and 99% for Federal Historic Rehabilitation investments that must be retained during the 
compliance period for the credits (15 years for Low-Income Housing credits and 5 years for Federal Historic Rehabilitation 
credits). In most cases, the Company’s interest in the entity is generally reduced from a 99.99% and 99% interest to a 5% to 
25% interest at the end of the compliance period. Control of the tax credit entity rests in the .01% and 1% interest general 
partner, who has the power and authority to make decisions that impact economic performance of the project and is required to 
oversee and manage the project. Due to the lack of any voting, economic or managerial control and due to the contractual 
reduction in its ownership, the Company accounts for its investment in Low-Income Housing and Federal Historic 
Rehabilitation credits by amortizing its investment, beginning in the year of the issuance of the certificate of occupancy and 
when the property is placed into service, over the compliance or contract period, as management believes any potential residual 
value in the real estate will have limited value.

For Federal NMTC, a different structure is required by federal tax law. In order to distribute Federal NMTC, the federal 
government allocates such credits to CDEs. The Company invests in both CDEs formed by unaffiliated parties and in CDEs 
formed by the Company. Projects must be commercial or real estate operations and are qualified by their location in low- 
income areas or by their employment of, or service to, low-income citizens. A CDE, in most cases, creates a special-purpose 
subsidiary for each project through which the credits are allocated and through which the proceeds from the tax credit investor 
and a leverage lender, if applicable, flow through to the project, which in turn generate the credit. The credits are calculated at 
39% of the total CDE allocation to the project at the rate of 5% for the first three years and 6% for the next four years. Federal 
tax law requires special terms benefiting the qualified project, which can include below-market interest rates. The Company 
expenses the cost of any benefits provided to the project over the seven-year compliance period. When the Company also has a 
loan, commonly called a leveraged loan, to the project, it is carried in loans, as the Company has normal credit exposure to the 
project and is repaid at the end of the compliance period (in general, the debt has no principal payments during the compliance 
period but the Company may require the project to fund a sinking fund over the compliance period to achieve the same risk 
reduction effect as if principal is being amortized).

When the Company is the tax credit investor in a CDE formed by an unaffiliated party, it has no control of the applicable CDE 
or the CDE’s special-purpose subsidiary. When a project is funded through FNBC CDE, the Company consolidates its CDE 
and the specifically formed special-purpose entities since it maintains control over these entities. As part of the activities of 
FNBC CDE, the Company makes investments in the CDE for purposes of providing equity to the projects sponsored by the 
FNBC CDE.

The Company has the risk of credit recapture if the project fails during the compliance period for Low-Income Housing and 
Federal Historic Rehabilitation transactions. For Federal NMTC transactions, the risk of credit recapture exists if investment 
requirements are not maintained during the compliance period. Such events, although rare, are accounted for when they occur 
and no such events have occurred to date.

Variable Interest Entities

VIEs are entities that, in general, either do not have equity investors with voting rights or that have equity investors that do not 
provide sufficient financial resources for the entity to support its activities. The Company uses VIEs in various legal forms to 
conduct normal business activities. The Company reviews the structure and activities of VIEs for possible consolidation.

A controlling financial interest in a VIE is present when an enterprise has both the power to direct the activities of the VIE that 
most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of the VIE that could potentially 
be significant to the VIE or the right to receive benefits of the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE. A VIE often 
holds financial assets, including loans or receivables, real estate, or other property. The company with a controlling financial 
interest, known as the primary beneficiary, is required to consolidate the VIE. Noncontrolling variable interests in certain 

69

limited partnerships for which it does not absorb a majority of expected losses or receive a majority of expected residual returns  
are not included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Refer to Notes 12 and 13 for further detail.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had a stock-based employee compensation plan, which provides for the 
issuance of stock options and restricted stock. The Company accounts for stock-based employee compensation in accordance 
with the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718, Compensation—Stock Compensation. Compensation cost is recognized 
as expense over the service period, which is generally the vesting period of the options and restricted stock. The expense is 
reduced for estimated forfeitures over the vesting period and adjusted for actual forfeitures as they occur. As a result, 
compensation cost for all share-based payments is reflected in net income as part of salaries and employee benefits in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of income. See Note 24 for additional information on the Company’s stock-based 
compensation plans.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share is computed based upon net income attributable to common shareholders divided by the 
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per common share is computed 
based upon net income, adjusted for dilutive participating securities, divided by the weighted-average number of common 
shares outstanding during each period and adjusted for the effect of dilutive potential common shares calculated using the 
treasury stock method and the assumed conversion for any dilutive convertible securities. In determining net income 
attributable to common shareholders, the net income attributable to participating securities is excluded. The Company issued 
Series C preferred stock in 2011, which is considered a participating security because it shares in any dividends paid to 
common shareholders. The assumed conversion of the Series C preferred stock is excluded from the calculation of diluted 
earnings per share due to the fact that the shares are contingently issuable and the contingency still existed at the end of the 
year.

Comprehensive Income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains, and losses be included in net income. 
Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities and cash 
flow hedges, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the balance sheet; such items, along with net income, 
are components of comprehensive income.

Segments

All of the Company’s banking operations are considered by management to be aggregated in one reportable operating segment. 
Because the overall banking operations comprise substantially all of the consolidated operations and none of the Company’s 
other subsidiaries, either individually or in the aggregate, meet quantitative materiality thresholds, no separate segment 
disclosures are presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

ASU No. 2014-01

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-01, Investments-Equity Method and Joint Ventures (Topic 323): Accounting 
for Investments in Qualified Affordable Housing Projects, which permits reporting entities to make an accounting policy 
election to account for their investments in qualified affordable housing projects using the proportional amortization method if 
certain conditions are met. Under the proportional amortization method, an entity amortizes the initial cost of the investment in 
proportion to the tax credits and other tax benefits received and recognizes the net investment performance in the income 
statement as a component of income tax expense (benefit). This ASU applies to all reporting entities that invest in qualified 
affordable housing projects through limited liability entities that are flow-through entities for tax purposes. The provisions of 
this ASU should be applied retrospectively to all periods presented for periods beginning after December 15, 2014, with early 
adoption permitted. The Company is evaluating the adoption of this ASU and has not determined the impact on the Company's 
financial condition or results of operations.

ASU No. 2014-04

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-04, Receivables-Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors (Subtopic 
310-40): Reclassification of Residential Real Estate Collateralized Consumer Mortgage Loans upon Foreclosure, which 
clarifies when an insubstance repossession or foreclosure occurs, that is, when a creditor should be considered to have received 
physical possession of residential real estate property collateralizing a consumer mortgage loan such that the loan receivable 
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should be derecognized and the real estate property recognized. The ASU requires a creditor to reclassify a collateralized 
consumer mortgage loan to real estate property upon obtaining legal title to the residential real estate property, or the borrower 
conveying all interest in the residential real estate property through completion of a deed in lieu of foreclosure or similar legal 
agreement. The provisions of this ASU are effective for all periods beginning after December 15, 2014. The adoption of this 
guidance is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations. 

ASU No. 2014-09

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 205): An Amendment of the 
FASB Accounting Standards Codification, which clarifies the principles for recognizing revenue from contracts with customers. 
The new accounting guidance, which does not apply to financial instruments, is effective on a retrospective basis for annual 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, with early adoption not permitted. The Company does not expect the 
new guidance to have a material impact on the Company's financial condition or results of operations. 

ASU No. 2014-11

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-11 Transfers and Servicing (Topic 860): Repurchase-to-Maturity Transactions, 
Repurchase Financings, and Disclosures, which requires separate accounting for a transfer of a financial asset executed 
contemporaneously with a repurchase agreement with the same counterparty that will result in secured borrowing accounting 
for the repurchase agreement. The ASU requires new disclosures for repurchase agreements, securities lending transactions and 
repurchase-to-maturity transactions that are accounted for as secured borrowings. These disclosures include information about 
the types of assets pledged and the relationship between those assets and the related obligation to return the proceeds. The ASU 
also requires new disclosures for transfers of financial assets that are accounted for as sales that involve an agreement with the 
transferee entered into in contemplation of the initial transfer that result in the transferor retaining substantially all of the 
exposure to the economic return on the transferred financial assets throughout the term of the transaction. The accounting and 
disclosure changes are effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2014. The Company is evaluating the 
adoption of this ASU and has not determined the impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

ASU No. 2014-12

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-12 Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Accounting for Share-Based 
Payments When the Terms of an Award Provide That a Performance Target Could be Achieved after the Requisite Service 
Period, which requires that a performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved after the requisite service 
period be treated as a performance condition. ASU 2014-12 is intended to resolve the diverse accounting treatments of these 
types of awards in practice and is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2015. The Company 
does not expect the new guidance to have a material impact on the Company's financial condition or results of operations.

ASU No. 2014-13 

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-13, Consolidation (Topic 810): Measuring the Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities of a Consolidated Collateralized Financing Entity, which will allow an alternative fair value measurement approach 
for consolidated collateralized financing entities (CFEs) to eliminate a practice issue that results in measuring the fair value of a 
CFE’s financial assets at a different amount from the fair value of its financial liabilities even when the financial liabilities have 
recourse to only the financial assets. The approach would permit the parent company of a consolidated CFE to measure the 
CFE’s financial assets and financial liabilities based on the more observable of the fair value of the financial assets and the fair 
value of the financial liabilities. The new accounting guidance is for the annual period ending after December 15, 2015, and for 
annual periods and interim periods thereafter, with early application permitted as of the beginning of an annual period. The 
Company does not expect the new guidance to have a material impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of 
operations. 

ASU No. 2014-14 

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-14, Receivables - Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors (Subtopic 
310-40): Classification of Certain Government-Guaranteed Mortgage Loans upon Foreclosure, which will require creditors to 
derecognize certain foreclosed government-guaranteed mortgage loans and to recognize a separate other receivable that is 
measured at the amount the creditor expects to recover from the guarantor, and to treat the guarantee and the receivable as a 
single unit of account. The new accounting guidance is effective on a prospective or a modified retrospective transition method 
for annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2014, with early 
adoption permitted. The Company does not expect the new guidance to have a material impact on the Company's financial 
condition or results of operations. 
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ASU No. 2014-15

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40): 
Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern, which will require management to assess 
an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern by incorporating and expanding upon certain principles that are currently in 
U.S. auditing standards in connection with preparing financial statements for each annual and interim reporting period. The 
new accounting guidance is for the annual period ending after December 15, 2016, and for annual periods and interim periods 
thereafter, with early application permitted. The Company does not expect the new guidance to have a material impact on the 
Company's financial condition or results of operations. 

2. Earnings Per Share

The following sets forth the computation of basic net income per common share and diluted net income per common share:

 Year Ended December 31,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2014 2013 2012

Basic: Income available to common shareholders $ 54,144 $ 38,584 $ 26,431

Weighted-average common shares outstanding 18,541 16,204 12,953

Basic earnings per share $ 2.92 $ 2.38 $ 2.04

Diluted: Income attributable to common shareholders $ 54,144 $ 38,584 $ 26,431
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 18,541 16,204 12,953
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options outstanding 389 337 109
Warrants 119 83 52

Weighted-average common shares outstanding – assuming dilution 19,049 16,624 13,114

Diluted earnings per share $ 2.84 $ 2.32 $ 2.02

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the calculation of diluted earnings per share outstanding excludes the effects from the 
assumed exercise of 87,059 shares of warrants and 264,000 shares of stock options outstanding. These amounts would have had 
an antidilutive effect on earnings per share.

3. Cash and Due From Banks

The Company is required to maintain reserve requirements with the Federal Reserve Bank. The requirement is dependent upon 
the Bank’s cash on hand and transaction deposit account balances. The reserve requirements at December 31, 2014 and 2013, 
were $9.3 million and $10.1 million, respectively.

4. Investment in Short-Term Receivables

The Company invests in short-term trade receivables purchased on an exchange, which are covered by a repurchase agreement 
from the seller of the receivables, if not paid within a specified period. Since the receivables are traded on an exchange, the 
Company has the ability to resell the receivables on the exchange. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had 
$237.1 million and $246.8 million, respectively in purchased receivables.
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5. Investment Securities

The amortized cost and market values of investment securities, with gross unrealized gains and losses, as of December 31, 
2014 and December 31, 2013, were as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2014
 

Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross Unrealized Losses
Estimated

Market Value 
Less Than
One Year

Greater Than
One Year

Available for sale:
U.S. government agency securities $ 161,461 $ 891 $ — $ (4,825) $ 157,527
U.S. Treasury securities 13,019 — — (409) 12,610
Municipal securities 12,175 107 (36) — 12,246
Mortgage-backed securities 57,025 635 (137) (436) 57,087
Corporate bonds 8,263 — — (86) 8,177

$ 251,943 $ 1,633 $ (173) $ (5,756) $ 247,647
Held to maturity:

Municipal securities $ 41,255 $ 2,182 $ (62) $ — $ 43,375
Mortgage-backed securities 47,821 1,098 (208) (1,130) 47,581

$ 89,076 $ 3,280 $ (270) $ (1,130) $ 90,956

December 31, 2013
 

Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross Unrealized Losses
Estimated

Market Value 
Less Than
One Year

Greater Than
One Year

Available for sale:
U.S. government agency securities $ 163,964 $ 81 $ (10,991) $ (1,731) $ 151,323
U.S. Treasury securities 13,022 — (873) — 12,149
Municipal securities 23,240 140 (213) — 23,167
Mortgage-backed securities 57,010 447 (1,897) (16) 55,544
Corporate bonds 37,023 395 (1,677) (205) 35,536

$ 294,259 $ 1,063 $ (15,651) $ (1,952) $ 277,719
Held to maturity:

Municipal securities $ 44,294 $ 94 $ (398) $ — $ 43,990
Mortgage-backed securities 50,610 12 (3,646) — 46,976

$ 94,904 $ 106 $ (4,044) $ — $ 90,966

During 2013, the Company transferred securities with a fair value of $95.4 million from available-for-sale to held to maturity. 
Management determined that it has both the positive intent and ability to hold these securities until maturity. The reclassified 
securities consisted of municipal and mortgage-backed securities and were transferred due to movements in interest rates. The 
securities were reclassified at fair value at the time of the transfer and represented a non-cash transaction. Accumulated other 
comprehensive income included pre-tax unrealized losses of $5.9 million on these securities at the date of the transfer. As of 
December 31, 2014, $5.2 million of pre-tax unrealized losses on these securities were included in accumulated other 
comprehensive income. These unrealized losses and offsetting other comprehensive income components are being amortized 
into net interest income over the remaining life of the related securities as a yield adjustment, resulting in no impact on future 
net income.
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At December 31, 2014, the Company’s exposure to three investment security issuers individually exceeded 10% of 
shareholders’ equity (in thousands):

Amortized
Cost

Estimated
Market Value

Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) $ 92,205 $ 90,366
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 74,442 73,623
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac) 55,979 54,875

$ 222,626 $ 218,864

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had 38 securities that were in a loss position. The unrealized losses for each of the 38 
securities relate to market interest rate changes. The Company has considered the current market for the securities in a loss 
position, as well as the severity and duration of the impairments, and expects that the value will recover. As of December 31, 
2014, management does not intend to sell these investments until the fair value exceeds amortized cost and it is more likely 
than not that the Company will not be required to sell debt securities before the anticipated recovery of the amortized cost basis 
of the security; thus, the impairment is determined not to be other-than-temporary.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had 88 securities that were in a loss position. The unrealized losses for each of the 88 
securities relate to market interest rate changes. The Company has considered the current market for the securities in a loss 
position, as well as the severity and duration of the impairments, and expects that the value will recover. As of December 31, 
2013, management had both the intent and ability to hold these investments until the fair value exceeds amortized cost; thus, 
the impairment is determined not to be other-than-temporary. In addition, management does not believe the Company will be 
required to sell debt securities before the anticipated recovery of the amortized cost basis of the security.

The amortized cost and estimated market values by contractual maturity of investment securities as of December 31, 2014 and 
December 31, 2013 are shown in the following table (in thousands). Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities 
because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

 

Weighted
Average

Yield
Amortized

Cost
Estimated

Market Value

Weighted
Average

Yield
Amortized

Cost
Estimated

Market Value

Available for sale:
Due in one year or less 1.78% $ 571 $ 573 1.39% $ 12,340 $ 12,368
Due after one year through five

years 2.64 51,037 51,916 2.58 64,790 65,038
Due after five years through

ten years 2.02 176,631 172,012 2.12 180,362 168,243
Due after ten years 3.34 23,704 23,146 3.17 36,767 32,070
Total securities 2.27% $ 251,943 $ 247,647 2.30% $ 294,259 $ 277,719
Held to maturity:
Due in one year or less 3.88% $ 2,045 $ 2,003 1.76% $ 1,007 $ 1,007
Due after one year through five

years 4.16 20,921 21,875 2.60 18,101 17,539
Due after five years through

ten years 3.39 32,618 33,898 3.70 37,591 37,137
Due after ten years 3.30 33,492 33,180 3.41 38,205 35,283
Total securities 3.55% $ 89,076 $ 90,956 3.35% $ 94,904 $ 90,966

Securities with estimated market values of $279.1 million and $204.3 million at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, 
respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits, securities sold under agreements to repurchase, and long-term borrowings.

Proceeds from sales of available for sale securities for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 were $41.7 million, 
$45.8 million, and $125.4 million, respectively. Gross gains of $0.8 million, $0.5 million, and $4.3 million were realized on 
these sales for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively. There were gross losses of $0.6 million and 
$0.2 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and no gross losses were realized for the year ended 
December 31, 2012.
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During 2014, the Company sold a municipal security that was classified as held to maturity. The proceeds from the sale were
$2.7 million and the Company recorded a gross loss of $0.1 million which was realized on this sale. The Company made the 
decision to sell the municipal security due to the deteriorating credit worthiness of the issuer. The Company has the ability and 
intent to hold the remaining securities within the held to maturity portfolio to maturity. 

Other Equity Securities

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company included the following securities in other assets, at cost, in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets (in thousands):

2014 2013

FHLB stock $ 1,347 $ 1,099
First National Bankers Bankshares, Inc. (FNBB) stock 600 600
Other investments 5,233 4,853
Total equity securities $ 7,180 $ 6,552

6. Loans

Major classifications of loans at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 were as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

Commercial real estate loans:
Construction $ 316,492 $ 203,369
Mortgage(1) 1,252,225 1,118,048

1,568,717 1,321,417
Consumer real estate loans:

Construction 10,393 8,986
Mortgage 131,031 115,307

141,424 124,293
Commercial and industrial loans 1,016,414 868,469
Loans to individuals, excluding real estate 18,316 16,345
Nonaccrual loans 21,228 16,396
Other loans 8,165 10,857

2,774,264 2,357,777
Less allowance for loan losses (42,336) (32,143)
Loans, net $ 2,731,928 $ 2,325,634  

(1) Included in commercial real estate loans, mortgage, are owner-occupied real estate loans, of $419.3 million at 
December 31, 2014 and $364.9 million at December 31, 2013.

A summary of changes in the allowance for loan losses during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 is as 
follows (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012

Balance, beginning of period $ 32,143 $ 26,977 $ 18,122
Provision charged to operations 12,000 9,800 11,035
Charge-offs (1,929) (4,769) (2,561)
Recoveries 122 135 381

Balance, end of period $ 42,336 $ 32,143 $ 26,977

Deferred costs less deferred fees, net of amortization, related to loan origination were $13.8 million and $10.6 million as of 
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. These amounts are included in the loan balances above.
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Construction $ 316,492 $ 203,369
Mortgage(1) 1,252,225 1,118,048

1,568,717 1,321,417
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Construction 10,393 8,986
Mortgage 131,031 115,307

141,424 124,293
Commercial and industrial loans 1,016,414 868,469
Loans to individuals, excluding real estate 18,316 16,345
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Other loans 8,165 10,857
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2014 2013 2012

Balance, beginning of period $ 32,143 $ 26,977 $ 18,122
Provision charged to operations 12,000 9,800 11,035
Charge-offs (1,929) (4,769) (2,561)
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December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. These amounts are included in the loan balances above.
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In addition to loans issued in the normal course of business, the Company considers overdrafts on customer deposit accounts to 
be loans and reclassifies these overdrafts to loans in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. At December 31, 2014 and 
2013, overdrafts of $0.7 million and $0.8 million, respectively, had been reclassified to loans receivable.

Loans with carrying values of $847.0 million were pledged on a blanket lien to secure other borrowings at December 31, 2014. 
At December 31, 2013, loans with carrying values of $655.1 million on a blanket lien and $29.4 million which were held in 
custody were pledged to secure other borrowings.

The allowance for loan losses and recorded investment in loans, including loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality as of 
the dates indicated are as follows (in thousands):

 December 31, 2014

 Construction
Commercial
Real Estate

Consumer
Real Estate

Commercial
and

Industrial Consumer Total

Allowance for loan losses:
Balance, beginning of period $ 2,790 $ 13,780 $ 2,656 $ 12,677 $ 240 $ 32,143

Charge-offs (18) (1,034) (63) (648) (166) (1,929)
Recoveries 30 — — 71 21 122
Provision 1,228 2,219 723 7,714 116 12,000

Balance, end of period $ 4,030 $ 14,965 $ 3,316 $ 19,814 $ 211 $ 42,336
Ending balances:

Individually evaluated for
impairment $ — $ 3,138 $ — $ 5,889 $ 1 $ 9,028
Collectively evaluated for
impairment $ 4,030 $ 11,827 $ 3,316 $ 13,925 $ 210 $ 33,308

Loans receivable:
Ending balance-total $ 327,677 $ 1,264,371 $ 132,950 $ 1,030,629 $ 18,637 $ 2,774,264
Ending balances:

Individually evaluated for
impairment $ 927 $ 13,130 $ 2,085 $ 15,157 $ 259 $ 31,558
Collectively evaluated for
impairment $ 326,750 $ 1,251,241 $ 130,865 $ 1,015,472 $ 18,378 $ 2,742,706
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 December 31, 2013

 Construction
Commercial
Real Estate

Consumer
Real Estate

Commercial
and

Industrial Consumer Total

Allowance for loan losses:
Balance, beginning of period $ 2,004 $ 10,716 $ 2,450 $ 11,675 $ 132 $ 26,977

Charge-offs (46) (292) — (4,229) (202) (4,769)
Recoveries — 19 30 68 18 135
Provision 832 3,337 176 5,163 292 9,800

Balance, end of period $ 2,790 $ 13,780 $ 2,656 $ 12,677 $ 240 $ 32,143
Ending balances:

Individually evaluated for
impairment $ 42 $ 1,639 $ 183 $ 2,091 $ — $ 3,955
Collectively evaluated for
impairment $ 2,748 $ 12,141 $ 2,473 $ 10,586 $ 240 $ 28,188

Loans receivable:
Ending balance-total $ 212,430 $ 1,128,181 $ 117,653 $ 883,111 $ 16,402 $ 2,357,777
Ending balances:

Individually evaluated for
impairment $ 309 $ 9,811 $ 2,990 $ 4,005 $ — $ 17,115
Collectively evaluated for
impairment $ 212,121 $ 1,118,370 $ 114,663 $ 879,106 $ 16,402 $ 2,340,662

Credit quality indicators on the Company’s loan portfolio, including loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality, as of the 
dates indicated were as follows (in thousands):

 December 31, 2014

 
Pass and

Pass/Watch
Special

Mention Substandard Doubtful Total

Construction $ 313,987 $ 2 $ 13,688 $ — $ 327,677
Commercial real estate 1,215,673 1,613 47,085 — 1,264,371
Consumer real estate 128,507 60 4,383 — 132,950
Commercial and industrial 1,005,829 — 24,800 — 1,030,629
Consumer 18,247 7 383 — 18,637
Total loans $ 2,682,243 $ 1,682 $ 90,339 $ — $ 2,774,264

 December 31, 2013

 
Pass and

Pass/Watch
Special

Mention Substandard Doubtful Total

Construction $ 197,951 $ 4 $ 14,475 $ — $ 212,430
Commercial real estate 1,073,339 1,720 53,122 — 1,128,181
Consumer real estate 113,037 185 4,431 — 117,653
Commercial and industrial 873,547 17 9,547 — 883,111
Consumer 16,251 9 142 — 16,402
Total loans $ 2,274,125 $ 1,935 $ 81,717 $ — $ 2,357,777

The table above includes $5.4 million in substandard loans and $1.6 million in special mention loans as of December 31, 2014, 
which are loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality and accounted for under ASC 310-30. As of December 31, 2013, 
included in the above table was $7.4 million of substandard loans and $1.6 million of special mention loans which are loans 
acquired with deteriorated credit quality and accounted for under ASC 310-30.

The above classifications follow regulatory guidelines and can generally be described as follows:

• Pass and pass/watch loans are of satisfactory quality.
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 December 31, 2013

 Construction
Commercial
Real Estate

Consumer
Real Estate

Commercial
and

Industrial Consumer Total

Allowance for loan losses:
Balance, beginning of period $ 2,004 $ 10,716 $ 2,450 $ 11,675 $ 132 $ 26,977

Charge-offs (46) (292) — (4,229) (202) (4,769)
Recoveries — 19 30 68 18 135
Provision 832 3,337 176 5,163 292 9,800

Balance, end of period $ 2,790 $ 13,780 $ 2,656 $ 12,677 $ 240 $ 32,143
Ending balances:

Individually evaluated for
impairment $ 42 $ 1,639 $ 183 $ 2,091 $ — $ 3,955
Collectively evaluated for
impairment $ 2,748 $ 12,141 $ 2,473 $ 10,586 $ 240 $ 28,188

Loans receivable:
Ending balance-total $ 212,430 $ 1,128,181 $ 117,653 $ 883,111 $ 16,402 $ 2,357,777
Ending balances:

Individually evaluated for
impairment $ 309 $ 9,811 $ 2,990 $ 4,005 $ — $ 17,115
Collectively evaluated for
impairment $ 212,121 $ 1,118,370 $ 114,663 $ 879,106 $ 16,402 $ 2,340,662

Credit quality indicators on the Company’s loan portfolio, including loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality, as of the 
dates indicated were as follows (in thousands):

 December 31, 2014

 
Pass and

Pass/Watch
Special

Mention Substandard Doubtful Total

Construction $ 313,987 $ 2 $ 13,688 $ — $ 327,677
Commercial real estate 1,215,673 1,613 47,085 — 1,264,371
Consumer real estate 128,507 60 4,383 — 132,950
Commercial and industrial 1,005,829 — 24,800 — 1,030,629
Consumer 18,247 7 383 — 18,637
Total loans $ 2,682,243 $ 1,682 $ 90,339 $ — $ 2,774,264

 December 31, 2013

 
Pass and

Pass/Watch
Special

Mention Substandard Doubtful Total

Construction $ 197,951 $ 4 $ 14,475 $ — $ 212,430
Commercial real estate 1,073,339 1,720 53,122 — 1,128,181
Consumer real estate 113,037 185 4,431 — 117,653
Commercial and industrial 873,547 17 9,547 — 883,111
Consumer 16,251 9 142 — 16,402
Total loans $ 2,274,125 $ 1,935 $ 81,717 $ — $ 2,357,777

The table above includes $5.4 million in substandard loans and $1.6 million in special mention loans as of December 31, 2014, 
which are loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality and accounted for under ASC 310-30. As of December 31, 2013, 
included in the above table was $7.4 million of substandard loans and $1.6 million of special mention loans which are loans 
acquired with deteriorated credit quality and accounted for under ASC 310-30.

The above classifications follow regulatory guidelines and can generally be described as follows:

• Pass and pass/watch loans are of satisfactory quality.
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• Special mention loans have an existing weakness that could cause future impairment, including the deterioration of financial 
ratios, past due status, questionable management capabilities, and possible reduction in the collateral values.

• Substandard loans have an existing specific and well-defined weakness that may include poor liquidity and deterioration of 
financial ratios. The loan may be past due and related deposit accounts may be experiencing overdrafts. Immediate corrective 
action is necessary.

• Doubtful loans have specific weaknesses that are severe enough to make collection or liquidation in full highly questionable 
and improbable.

Age analysis of past due loans, including loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality, as of the dates indicated were as 
follows (in thousands):

 December 31, 2014

 

Greater Than
30 and Fewer
Than 90 Days

Past Due

90 Days and
Greater
Past Due

Total Past
Due Current Loans Total Loans

Real estate loans:
Construction $ 97 $ 750 $ 847 $ 326,830 $ 327,677
Commercial real estate 2,497 9,545 12,042 1,252,329 1,264,371
Consumer real estate 1,623 1,255 2,878 130,072 132,950

Total real estate loans 4,217 11,550 15,767 1,709,231 1,724,998
Other loans:

Commercial and industrial 159 4,426 4,585 1,026,044 1,030,629
Consumer 564 322 886 17,751 18,637

Total other loans 723 4,748 5,471 1,043,795 1,049,266
Total loans $ 4,940 $ 16,298 $ 21,238 $ 2,753,026 $ 2,774,264

 December 31, 2013

 

Greater Than
30 and Fewer
Than 90 Days

Past Due

90 Days and
Greater
Past Due

Total Past
Due Current Loans Total Loans

Real estate loans:
Construction $ 15 $ 75 $ 90 $ 212,340 $ 212,430
Commercial real estate 2,935 7,642 10,577 1,117,604 1,128,181
Consumer real estate 1,260 2,166 3,426 114,227 117,653

Total real estate loans 4,210 9,883 14,093 1,444,171 1,458,264
Other loans:

Commercial and industrial 3,076 1,281 4,357 878,754 883,111
Consumer 488 207 695 15,707 16,402

Total other loans 3,564 1,488 5,052 894,461 899,513
Total loans $ 7,774 $ 11,371 $ 19,145 $ 2,338,632 $ 2,357,777

The table above includes $0.6 million of consumer loans past due greater than 30 and fewer than 90 days and $28 thousand of 
consumer loans 90 days and greater past due, as of December 31, 2014. These loans are cash secured and the Company has 
rights of offset against the guarantors’ deposit accounts when the loans are 120 days past due.

As of December 31, 2013, consumer loans past due greater than 30 and fewer than 90 days were $0.4 million and consumer 
loans 90 days and greater past due were $0.2 million. These loans are cash secured and the Company has rights of offset against 
the guarantors’ deposit accounts when the loans are 120 days past due.
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The following is a summary of information pertaining to impaired loans, which consist primarily of nonaccrual loans. This 
table excludes loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality. Acquired impaired loans are generally not subject to individual 
evaluation for impairment and are not reported with impaired loans or troubled debt restructurings, even if they would 
otherwise qualify for such treatment. Impaired loans as of the periods indicated were as follows (in thousands):

 December 31, 2014

 
Recorded

Investment
Contractual

Balance
Related

Allowance

Average
Recorded

Investment

Interest
Income

Recognized

With no related allowance recorded:
Construction $ 927 $ 927 $ — $ 464 $ 39
Commercial real estate 7,175 7,453 — 5,718 109
Consumer real estate 2,085 2,097 — 2,029 18
Commercial and industrial 436 498 — 768 22
Consumer 256 256 — 128 6

Total $ 10,879 $ 11,231 $ — $ 9,107 $ 194
With an allowance recorded:

Construction $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Commercial real estate 5,955 6,235 3,138 5,753 79
Consumer real estate — — — 509 —
Commercial and industrial 14,721 14,774 5,889 8,814 310
Consumer 3 3 1 2 —

Total $ 20,679 $ 21,012 $ 9,028 $ 15,078 $ 389
Total impaired loans:

Construction $ 927 $ 927 $ — $ 464 $ 39
Commercial real estate 13,130 13,688 3,138 11,471 188
Consumer real estate 2,085 2,097 — 2,538 18
Commercial and industrial 15,157 15,272 5,889 9,582 332
Consumer 259 259 1 130 6

Total $ 31,558 $ 32,243 $ 9,028 $ 24,185 $ 583
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 December 31, 2013

 
Recorded

Investment
Contractual

Balance
Related

Allowance

Average
Recorded

Investment

Interest
Income

Recognized

With no related allowance recorded:
Construction $ — $ — $ — $ 24 $ —
Commercial real estate 4,261 4,469 — 3,063 110
Consumer real estate 1,973 1,999 — 1,254 —
Commercial and industrial 1,099 1,116 — 977 40

Total $ 7,333 $ 7,584 $ — $ 5,318 $ 150
With an allowance recorded:

Construction $ 309 $ 309 $ 42 $ 530 $ 23
Commercial real estate 5,550 7,428 1,639 4,445 59
Consumer real estate 1,017 1,046 183 831 21
Commercial and industrial 2,906 2,941 2,091 8,093 10

Total $ 9,782 $ 11,724 $ 3,955 $ 13,899 $ 113
Total impaired loans:

Construction $ 309 $ 309 $ 42 $ 554 $ 23
Commercial real estate 9,811 11,897 1,639 7,508 169
Consumer real estate 2,990 3,045 183 2,085 21
Commercial and industrial 4,005 4,057 2,091 9,070 50

Total $ 17,115 $ 19,308 $ 3,955 $ 19,217 $ 263

Also presented in the above table is the average recorded investment of the impaired loans and the related amount of interest 
recognized during the time within the period that the impaired loans were impaired. When the ultimate collectability of the total 
principal of an impaired loan is in doubt and the loan is on nonaccrual status, all payments are applied to principal under the 
cost recovery method. When the ultimate collectability of the total principal of an impaired loan is not in doubt and the loan is 
in nonaccrual status, contractual interest is credited to interest income when received under the cash basis method. In the table 
above, all interest recognized represents cash collected. The average balances are calculated based on the month-end balances 
of the financing receivables of the period reported.

As of December 31, 2014, there were $28 thousand of cash secured tuition loans that were past due 90 days or more that were 
still accruing interest, and $0.2 million in cash secured tuition loans that were past due 90 days or more still accruing interest as 
of December 31, 2013.

A summary of information pertaining to nonaccrual loans as of the periods indicated is as follows (in thousands):

2014 2013

Nonaccrual loans:
Construction $ 792 $ 75
Commercial real estate 12,146 10,133
Consumer real estate 1,919 2,347
Commercial and industrial 6,051 3,784
Consumer 320 57

$ 21,228 $ 16,396

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the average recorded investment in nonaccrual loans was $19.6 million and 
$17.9 million, respectively. The amount of interest income that would have been recognized on nonaccrual loans based on 
contractual terms was $1.0 million at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.  As of December 31, 2014, the Company 
was not committed to lend additional funds to any customer whose loan was classified as impaired.
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The following is a summary of information pertaining to impaired loans, which consist primarily of nonaccrual loans. This 
table excludes loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality. Acquired impaired loans are generally not subject to individual 
evaluation for impairment and are not reported with impaired loans or troubled debt restructurings, even if they would 
otherwise qualify for such treatment. Impaired loans as of the periods indicated were as follows (in thousands):

 December 31, 2014
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Investment
Contractual

Balance
Related

Allowance

Average
Recorded

Investment

Interest
Income
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Average
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recognized during the time within the period that the impaired loans were impaired. When the ultimate collectability of the total 
principal of an impaired loan is in doubt and the loan is on nonaccrual status, all payments are applied to principal under the 
cost recovery method. When the ultimate collectability of the total principal of an impaired loan is not in doubt and the loan is 
in nonaccrual status, contractual interest is credited to interest income when received under the cash basis method. In the table 
above, all interest recognized represents cash collected. The average balances are calculated based on the month-end balances 
of the financing receivables of the period reported.

As of December 31, 2014, there were $28 thousand of cash secured tuition loans that were past due 90 days or more that were 
still accruing interest, and $0.2 million in cash secured tuition loans that were past due 90 days or more still accruing interest as 
of December 31, 2013.

A summary of information pertaining to nonaccrual loans as of the periods indicated is as follows (in thousands):

2014 2013

Nonaccrual loans:
Construction $ 792 $ 75
Commercial real estate 12,146 10,133
Consumer real estate 1,919 2,347
Commercial and industrial 6,051 3,784
Consumer 320 57

$ 21,228 $ 16,396

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the average recorded investment in nonaccrual loans was $19.6 million and 
$17.9 million, respectively. The amount of interest income that would have been recognized on nonaccrual loans based on 
contractual terms was $1.0 million at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.  As of December 31, 2014, the Company 
was not committed to lend additional funds to any customer whose loan was classified as impaired.
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ASC 310-30 Loans

During 2011, the Company acquired certain loans from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, as receiver for Central 
Progressive Bank, that are subject to ASC 310-30. ASC 310-30 provides recognition, measurement, and disclosure 
requirements for acquired loans that have evidence of deterioration of credit quality since origination for which it is probable, 
at acquisition, that the Company will be unable to collect all contractual amounts owed. The Company’s allowance for loan 
losses for all acquired loans subject to ASC 310-30 would reflect only those losses incurred after acquisition.

The following is a summary of changes in the accretable yields of acquired loans as of the years ended December 31, 2014 and 
2013 (in thousands):

2014 2013

Balance, beginning of period $ 170 $ 628
Acquisition — —
Net transfers from nonaccretable difference to accretable yield 815 45
Accretion (871) (503)

Balance, end of period $ 114 $ 170

Information about the Company’s TDRs as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, is presented in the following tables 
(in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2014 Current
Greater Than 30
Days Past Due

Nonaccrual
TDRs Total TDRs

Real estate loans:
Construction $ 233 $ — $ — $ 233
Commercial real estate 349 — 1,960 2,309
Consumer real estate 604 — 132 736

Total real estate loans 1,186 — 2,092 3,278
Other loans:

Commercial and industrial 385 — — 385
Total loans $ 1,571 $ — $ 2,092 $ 3,663

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Current
Greater Than 30
Days Past Due

Nonaccrual
TDRs Total TDRs

Real estate loans:
Construction $ 309 $ — $ — $ 309
Commercial real estate 357 — 102 459
Consumer real estate 625 — 136 761

Total real estate loans 1,291 — 238 1,529
Other loans:

Commercial and industrial 337 — — 337
Total loans $ 1,628 $ — $ 238 $ 1,866

The following table provides information on how the TDRs were modified during the years ended December 31, 2014 and 
2013 (in thousands):

2014 2013

Maturity and interest rate adjustment $ 2,536 $ 925
Movement to or extension of interest rate-only payments 833 597
Other concessions(1) 294 344
Total $ 3,663 $ 1,866

(1) Other concessions include concessions or a combination of concessions, other than maturity extensions and interest rate 
adjustments.
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ASC 310-30 Loans

During 2011, the Company acquired certain loans from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, as receiver for Central 
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requirements for acquired loans that have evidence of deterioration of credit quality since origination for which it is probable, 
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Information about the Company’s TDRs as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, is presented in the following tables 
(in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2014 Current
Greater Than 30
Days Past Due

Nonaccrual
TDRs Total TDRs

Real estate loans:
Construction $ 233 $ — $ — $ 233
Commercial real estate 349 — 1,960 2,309
Consumer real estate 604 — 132 736

Total real estate loans 1,186 — 2,092 3,278
Other loans:

Commercial and industrial 385 — — 385
Total loans $ 1,571 $ — $ 2,092 $ 3,663

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Current
Greater Than 30
Days Past Due

Nonaccrual
TDRs Total TDRs

Real estate loans:
Construction $ 309 $ — $ — $ 309
Commercial real estate 357 — 102 459
Consumer real estate 625 — 136 761

Total real estate loans 1,291 — 238 1,529
Other loans:

Commercial and industrial 337 — — 337
Total loans $ 1,628 $ — $ 238 $ 1,866

The following table provides information on how the TDRs were modified during the years ended December 31, 2014 and 
2013 (in thousands):

2014 2013

Maturity and interest rate adjustment $ 2,536 $ 925
Movement to or extension of interest rate-only payments 833 597
Other concessions(1) 294 344
Total $ 3,663 $ 1,866

(1) Other concessions include concessions or a combination of concessions, other than maturity extensions and interest rate 
adjustments.
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A summary of information pertaining to modified terms of loans, as of the dates indicated, is as follows (in thousands):

 December 31, 2014

 
Number of
Contracts

Pre-
Modification
Outstanding

Recorded
Investment

Post-
Modification
Outstanding

Recorded
Investment

Troubled debt restructuring:
Construction 4 $ 233 $ 233
Commercial real estate 3 2,309 2,309
Consumer real estate 3 736 736
Commercial and industrial 2 385 385

12 $ 3,663 $ 3,663

 December 31, 2013

 
Number of
Contracts

Pre-Modification
Outstanding

Recorded
Investment

Post-
Modification
Outstanding

Recorded
Investment

Troubled debt restructuring:
Construction 2 $ 309 $ 309
Commercial real estate 3 459 459
Consumer real estate 3 761 761
Commercial and industrial 1 337 337

9 $ 1,866 $ 1,866

None of the performing TDRs defaulted subsequent to the restructuring through the date the financial statements were available 
to be issued.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company was not committed to lend additional funds to any customer whose loan was 
classified as impaired or as a TDR.

7. Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets

Loans serviced for others, consisting primarily of commercial loan participations sold, are not included in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets. The unpaid principal balances of loans serviced for others were $28.1 million and $28.0 million at 
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

8. Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment consisted of the following at December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013

Buildings and leasehold improvements $ 38,569 $ 35,765
Land 10,401 10,399
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 15,462 13,773
Construction in progress 1,663 1,542
Total premises and equipment 66,095 61,479
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 13,214 10,305
Total premises and equipment, net $ 52,881 $ 51,174

The Company recorded depreciation of $3.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 and $2.7 million for each of the 
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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9. Other Real Estate Owned

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had other real estate owned of $5.5 million and $3.7 million, respectively, from 
real estate acquired by foreclosure.

10. Goodwill and Other Acquired Intangible Assets

Changes to the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 are provided in the following 
table (in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 4,808
Goodwill acquired during the year —

Balance at December 31, 2013 4,808
Goodwill acquired during the year —

Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 4,808

The Company performs an annual impairment test of goodwill as of October 1, or more often if indicators or conditions are 
present which require an assessment. The results of this test did not indicate impairment of the Company’s recorded goodwill.

Intangible assets subject to amortization 

Definite-lived intangible assets had the following carrying values as of December 31 (in thousands): 

2014 2013

Gross Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net Carrying
Amount

Gross Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net Carrying
Amount

Core deposit intangibles $ 4,400 $ 1,485 $ 2,915 $ 4,400 $ 883 $ 3,517
Total definite-lived intangible

assets $ 4,400 $ 1,485 $ 2,915 $ 4,400 $ 883 $ 3,517

The Company’s core deposit intangibles are being amortized over the estimated useful life of 12 years. The Company’s annual 
amortization expense totaled $0.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 and $0.2 million for each of the years ended 
December 31, 2013, and 2012, respectively. 

The estimated aggregate amortization expense for the core deposit intangible asset is as follows as of December 31, 2014 (in 
thousands):

2015-2019 $ 367
2020 and thereafter 1,080

11. Investments in Real Estate Properties

FNBC CDC purchases various affordable residential real estate properties in the New Orleans area for the purpose of making 
improvements to these properties and renting or selling the properties. The Company’s cost basis (including the cost of 
improvements) in these residential real estate properties totaled $12.8 million and $10.1 million at December 31, 2014 and 
2013, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, the Company capitalized costs of $2.6 million, 
$5.0 million, and $0.9 million, respectively.

12. Investments in Tax Credit Entities

Federal NMTC

Investment in Bank Owned CDE

The Federal NMTC program is administered by the Community Development Financial Institutions Fund of the U.S. Treasury 
and is aimed at stimulating economic and community development and job creation in low-income communities. The program 
provides federal tax credits to investors who make qualified equity investments (QEIs) in a Community Development Entity. 
The CDE is required to invest the proceeds of each QEI in projects located in or benefiting low-income communities, which are 
generally defined as those census tracts with poverty rates greater than 20% and/or median family incomes that are less than or 
equal to 80% of the area median family income. FNBC CDE has received allocations of Federal NMTC, totaling $118.0 
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million over a three year period beginning in 2011. These allocations generated $46.0 million in tax credits. During June 2014, 
the Company was notified that FNBC CDE had not been awarded an allocation of Federal NMTC from its 2013 application. 

The credit provided to the investor totals 39% of each QEI in a CDE and is claimed over a seven-year credit allowance period. 
In each of the first three years, the investor receives a credit equal to 5% of the total amount invested in the project. For each of 
the remaining four years, the investor receives a credit equal to 6% of the total amount invested in the project. The Company is 
eligible to receive up to $46.0 million in tax credits over the seven-year credit allowance period, beginning with the period in 
which the QEI was made, for its QEI of $118.0 million. Through December 31, 2014, FNBC CDE has invested in allocations 
of $118.0 million, of which $40.0 million of the awards was invested by the Company and $78.0 million was invested by other 
investors and leverage lenders, which include the Company. Of the $78.0 million invested by other investors and leverage 
lenders, $17.5 million was invested by the Company as the leverage lender. The Company's investment is eliminated upon 
consolidation.  The Federal NMTC claimed by the Company, with respect to each QEI, remain subject to recapture over each 
QEI’s credit allowance period upon the occurrence of any of the following:

• FNBC CDE does not invest substantially all (defined as a minimum of 85%) of the QEI proceeds in qualified low-income 
community investments;

• FNBC CDE ceases to be a CDE; or

• FNBC CDE redeems its QEI investment prior to the end of the current credit allowance period.

At December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, none of the above recapture events had occurred, nor, in the opinion of 
management, are such events anticipated to occur in the foreseeable future. As of December 31, 2014, FNBC CDE had total 
assets of $129.8 million, consisting of cash of $4.8 million, loans of $112.3 million and other assets of $12.7 million, with 
liabilities of $0.4 million and capital of $129.4 million.

Investments in Non-Bank Owned CDEs

The Company is also a limited partner in several tax-advantaged limited partnerships and a shareholder in several C 
corporations whose purpose is to invest in approved Federal NMTC projects through CDEs that are not associated with FNBC 
CDE. During 2014 and 2013, several of these partnerships that the company was a limited partner in converted to a C 
corporation. The Company’s ownership in the CDEs did not change based on the conversion. These investments are accounted 
for using the cost method of accounting and are included in investment in tax credit entities in the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets. The limited partnerships and C corporations are considered VIEs. The VIEs have not been consolidated because 
the Company is not considered the primary beneficiary. All of the Company’s investments in Federal NMTC structures are 
privately held, and their market values are not readily determinable. Based on the structure of these transactions, the Company 
expects to recover its investment solely through use of the tax credits that were generated by the investments. As such, the 
investment in these entities will be amortized on a straight-line basis over the period over which the Company holds its 
investment (approximately seven years). 

Low-Income Housing Tax Credits

The Company is a limited partner in several tax-advantaged limited partnerships whose purpose is to invest in approved Low-
Income Housing tax credit projects. These investments are accounted for using the cost method of accounting and are included 
in investments in tax credit entities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The limited partnerships are considered to 
be VIEs. The VIEs have not been consolidated because the Company is not considered the primary beneficiary. All of the 
Company’s investments in low-income housing partnerships are evaluated for impairment at the end of each reporting period. 
Based on the structure of these transactions, the Company expects to recover its remaining investments at December 31, 2014 
solely through use of the tax credits that were generated by the investments. As such, the investment in these partnerships will 
be amortized on a straight-line basis over the period for which the Company maintains its ownership interest in the property 
(approximately 15 years). 

Federal Historic Rehabilitation Tax Credits

The Company is a limited partner in several tax-advantaged limited partnerships whose purpose is to invest in approved 
Federal Historic Rehabilitation tax credit projects. These investments are accounted for using the cost method of accounting 
and are included in investments in tax credit entities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The limited partnerships 
are considered to be VIEs. The VIEs have not been consolidated because the Company is not considered the primary 
beneficiary. All of the Company’s investments in limited partnerships are evaluated for impairment at the end of each reporting 
period. Based on the structure of these transactions, the Company expects to recover its remaining investments in Federal 
Historic Rehabilitation Tax Credits at December 31, 2014 solely through use of the tax credits that were generated by the 
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investments. As such, these amounts will be amortized on a straight-line basis over the period during which the Company 
retains its ownership interest in the tax credit entity (approximately 10 years). 

State NMTC

Investments in Non-Bank Owned CDEs

The Company is a limited partner in several tax-advantaged limited partnerships that are CDEs, whose purpose is to invest in 
approved state projects that are not associated with FNBC CDE. Based on the structure of these transactions, the Company 
expects to recover its  remaining investments at December 31, 2014 in State NMTC through the transfer of its ownership 
interest to third party investors.

The tables below set forth the Company's investment in Federal NMTC, State NMTC, Federal Low-Income Housing, Federal 
Historic Rehabilitation, and State Historic Rehabilitation tax credits, along with the credits expected to be generated through its 
participation in these programs as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 (in thousands):

December 31, 2014

Investment
Accumulated
Amortization

Loans to
Investment
Funds(1) Elimination

Net
Investment

Tax
Benefits

Recognized
Through

December
31, 2013

Tax
Benefits

Recognized
in 2014

Tax
Benefits to

be
Recognized

in 2015,
and

Thereafter

Total Tax
Benefits
Expected

to be
Recognized

NMTC:
Federal:

Non-Bank Owned
CDEs $ 162,192 $ (15,852) $ (120,540) $ — $ 25,800 $ 27,213 $ 9,367 $ 25,945 $ 62,525

Bank Owned
CDEs(2) 118,000 — — (118,000) — 10,375 6,115 29,530 46,020

Bank Owned CDE
Equity
Investment(3) 5,700 — — — 5,700 — — — —

Total Bank
Owned CDEs 123,700 — — (118,000) 5,700 10,375 6,115 29,530 46,020

State 28,227 — — — 28,227 — — — —
Total NMTC 314,119 (15,852) (120,540) (118,000) 59,727 37,588 15,482 55,475 108,545

Low-Income Housing 43,733 (7,264) — — 36,469 9,546 3,642 42,109 55,297

Historic
Rehabilitation:
Federal(4) 41,794 (3,412) — — 38,382 17,823 19,321 37,295 74,439
State 6,335 — — — 6,335 — — — —

Total Historic
Rehabilitation 48,129 (3,412) — — 44,717 17,823 19,321 37,295 74,439

Total $ 405,981 $ (26,528) $ (120,540) $ (118,000) $140,913 $ 64,957 $ 38,445 $ 134,879 $ 238,281

(1) Interest only loan made to the investment fund during the compliance period for Federal NMTC.
(2) Through December 31, 2014, FNBC CDE received allocations of Federal NMTC from the CDFI Fund of the U.S. Treasury 
totaling $118.0 million over a three year period beginning in 2011. These investments are eliminated upon consolidation by the 
Company.  
(3) The Company made an equity investment of $5.7 million in various Federal NMTC projects. This investment generated 
Federal NMTC. For its equity investment, the Company is a limited partner and will have the right to share in the activity of the 
Partnership. 
(4) As of December 31, 2014, the Company had $12.6 million invested in Federal Historic Rehabilitation Tax Credit projects 
which the Company expects to generate Federal Historic Rehabilitation Tax Credits in 2015 and 2016 when the projects are 
completed, receive the certificates of occupancy, and the property is placed in service. The amount of tax credits to be received 
will be determined when the costs are certified.
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December 31, 2013

Investment
Accumulated
Amortization

Loans to
Investment
Funds(1) Elimination

Net
Investment

Tax
Benefits

Recognized
Through

December
31, 2012

Tax
Benefits

Recognized
in 2013

Tax
Benefits to

be
Recognized

in 2014,
and

Thereafter

Total Tax
Benefits
Expected

to be
Recognized

NMTC:
Federal:

Non-Bank Owned
CDEs $ 155,412 $ (9,328) $ (115,590) $ — $ 30,494 $ 18,889 $ 8,324 $ 33,362 $ 60,575

Bank Owned
CDEs(2) 118,000 — — (118,000) — 4,475 5,900 35,645 46,020

Bank Owned CDE
Equity
Investment(3) 5,700 — — — 5,700 — — — —

Total Bank
Owned CDEs 123,700 — — (118,000) 5,700 4,475 5,900 35,645 46,020

State 24,000 — — — 24,000 — — — —
Total NMTC 303,112 (9,328) (115,590) (118,000) 60,194 23,364 14,224 69,007 106,595

Low-Income Housing 45,072 (5,078) — — 39,994 5,846 3,700 47,438 56,984

Historic
Rehabilitation:
Federal 13,870 (1,586) — — 12,284 7,326 10,497 — 17,823
State 5,212 — — — 5,212 — — — —

Total Historic
Rehabilitation 19,082 (1,586) — — 17,496 7,326 10,497 — 17,823

Total $ 367,266 $ (15,992) $ (115,590) $ (118,000) $117,684 $ 36,536 $ 28,421 $ 116,445 $ 181,402

(1) Interest only loan made to the investment fund during the compliance period for Federal NMTC.
(2) Through December 31, 2013, FNBC CDE received allocations of Federal NMTC from the CDFI Fund of the U.S. Treasury 
totaling $118.0 million over a three year period beginning in 2011. These investments are eliminated upon consolidation by the 
Company. 
(3) The Company made an equity investment of $5.7 million in various Federal NMTC projects. This investment generated 
Federal NMTC. For its equity investment, the Company is a limited partner and will have the right to share in the activity of the 
Partnership. 

The amortization of tax credit investments for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 were as follows (in 
thousands): 

For the Years Ended 
 December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Federal NMTC $ 10,048 $ 5,923 $ 3,094
Low-Income Housing 2,186 1,900 1,287
Federal Historic Rehabilitation 1,825 816 427
Total amortization $ 14,059 $ 8,639 $ 4,808
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The amount of basis reduction recorded related to the Company's investment in tax credit entities for the years ended 
December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 were as follows (in thousands):

For the Years Ended 
 December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Federal NMTC $ 1,401 $ 2,019 $ 2,416
Federal Historic Rehabilitation 246 — 350
Total basis reduction $ 1,647 $ 2,019 $ 2,766

The Company also made loans to the tax credit related projects. The proceeds from these loans can be utilized for the 
generation and use of tax credits on the related real estate project or as funding for the tax credit real estate project itself. These 
loans are subject to the Company's normal underwriting criteria and all loans were performing according to their contractual 
terms at December 31, 2014. These loans were classified in the Company's loan portfolio at December 31, 2014 and 
December 31, 2013 as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Construction $ 80,741 $ 10,686
Commercial real estate 67,520 49,017
Commercial and industrial 117,191 105,944
Total loans $ 265,452 $ 165,647

13. Variable Interest Entities

During 2013, the Company entered into a loan workout arrangement with a borrower. The result of this workout arrangement is 
considered to be a VIE, whereby the Company is considered the primary beneficiary and must consolidate the VIE. The initial 
recognition of this VIE relationship was accounted for using acquisition accounting. Under acquisition accounting, the assets 
and liabilities acquired are accounted for at market and intercompany balances are eliminated. The asset acquired from the 
debtor, which consisted of a net operating loss, is included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

14. Deposits

Interest-bearing deposits at December 31, 2014 and 2013 consisted of the following (in thousands):

2014 2013

Savings deposits $ 49,634 $ 53,779
Money market accounts 1,055,505 655,173
Negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts 476,825 511,620
Certificates of deposit over $250,000 284,262 280,354
Certificates of deposit under $250,000 890,090 938,801
Total Deposits $ 2,756,316 $ 2,439,727

The certificates of deposit mature as follows as of December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

2015 $ 632,111
2016 257,606
2017 127,775
2018 110,874
2019 45,986
Total certificates of deposit $ 1,174,352
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15. Short-Term Borrowings

The following is a summary of short-term borrowings at December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013

FNBB $ — $ 8,425
Total short-term borrowings $ — $ 8,425

There were no short-term borrowings as of December 31, 2014. The short-term borrowings at December 31, 2013 consisted of 
federal funds purchased with a maturity of 1 day and an interest rate of 0.95%. These borrowings were repaid in January 2014.

The following is a summary of unused lines of credit at December 31 (in thousands): 

2014 2013

FNBB $ 30,000 $ 30,000
JPMorgan Chase 30,000 30,000
FHLB 563,213 432,181
PNC Bank 15,000 15,000
Comerica 10,000 10,000
Total unused lines of credit $ 648,213 $ 517,181

The FHLB line of credit at December 31, 2014 was subject to a blanket pledge of $847.0 million of real estate loans. The 
FHLB line of credit at December 31, 2013 was subject to a blanket pledge of $655.1 million of real estate loans and a custody 
pledge of $29.4 million of real estate loans.

16. Long-Term Borrowings

The following is a summary of long-term borrowings at December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013

FNBB $ — $ 110
Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC 40,000 55,000
Total long-term borrowings $ 40,000 $ 55,110

Long-term borrowings as of December 31, 2014 consisted of a borrowing by the Company from Credit Suisse which is in the 
legal form of a long-term repurchase agreement. During 2014, the $40.0 million borrowing was refinanced and its maturity 
extended. The $40.0 million borrowing matures on April 1, 2019, and bears interest at a floating rate equal to three-month USD 
LIBOR plus 1.35%, and was 1.59% at December 31, 2014. The borrowing at December 31, 2013 bears interest at a floating 
rate equal to 2.83% minus the greater of three-month USD LIBOR less 2.00% or 0%. The interest rate was 2.83% at 
December 31, 2013. This borrowing is subject to a pledge of mortgage-backed securities with a market value of $61.1 million 
and $65.9 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. During 2014, the $15.0 million borrowing from Credit Suisse 
matured. 

During 2014, the long-term borrowings from FNBB were paid.

Principal payments by year on these borrowings are as follows (in thousands):

2019 $ 40,000
Total long-term borrowings $ 40,000

17. Repurchase Agreements

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase, which are classified as secured borrowings, generally mature one day after the 
transaction date. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are reflected at the amount of cash received in connection with 
the transaction. The Company may be required to provide additional collateral based on the fair value of the underlying 
securities. The carrying value of the securities pledged as collateral for the repurchase agreements was $132.7 million and 
$92.7 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Principal payments by year on these borrowings are as follows (in thousands):

2019 $ 40,000
Total long-term borrowings $ 40,000

17. Repurchase Agreements

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase, which are classified as secured borrowings, generally mature one day after the 
transaction date. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are reflected at the amount of cash received in connection with 
the transaction. The Company may be required to provide additional collateral based on the fair value of the underlying 
securities. The carrying value of the securities pledged as collateral for the repurchase agreements was $132.7 million and 
$92.7 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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18. Derivative - Interest Rate Swap Agreements

Interest Rate Swaps. During 2014, the Company entered into three delayed interest rate swaps with Counterparty C to manage 
exposure to future interest rate risk, given the changes in forecasted interest rates, through modification of the Company’s net 
interest sensitivity to levels deemed to be appropriate. The Company entered into this interest rate swap agreement to convert a 
portion of its forecasted variable-rate debt to a fixed rate, which is a cash flow hedge of a forecasted transaction. The notional 
amounts of each of the three derivative contracts are $55.0 million for a total notional amount of $165.0 million. The Company 
will receive payments from the counterparty at three-month LIBOR and make payments to the counterparty at fixed rates of 
2.652%, 2.753%, and 2.793%, respectively, on the $55.0 million notional amounts of each derivative contract. The cash flow 
payments on the derivatives begin January 2018 and terminate October 2023 for the 2.652% interest rate swap, begin January 
2019 and terminate October 2024 for the 2.753% interest rate swap, and begin July 2019 and terminate April 2025 for the 
2.793% interest rate swap.

The Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement in 2012 with Counterparty A to convert a portion of its forecasted 
variable-rate debt to a fixed rate, which was a cash flow hedge of a forecasted transaction. The total notional amount of the 
derivative contract was $115.0 million. The Company was to receive payments from the counterparty at three-month LIBOR 
and make payments to the counterparty at a fixed rate on 2.88% on the notional amount. 

In December 2014, the company terminated the cash flow hedge with Counterparty A as internal forecasts for future interest 
rates changed since this transaction was initiated. The termination of the cash flow hedge resulted in a loss of $8.0 million 
which has been reflected in the Company’s operating cash flows and included within accumulated other comprehensive income 
(loss), net of tax. This loss has not been included in net income as of December 31, 2014 as the Company entered into a new 
delayed interest rate swap with substantially similar terms (see transaction above with Counterparty C) at the time of 
termination. The loss will be reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to net income as interest 
expense as it is amortized over a multi-year period consistent with the original maturity dates of the hedge which began in 
January 2015 and terminate in January 2022. 

The Company entered into a delayed interest rate swap with Counterparty B in 2013, to manage exposure against the variability 
in the expected future cash flows attributed to changes in the benchmark interest rate on a portion of its variable-rate debt. The 
Company entered into this interest rate swap agreement to convert a portion of its variable-rate debt to a fixed rate, which is a 
cash flow hedge of a forecasted transaction. The total notional amount of the derivative contract is $150.0 million. The 
Company will receive payments from the counterparty at three-month LIBOR and make payments to the counterparty at a 
fixed rate of 4.165% on the notional amount. The cash flow payments on the derivative begin December 2016 and terminate 
September 2023.

Interest Rate-Prime Swaps. During 2013, the Company entered into four interest rate swaps with Counterparty B to manage 
exposure against the variability in the expected future cash flows on the designated Prime, Prime plus 1%, Prime plus 1% 
floored at 5% and Prime plus 1% floored at 5.5% pools of its floating rate loan portfolio (the Prime Hedges). The Company 
entered into the interest rate swap agreements to hedge the cash flows from these pools of its floating rate loan portfolio, which 
is expected to offset the variability in the expected future cash flows attributable to the fluctuations in the daily weighted 
average Wall Street Journal Prime index, which is a cash flow hedge of a forecasted transaction. The notional amount of the 
contracts are Prime tranche of $30.0 million, Prime plus 1% tranche of $40.0 million, Prime plus 1% floored at 5% tranche of 
$100.0 million, and Prime plus 1% floored at 5.5% tranche of $80.0 million for a total notional amount of $250.0 million. The 
Company will receive payments from the counterparty at a fixed rate of interest and pay the counterparty at the Prime rate 
associated with each tranche on its notional amount. The Prime tranche will receive payments at a fixed rate of 4.70% and pay 
the counterparty at Prime on the notional amount. The Prime plus 1% tranche will receive payments at a fixed rate of 5.70% 
and pay the counterparty at Prime plus 1% on the notional amount. The Prime plus 1% floored at 5% tranche will receive 
payments at a fixed rate of 6.01% and pay the counterparty at Prime plus 1%, floored at 5% on the notional amount. The Prime 
plus 1% floored at 5.5% tranche will receive payments at a fixed rate of 6.26% and pay the counterparty at Prime plus 1% 
floored at 5.5% on the notional amount. The cash flow payments on the derivatives began September 2013 and terminate 
September 2019.
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Information pertaining to outstanding derivative instruments is as follows (in thousands):

Derivative Assets Fair Value Derivative Liabilities Fair Value
Balance Sheet

Location
December 31,

2014
December 31,

2013
Balance Sheet

Location
December 31,

2014
December 31,

2013

Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
under ASC Topic 815:
Interest rate swaps -

Counterparty A(1) Other Assets $ — $ 1,157 Other Liabilities $ — $ —
Interest rate swaps -

Counterparty B Other Assets — — Other Liabilities 15,995 2,046
Interest rate-prime swaps -

Counterparty B Other Assets 3,042 — Other Liabilities — 2,271
Interest rate swaps -

Counterparty C Other Assets 37 — Other Liabilities — —
$ 3,079 $ 1,157 $ 15,995 $ 4,317

(1) Hedge was terminated during 2014.

The Company entered into a master netting arrangement with Counterparty B whereby the delayed interest rate swap and Prime 
Hedges would be settled net. Net fair values of the Counterparty B delayed interest rate swap and Prime Hedges as of 
December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2014

Gross Amounts
Presented in the
Balance Sheet

Gross Amounts Not Offset in the
Balance Sheet

Derivatives Collateral Net

Derivatives subject to master netting arrangements:
Derivative assets:

Interest rate swaps $ — $ — $ — $ —
Interest rate-prime swaps 3,042 — — 3,042

$ 3,042 $ — $ — $ 3,042

Derivative liabilities:
Interest rate swaps $ 15,995 $ — $ — $ 15,995
Interest rate-prime swaps — — — —

$ 15,995 — — $ 15,995

Net derivative liability $ 12,953 $ — $ — $ 12,953
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December 31, 2013

Gross Amounts
Presented in the
Balance Sheet

Gross Amounts Not Offset in the
Balance Sheet

Derivatives Collateral Net

Derivatives subject to master netting arrangements:
Derivative assets:

Interest rate swaps $ — $ — $ — $ —
Interest rate-prime swaps — — — —

$ — $ — $ — $ —

Derivative liabilities:
Interest rate swaps $ 2,046 $ — $ — $ 2,046
Interest rate-prime swaps 2,271 — — 2,271

$ 4,317 — — $ 4,317

Net derivative liability $ 4,317 $ — $ — $ 4,317

Pursuant to the interest rate swap agreements described above with Counterparty B, the Company pledged collateral in the form 
of investment securities totaling $13.8 million (with a fair value at December 31, 2014 of $14.2 million), which has been 
presented gross in the Company’s balance sheet. There was no collateral posted from the counterparties to the Company as of 
December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Because the swap agreement used to manage interest rate risk has been designated as hedging exposure to variable cash flows 
of a forecasted transaction, the effective portion of the derivative’s gain or loss is initially reported as a component of other 
comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified into earnings when the forecasted transaction affects earnings or when the 
hedge is terminated. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss is reported in earnings immediately. 

In applying hedge accounting for derivatives, the Company establishes a method for assessing the effectiveness of the hedging 
derivative by utilizing the dollar offset approach and a measurement approach for determining the ineffective aspect of the 
hedge through the variable cash flows methods upon the inception of the hedge. These methods are consistent with Company’s 
approach to managing risk. 

For interest rate swap agreements that are not designated as hedging instruments, changes in the fair value of the derivatives are 
recognized in earnings immediately.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company did not reclassify into earnings any gain or loss as a result of 
the discontinuance of cash flow hedges because it was probable the original forecasted transaction would not occur by the end 
of the originally specified term. The Company anticipates to reclassify $1.1 million from accumulated other comprehensive 
income (loss) into interest expense over the next 12 months related to the amortization of the loss incurred on the cash flow 
hedge terminated in December 2014. The total $8.0 million loss will be reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive 
income (loss) into interest expense as it is amortized by the effective yield method over a multi-year period consistent with the 
original maturity dates of the hedge which began in January 2015 and will terminate in January 2022. 

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, no amounts of gains or losses were reclassified from accumulated comprehensive income 
(loss), nor have any amounts of gains or losses been recognized due to ineffectiveness of a portion of the derivatives. At 
December 31, 2014, no amount of the derivatives will mature within the next 12 months. The Company does not expect to 
reclassify any amount from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into interest income over the next 12 months for 
derivatives that will be settled.
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December 31, 2013

Gross Amounts
Presented in the
Balance Sheet

Gross Amounts Not Offset in the
Balance Sheet

Derivatives Collateral Net

Derivatives subject to master netting arrangements:
Derivative assets:

Interest rate swaps $ — $ — $ — $ —
Interest rate-prime swaps — — — —

$ — $ — $ — $ —

Derivative liabilities:
Interest rate swaps $ 2,046 $ — $ — $ 2,046
Interest rate-prime swaps 2,271 — — 2,271

$ 4,317 — — $ 4,317

Net derivative liability $ 4,317 $ — $ — $ 4,317

Pursuant to the interest rate swap agreements described above with Counterparty B, the Company pledged collateral in the form 
of investment securities totaling $13.8 million (with a fair value at December 31, 2014 of $14.2 million), which has been 
presented gross in the Company’s balance sheet. There was no collateral posted from the counterparties to the Company as of 
December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Because the swap agreement used to manage interest rate risk has been designated as hedging exposure to variable cash flows 
of a forecasted transaction, the effective portion of the derivative’s gain or loss is initially reported as a component of other 
comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified into earnings when the forecasted transaction affects earnings or when the 
hedge is terminated. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss is reported in earnings immediately. 

In applying hedge accounting for derivatives, the Company establishes a method for assessing the effectiveness of the hedging 
derivative by utilizing the dollar offset approach and a measurement approach for determining the ineffective aspect of the 
hedge through the variable cash flows methods upon the inception of the hedge. These methods are consistent with Company’s 
approach to managing risk. 

For interest rate swap agreements that are not designated as hedging instruments, changes in the fair value of the derivatives are 
recognized in earnings immediately.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company did not reclassify into earnings any gain or loss as a result of 
the discontinuance of cash flow hedges because it was probable the original forecasted transaction would not occur by the end 
of the originally specified term. The Company anticipates to reclassify $1.1 million from accumulated other comprehensive 
income (loss) into interest expense over the next 12 months related to the amortization of the loss incurred on the cash flow 
hedge terminated in December 2014. The total $8.0 million loss will be reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive 
income (loss) into interest expense as it is amortized by the effective yield method over a multi-year period consistent with the 
original maturity dates of the hedge which began in January 2015 and will terminate in January 2022. 

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, no amounts of gains or losses were reclassified from accumulated comprehensive income 
(loss), nor have any amounts of gains or losses been recognized due to ineffectiveness of a portion of the derivatives. At 
December 31, 2014, no amount of the derivatives will mature within the next 12 months. The Company does not expect to 
reclassify any amount from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into interest income over the next 12 months for 
derivatives that will be settled.
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At December 31, 2014 and 2013, and for the years then ended, information pertaining to the effect of the hedging instruments 
on the consolidated financial statements is as follows (in thousands):

Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in OCI,
net of taxes (Effective Portion)

As of December 31,

Derivatives in ASC Topic 815 Cash Flow Hedging Relationships: 2014 2013

Interest rate swap with Counterparty A(1) $ (5,946) $ 5,207
Interest rate swap and prime swaps with Counterparty B (5,614) (2,806)
Interest rate swap with Counterparty C 24 —

Total $ (11,536) $ 2,401

(1) Hedge was terminated during 2014.

19. Income Taxes

The income tax benefit on the income from operations for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 was as follows 
(in thousands):

2014 2013 2012

Current tax expense $ 3,436 $ 186 $ —
Deferred tax benefit (30,412) (19,937) (7,565)
Total tax benefit $ (26,976) $ (19,751) $ (7,565)

The amount of taxes in the accompanying consolidated statements of income differs from the expected amount using the 
statutory federal income tax rates primarily due to the effect of various tax credits. An analysis of those differences for the years 
ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 are presented below (in thousands):

 Year Ended December 31,
 2014 2013 2012

Federal tax expense at statutory rates $ 10,015 $ 7,406 $ 7,481
Tax credits(1) (38,445) (28,421) (17,100)
Tax credit-basis reduction 1,647 2,019 2,767
Other tax credits (617) — —
Tax-exempt income (87) (1,070) (918)
Disallowed interest expense 98 117 99
Other 413 198 106
Income tax benefit $ (26,976) $ (19,751) $ (7,565)

(1) As discussed in Note 12, the Company earns Federal NMTC, Federal Historic Rehabilitation, and Low-Income 
Housing tax credits, which reduce the Company’s federal income tax liability or creates a carryforward as applicable.
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The components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31 are presented below (in thousands):

 Year Ended December 31,
 2014 2013

Deferred tax assets:
Loan loss reserve $ 14,817 $ 11,250
Tax credit carryforwards 94,490 65,216
NOL carryforward 7,271 7,317
Stock-based compensation 824 684
Deferred compensation 91 91
Securities available for sale 10,615 8,880
Other real estate 263 250
Basis difference in assumed liabilities 140 338
Other 621 373

Total deferred tax assets 129,132 94,399
Deferred tax liabilities:

Fixed assets 7,190 6,546
Deferred loan costs 6,296 5,157
Amortizable costs 1,388 1,477
State tax credits 1,614 1,155
Investments in tax credit entities 28,625 28,097
Other 558 776

Total deferred tax liabilities 45,671 43,208
Net deferred tax assets $ 83,461 $ 51,191

In the opinion of management, no valuation allowance was required for the net deferred tax assets at December 31, 2014 as the 
amounts will more likely than not be realized as reductions of future taxable income.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company’s net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards were $20.8 million with an expiration date 
of December 2035.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company’s tax credit carryforwards were $94.5 million with expiration dates beginning 
December 2030 through December 2034.

The Company recognized $15.5 million, $14.2 million, and $11.4 million in Federal NMTC in its consolidated income tax 
provision for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively. The Company recognized $3.6 million, $3.7 
million, and $2.5 million in Low-Income Housing Tax Credits in its consolidated income tax provision for the years ended 
December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively. The Company recognized $19.3 million, $10.5 million, and $3.2 million in 
Federal Historic Rehabilitation Tax Credits in its consolidated income tax provision for the years ended December 31, 2014, 
2013, and 2012, respectively.

20. Shareholders’ Equity

Senior Preferred Stock

The Company sold approximately $20.6 million of convertible perpetual preferred stock Series C in 2011. There were no 
shares of the Company's convertible perpetual preferred stock Series C shares that were converted during 2014. During 2013, 
the holder of the convertible perpetual preferred stock Series C converted 551,858 shares into shares of the Company’s $1 par 
common stock. The assumed conversion of the convertible perpetual preferred stock Series C shares outstanding is excluded in 
the calculation of the Company's diluted earnings per share due to the fact that the shares are contingently issuable and the 
contingency still existed as of December 31, 2014 and 2013. 

At December 31, 2014, the Series C preferred stock had an aggregate liquidation preference of approximately $4.5 million and 
qualified as Tier 1 regulatory capital. Each share of Series C preferred stock is convertible at the option of the holder, except in 
certain circumstances when regulatory approval is necessary, into one share of common stock. The Series C preferred stock 
ranks pari passu with the common stock with respect to the payment of dividends. The contingency on the Series C preferred 
stock was in effect at December 31, 2014 and 2013.



93

The Company sold approximately $37.9 million of senior noncumulative perpetual preferred stock, Series D in 2011 to the 
Treasury, pursuant to the Small Business Lending Fund program. At December 31, 2014, the Series D preferred stock had an 
aggregate liquidation preference of approximately $37.9 million and qualified as Tier 1 regulatory capital.

The terms of the Series D preferred stock provide for payment of noncumulative dividends on a quarterly basis beginning 
October 3, 2011. The dividend rate, as a percentage of the liquidation amount, fluctuates, while the Series D preferred stock is 
outstanding based upon changes in the level of qualified small business lending (QSBL) by the Company from its average level 
of QSBL at each of the four quarter-ends leading up to June 30, 2010 (Baseline), as follows:

Dividend Period
Beginning Ending Annualized Dividend Rate

January 1, 2012 March 31, 2012 1.000%
April 1, 2012 June 30, 2012 1.000%
July 1, 2012 December 31, 2013 1.000% to 5.000%
January 1, 2014 February 3, 2016 1.000% to 7.000%
February 4, 2016 Redemption 9.000%

As long as shares of Series D preferred stock remain outstanding, the Company may not pay dividends to common 
shareholders (nor may the Company repurchase or redeem any shares of common stock) during any quarter in which the 
Company fails to declare and pay dividends on the Series D preferred stock and for the next three quarters following such 
failure. In addition, under the terms of the Series D preferred stock, the Company may only declare and pay dividends on 
common stock (or repurchase shares of common stock) if, after payment of such dividend, the dollar amount of Tier 1 capital 
would be at least 90% of Tier 1 capital as of August 4, 2011, excluding charge-offs and redemptions of the Series D preferred 
stock (Tier 1 dividend threshold). Beginning January 1, 2014, the Tier 1 dividend threshold is subject to a reduction based upon 
the extent by which, if at all, the QSBL at September 30, 2013, has increased over the Baseline. The Company was notified in 
2013 that its dividend rate would be 1% from January 1, 2014 until February 3, 2016 because the Company satisfied the 
lending baseline at September 30, 2013.

The Company may redeem the Series D preferred stock at any time at the Company’s option, at a redemption price of 100% of 
the liquidation amount plus accrued but unpaid dividends, subject to the approval of the Company’s primary federal regulatory 
agency.

21. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and changes in those components are presented in the 
following table (in thousands):

Cash Flow
Hedges (1)

Terminated
Cash Flow
Hedge (2)

Transfers of
Available for

Sale
Securities to

Held to
Maturity

Available for
Sale

Securities Total

Balance at January 1, 2014 $ (2,054) $ — $ (3,710) $ (10,751) $ (16,515)
Other comprehensive income before income taxes:

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) (9,757) (7,990) — 12,379 (5,368)
Reclassification of net gains realized and included
in earnings — — — (135) (135)
Amortization of unrealized net gain — — 547 — 547
Income tax expense (benefit) (3,415) (2,796) 191 4,286 (1,734)

Balance at December 31, 2014 $ (8,396) $ (5,194) $ (3,354) $ (2,793) $ (19,737)
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Cash Flow
Hedges (1)

Terminated
Cash Flow
Hedge (2)

Transfers of
Available for

Sale
Securities to

Held to
Maturity

Available for
Sale

Securities Total

Balance at January 1, 2013 $ (4,455) $ — $ — $ 1,529 $ (2,926)
Other comprehensive income before income taxes:

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) 3,694 — (5,919) (18,576) (20,801)
Reclassification of net gains realized and included
in earnings — — — (316) (316)
Amortization of unrealized net gain — — 211 — 211
Income tax expense (benefit) 1,293 — (1,998) (6,612) (7,317)

Balance at December 31, 2013 $ (2,054) $ — $ (3,710) $ (10,751) $ (16,515)

Balance at January 1, 2012 $ — $ — $ — $ 1,795 $ 1,795
Other comprehensive income before income taxes:

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) (6,854) — — 3,956 (2,898)
Reclassification of net gains realized and included
in earnings — — — (4,324) (4,324)
Income tax benefit (2,399) — — (102) (2,501)

Balance at December 31, 2012 $ (4,455) $ — $ — $ 1,529 $ (2,926)

(1) Balances in the Cash Flow Hedge column represent the net operating changes in all of the Company's cash flow hedge 
relationships as of the dates above.

(2) Balances in the Terminated Cash Flow Hedge column represent the net unrealized loss at termination of a certain cash flow 
hedge relationship. See Note 18 for further explanation on the terminated cash flow hedge. 

22. Capital Requirements and Other Regulatory Matters

Regulatory Capital Requirements 

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal and state banking 
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary 
actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the 
Company and the Bank. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the 
Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and 
certain off-balance sheet items. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the 
regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank 
holding companies. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain 
minimum amounts and ratios of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets and ratios of Tier 1 capital to average assets. 
Management believes, as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, that the Company and the Bank met all capital adequacy 
requirements to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2014, the Bank was in compliance with all regulatory requirements and the Bank was classified as “well 
capitalized” for purposes of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation's prompt corrective action requirements. To be 
categorized as well capitalized, an institution must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage 
ratios as set forth in the following table. There are no conditions or events since the notification that management believes have 
changed that categorization. 
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Cash Flow
Hedges (1)

Terminated
Cash Flow
Hedge (2)

Transfers of
Available for

Sale
Securities to

Held to
Maturity

Available for
Sale

Securities Total

Balance at January 1, 2013 $ (4,455) $ — $ — $ 1,529 $ (2,926)
Other comprehensive income before income taxes:

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) 3,694 — (5,919) (18,576) (20,801)
Reclassification of net gains realized and included
in earnings — — — (316) (316)
Amortization of unrealized net gain — — 211 — 211
Income tax expense (benefit) 1,293 — (1,998) (6,612) (7,317)

Balance at December 31, 2013 $ (2,054) $ — $ (3,710) $ (10,751) $ (16,515)

Balance at January 1, 2012 $ — $ — $ — $ 1,795 $ 1,795
Other comprehensive income before income taxes:

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) (6,854) — — 3,956 (2,898)
Reclassification of net gains realized and included
in earnings — — — (4,324) (4,324)
Income tax benefit (2,399) — — (102) (2,501)

Balance at December 31, 2012 $ (4,455) $ — $ — $ 1,529 $ (2,926)

(1) Balances in the Cash Flow Hedge column represent the net operating changes in all of the Company's cash flow hedge 
relationships as of the dates above.

(2) Balances in the Terminated Cash Flow Hedge column represent the net unrealized loss at termination of a certain cash flow 
hedge relationship. See Note 18 for further explanation on the terminated cash flow hedge. 

22. Capital Requirements and Other Regulatory Matters

Regulatory Capital Requirements 

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal and state banking 
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary 
actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the 
Company and the Bank. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the 
Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and 
certain off-balance sheet items. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the 
regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank 
holding companies. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain 
minimum amounts and ratios of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets and ratios of Tier 1 capital to average assets. 
Management believes, as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, that the Company and the Bank met all capital adequacy 
requirements to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2014, the Bank was in compliance with all regulatory requirements and the Bank was classified as “well 
capitalized” for purposes of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation's prompt corrective action requirements. To be 
categorized as well capitalized, an institution must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage 
ratios as set forth in the following table. There are no conditions or events since the notification that management believes have 
changed that categorization. 
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The following tables present the actual capital amounts and regulatory capital ratios for the Company and the Bank as of 
December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands): 

December 31, 2014

 Actual
For Capital Adequacy

Purposes

To Be Well Capitalized
Under Prompt Corrective

Action Provisions
 Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Tier 1 leverage capital:
First NBC Bank Holding Company $ 387,224 10.66% $ 145,320 4.00% NA NA
First NBC Bank 361,078 9.95% 145,130 4.00% $ 181,412 5.00%

Tier 1 risk-based capital:
First NBC Bank Holding Company $ 387,224 11.59% 133,644 4.00% NA NA
First NBC Bank 361,078 10.82% 133,528 4.00% $ 200,292 6.00%

Total risk-based capital:
First NBC Bank Holding Company $ 428,962 12.84% 267,289 8.00% NA NA
First NBC Bank 402,816 12.07% 267,056 8.00% $ 333,820 10.00%

December 31, 2013

 Actual
For Capital Adequacy

Purposes

To Be Well Capitalized
Under Prompt Corrective

Action Provisions
 Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Tier 1 leverage capital:
First NBC Bank Holding Company $ 375,355 11.76% $ 127,625 4.00% NA NA
First NBC Bank 349,104 10.96% 127,435 4.00% $ 159,294 5.00%

Tier 1 risk-based capital:
First NBC Bank Holding Company $ 375,355 13.26% 113,254 4.00% NA NA
First NBC Bank 349,104 12.34% 113,170 4.00% $ 169,755 6.00%

Total risk-based capital:
First NBC Bank Holding Company $ 407,648 14.40% 226,508 8.00% NA NA
First NBC Bank 381,396 13.48% 226,340 8.00% $ 282,924 10.00%

23. Warrants

In connection with the financing of the start-up activities of the Company, the organizing shareholders of the Company 
received warrants for 162,500 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $10 per share. The warrants are exercisable 
immediately and have an expiration date of 10 years. No charge was made to income in connection with the warrants. During 
2014, there were no shares of the organizing shareholders of the Company’s warrants exercised. As of December 31, 2014, a 
total of 125,000 organizer warrants remained outstanding. In connection with the acquisition of Dryades Bancorp, Inc. in 2010, 
the Company issued 87,509 warrants at $19.50 per share, there were no shares of these warrants exercised during 2014, and 
77,426 remained outstanding as of December 31, 2014.

24. Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has various types of stock-based compensation plans. These plans are administered by the Compensation and 
Human Resources Committee of the Board of Directors, which selects persons eligible to receive awards and approves the 
number of shares and/or options subject to each award, the terms, conditions, and other provisions of the awards.

Restricted Stock

The Company issues restricted stock under the 2006 Plan and 2014 Plan for certain officers and directors. The Company 
approved the 2014 Plan during May 2014. There were no restricted stock awards issued under the 2014 Plan during the year.  
These plans authorized the issuance of restricted stock. The plans allow for the issuance of restricted stock awards that may not 
be sold or otherwise transferred until certain restrictions have lapsed.  The unearned compensation related to these awards is 
amortized over the vesting period of 3 years. The total share-based compensation expense related to the awards is determined 



96

based on the market price of the Company's common stock as of the grant date applied to the total number of shares granted 
and is amortized over the vesting period. There were no shares of restricted stock vested as of December 31, 2014. There was 
$0.3 million unearned share-based compensation associated with these awards as of December 31, 2014. There were no 
restricted shares issued during 2013.  

The following table represents unvested restricted stock activity for the year ended December 31, 2014:

Number
of Shares

Weighted-
Average Grant
Date Fair Value

Balance, beginning of year — $ —
Granted 13,021 34.32
Forfeited (129) 34.35
Balance, end of year 12,892 $ 34.32

There was $0.1 million in compensation expense that was included in salaries and benefits expense in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2014. There was no compensation expense included in 
salaries and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. 

Stock Options

The Company issues stock options to directors, officers, and other key employees. The option exercise price cannot be less than 
the fair value of the underlying common stock as of the date of the option grant and the maximum option term cannot exceed 
10 years. The stock options granted were issued with vesting periods ranging from 3 to 4 years. At December 31, 2014, there 
were 1.1 million shares available for future issuance of option or restricted stock awards under approved compensation plans.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, total stock option compensation expense that is included in salaries 
and employee benefits expense was $0.6 million, $0.7 million, and $0.5 million, respectively. The related income tax benefit in 
the accompanying consolidated statements of income was $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 and $0.2 million 
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of the stock options awards. The 
following weighted-average assumptions were used for option awards granted during the years ended December 31 of the 
periods indicated:

2014 2013 2012

Expected dividend yield —% —% —%
Weighted-average expected volatility 44.53% 36.68% 35.33%
Weighted-average risk-free interest rate 2.21% 1.73% 1.25%
Expected option term (in years) 6.0 6.0 6.3
Contractual term (in years) 10.0 10.0 10.0
Weighted-average grant date fair value $ 15.56 $ 5.22 $ 5.49

The assumptions above were based on multiple factors, primarily the historical stock option patterns of a group of publicly 
traded peer banks based in the southeastern United States.

At December 31, 2014, there was $1.4 million in unrecognized compensation cost related to stock options which is expected to 
be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.7 years.
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The following table represents the activity related to stock options during the periods indicated:

Number
of Shares

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual
Term (Years)

Options outstanding, December 31, 2011 443,658 $ 11.11
Granted 378,692 14.69
Exercised — —
Forfeited or expired (13,333) 14.43
Options outstanding, December 31, 2012 809,017 11.81
Granted 139,650 16.16
Exercised (76,966) 10.39
Forfeited or expired (16,600) 15.16
Options outstanding, December 31, 2013 855,101 13.48
Granted 38,013 34.32
Exercised (57,370) 12.26
Forfeited or expired (1,074) 22.13
Options outstanding, December 31, 2014 834,670 $ 14.50 6.41
Options exercisable, December 31, 2012 289,444 $ 10.60
Options exercisable, December 31, 2013 374,535 $ 11.94
Options exercisable, December 31, 2014 522,600 $ 12.70 5.57

The following table presents weighted-average remaining life as of December 31, 2014 for options outstanding within the 
stated exercise prices:

 Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Exercise Price Range
Per Share

Number
of Shares

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Life

(Years)
Number
of Shares

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price

$10.00-$12.70 323,294 $ 11.33 4.39 323,294 $ 11.33
$14.20-$14.88 342,108 14.68 7.33 157,233 14.59
$15.88-$23.68 169,268 20.21 8.40 42,073 16.19
Total Options 834,670 $ 14.50 6.41 522,600 $ 12.70

At December 31, 2014, the aggregate intrinsic value of shares underlying outstanding stock options and underlying exercisable 
stock options was $17.0 million and $11.8 million, respectively. Total intrinsic value of options exercised was $1.2 million for 
the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. There were no options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2012.

25. Financial Instruments With Off-Balance-Sheet Risk

The Company is a party to various financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet 
the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of 
credit, which are recorded when they are funded. Such commitments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in 
excess of the amounts recognized in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had made various commitments to extend credit of $620.3 million and $375.2 
million, respectively. The Company’s management does not anticipate any material loss as a result of these transactions.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established 
in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a 
fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being fully drawn upon, the total commitment amounts 
disclosed above do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each customer’s 
creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if considered necessary upon extension of credit, is 
based on management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty.
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Standby letters of credit represent commitments by the Company to meet the obligations of certain customers, if called upon. 
These financial instruments are considered guarantees in accordance with ASC 460. Outstanding standby letters of credit as of 
December 31, 2014 were $110.6 million and expire between 2015 and 2040. Outstanding standby letters of credit as of 
December 31, 2013, were $106.5 million and expire between 2014 and 2040. Net unamortized fees related to letters of credit 
origination were $0.3 million and $0.2 million in 2014 and 2013, respectively. Net unamortized costs related to letters of credit 
origination were $0.2 million and $0.3 million in 2014 and 2013, respectively.

26. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases certain branch offices through noncancelable operating leases with terms that range from one to 30 years, 
with renewal options thereafter. Certain leases have escalation clauses and renewal options ranging from one to 59 years. Rent 
expense was approximately $3.2 million, $3.3 million, and $3.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 
2012, respectively.

At December 31, 2014, the minimum annual rental payments to be made under the noncancelable leases are as follows (in 
thousands):

Year ending December 31:
2015 $ 3,387
2016 3,349
2017 3,356
2018 3,035
2019 2,862
Thereafter 31,976

$ 47,965

Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the 
financing needs of its customers. These transactions include commitments to extend credit in the ordinary course of business to 
approved customers. Generally, loan commitments have been granted on a temporary basis for working capital or commercial 
real estate financing requirements or may be reflective of loans in various stages of funding. These commitments are recorded 
on the Company’s financial statements as they are funded. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other 
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Loan commitments include unused commitments for open-end lines 
secured by one to four family residential properties and commercial properties, commitments to fund loans secured by 
commercial real estate, construction loans, business lines of credit, and other unused commitments. Standby letters of credit are 
written conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. In the 
event the customer does not perform in accordance with the terms of the agreement with the third party, the Company would be 
required to fund the commitment. The maximum potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make 
is represented by the contractual amount of the commitment. If the commitment is funded, the Company would be entitled to 
seek recovery from the customer. The Company minimizes its exposure to loss under loan commitments and standby letters of 
credit by subjecting them to credit approval and monitoring procedures. The effect on the Company’s revenues, expenses, cash 
flows, and liquidity of the unused portions of these commitments cannot be reasonably predicted because there is no guarantee 
that the lines of credit will be used.

The following is a summary of the total notional amount of loan commitments and standby letters of credit outstanding at 
December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands):

2014 2013

Standby letters of credit $ 110,636 $ 106,467
Unused loan commitments 509,665 268,760
Total $ 620,301 $ 375,227
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27. Related-Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of business, the Company makes loans to and holds deposits for directors and executive officers of the 
Company and their associates.

The amounts of such related-party loans were $64.9 million and $47.8 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 
During 2014, $40.8 million in related-party loans were funded and $23.7 million were repaid. Also, in the ordinary course of 
business, the Company makes loans to affiliate entities of the Bank. These loans totaled $41.4 million and $40.2 million as of 
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. None of the related-party loans and affiliate entity loans were classified as 
nonaccrual, past due, restructured, or potential problem loans at December 31, 2014 or 2013. The amounts of such related-party 
deposits were $14.4 million and $17.9 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Company leases a building from a partnership that is owned by two directors of the Company. The Company paid 
approximately $0.2 million in rent expense related to this lease for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012. The 
lease also includes options for multiple five-year term extensions beyond the original lease expiration of October 2004, 
provided there were no defaults of material lease provisions by the lessee. The Company exercised an option to extend the lease 
for an additional five years in October 2014.

28. Employee Benefits

401(k) Profit-Sharing Plan

The Company participates in a contributory retirement and savings plan (the Plan), which covers substantially all employees 
and meets the requirements of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions to the Plan are based on 
the participants’ contributions, with an additional discretionary contribution as determined by the Board of Directors. Company 
contributions under the Plan were approximately $1.1 million, $1.0 million, and $0.9 million for the years ended December 31, 
2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively. The Company pays all expenses associated with the Plan.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

The Company sponsors an employee stock ownership plan (ESOP), which holds 50,000 shares of Company stock, subject to 
indebtedness utilized to purchase the shares in 2009. The leveraged ESOP allocates shares annually to eligible employee 
participants pro rata based on compensation. All participants vest in the annual allocations at 20% per year. The Company 
recognized compensation expense with respect to the ESOP of $0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, and $0.2 
million for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. The Company pays all expenses associated with the ESOP.

29. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, clarifies the principle that fair value should be based on the assumptions 
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability and establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the 
inputs used to develop those assumptions and measure fair value. The hierarchy requires companies to maximize the use of 
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as 
follows:

• Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

• Level 2 – Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets and 
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, or other 
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

• Level 3 – Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the 
assets or liabilities. This includes certain pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, and similar techniques that 
use significant unobservable inputs.

A description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value follows, as well as the classification
of such instruments within the valuation hierarchy.

Securities are classified within Level 1 when quoted market prices are available in an active market. Inputs include securities 
that have quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. If quoted market prices are unavailable, fair value is estimated 
using pricing models or quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, at which point the securities would be classified 
within Level 2 of the hierarchy. Examples include certain available for sale securities. The Company’s investment portfolio did 
not include Level 3 securities as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.



100

The Company has segregated all financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis into the most 
appropriate level within the fair value hierarchy, based on the inputs used to determine the fair value at the measurement date in 
the tables below (in thousands):

December 31, 2014
Fair Value Measurement Using

 Total

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical Assets

(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Assets
Available for sale securities:

U.S. government agency securities $ 157,527 $ — $ 157,527 $ —
U.S. Treasury securities 12,610 — 12,610 —
Municipal securities 12,246 — 12,246 —
Mortgage-backed securities 57,087 — 57,087 —
Corporate bonds 8,177 — 8,177 —

$ 247,647 $ — $ 247,647 $ —
Derivative instruments 37 — 37 —
Total $ 247,684 $ — $ 247,684 $ —
Liabilities
Derivative instruments $ 12,953 $ — $ 12,953 $ —

  December 31, 2013

  Fair Value Measurement Using

 Total

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical Assets

(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Assets
Available for sale securities:

U.S. government agency securities $ 151,323 $ — $ 151,323 $ —
U.S. Treasury securities 12,149 — 12,149 —
Municipal securities 23,167 — 23,167 —
Mortgage-backed securities 55,544 — 55,544 —
Corporate bonds 35,536 — 35,536 —

$ 277,719 $ — $ 277,719 $ —
Derivative instruments 1,157 — 1,157 —
Total $ 278,876 $ — $ 278,876 $ —
Liabilities
Derivative instruments $ 4,317 $ — $ 4,317 $ —
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The Company has segregated all financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis into the 
most appropriate level within the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to determine the fair value at the measurement 
date in the tables below (in thousands):

December 31, 2014
Fair Value Measurement Using

 Total

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical Assets

(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Assets
Loans $ 20,679 $ — $ — $ 20,679
OREO 3,022 — — 3,022

$ 23,701 $ — $ — $ 23,701

  December 31, 2013
  Fair Value Measurement Using

 Total

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical Assets

(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Assets
Loans $ 9,782 $ — $ — $ 9,782
OREO 2,390 — — 2,390

$ 12,172 $ — $ — $ 12,172

In accordance with ASC Topic 310, the Company records loans and other real estate considered impaired at the lower of cost or 
fair value. Impaired loans, recorded at fair value, are Level 3 assets measured using appraisals from external parties of the 
collateral, less any prior liens primarily using the market or income approach.

The Company did not record any liabilities at fair value for which measurement of the fair value was made on a nonrecurring 
basis during the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

ASC 820 requires the disclosure of the fair value for each class of financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate. 
The fair value of a financial instrument is the current amount that would be exchanged between willing parties, other than in a 
forced liquidation. Fair value is best determined based upon quoted market prices. However, in many instances, there are no 
quoted market prices for the Company’s various financial instruments. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, 
fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected 
by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates 
may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the instrument. ASC 820 excludes certain financial instruments and all 
nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented may not 
necessarily represent the underlying fair value of the Company.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument for which it is 
practicable to estimate that value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments

The carrying amounts of these short-term instruments approximate their fair values and would be classified within Level 1 of 
the hierarchy.

Investment in Short-Term Receivables

The carrying amounts of these short-term receivables approximate their fair value and would be classified within Level 1 of the 
hierarchy.
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Investment Securities

Securities are classified within Level 1 where quoted market prices are available in the active market. If quoted market prices 
are unavailable, fair value is estimated using pricing models or quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, at which 
point the securities would be classified within Level 2 of the hierarchy. Inputs include securities that have quoted prices in 
active markets for identical assets.

Loans

For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit risk, fair values are based on carrying 
values. Fair values for fixed-rate commercial real estate, commercial loans, and consumer loans are estimated using discounted 
cash flow analyses using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms and borrowers of similar credit 
quality. Fair value of mortgage loans held for sale is based on commitments on hand from investors or prevailing market rates. 
The fair value associated with the loans includes estimates related to expected prepayments and the amount and timing of 
undiscounted expected principal, interest and other cash flows, which would be classified as Level 3 of the hierarchy.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance

The carrying amounts of the bank-owned life insurance policies are recorded at cash surrender value, which approximate their 
fair values and would be classified within Level 1 of the hierarchy.

Deposits

The fair values disclosed for demand deposits are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date 
(that is, their carrying amounts) and would be categorized within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The carrying amounts of 
variable-rate, fixed-term money market accounts approximate their fair values at the reporting date. Fair values for fixed-rate 
certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered 
on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits. The fair value of the Company’s 
interest-bearing deposits would, therefore, be categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Short-Term Borrowings and Repurchase Agreements

The carrying amounts of these short-term instruments approximate their fair values and would be classified within Level 2 of 
the hierarchy.

Long-Term Borrowings

The fair values of long-term borrowings are estimated using discounted cash flows analyses based on the Company’s current 
incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements. The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt 
would, therefore, be categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Derivative Instruments

Fair values for interest rate swap agreements are based upon the amounts required to settle the contracts. The derivative 
instruments are classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Investment Securities

Securities are classified within Level 1 where quoted market prices are available in the active market. If quoted market prices 
are unavailable, fair value is estimated using pricing models or quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, at which 
point the securities would be classified within Level 2 of the hierarchy. Inputs include securities that have quoted prices in 
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The fair value associated with the loans includes estimates related to expected prepayments and the amount and timing of 
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The carrying amounts of the bank-owned life insurance policies are recorded at cash surrender value, which approximate their 
fair values and would be classified within Level 1 of the hierarchy.

Deposits

The fair values disclosed for demand deposits are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date 
(that is, their carrying amounts) and would be categorized within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The carrying amounts of 
variable-rate, fixed-term money market accounts approximate their fair values at the reporting date. Fair values for fixed-rate 
certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered 
on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits. The fair value of the Company’s 
interest-bearing deposits would, therefore, be categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Short-Term Borrowings and Repurchase Agreements

The carrying amounts of these short-term instruments approximate their fair values and would be classified within Level 2 of 
the hierarchy.

Long-Term Borrowings

The fair values of long-term borrowings are estimated using discounted cash flows analyses based on the Company’s current 
incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements. The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt 
would, therefore, be categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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instruments are classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments were as follows as of the dates indicated (in thousands):

 Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2014

 
Carrying
Amount Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets:
Cash and due from banks $ 32,484 $ 32,484 $ 32,484 $ — $ —
Short-term investments 18,404 18,404 18,404 — —
Investment in short-term receivables 237,135 237,135 237,135 — —
Investment securities available for sale 247,647 247,647 — 247,647 —
Investment securities held to maturity 89,076 90,956 — 90,956 —
Loans and loans held for sale 2,775,886 3,003,280 — — 3,003,280
Cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance 47,289 47,289 47,289 — —
Derivative instruments 37 37 — 37 —

Financial Liabilities:
Deposits, noninterest-bearing 364,534 364,534 — 364,534 —
Deposits, interest-bearing 2,756,316 2,722,134 — — 2,722,134
Repurchase agreements 117,991 117,991 — 117,991 —
Long-term borrowings 40,000 42,270 — — 42,270
Derivative instruments 12,953 12,953 — 12,953 —

 Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2013

 
Carrying
Amount Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets:
Cash and due from banks $ 28,140 $ 28,140 $ 28,140 $ — $ —
Short-term investments 3,502 3,502 3,502 — —
Investment in short-term receivables 246,817 246,817 246,817 — —
Investment securities available for sale 277,719 277,719 — 277,719 —
Investment securities held to maturity 94,904 90,966 — 90,966 —
Loans and loans held for sale 2,364,354 2,344,475 — — 2,344,475
Cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance 26,187 26,187 26,187 — —
Derivative instruments 1,157 1,157 — 1,157 —

Financial Liabilities:
Deposits, noninterest-bearing 291,080 291,080 — 291,080 —
Deposits, interest-bearing 2,439,727 2,380,985 — — 2,380,985
Repurchase agreements 75,957 75,957 — 75,957 —
Short-term borrowings 8,425 8,425 — 8,425 —
Long-term borrowings 55,110 55,616 — — 55,616
Derivative instruments 4,317 4,317 — 4,317 —
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30. Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Financial statements of First NBC Bank Holding Company (parent company only) are shown below. The parent company has 
no significant operating activities.

Balance Sheets

 December 31,
(In thousands) 2014 2013

Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 23,736 $ 23,990
Goodwill 841 841
Investments in subsidiaries 409,689 355,068
Other assets 2,145 2,123
Total assets $ 436,411 $ 382,022
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Long-term borrowings $ — $ 110
Other liabilities 36 53
Total liabilities 36 163
Total shareholders’ equity 436,375 381,859
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 436,411 $ 382,022

Statements of Income

 Year Ended December 31,
(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Operating income
Interest income $ — $ — $ —
Dividend from bank subsidiary — 2,000 —

Total operating income — 2,000 —
Operating expense

Interest expense 3 424 11
Other expense 1,414 856 431

Total operating expense 1,417 1,280 442
Income (loss) before income tax benefit and increase in equity in
undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (1,417) 720 (442)
Income tax benefit (496) (448) (155)
Income (loss) before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (921) 1,168 (287)
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 56,510 39,743 29,227

Net income 55,589 40,911 28,940
Preferred stock dividends (379) (347) (510)
Income available to common shareholders $ 55,210 $ 40,564 $ 28,430
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Income (loss) before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (921) 1,168 (287)
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 56,510 39,743 29,227

Net income 55,589 40,911 28,940
Preferred stock dividends (379) (347) (510)
Income available to common shareholders $ 55,210 $ 40,564 $ 28,430
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Statements of Cash Flows

 Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Operating activities
Net income $ 55,589 $ 40,911 $ 28,940
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) provided by

operating activities:
Net income of subsidiaries (56,510) (39,743) (29,227)
Deferred tax benefit (496) (448) (155)
Stock compensation 333 1,155 97
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Change in other assets 474 1,481 (1,989)
Change in other liabilities (17) 50 —

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (627) 3,406 (2,334)
Investing activities
Capital contributed to subsidiary, net — (67,000) (16,600)
Net cash used in investing activities — (67,000) (16,600)
Financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings — — 20,000
Repayment of borrowings (110) (20,110) (110)
Proceeds from sale of common stock, net of offering costs 862 104,332 1,420
Dividends paid (379) (347) (510)
Net cash provided by financing activities 373 83,875 20,800
Net change in cash, due from banks, and short-term investments (254) 20,281 1,866
Cash, due from banks, and short-term investments at beginning of period 23,990 3,709 1,843
Cash, due from banks, and short-term investments at end of period $ 23,736 $ 23,990 $ 3,709

31. Consolidated Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited) 

(In thousands, except per share data)
First 

Quarter
Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

Year Ended December 31, 2014
Total interest income $ 35,161 $ 37,193 $ 38,668 $ 38,956
Total interest expense 10,313 10,643 10,908 10,865
Net interest income 24,848 26,550 27,760 28,091
Provision for loan losses 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 21,848 23,550 24,760 25,091

Noninterest income 3,359 2,933 3,034 2,287
Noninterest expense 17,337 18,568 20,047 22,297

Income before income taxes 7,870 7,915 7,747 5,081
Income tax benefit (4,958) (4,784) (6,612) (10,622)
Net income attributable to Company 12,828 12,699 14,359 15,703
Less preferred stock dividends (95) (95) (95) (94)
Less earnings allocated to participating securities (246) (243) (275) (302)
Income available to common shareholders $ 12,487 $ 12,361 $ 13,989 $ 15,307
Earnings per common share-basic $ 0.68 $ 0.67 $ 0.75 $ 0.82
Earnings per common share-diluted $ 0.66 $ 0.65 $ 0.73 $ 0.80  
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(In thousands, except per share data)
First

Quarter
Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

Year Ended December 31, 2013
Total interest income $ 28,580 $ 29,034 $ 31,973 $ 34,437
Total interest expense 8,893 9,779 10,150 10,326
Net interest income 19,687 19,255 21,823 24,111
Provision for loan losses 2,600 2,400 2,400 2,400
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 17,087 16,855 19,423 21,711

Noninterest income 2,827 2,738 2,461 5,400
Noninterest expense 15,643 15,185 17,092 19,422

Income before income taxes 4,271 4,408 4,792 7,689
Income tax benefit (4,013) (4,198) (5,673) (5,867)
Net income 8,284 8,606 10,465 13,556
Less net income attributable to noncontrolling interest — — — —
Net income attributable to Company 8,284 8,606 10,465 13,556
Less preferred stock dividends (95) (95) (62) (95)
Less earnings allocated to participating securities (538) (455) (519) (468)
Income available to common shareholders $ 7,651 $ 8,056 $ 9,884 $ 12,993
Earnings per common share-basic $ 0.59 $ 0.51 $ 0.55 $ 0.71
Earnings per common share-diluted $ 0.58 $ 0.49 $ 0.54 $ 0.69

32. Subsequent Events

Acquisitions 

Acquisition of State-Investors Bank 

On December 30, 2014, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to acquire State Investors Bancorp, Inc. (“State 
Investors”), the holding company for State-Investors Bank, a full service bank with four offices located in the New Orleans 
metropolitan area, by means of a merger. The merger agreement has been approved by the boards of directors of the Company 
and State Investors, and the merger is expected to close in the second quarter of 2015, subject to customary closing conditions, 
including the receipt of required regulatory approvals and the approval of the shareholders of State Investors.  Promptly 
following the holding company merger, the Company expects to merge the subsidiary banks under the charter of First NBC 
Bank.

Under the terms of the merger agreement, shareholders of State Investors will receive $21.25 in cash for each share of State 
Investors stock owned by them at the effective time of the merger. The merger agreement also provides that holders of options 
to purchase shares of State Investors common stock will receive, in exchange for their stock options, cash consideration equal 
to the difference between $21.25 and the exercise price of the option. 

The merger allows the Company to enter into a new section of the New Orleans metropolitan area with a very strong 
demographic make-up, provides liquidity to allow the Company to fund loan growth, adds approximately $156.0 million in 
deposits in the New Orleans MSA, and allows the Company to effectively deploy capital.

Acquisition of Certain Assets and Liabilities of First National Bank of Crestview 

On January 16, 2015, the Company announced an agreement with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) and 
purchased certain assets and assumed certain liabilities from the FDIC, as receiver for First National Bank of Crestview, a full-
service commercial bank headquartered in Crestview, Florida, which was closed and placed into receivership. Under the 
agreement, the Company agreed to assume all of the deposit liabilities, and acquire approximately $62.3 million of assets, of 
the failed bank.  The acquired assets included the failed bank's performing loans, substantially all of its investment securities 
portfolio, and its three banking facilities, with the FDIC retaining the failed bank's other real estate owned. The transaction was 
effective immediately and did not include a loss-share agreement with the FDIC.
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Private Placement of Subordinated Notes 

Subordinated Notes due 2025

On February 18, 2015, the Company completed a private placement of $60.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 
subordinated notes to certain qualified institutional investors. Unless earlier redeemed, the notes mature on February 18, 2025 
and bear interest at a fixed rate of 5.75% per annum, payable semiannually, over their term. 
 
The Company plans to use the net proceeds from the sale of the subordinated notes for general corporate purposes, which may 
include supporting the continued growth of its business, acquisitions, and the redemption or repayment of other fixed 
obligations.
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Item 9.   Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures.

None.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Management of the Company, with the supervision and participation of its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, 
has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in 
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of the end of the period covered by this report.  
In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, 
no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, 
and management was required to apply judgment in evaluating its controls and procedures.  Based on this evaluation, the 
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act), were effective as of the end of the period 
covered by this report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(f) 
under the Exchange Act) during the period covered by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to 
materially affect, its internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. 
The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of its Chief Executive 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of our financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

As of December 31, 2014, management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting 
based on the criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting established in “Internal Control-Integrated 
Framework (2013),” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) of the Treadway Commission.  Based on 
the assessment, management determined that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2014.

Item 9B.  Other Information.

None.

Part III.
 

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this item can be found in our 2015 Proxy Statement under the captions “Item One – Election of 
Directors,” “Corporate Governance and Board Matters” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership and Compliance.” That 
information is incorporated into this item by reference. 

Item 11.  Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item can be found in our 2015 Proxy Statement under the captions “Executive 
Compensation,” “Director Compensation,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation,” and 
“Compensation Committee Report.” That information is incorporated into this item by reference. 

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder Matters.

The information required by this item can be found in our 2015 Proxy Statement under the captions “Security Ownership of 
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information.” That information is incorporated 
into this item by reference.
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Item 9.   Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures.

None.
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In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, 
no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, 
and management was required to apply judgment in evaluating its controls and procedures.  Based on this evaluation, the 
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act), were effective as of the end of the period 
covered by this report.
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There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(f) 
under the Exchange Act) during the period covered by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to 
materially affect, its internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. 
The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of its Chief Executive 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of our financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

As of December 31, 2014, management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting 
based on the criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting established in “Internal Control-Integrated 
Framework (2013),” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) of the Treadway Commission.  Based on 
the assessment, management determined that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2014.

Item 9B.  Other Information.

None.

Part III.
 

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this item can be found in our 2015 Proxy Statement under the captions “Item One – Election of 
Directors,” “Corporate Governance and Board Matters” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership and Compliance.” That 
information is incorporated into this item by reference. 

Item 11.  Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item can be found in our 2015 Proxy Statement under the captions “Executive 
Compensation,” “Director Compensation,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation,” and 
“Compensation Committee Report.” That information is incorporated into this item by reference. 

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder Matters.

The information required by this item can be found in our 2015 Proxy Statement under the captions “Security Ownership of 
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information.” That information is incorporated 
into this item by reference.
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Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Directors Independence.

The information required by this item can be found in our 2015 Proxy Statement under the captions “Certain Relationships and 
Related Transactions” and “Corporate Governance Principles and Board Matters-Director Independence” in the Proxy 
Statement. This information is incorporated into this item by reference. 

Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required herein is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.

Part IV. 

Item 15.  Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Documents Filed as Part of this Report. 

(1) The following financial statements are incorporated by reference from Item 8 hereof:

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

(2) All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the SEC are omitted because of the 
absence of conditions under which they are required or because the required information is included in the consolidated 
financial statements and related notes thereto.

(3) The following exhibits are filed as part of this Form 10-K, and this list includes the Exhibit Index.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Number   Description   Location

2.1   Purchase and Assumption
Agreement, dated as of January 16,
2015, among the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation, as Receiver
of First National Bank of Crestview,
First NBC Bank, and the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation*

  Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed
January 23, 2015

3.1   Restated Articles of Incorporation   Exhibit 3.1 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A of the
Company filed April 30, 2013

3.2   Amended and Restated Bylaws   Exhibit 3.2 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A of the
Company filed May 7, 2013

4.1   Specimen common stock certificate   Exhibit 4.1 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A of the
Company filed April 30, 2013

4.2 Purchase agreement, dated as of
February 18, 2015, of 5.75%
Subordinated Notes due 2025

Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed
February 19, 2015

4.3 Indenture, dated as of February 18,
2015, between First NBC Bank
Holding Company and U.S Bank
National Association

Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed
February 19, 2015

4.4   Form of 5.75% Subordinated Note
due 2025, dated as of February 18,
2015

  Exhibit 4.3 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed
February 19, 2015

10.1   First NBC Bank Holding Company
Stock Incentive Plan (“2006 Plan”)

  Exhibit 10.1 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1 of the
Company filed April 8, 2013

10.2   Amendment No. 1 to 2006 Plan   Exhibit 10.2 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1 of the
Company filed April 8, 2013

10.3   Addendum (Directors’ Shares) to
2006 Plan

  Exhibit 10.3 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1 of the
Company filed April 8, 2013

10.4   2012 Amendment to 2006 Plan   Exhibit 10.4 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1 of the
Company filed April 8, 2013

10.5   Form of Stock Option Award
Agreement under 2006 Plan

  Exhibit 10.5 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1 of the
Company filed April 8, 2013

10.6   Form of Restricted Stock Award
Agreement under 2006 Plan

  Exhibit 10.6 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1 of the
Company filed April 8, 2013

10.7   Form of Warrant Agreement relating
to warrants issued to organizers of
First NBC Bank

  Exhibit 10.7 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1 of the
Company filed April 8, 2013
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Exhibit Number   Description   Location

10.8   Form of Warrant Agreement relating
to warrants issued to shareholders of
Dryades Bancorp, Inc.

  Exhibit 10.8 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1 of the
Company filed April 8, 2013

10.9   Securities Purchase Agreement,
dated as of June 29, 2011, by and
between First NBC Bank Holding
Company and Castle Creek Capital
Partners IV, L.P.*

  Exhibit 10.12 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1 of the
Company filed April 8, 2013

10.10   VCOC Letter Agreement, dated
November 8, 2011, by and between
First NBC Bank Holding Company
and Castle Creek Capital Partners
IV, L.P.*

  Exhibit 10.13 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1 of the
Company filed April 8, 2013

10.11   Securities Purchase Agreement,
dated as of August 4, 2011, by and
between the Secretary of the
Treasury and First NBC Bank
Holding Company, in connection
with First NBC Bank Holding
Company’s participation in the U.S.
Treasury’s Small Business Lending
Fund program*

  Exhibit 10.14 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1 of the
Company filed April 8, 2013

10.12   Letter Agreement, dated September
27, 2011, by and among First NBC
Bank Holding Company, Investure
Evergreen Fund, LP – 2011 Special
Term Tranche, and Blue Pine
Crescent Limited Partnership

  Exhibit 10.16 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1 of the
Company filed April 8, 2013

10.13   First NBC Bank Holding Company
Deferred Compensation Plan,
Effective June 30, 2012

  Exhibit 10.17 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-1 of the
Company filed April 8, 2013

10.14 First NBC Bank Holding Company
2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan

Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed
May 23, 2014

21.1   Subsidiaries of First NBC Bank
Holding Company

  Filed herewith

23.1   Consent of Ernst & Young LLP   Filed herewith

31.1   Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief
Executive Officer of the Company in
accordance with Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

  Filed herewith

31.2   Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief
Financial Officer of the Company in
accordance with Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

  Filed herewith

32.1   Section 1350 Certification of Chief
Executive Officer of the Company in
accordance with Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

  Filed herewith
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Exhibit Number   Description   Location

32.2   Section 1350 Certification of Chief
Financial Officer of the Company in
accordance with Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

  Filed herewith

101.INS+   XBRL Instance Document   Filed herewith

101.SCH+   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
Document

  Filed herewith

101.CAL+   XBRL Taxonomy Extension
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  Filed herewith

101.LAB+   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label
Linkbase Document

  Filed herewith

101.PRE+   XBRL Taxonomy Extension
Presentation Linkbase Document

  Filed herewith

101.DEF+   XBRL Taxonomy Extension
Definitions Linkbase Document

  Filed herewith

 

* Schedules and similar attachments have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. The Company
will furnish supplementally a copy of any omitted schedules or similar attachment to the SEC upon request.

+ Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the Interactive Data Files on Exhibit 101 hereto are deemed not filed or part
of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and
otherwise are not subject to liability under those sections.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on 
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
 

 First NBC Bank Holding Company

Date: March 31, 2015  By: /s/ Ashton J. Ryan, Jr.
 Ashton J. Ryan, Jr.
 President and Chief Executive Officer
 Principal Executive Officer

Date: March 31, 2015  By: /s/ Mary Beth Verdigets
 Mary Beth Verdigets
 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
 Principal Financial and Accounting Officer

Date: March 31, 2015 By: /s/ William D. Aaron, Jr.
William D. Aaron, Jr.
Director
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on 
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
 

 First NBC Bank Holding Company

Date: March 31, 2015  By: /s/ Ashton J. Ryan, Jr.
 Ashton J. Ryan, Jr.
 President and Chief Executive Officer
 Principal Executive Officer

Date: March 31, 2015  By: /s/ Mary Beth Verdigets
 Mary Beth Verdigets
 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
 Principal Financial and Accounting Officer

Date: March 31, 2015 By: /s/ William D. Aaron, Jr.
William D. Aaron, Jr.
Director
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Date: March 31, 2015  By: /s/ William Carrouche
 William Carrouche
 Director

Date: March 31, 2015  By: /s/ John F. French
 John F. French
 Director

Date: March 31, 2015  By: /s/ Leander J. Foley, III
 Leander J. Foley, III
 Director

Date: March 31, 2015  By: /s/ Leon L. Giorgio, Jr.
 Leon L. Giorgio, Jr.
 Director

Date: March 31, 2015  By: /s/ Shivan Govindan
 Shivan Govindan
 Director

Date: March 31, 2015  By: /s/ L. Blake Jones
 L. Blake Jones
 Director

Date: March 31, 2015  By: /s/ Louis V. Lauricella
 Louis V. Lauricella
 Director

Date: March 31, 2015  By: /s/ Mark G. Merlo
 Mark G. Merlo
 Director

Date: March 31, 2015  By: /s/ Dr. Charles C. Teamer
 Dr. Charles C. Teamer
 Director

Date: March 31, 2015  By: /s/ Joseph F. Toomy
 Joseph F. Toomy
 Director



Exhibit 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

The following is a list of the consolidated subsidiaries of First NBC Bank Holding Company, the names under which such 
subsidiaries do business, and the state in which each was organized, as of December 31, 2014. All subsidiaries are wholly-
owned.

Subsidiaries of First NBC Bank Holding Company:

Name State of Organization

First NBC Bank Louisiana
First NBC Acquisition Company, LLC Louisiana

Subsidiaries of First NBC Bank: 

Name State of Organization

First NBC Community Development, LLC Louisiana
First NMTC #1, LLC Louisiana
First NMTC #2, LLC Louisiana
FNBC MLK Investment, LLC Louisiana
First NBC Mortgage, LLC Louisiana
First NBC Community Development Fund, LLC Louisiana
First NBC Historic Tax Partners, LLC Louisiana
First Equities and Securities, LLC Louisiana
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-200193) pertaining to the Stock 
Incentive Plan of First NBC Bank Holding Company of our report dated March 31, 2015, with respect to the consolidated 
financial statements of First NBC Bank Holding Company, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of 
First NBC Bank Holding Company, included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2014.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

New Orleans, Louisiana
March 31, 2015



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Ashton J. Ryan, Jr., President and Chief Executive Officer of First NBC Bank Holding Company, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of First NBC Bank Holding Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not 
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in 
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods 
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed 
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated 
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is 
being prepared;

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our 
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by 
this report based on such evaluation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of the annual report) that has 
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over 
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons 
performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial 
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and 
report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the 
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2015
/s/ Ashton J. Ryan, Jr.
Ashton J. Ryan, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer
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financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons 
performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial 
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and 
report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the 
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2015
/s/ Ashton J. Ryan, Jr.
Ashton J. Ryan, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer

 

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Mary Beth Verdigets, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of First NBC Bank Holding Company, certify 
that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of First NBC Bank Holding Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not 
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in 
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods 
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed 
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated 
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is 
being prepared;

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our 
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by 
this report based on such evaluation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of the annual report) that has 
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over 
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons 
performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial 
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and 
report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the 
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2015
/s/ Mary Beth Verdigets
Mary Beth Verdigets
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

 



Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of First NBC Bank Holding Company (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2014 (the “Report”), I, Ashton J. Ryan, Jr., President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, 
to the best of my knowledge, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of 
operations of the Company.

Date: March 31, 2015
/s/ Ashton J. Ryan, Jr.
Ashton J. Ryan, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer
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In connection with the Annual Report of First NBC Bank Holding Company (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2014 (the “Report”), I, Ashton J. Ryan, Jr., President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, 
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(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of 
operations of the Company.

Date: March 31, 2015
/s/ Ashton J. Ryan, Jr.
Ashton J. Ryan, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of First NBC Bank Holding Company (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2014 (the “Report”), I, Mary Beth Verdigets, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company, certify, to the best of my knowledge, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of 
operations of the Company.

Date: March 31, 2015
/s/ Mary Beth Verdigets
Mary Beth Verdigets
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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